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INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM 1
AND ACCOMPANYING STATEMENT AND EXHIBITS

1. Form 1 and the accompanying statement and exhibits shall be filed in duplicate, each of which shall be signed and
attested by duly authorized officials of the exchange.

2. An exchange may use the printed Form 1 and statement. If the space provided in the statement for an answer to any
item is insufficient, the answer may be typed on a separate insert page of pages which shall be incorporated into the
statement by reference thereto in the space provided for the item.

If the exchange does not use the printed Form 1 and statement it shall type or print a complete Form 1 and statement

4. If the information called for by an exhibit is available in printed form, the printed material may be used provided it
does not exceed 8%z x 11 inches in size.

5. If any item of the statement is inapplicable to that effect shall be made following the item. If any exhibit called for is
inapplicable, a statement to that effect shall be furnished in lieu of such exhibit.

6. All answers to items of the statements shall be stated as briefly as completeness will permit, and may be expanded upon
or qualified by reference to applicable pages, articles, sections or paragraphs of any exhibit.

7. Paperwork Reduction Act Disclosures:

a. Form 1 requires that, in order to register with the Commission as a national securities exchange, an exchange must
file Form 1.

b. The Form is designed to elicit the information necessary to determine whether an exchange is organized in
compliance with the Exchange Act.

c. Any member of the public may direct to the Commission any comments concerning the accuracy of this burden
estimate and any suggestions for reducing this burden.

d. It is mandatory that applicants fill out Form 1 to become registered with the Commission.

e. No assurance of confidentiality are given by the Office of Management and Budget in accordance with the
clearance requirements of 44 U.S.C. § 3507.

f. This collection of information has been reviewed by the Office of Management and Budget in accordance with the
clearance requirements of 44 U.S.C. § 3507.



STATEMENT

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Statement to be Filed in Connection With an Application for Registration or Exemption Registration as a National Securities
Exchange under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

1.
2.

ORGANIZATION

State the exact name of the exchange: ISE LLC (trade name “International Securities Exchange™)

State the address and telephone number of the exchange: 110 Wall Street,
New York, New York 10005
(212) 269-4914

(a) State the form of organization of the exchange: Limited Liability Company
(e.g., association, corporation, etc.)

(b) State the date of organization in present form. If originally organized in another form also give date and form of
original organization: September 29, 1997

(c) Name the state and provide reference to any statute thereof under which the exchange is organized: New York
State; New York State Limited Liability Company Law

(d) State the name of each exchange which has been merged into, absorbed by, or consolidated with the subject
exchange since September 1, 1934, giving the date when each merger, absorption, or consolidation occurred:
None

State the date upon which the fiscal year of the exchange ends: December 31

State the name and address of counsel for the exchange: Michael Simon
110 Wall Street
New York, New York 10005

w/ ccto:  Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe
666 Fifth Avenue
New York, New York 10103
Attn: Sam Scott Miller

State the name and address of the person hereby authorized to receive service of process and notices on behalf of the
exchange: Michael Simon

110 Wall Street

New York, New York 10005

For each organization which during the previous year has been affiliated with or subsidiary to the exchange, either
directly or indirectly, through security ownership, joint membership or otherwise, provide the following information:

(a) Name and address of the organization: Adirondack Trading Partners, LLC
47 Laurel Hill Road
Centerport, New York 11721

(b) Form or organization: Limited Liability Company
(e.g., association, corporation, etc.)

(c) Name of state and reference to any statute thereof under which organized: New York State; New York Limited
Liability Law

(d) Date of organization in present form: January 27, 1998

(e) Brief description of the nature and extent of affiliation: Adirondack Trading Partners currently owns a
majority of the Exchange’s memberships. This affiliation is temporary as the Exchange’s Constitution and

Rules impose concentration limits that require Adirondack Trading Partners to sell most of its Exchange
Memberships within ten years after trading is initiated on the Exchange.

(f) Brief description of its business or functions: Adirondack Trading Partners intends to become a registered
broker-dealer and a market maker on the International Securities Exchange



(g) Name of any of the organizations identified above which ceased to be associated with the exchange during the
previous year, and a brief statement of the reasons for the termination of the association: None

8. State the classes of membership (e.g., full membership, physical access membership, electronic access membership,
etc.) and indicate the number of members in each category. The Exchange may have up to ten Primary Market
Makers (Class A Members), one hundred Competitive Market Makers (Class B Members), and an unlimited
number of Electronic Access Members (Class C Members). While there is one owner of Class A Memberships
and there are four owners of Class B Memberships, no Members have been authorized for trading on the
Exchange to date.

9. State as nearly as practicable the number of persons who are

(a) engaged primarily in the following activities or functions on or through the facilities of the exchange.1

1)
()
)
(4)
Q)
(6)

floor brokers: None

specialists: None

odd lot dealers: None

other market makers: None

proprietary traders (on the exchange floor): None
inactive or other function: None

(b) State the estimated average total number of members in attendance at security trading sessions: N/A

EXHIBITS

Exhibits to be filed in connection with (i) an Application for Registration or Exemption from Registration as a National
Securities Exchange pursuant to Section 6 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 6a-1 thereunder, or (ii) a Periodic
Amendment pursuant to Rule 6a-2.2

Exhibit A(L)

Exhibit A(2)

Exhibit A(3)

Exhibit B

Exhibit C

Exhibit D

A copy of the constitution, articles of incorporation or association with all amendments thereto, and of existing
by-laws or rules or instruments corresponding thereto, whatever the name, of the exchange.

A copy of all written rulings, settled practices having the effect of rules, and interpretations of the Governing
Board or other committee of the exchange in respect of any of the provisions of the constitution, by-laws, rules or
trading practices of the exchange, which are not included in the material submitted under Exhibit A(1).

A copy of the constitution, articles of incorporation or association with all amendments thereto, and of existing
by-laws or rules or instruments corresponding thereto, whatever the name, of each affiliate and subsidiary listed
in answer to Item 7 of the Statement.

A complete set of all forms® pertaining to:

1) Application for membership* in the exchange.
2 Application for approval as a person associated with a member® of the exchange.
3) Matters similar to any of the foregoing.

A complete set of all forms of financial statements, reports or questionnaires required of members, relating to
such matters as members’ financial responsibility or minimum capital requirements.

A complete set of documents, comprising the exchange’s listing applications, including the agreements required to
be executed in connection therewith, and a schedule of listing fees.

1A person shall be considered to be “engaged primarily” in an activity or function for purposes of this item when that activity or function is the
one in which that person is principally engaged. Where more than one type of person engages in any of the six types of activities or functions
enumerated in this item, identify each such type (e.g., proprietary trader, Registered Competitive Trader and Registered Competitive Market
Maker) and state the number of members in each.

2 If any exhibit called for is inapplicable, a statement to that effect shall be furnished in lieu of such exhibit.

® Provide separate table of contents listing (by title and/or number) the forms included in Exhibits B, C, and D.

4 The terms “member” and “membership” are used interchangeably; unless the context requires “member” has the same meaning as that
provided in Section 3(a)(3)(A) of the Act.

® The term “person associated with a member” has the same meaning as that provided in Section 3(a)(18) of the Act.



Exhibit E For the latest fiscal year of the exchange, audited consolidated financial statements which (1) are prepared in
accordance with accepted accounting principles, and (2) are covered by a report prepared by an independent
public accountant.®

Exhibit F For the last fiscal year, unconsolidated financial statements of the exchange and each of its affiliates and
subsidiaries listed in Item 7 of the statement, and any amendments thereto, which financial statements, at a
minimum, shall consist of a balance sheet and an income statement with such footnotes and other disclosures as
are necessary to avoid rendering the financial statements misleading; provided, however, that if any such affiliate
or subsidiary is required by another Commission rule to submit annual financial statements equivalent to those
described herein, a statement tot hat effect, with a citation to such other Commission rule, may be included in lie
of the financial statements required hereunder.

Exhibit G A list of the present officers, governors, members of all standing committees,” or persons performing functions
similar to any of the foregoing, whatever their title or technical status may be, of the exchange, who presently
hold or have held their offices or positions during the previous year, indicating for each:

1) Name.

) Title.

3) Dates of commencement and termination of term of office or position.

4) Length of time each has held the same office or position.

(5) Type of business in which each is primarily engaged (e.g., floor broker, specialist, odd lot dealer, etc.).
Exhibit H A list of the present officers, directors, members of all standing committees or persons performing functions

similar to any of the foregoing, whatever their title or technical status may be, of each affiliate and subsidiary
listed in answer to Item 7 of the Statement, indicating for each:

1) Name.
2 Title.
Exhibit 1 A list as of latest practicable date® alphabetically arranged of all individual members of the exchange indicating
for each.’
1) Name.
2 Date of election to membership.
3) Name of firm with which he is associated and his relationship thereto (e.g., partner, officer, director,
employee).
4) Business address.
Exhibit J A list as of latest practicable date alphabetically arranged of all member organizations of the exchange indicating
for each:
1) Name.
2 Form of organization (e.g., sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, etc.).
3) Principal place of business and telephone number.
4) The individual(s) whose membership it uses.
Exhibit K A schedule of securities listed on the exchange indicating for each:
1) Name of issuer.
2 Description of security.

® 1 an exchange has no consolidated subsidiaries, it shall file audited financial statements under Exhibit E for the exchange alone, and need not file
a separate unaudited financial statement for the exchange under Exhibit F.

" For Exhibits G and H, group members of each standing committee together.

8 For Exhibits I, J, K, L and M, indicate the date as of which each list or schedule is prepared.

® For Exhibits | and J, if more than one class of membership is provided for by the constitution and rules of the exchange, either (1) list
separately according to class; or (2) indicate the class of membership applicable.



Exhibit L A schedule of securities admitted to unlisted trading privileges on the exchange showing for each:

1) Name of issuer.
2 Description of security.
Exhibit M A schedule of unregistered securities admitted to trading on the exchange which are exempt from registration
under Section 12(a) of the Act, indicating for each:
1) Name of issuer.
2 Description of security.

3) Specific statutory exemption claimed (e.g., Rule 12a-6).



Exhibit A(1)

A copy of the Articles of Organization, Operating Agreement, Constitution and Rules of the International
Securities Exchange are attached hereto.



ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
OF
A ISELLC
Under Section 203 of the Limited Liability Company Law

mwmm.umommdmm,mymmfoummu
of Organization under Section 203 of the New York Limitad Liability Company Law:

ARTICIE]. The name of the limited Liability company s: ISE LLC (the

*Company ),

ARTICLE XI. The county in the state of New York in which the office of the
CompanylstobelomadlchwYod:Ooumy. .

i ) AgI[g[E_m.TthemwxyofSumoftheSuteofNewYodciad«igmted
aaagemoftthompmyuponwhompmccssagaimtI(maybescrvcd"Ihepostofﬁce
addresswiﬁﬂnorwiﬁxomﬂ:eStateomeYorktowhichdxeSecmuryofsmtcot‘tthtate

ofNewYorkshanmdlawpyofmypmcssagaiustmecoumyWUmnhﬁnWM
is ¢/o CT Carporation System. 1633 Broadway, New Yark, NY 10019.

ARTICLE IV. The Company is to be managed by one or more managers.

ARTICLE Y. Tthompamrshallhavcthcpowatoindemnify.mthcfuu
extent permmirted by the New York Lirnited Liabil_ityCOmpanyLaw, as amended from time to

time, aupmmuwhomitispexmittedwindemmfypumamthem.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this certificate has been subscribed this X day of September,
1997, bythetmdcrsigmdwhoafﬁmumatmesmuncmmadehercinmtmcund«ﬂn
penalties of perjury. | |

KAP GROUP, LLC
Manager of ISE 1 1.C

By: W%M

Maneger of KAP Group, LLC



SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
OPERATING AGREEMENT
OF
ISELLC

A NEW YORK LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY

Second Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, dated as of January 1, 1999 by
and among the persons who have executed the signature page(s) hereto as Members and who from
timeto time hereafter agreeto be bound by this Agreement asMembers of ISE LLC (the"Company™)
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company has heretofore been formed as alimited liability company
under the New Y ork Limited Liability Company Law pursuant to Articles of Organization filed with
the Secretary of State of New Y ork on September 29, 1997, and pursuant to an Operating Agreement
dated December 31, 1997, entered into among the Members, as amended by an Amended and
Restated Operating Agreement dated as of August 1, 1998 (the " Amended Operating Agreement™);
and

WHEREAS, the Members of the Company wish hereby to amend and restate the
Amended Initial Operating Agreement in order to adopt provisions appropriate for a registered
national securities exchange under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and to make such other
changes as incorporated herein; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
FORMATION AND BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

1.1 Formation. The Company was organized on December 31, 1997, in
accordance with and pursuant to the New Y ork Limited Liability Company Law.

1.2  Name. The name of the Company isthe ISE LLC. The Company may do

business under that name, the name "International Securities Exchange' and, as permitted by
applicable law, under any other name determined from time to time by the Board.

| SE Operating Agreement



1.3  Purposeof the Company. The purpose of the Company shall beto conduct
the operations of an "exchange" within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and to conduct any lawful business or activity whatsoever, as permitted by applicable law
and as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Company may exercise al
powers necessary to or reasonably connected with the Company's business from time to time, and
may engage in al activities necessary, customary, related or incidental to any of the foregoing.

1.4  Principal Office. The Company's principal place of business shall belocated
at 110 Wall Street, New Y ork, New Y ork 10005 or such other place determined from time to time
by the Board. The Company may have such other business officeswithin or without the State of New
Y ork as determined from time to time by the Board.

15 Registered Agent. The nameand address of the Company'sregistered agent
inthe State of New York is CT Corporation System, 1633 Broadway, New York, NY 10019. The
registered agent may be changed from time to time by the Board upon the filing of the name and
address of the new registered agent with the New Y ork Secretary of State pursuant tothe LLC Act.

16 Term. Theterm of the Company shal commence on the date hereof and
continue until December 2099 unless the Company is earlier dissolved in accordance herewith and
withthe LLC Act.

1.7 Membes. The Company shall maintain a record of the name, address,
facsimile number, and taxpayer identification number of each Member, and such record shall be
available to the Members.

ARTICLE Il
DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall have the meaning set forth below when used in this
Agreement, unless such meaning is expressly limited to this Agreement:

21  The term "Agreement” shal mean this Second Amended and Restated
Operating Agreement, as originally executed and as amended from time to time in accordance
herewith and with the LLC Act.

2.2  Theterm"Articlesof Organization" shall mean the Articles of Organization
of the Company, as filed with the New Y ork Secretary of State, as amended from time to timein
accordance herewith and with the LLC Act.

2.3  Theterm"Bankruptcy" of aMember shall mean (a) the entry of an order for
relief with respect to that Member in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code, as
amended from time to time, or (b) the Member's initiation, whether by filing a petition, beginning a
proceeding or in answer to aproceeding commenced by another person, of any action for liquidation,
dissolution, receivership or other similar relief, or the Member's application for, or consent to the
appointment of, a trustee, receiver or custodian for its assets. For purposes of this definition, a
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Member's consent shall be deemed to have been given if an order appointing a trustee, receiver or
custodian isentered by a court of competent jurisdiction and is not dismissed within ninety (90) days
after its entry.

24  Theterm"Board of Directors' or "Board" shall have the meaning set forth
in Article V of this Agreement.

25  Theterm "Capital Account" of a Member, as of any date, shall mean the
account maintained for such Member pursuant to Section 3.3 of this Agreement, as adjusted through
such date.

2.6  Theterm"Capital Contribution" of, or attributed to, a Member shall mean
the total contributionsto the capital of the Company, whether in cash, property (net of liabilities) or
services, made, performed or to be performed by, or attributed to, such Member, valued on the date
of contribution in the Company's books and records.

2.7  Theterm "Capital Interest” shal mean a Class A Member Capital Interest
or aClass B Member Capita Interest, as the case may be.

2.8  Theterm"Capital Transaction" shall meanany transactionnotintheordinary
course of the Company's business, in respect of which the Company receives cash or other
consideration (but not Capital Contributions), including, without limitation, proceeds from sales or
exchangesnot intheordinary course, financing and refinancing, condemnationsor insurance policies.

2.9 The term "Cash Available for Distribution” as of any date, shall mean,
except as otherwise determined by the Board, the excess of (a) al revenuesreceived by the Company
fromitsoperationsand investmentsover (b) total current operating expenses and reasonablereserves
for future such expenses, including payments in respect of indebtedness of the Company, capital
improvements and contingencies, as determined from time to time by the Board. Cash Availablefor
Distribution shall not be reduced by noncash charges, including, without limitation, depreciation and
amortization, and shall not include proceeds from Capital Transactions.

2.10 Theterm"Class A Member" shal mean the owner of one or more Class A
Membership Units.

211 Theterm"Class B Member" shall mean the owner of one or more Class C
Membership Units.

2.12 Theterm "Class C Member" shall have the meaning set forthin Article | of
the Constitution.

213 Theterm "Class A Member Capital Interest" shall mean for a Class A
Member as of adate of determination, a percentage equal to (a) the number of Class A Membership
Units owned by such Class A Member, divided by (b) the aggregate number of Class A Membership
Units owned by all Class A Members.
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214 The term "Class B Member Capital Interest" shal mean for a Class B
Member as of adate of determination, a percentage equal to (a) the number of Class B Membership
Units owned by such Class B Member, divided by (b) the aggregate number of Class B Membership
Units owned by al Class B Members.

2.15 Theterm "Class A Membership Interest” shal mean a Class A Member's
entire interest in the Company, including such Member's Economic Interest (to the extent not
Transferred) and Management Interest.

216 Theterm "Class B M embership Interest” shall mean a Class B Member's
entire interest in the Company, including such Member's Economic Interest (to the extent not
Transferred) and Management Interest.

217 Theterm "Class C Membership Interest” shall mean a Class C Member's
entire interest in the Company, including such Member's Management Interest.

218 The term "Class A Membership Unit" shall mean a unit of a Class A
Membership Interest issued in accordance with this Agreement.

219 The term "Class B Membership Unit" shall mean a unit of a Class B
Membership Interest issued in accordance with this Agreement.

220 The term "Class C Membership Unit" shall mean a unit of a Class C
Membership Interest issued in accordance with this Agreement.

2.21 Theterm"Code" shall mean the Interna Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
in effect as of the date hereof and as amended from time to time hereafter.

2.22 Theterm"Company" shal have the meaning set forth in the preambleto this
Agreement.

2.23 Theterm "Company Minimum Gain" shall mean the amount determined
under Treas. Reg. Sections 1.704-2(1)(3) and 1.704-2(d), and shall be computed separately for each
Member in amanner consistent with Code Section 704(b) and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.

2.24 Theterm"Constitution" shall meanthe Constitution of the Company, initialy
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and thereafter such Constitution as it may hereafter be
amended from time to time in accordance with its terms.

225 The term "Director” shal have the meaning set forth in Article V of this
Agreement.

2.26 Theterm"Economic Interest” shall mean the right to sharein the allocation
of one or more of the Company's alocable items, including, without limitation, Net Profits and Net
Losses, and/or in distributions of the Company's assets, in each case pursuant to this Agreement or
the LLC Act, but shall not include any Management Interest.
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2.27 The term "Exchange" shall mean the ISE LLC and shall have the same
meaning as the "Company" as set forth in this Agreement.

2.28 Theterm "Fiscal Year" shal mean the Company's accounting, tax and fiscal
year, which shall be the calendar year.

2.29 Theterm "Fiscal Quarter" shal mean one quarter of the Company's Fiscal

Y ear.

2.30 Theterm"Indemnitee" shall mean a Director, officer, agent or employee of
the Company who may be indemnified by the Company as set forth in Article XI of this Agreement
and Article X of the Constitution.

2.31 Theterm "Interest” shall mean any of an Economic Interest, Management
Interest and/or Membership Interest.

2.32 Theterm"LLC Act" shall mean the New York Limited Liability Company
Law, as amended from time to time.

2.33 Theterm "Management Interest”" of a Member shall mean such Member's
right to participate in the management of the business and affairs of the Company, including the right
to vote on, consent to, or otherwise participate in, any decision or action of or by the Members
hereunder or under the LLC Act.

2.34 Theterm"Member" shal mean aClass A Member, Class B Member or Class
C Member.

2.35 Theterm "M ember Nonrecourse Debt" shall mean nonrecourse debt of the
Company under Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-2(b)(4).

2.36 Theterm "Negative Capital Account” shall mean a Capital Account with a
balance |ess than zero and, where the context requires, the negative balance thereof, in each case as
of the end of aFisca Year, after giving effect to the following:

@ a credit for any amount required to be restored under Treas. Reg.
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(c), as well as any amounts in addition thereto pursuant to Treas.
Reg. Sections 1.704-2(g)(1) and (i)(5), after taking into account any changes during such
Fisca Y ear in Company Minimum Gain and Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain; and

(b) a debit of the items described in Treas. Reg. Sections
1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) and (6).

2.37 Theterms "Net Profits' and "Net L osses' shall mean, for each Fiscal Year

(or other period for which they are determined), the income and gain, and the losses, deductions and
creditsof the Company, respectively, intheaggregate or separately stated, asappropriate, determined
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in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied, but not including
any items that are specialy allocated pursuant to Section 4.4 of this Agreement.

2.38 The term "officer" shal have the meaning set forth in Article VIII of this
Agreement.

2.39 The term "person” shal mean any individual, partnership, limited liability
company, corporation, joint venture, trust, association or any other entity, domestic or foreign, and
itsrespective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successorsand assignswherethe
context of this Agreement so permits.

240 Theterm"Rules' shal meantherulesof the Exchange, asamended fromtime
to time.

241 Theterm"Transfer" shal mean any sae, assgnment, transfer, gift, exchange,
bequest or other disposition of an Interest, in any manner, voluntary or involuntary, by operation of
law or otherwise.

242 Theterm "Trandereg' shall mean the person to whom a Member Transfers,
or proposes to Transfer, an Interest.

243 Theterm"Transferor" shal mean any Member which Transfers, or proposes
to Transfer, an Interest.

244 Theterm "Treasury Regulations' or "Treas. Reg." shal mean regulations
promulgated under the Code in effect as of the date hereof or hereafter amended or adopted.

6 | SE Operating Agreement



ARTICLE Il
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

3.1 Initial Capital Contributions; Additional Capital Contributions. The
Company is authorized to accept a Capital Contribution in respect of each of ten (10) Class A
Membership Units and Capital Contributions in respect of each of one hundred (100) Class B
Membership Units, and as the Board may otherwise determine.

3.2 Number of Members; Additional Members.

(@) Initialy there shal be ten (10) Class A Membership Units, one hundred
(100) Class B Membership Units and an unlimited number of Class C Membership Units.

(b) Themaximum numbersof ClassA Membership Units, ClassB Membership
Units or Class C Membership Units may be changed only with the approval of the Members.

3.3 Capital Accounts.

@ The Company shall establish and maintain a Capital Account for each
Class A and each Class B Member. The Company shall not establish Capital Accounts for
Class C Members,

(b) The Capital Accounts of each Member shall be increased by the
amount of the income and gain allocated to such Member, and shall be decreased by any
losses and deductions allocated, or distributions made, to such Member pursuant to the terms
of this Agreement. It isthe intention of the Members that Capital Accounts be maintained
strictly in accordance with Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv).

(©) Notwithstanding anything contained hereinto thecontrary, themanner
inwhich Capital Accountsare maintained shall be modified, if necessary, inthe opinion of the
Company's accountants, to comply with applicable law, provided that no such change shall
materially alter the economic agreement between or among the Members.

(d) Except as otherwise required by the LLC Act or permitted under this
Agreement, the Congtitution or the Rules, no Member shall have any liability to restore dl or
any portion of any Negative Capital Account.

(e) No Member shall bepaidinterest onthebalance of its Capital Account,
unless otherwise determined by the Board.
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34 Adjustmentsto Capital Accounts.

@ TheBoard may, initsdiscretion, adjust the Capital Accountsto reflect
arevauation of the Company's assets upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

0] a Capital Contribution by anew or existing Member as
consideration for the issuance of an Interest;

(i) the distribution of cash or other property by the Company to
aretiring or continuing Member as consideration for the repurchase or redemption of
an Interest; or

(i)  eventsdescribed in Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f).

(b) Any adjustment pursuant to Section 3.4(a) of this Agreement shall be
based on the fair market value of Company property on the date of adjustment, and shall
reflect the manner in which the unrealized income, gain, loss or deduction inherent in the
property, not previously reflected in Capital Accounts, would be allocated among the
Membersif there were ataxable disposition of the property for fair market value on that date.

(c) If the book value of a Company asset differs from the adjusted tax
basis of that asset, the Capital Accounts shall be adjusted in accordance with Treas. Reg.
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(g) for allocations of depreciation, depletion, amortization and gain
or loss computed for book purposes rather than tax purposes.

(d) If there is any basis adjustment pursuant to an election under Code
Section 754, the Capital Accounts shall be adjusted to the extent required by Treas. Reg.
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m).

3.5 Return of Capital Contributions. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, no Member shall have any right to demand or receive (a) any cash or property of the
Company in return of its Capital Contribution or in respect of its Interest until the dissolution of the
Company or (b) any distribution from the Company in any form other than cash.

3.6 Trandfer of Interest. If an Interest is Transferred as permitted by this
Agreement, the Transferee shall succeed to the Capital Account of the Transferor to the extent the
Capital Account relates to the Transferred Interest in accordance with Treas. Reg. Section
1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(1).
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ARTICLE IV
DISTRIBUTIONS AND ALLOCATIONS

4.1  Distributions. Class A Members and Class B Members will be entitled to
receivedistributions, if any, approved by the Board; Class C Members shall not be entitled to receive
any distributions from the Company. Except as otherwise required by law or as provided in this
Agreement, al distributions approved by the Board shall be all ocated fifty percent (50%) to the Class
A Members as aclass, and fifty percent (50%) to the Class B Membersasaclass. The distributions
allocated to the Class A Members shall be distributed to those Class A Members in accordance with
their respective Class A Member Capital Interests, and the distributions allocated to the Class B
Members shall be distributed to those Class B Members in accordance with their respective Class B
Member Capital Interests; provided, however, that mandatory distributions shall be made to the
extent of Cash Available for Distributions and in proportion to such respective Capital Interests, as
determined from timeto time by the Board, to each Class A Member and Class B Member in amounts
sufficient to allow them to pay federal, state and local income taxes (determined at the highest
applicable marginal tax rates applicable to single persons) on the income of the Company deemed to
be taxable income of the Members under Section 702 of the Code.

4.2  Limitation on Distributions. No distribution shall be declared and pad
unless, after giving effect thereto, the assets of the Company exceed the Company's liabilities.

4.3  Allocations of Net Profits and Net L osses. Taxable income or lossand all
items thereof shall be allocated among the Member in accordance with Section 704 of the Code and
Treasury Regulations thereunder as determined by the Company's accountants.

4.4  DistributionsIn Kind. All distributions of Company property in kind shall
be valued at their fair market value as of the date of distribution, and the amount of any gain or loss
that would be realized by the Company if it were to sell such property at such fair market value shall
be allocated to the Members in accordance with Section 4.3 of this Agreement.

45  TaxReturnsand Other Elections. TheBoard shall causethepreparationand
timely filing of al tax returns required to be filed by the Company pursuant to the Code and all
applicable laws of each jurisdiction in which the Company does business. Copiesof all such returns,
or summaries thereof, shall be furnished to the Members within a reasonable time after the end of
each Fisca Year. All elections permitted to be made by the Company under federal or statelawsshall
be made by the Board, in its sole discretion.

46  Trandfersof Interest. If anInterest is Transferred during the Fiscal Year as
permitted by this Agreement,

@ Net Profits and Net Losses alocable to such Interest shall be
proportioned between the Transferor and Transferee as of the date of Transfer of the Interest
on the last day of the Fiscal Quarter in which the Transfer occurred, and the portion of Net
Profitsand Net L osses allocated to the Transferor shall be determined by multiplying the Net
Profits and Net Losses allocable to such Interest by afraction, the numerator of whichisthe
number of calendar daysthe Transferor owned the Interest (not including the day the Transfer
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was effected) and the denominator of which isthe total number of calendar daysin the Fiscal
Quarter, and the portion of Net Profits and Net L osses allocated to the Transferee shall be
the remainder of the Net Profits and Net Losses,; and

(b) tax credits, if any, shall be alocated among the Interest holders as
determined at the time the property with respect to which the credit is claimed is placed in
service.

ARTICLEV
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

51 Number; Management and Authority. The Company shall have one or
more managers as prescribed in Exhibit A to this Agreement and in the Constitution, which manager
or managers shall be referred to herein and in the Constitution and the Rules individually as a
"Director" and collectively asthe"Board of Directors’ or the"Board." The Board of Directorsshall
have the powers and duties provided in Article IV of the Constitution.

52 Election and Tenure of Directors. Each Director shall be elected in the
manner, and shall serve for aterm, as provided under Article IV of the Constitution.

5.3 Resignation or Removal. A Director may resign or be removed in
accordance with Article IV of the Constitution.

54  Meetings of Board. Meetings of the Board shall be conducted as provided
under Article IV of the Constitution.

55  Vacancies. A vacancy on the Board may be filled in accordance with the
requirements set forth in Article IV of the Constitution.

5.6  Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law from time to time, the Directors shall not
have any liability to the Company or any Member by reason of being or having been aDirector or for
any breach of their dutiesin such capacity, asprovided in Article X of the Constitution. This Section
5.6 shal not affect the Directors liability:

@ if an adverse judgment or other final adjudication establishes that (i)
his acts or omissions were in bad faith or involved intentional misconduct, (ii) he gained
financia or other advantages to which he was not entitled, or (iii) he did not perform his
duties as required under the LLC Act with respect to a distribution made in violation of the
LLC Act; or

(b) for any act or omission prior to the adoption of this Section 5.6.
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5.7  Relianceon Information. In performing their duties, the Directors shall be
entitled to rely oninformation, opinions, reportsor statements, including financial statements, in each
case prepared or presented by:

@ one or more agents or employees of the Company; or

(b) counsel, public accountants or other persons, as to matters that the
Board believes to be within their respective professiona or expert competence.

5.8 NoExclusiveDuty. TheDirectorsmay have other businessinterestsand may
engagein other activitiesin addition to those relating to the Company. Neither the Company nor any
Member shall have any right, by virtue of this Agreement, to share or participate in such other
investments or activities of the Directors or in any income or revenues derived therefrom.

59 Execution of Documents.

@ Except as otherwise determined by the Board or the Members or as
set forth herein or in the LLC Act, any document or instrument may be executed and
delivered on behalf of the Company by any Director, including, without limitation, any deed,
mortgage, note or other evidence of indebtedness, lease, security agreement, financing
statement, contract of sale or other instrument purporting to convey or encumber, in whole
or in part, any or al of the assets of the Company at any time held in its name, or any
compromise or settlement with respect to accountsreceivable or claimsof the Company; and,
subject to the authorization requirements set forth herein or in the LLC Act, no other
signature shall be required for any such instrument to bind the Company.

(b) Any third person dealing with the Company, theBoard or theMembers
may rely upon a certificate signed by the Board asto (i) the identity of the Members or the
Board, (ii) acts by the Members or the Board, (iii) any act or failure to act by the Company,
or (iv) any other matter involving the Company or any Director.

5.10 Powers of the Board in Bankruptcy. Subject to any limitations on the
powers of the Board that may be contained in the Constitution, the Board shall have the power and
authority, on behaf of the Company and any Controlled Subsidiary, to:

@ represent the Company or a Controlled Subsidiary in any Bankruptcy
or insolvency proceedings to which it is a party, in whatever capacity;

(b) determine whether the Company or a Controlled Subsidiary shall file
any petition under the United States Bankruptcy Code or other applicableinsolvency law; and

11 | SE Operating Agreement



(c) execute and deliver, in the name of the Company or otherwise, any and
all documents and instruments, including, without limitation, petitionsand requestsfor relief,
necessary or desirable in connection with actions under Section 5.10(a) or (b) of this
Agreement, as determined by the Board.

5.11 Compensation and Expenses. The compensation of the Directors shall be
fixed from time to time by the Board.

5.12 Delegation to Agents and Officers. In addition to those duties that any
officers of the Company may be prescribed to have under the Constitution, the Board may delegate
functions relating to the day-to-day operations of the Company to such officers, agents, consultants
or employees as the Board may from time to time designate. Such officers, agents, consultants and
employees need not be Membersor Directors, and shall have such duties, powers, responsibilitiesand
authority as may from timeto time be prescribed by the Board, and may be removed at any time, with
or without cause, by the Board.

5.13 Other Dutiesof theBoard. Inadditiontoitsother dutiesset forth herein and
in the Constitution, the Board:

@ shall determine, from time to time, the method of accounting and the
independent accountants for the Company;

(b) may make, on behalf of the Company, the el ection permitted by Code
Section 754 with respect to adjustments to the basis of the Company property; and

(c) shall, promptly following receipt thereof, give notice to the Members
of any proposed audit or adjustment of any Company tax return.
ARTICLE VI
MEMBERS

6.1 Rightsof Members. (a) EachClassof Membersshall have suchvotingrights
and powers as may be provided in the Constitution.

6.2 Meetingsof Members. Meetingsof Membersshall be conducted asprovided
under Article I11 of the Constitution.

6.3  Qualifications. Each of the Members shall satisfy such requirements for
Membership as may be specified in the Congtitution or the Rules.

6.4  Liabilityfor Wrongful Distributions. A Member who receivesadistribution
from the Company which the Member knows to be in violation of this Agreement or the LLC Act
shall be liable to the Company for the amount of such distribution for a period of three years after it
was made.
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6.5 NoPreemptiveRights. No Member shall have any preemptive, preferentia
or other right with respect to (a) making additional Capital Contributions, (b) the issuance or sale of
Interests by the Company, (c) theissuance of any obligations, evidences of indebtedness or securities
of the Company convertible into, exchangeable for, or accompanied by, any rights to receive,
purchase or subscribe to, any Interests, (d) the issuance of any right of, subscription to or right to
receive, or any warrant or option for the purchase of, any of the foregoing, or (€) theissuance or sale
of any other interests or securities by the Company.

ARTICLE VII
COMMITTEES

The Board may designate such Committees of the Board, and such Committees shall
have such powers and consist of such persons, or shall consist of persons selected in such manner,
as may be prescribed under Article VI of the Constitution.

ARTICLE VIII
OFFICERS

8.1 Genera. The Company shall have such officers, and such officers shall have
such duties, powers, responsibilitiesand authority, asmay be provided in Exhibit A to this Agreement
and in Article V of the Constitution.

8.2  Appointment, Removal and Resignation. Officersshal be appointed and
removed, and may resign, as provided under Article V of the Constitution.

ARTICLE IX
TRANSFERABILITY AND WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBERSHIPS

9.1 Trandferability. A Member may offer for saleand Transfer al or any portion
of, or any rightsin, its Interest, as provided under Article |1 of the Constitution, provided that the
Transfer will not result in the termination of the Company pursuant to Code Section 708.

9.2  Withdrawal. A Member, other than a Class C Member, shall have no right
or power to surrender such Member's Interest voluntarily or otherwise take, or permit to be taken,
any action to such effect, and a Class C Member shall have no right to payment of any amounts upon
withdrawal.

13 | SE Operating Agreement



ARTICLE X
DISSOLUTION AND TERMINATION

10.1 Events Causing Dissolution and Winding-up. The Company shal be
dissolved and wound up upon the first to occur of the following events:

@ the approval of such action by the Members;

(b) the sale or other disposition of al or substantialy all of the business
or assets of the Company;

(c) the expiration of the term of the Company; or

(d) the entry of a decree of judicia dissolution under Section 702 of the
LLC Act.

10.2 Winding up of the Company.

@ If the Company isto be dissolved in accordance with Section 10.1 of
this Agreement, then the Board shall wind up the affairs of the Company, including by selling
or otherwise liquidating the Company assets in a bona fide sale or sales to third persons at
such prices and upon such terms as they may determine. |If the Board determines that an
immediate sale would be financialy inadvisable, it may defer sale of the Company assets for
areasonable time, or distribute the assets in kind.

(b The proceeds of any liquidation of the Company shall be distributed
in the following order of priority (to the extent that such order of priority is consistent with
the laws of the State of New Y ork):

0] first, to the payment of the debts and liabilities of the
Company and the expenses of dissolution and liquidation;

(i) then, to the establishment of any reserves which the
Board shall deem reasonably necessary for payment of such other
debts and liabilities of the Company (contingent or otherwise), as are
specified by the Board, such reservesto be held in escrow by a bank
or trust company selected by the Board, and, to be disbursed as
directed by the Board in payment of any of the specified debts and
liabilities or, at the expiration of such period as the Board may
deem advisable, to be distributed in the manner hereinafter provided; and

(i)  then, to the Members as set forth in Article IV of this
Agreement.

(©) Notwithstanding anything contained hereinto the contrary, no Member
shdll be entitled to receive, upon liquidation, distributionsin excess of the positive balance of
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such Member's Capital Account, except to the extent all Members receive such distributions
in proportion to their respective Capital Interests.

(d) If any assets are distributed in kind, they shall be distributed on the
basis of the fair market value thereof, and shall be deemed to have been sold at fair market
value for purposes of the allocations under Article IV of this Agreement.

(e If the Company is liquidated under Treas. Reg.
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(G), the liquidating distribution shall be made by the later of (i) the
end of the Fiscal Year in which liquidation occurs, or (ii) ninety (90) days after the date of
liquidation.

) The Company shall terminate when all assets of the Company have
been sold and/or distributed and al affairs of the Company have been wound up.

10.3 Articlesof Dissolution. Withinninety (90) daysfollowing the dissolution and
the commencement of winding up of the Company, or at any other time when there are no Members,
Articles of Dissolution shall be prepared, executed and filed in accordance with the LLC Act.

ARTICLE XI
INDEMNIFICATION

11.1  Indemnification. The Company shal indemnify and hold harmless such
persons provided for under Article X of the Congtitution against all costs, liabilities, claims, expenses,
including reasonable attorneys fees, and damages (collectively, "Losses’) paid or incurred by any
such person in connection with the conduct of the Company's business.

11.2  Sourceof Payment. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement
or the Constitution to the contrary, any amount to which an Indemnitee may be entitled under this
Article X1 shall be paid only out of the assets of the Company and any insurance proceeds available
to the Company for such purposes. No Member shall be personally liable for any amount payable
pursuant to this Article X1, or to make any Capital Contribution, return any distribution made to it
by the Company, or restore any Negative Capital Account balance to enable the company to make
any such payment.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

121 Notices. Except as otherwise set forth herein, any notice, demand or
communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be (a) in writing, (b)
delivered by hand, nationally recognized overnight courier service, facsmileor registered or certified
malil, postage prepaid, addressed to a party at its mailing address or facsmile number set forth in the
books and records of the Company, and (c) deemed to have been given on the date delivered by hand
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or sent by facsmile, one business day after deposit with such courier service, and three business days
after being deposited in the United States mail.

12.2 Books of Accounts and Records.

@ At the expense of the Company, the Board shall maintain at the
Company's principal place of business, records and accounts of all operations and
expenditures of the Company, including, without limitation, the following records:

0] a current list in alphabetical order of the name and mailing
addressof each Member, Director, and officer, their respectivefacsimile numbersand,
with respect to the Members, their respective shares of Net Profits and Net L osses,
or information from which such shares can be derived,;

(i) a copy of the Articles of Organization and all amendments
thereto, together with executed copies of any powers of attorney pursuant to which
any such amendment has been executed;

(i) copies of the Company's federal, state and local income tax
returns and reports, if any, for the three most recent Fiscal Y ears,

(iv)  copiesof this Agreement, the Constitution and the Rules, as
in effect from time to time;

(v) any writings or other information with respect to each
Member's obligation to contribute cash, property or services to the Company,
including, without limitation, the amount of cash so contributed and adescription and
statement of the agreed-upon fair market value of property or services so contributed
or to be contributed;

(vi)  any financial statements of the Company for the three most
recent Fiscal Years,

(vit)  minutesof every annual, specia and court-ordered meeting of
the Members; and

(viii)  any written consents obtained from the Members or Directors
for actions taken by Members or Directors without a meeting.

(b) Upon reasonable advance notice, during normal business hours, any

Member or its representatives may, at its expense, inspect and copy the records described in
Section 12.2(a) for any purpose reasonably related to such person's Membership Interest.
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12.3 Arbitration. This Agreement, and the application or interpretation hereof,
shdl be governed by and in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to
agreements made and fully to be performed therein, and specifically the LLC Act. Except as
otherwise provided in this Agreement, any controversy between the parties arising out of this
Agreement shall be arbitrated pursuant to the Constitution and the Rules.

12.4 Amendment of Articles of Organization, Agreement and Constitution.
This Agreement and the Constitution may only be amended with the approval of the Board and the
Members as provided in the Constitution.

125 Execution of Additional Instruments. Each Member hereby agrees to
execute such other and further documents and instruments, including, without limitation, statements
of their Interests and powers of attorney, as necessary to comply with applicable law or otherwise
as reasonably requested by the Board.

12.6 Condgruction. Whenever the singular number is used in this Agreement and
when required by the context, the same shall include the plural and vice versa, and the neuter gender
shall include the feminine and masculine genders and vice versa.

12.7 Headings. Theheadingsin this Agreement are for convenience only and are
inno way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement
or any of its provisions.

12.8 Waivers; Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The failure of any party to
pursue any remedy for breach, or to insist upon the strict performance, of any covenant or condition
contained in this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any such right with respect to any
subsequent breach. Except as otherwise expressy set forth herein, rights and remedies under this
Agreement are cumulative, and the pursuit of any oneright or remedy by any party shall not preclude,
or constitute a waiver of, the right to pursue any or al other remedies. All rights and remedies
provided under this Agreement are in addition to any other rights the parties may have by law, in
equity or otherwise.

12.9 Severability. If any provision, or portion thereof, of this Agreement, or its
application to any person or circumstance, shal beinvalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the
remainder of this Agreement, such provision and their application shall not be affected thereby, but
shdl be interpreted without such unenforceable provision or portion thereof so as to give effect,
insofar asis possible, to the original intent of the parties, and shall otherwise be enforceable to the
fullest extent permitted by law.

12.10 Successors and Assigns. All of the covenants, terms, provisions and
agreements contained in this Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties
hereto and, to the extent permitted by this Agreement, their respective heirs, legal representatives,
successors and assigns.
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12.11 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original but al of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

12.12 Investment Representations. Each Member hereby representsand warrants
to the Company and each other Member as follows:

@ Such Member acknowledges that:

0] the Interest owned by it has not been registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, 15 U.S.C. 815b et seq., the New Y ork State securities act or
any other state securities laws (collectively, the "Securities Acts') because the
Company isissuing (or a Member has Transferred) such Interest in reliance upon
exemptions from the registration requirements contained in the Securities Acts for
issuances not involving a public offering;

(i) the Company (or the Transferor) has relied upon the fact that
the Interest isto be held by such Member for investment purposes only, and not with
aview to any resale or distribution thereof except as contemplated in the Constitution
and Rules; and

(i)  the Company is under no obligation to register or qualify the
Interest or to assist any Member in complying with any exemption from registration
under the Securities Acts if such Member wishes to dispose of the Interest.

(b) Each Member isacquiring thelnterest for such Member'sown account,
for investment purposes only, and not with aview to the resale or distribution thereof, except
as contemplated in the Constitution and the Rules.

(©) Beforeacquiring the Interest, each Member investigated the Company
and its business, and the Company made availableto it all information necessary to make an
informed decision to acquire the Interest.

12.13 No Right to Petition for Dissolution. The Members agree that irreparable
harm would be done to the business and goodwill of the Company if any Member were to bring an
action in Court under the LLC Act for the judicial dissolution of the Company. Accordingly, each
Member, in his capacity as such, hereby irrevocably waives any such right to petition for dissolution
of the Company under the LLC Act, and al similar rights under other applicable law, except to the
extent such relief may be sought by the Company itself as authorized by the Members in accordance
with this Agreement.

12.14 NoThirdParty Ben€ficiaries. Thecovenants, obligationsandrightsset forth
inthis Agreement are not intended to benefit any creditor of the Company or of any Member, or any
other third person, and except as permitted by applicable law after the obligation to make an
additional Capital Contribution has been fixed, or in connection with certain wrongful distributions,
no such creditor or other third person shall, under any circumstances, have any right to compel any
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actions or payments by the Board and/or the Members or shall, by reason of any provision contained
herein, be entitled to make any claim in respect of any debt, liability, obligation or otherwise against
the Company or any Member.

12.15 Directorsas Attorneys-in-Fact for Members.

€) Each Member hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints, with full
power of substitution, each Director, itstrue and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full power and
authority in its name, place and stead, to execute, certify, acknowledge, deliver, file and
record at the appropriate public offices:

0] al certificates and other instruments, and any amendment
thereto, which the Board deems appropriate to form, qualify or continue the business
of the Company as alimited liability company;

(i) any other instrument or document which may be required to
be filed by the Company under the laws of any state, or which the Board deems
advisableto file; and

(i) any instrument or document, including amendments to this
Agreement, which may be required to continue the business of the Company, admit
aMember, or dissolve and liquidate the Company (provided that such continuation,
admission or dissolution are in accordance with this Agreement), or to reflect any
reductions in the amount of Members capital.

(b) Each Member's appointment of the Directors as its attorneys-in-fact
shall be deemed to be a power coupled with an interest and shall survive the incompetency,
Bankruptcy or dissolution of the Member giving such power, except that, in the event of a
Member's Transfer of an Interest in accordance with this Agreement, this power of attorney
shdl survive such Transfer only until such time, if any, as the Transferee shall have been
admitted to the Company asaMember and al required documents and instruments shall have
been duly executed, filed and recorded to effect such substitution.

12.16 Entire Agreement. By agreeing to be bound by this Agreement, each
Member pledges to abide by the Constitution and the Rules. The Articles of Organization, this
Agreement, the Constitution and the Rules embody the entire understanding and agreement between
the Members concerning the subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede any and al prior
negotiations, understandings or agreements with respect thereto. To the extent the LLC Act
addresses amatter not otherwise addressed by this Agreement, the Constitution or the Rules, itisthe
intention of the Membersthat the provisionsof the LLC Act shall apply, but no such application shall
otherwise affect any provision of this Agreement, the Constitution or the Rules.
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EXHIBIT A
ISE LLC OPERATING AGREEMENT

INTERIM MANAGEMENT PROVISIONS

1. Managers. Pursuant to Section 5.1 of the Operating Agreement, the
Company shall have two Managers (the"Initial Directors") until such time asthe Directors described
in Article IV, Section 1(a) of the Constitution are elected at the Initial Election Meeting described
inArticleV, Section 1(d) of the Constitution. The Managers shall be William A. Porter and David
Krell. Each Manager shall havethe authority to take any action which the Board would be authorized
to take under the Operating Agreement and Constitution, without any requirement for meetings,
notices thereof, quorums, adoption of resolutions or any other procedura requirements imposed
under the Operating Agreement. The name of the Company shall be ISE, LLC until suchtimeasa
change of name is approved by the Managers of the Company.

2. Officers. Pursuant to Section 8.1 of the Operating Agreement, Mr. Porter
shal serve as the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Krell shall serve as the President of the
Company. Messrs. Porter and Krell shall manage the affairs of the Company and shall be the
representatives of the Company in al public matters. Mr. Porter shall serve as the "tax matters
partner”" of the Company.
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EXHIBIT B
ISE LLC OPERATING AGREEMENT

INTERNATIONAL SECURITIESEXCHANGE CONSTITUTION
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INTERNATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE

Constitution

Articlel
Definition of Terms
Section 1. When used in this Constitution, unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) The term "affiliate” of a person or "affiliated with" another person means a
person who, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
another person.

(b) Theterm "Board" means the Board of Directors.

(c) Theterm "Class A Members' means Primary Market Maker Members.

(d) Theterm "Class B Members' means Competitive Market Maker Members.
(e) Theterm "Class C Members' means Electronic Access Members.

(f) The term "Clearing Member" means a Member that is self-clearing or an
Electronic Access Member that clears Exchange Transactions for other Members of the
Exchange.

(9 The term "control" means the power to exercise a controlling influence
over the management or policies of a person, unless such power is solely the result of an official
position with such person. Any person who owns beneficially, directly or indirectly, more than
twenty percent (20%) of the voting power in the election of directors of a corporation, or more
than twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting power in the election of directors of any other
corporation which directly, or through one or more &ffiliates, owns beneficially more than twenty-
five percent (25%) of the voting power in the election of directors of such corporation, shall be
presumed to control such corporation.

(h) The term "Exchange" means the International Securities Exchange.

(i) The term "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the
rules and regulations thereunder, as amended from time to time.

() The term "Exchange Transaction" means a transaction executed on or through
the facilities of the Exchange.
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(K) The term "good standing” means that a Member is not delinquent respecting
Exchange dues, fees or other charges and is not suspended or barred from the Exchange or from
association with a Member either by the Exchange or by means of a statutory disqualification.

() The term "industry representative" means a person who is an officer, director or
employee of abroker or dealer or who has been employed in any such capacity at any time within
the prior three (3) years, as well as a person who has a consulting or employment relationship
with or has provided professional services to the Exchange and a person who had any such
relationship or provided any such services to the Exchange at any time within the prior three (3)
years.

(m) The term "Founder" means a person or entity that purchased Class A or Class
B Memberships directly from the Exchange on or prior to August 1, 1998, but only with respect
to his or its ownership of such Memberships.

(n) The term "Member" means a Class A, Class B or Class C Member and, unless
the context indicates otherwise, shall include an individual Member or a Member Organization of
the Exchange (or aregistered nominee of a Member Organization) that isa Member in good
standing.

(o) The term "Member Organization” means a corporation, partnership or limited
liability company that isa Class A, Class B or Class C Member or for which a Membership is
registered in accordance with Section 9 of Article Il of this Constitution.

(p) The term "Membership" shall mean one (1) Class A, ClassB or ClassC
Membership Unit, as those terms are defined in the Operating Agreement.

(@ Theterm "Membership Voting Rights' means the right of a Member to vote
on al matters requiring a membership vote not designated as Ownership Voting Rights.

(r) The term "non-industry representative” means any person that would not be
considered an "industry representative,” aswell as (i) a person affiliated with a broker or dealer
that operates solely to assist the securities-related activities of the business of non-member
affiliates, (i) an employee of an entity that is affiliated with a broker or dealer that does not
account for amateria portion of the revenues of the consolidated entity, and who is primarily
engaged in the business of the non-member entity.

(s) The "Operating Agreement” means the Operating Agreement among the
Members of the Exchange pertaining to the rights and liabilities of each Member, of which this
Constitution is a part.

(t) The term "Ownership Voting Rights' means the right of an owner of a
Membership to vote on (i) any merger, consolidation or dissolution of the Exchange or any sale of
all or substantially all of the assets of the Exchange, and (ii) any additiona Classes of
Memberships or any increase in the number of Memberships in any Class.
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(u) The term "person associated with a Member" or an "associated person” means
any partner, officer, director, or branch manager of a Member (or any person occupying asimilar
status or performing similar functions), any person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by,
or under common control with such Member, or any employee of such Member.

(V) The term "representative of the public" means a non-industry representative
who has no material business relationship with abroker or dealer or the Exchange.

(w) The term "Rules" means the rules of the Exchange as adopted or amended
from time to time.

(x) The "System" means the electronic system operated by the Exchange that
receives and disseminates quotes, executes orders and reports transactions.

ARTICLE I

Member ship
Primary Market Maker Members
Section 1. (&) There shall be ten (10) Primary Market Maker Memberships.

(b) There shall be paid an annual Membership fee with respect to each Primary
Market Maker Membership.

(c) Each Primary Market Maker Membership shall entitle a Member approved by
the Exchange, during the period for which the annual Membership fee has been paid and while
such Member remains in good standing, to enter quotations and orders into the Exchange's
System for the Member's own account and perform other functions specified in the Rulesto
facilitate execution and handling of orders placed into the Exchange's System with respect to one
(2) group of options classes allocated by the Exchange. Primary Market Makers shall also be
permitted to effect proprietary transactions in other options classes traded on the Exchange
pursuant to the Rules.

(d) Each Primary Market Maker Membership shall entitle aMember to the right to
one (1) vote on matters requiring a vote of the Members as provided in this Constitution.

Competitive Market Maker Members

Section 2. () There shall be one hundred (100) Competitive Market Maker Memberships.
However, the Exchange only may approve up to fifty (50) Competitive Market Maker Members
to effect Exchange Transactions until authorized by the Board to approve additional Competitive
Market Maker Members to effect Exchange Transactions. The Board may authorize the approval
of additional Members at such time and in such numbers as it may determine.
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(b) There shall be paid an annual Membership fee with respect to each Competitive
Market Maker Membership.

(c) Each Competitive Market Maker Membership shall entitle a Member approved
by the Exchange, during the period for which the annual Membership fee has been paid and while
such Member remains in good standing, to enter quotations and orders into the Exchange's
System for the Member's own account with respect to one (1) group of options classes allocated
by the Exchange. Competitive Market Makers shall also be permitted to effect proprietary
transactions in other options classes traded on the Exchange pursuant to the Rules.

(d) Each Competitive Market Maker Membership shall entitle a Member to the
right to one (1) vote on matters requiring a vote of the Members as provided in this Constitution.

Electronic Access Members
Section 3. (a) There shall be an unlimited number of Electronic Access Memberships.

(b) Each Electronic Access Member shall pay an annual Membership fee that
entitles such Member, during the period for which such fee has been paid and while such Member
remains in good standing, to (i) enter orders into the Exchange's System, and/or (ii) clear
Exchange Transactions for Exchange Members.

(c) Electronic Access Members shall not have atransferable interest in the
Exchange and may withdraw from Membership upon the approval of the Exchange, which shall
be given upon a determination that the Class C Member has satisfied al obligations to the
Exchange and Members.

(d) Except as specificaly provided otherwise by this Constitution or by law,
Electronic Access Members shall not have the right to vote on any matters requiring a vote of the
Members.

Lessee Members

Section 4. (a) A Class A or Class B Member in good standing may lease his or its
Membership to a person or entity approved by the Exchange, subject to and in accordance with
such Rules and procedures as may be adopted by the Board.

(b) During the term of such lease, for the purposes of this Constitution and the
Rules, the lessee shall be considered to be, and the lessor shall not be considered to be, a Member
of the Exchange, except as provided in (c) and (d) of this Section or otherwise specified in the
Rules.

(c) Under the lease agreement, the lessor may retain the right to vote Membership

Voting Rights or those rights may be passed to the lessee; provided, however, if the lessor isa
Founder, the Membership Voting Rights shall pass to the lessee.
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(d) The lessor shall not transfer to the lessee Ownership Voting Rights associated
with the leased Membership.

(e) Thelessor, and not the lessee, shall be entitled to receive, with respect to such
Membership, any distribution of the assets of the Exchange.

Approval of Members

Section 5. To become a Member, or to be reinstated or readmitted as a Member, a person
must be approved by the Exchange.

Eligibility for Members;, Good Standing

Section 6. (a) Members shall be individuals, corporations, partnerships and limited liability
companies, organized under the laws of ajurisdiction of the United States, or such other
jurisdiction as the Board may approve, subject to their meeting the conditions of approval as
stated in this Constitution and the Rules.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this Constitution and the Rules, Members
must have as the principal purpose of their Membership the conduct of a public securities business
as defined in the Rules.

(c) The good standing of a Member may be suspended, terminated or otherwise
withdrawn, as provided in the Rules, if any of said conditions for approval cease to be maintained
or the Member violates any of its agreements with the Exchange or any of the provisions of the
Congtitution or the Rules.

(d) Unless a Member isin good standing, the Member shall have no rights or
privileges of Membership except as otherwise provided by law, this Constitution or the Rules,
shall not hold himself or itself out for any purpose as a Member, and shall not deal with the
Exchange on any basis except as a non-Member.

Member ship Agreement
Section 7. No person admitted to the Exchange as a Member shall be entitled to any
privileges thereof until such Member has agreed to be bound by the Operating Agreement,

Constitution and Rules by execution of a Membership Agreement. By such agreement such
Member pledges to abide by the same asit has been or shall be from time to time amended.
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Nominees of Member Organizations

Section 8. Every applicant for Membership as a Member Organization and every Member
Organization shall, in accordance with the Rules, designate an individual nominee with respect to
each Membership, who shall be authorized to represent the Organization in al matters relating to
the Exchange.

Registration of Individual Member ships
for Member Organizations

Section 9. (a) Every individua Member or applicant who is or intends to become an
executive officer, director, principa shareholder or general partner of an organization engaged or
proposed to engage in business as a broker or dealer on the Exchange may apply to register his
Membership for such organization.

(b) Additiona individua Members may register their Memberships for a Member
Organization in accordance with the Rules. Such organization shall be subject to the same
requirements for approva asif it were itself applying for Membership as a Member Organization,
except that the individual Member so applying shall represent the Member Organization in lieu of
anominee.

(c) Registration of an individual Membership for an organization may be
withdrawn by the Exchange for any reason that would justify withdrawal of the approval of either
the individual or the organization for Membership.

Acquisition and Transfer of Member ships

Section 10. Memberships may be offered for sale and transferred by the owners thereof,
or under certain circumstances by the Exchange, as provided in the Rules.

Concentration Limits

Section 11. (a) A Member, together with any person who directly or indirectly controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Member, may not own or lease more than
twenty percent (20%) of any Class of Memberships. The Exchange may establish limitations that
further limit the number of Class A and Class B Memberships that may be owned or leased by a
Member.

(b) The Exchange shall establish limitations on the number of Memberships with
respect to which a Member initially may be approved to effect Exchange Transactions based upon
the number of Members in each Class that have been approved to effect Exchange Transactions.

(c) Founders shall have atemporary exemption, not to exceed ten (10) years, from
the limitation contained in paragraph (a) of this Section.
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ARTICLE Il

Meetings of Members
Place of M eetings

Section 1. Each meeting of the Members shall be held at such a place as the Board may
designate for the purpose of electing Directors and such other business as may be properly
conducted at such a meeting.

Annual Election Meeting

Section 2. An annual election meeting of the Members shall be held on the second
Thursday in the month of November of each year, and at such time as may be designated by the
Board prior to the giving of notice of the meeting for the purpose of electing directors to fill
expiring terms and any vacancies in unexpired terms.

Special M eetings

Section 3. Specia meetings of the Members may be called by the Chairman of the Board
or amgjority of the Board for any purpose or purposes and shall be called if five (5) Members of a
Class of Members or more than thirty percent (30%) of a Class of Members, whichever is greater,
request such a meeting, unless otherwise prescribed by law, and shall be held at such times and
places as the Board may designate.

Notice of M eetings

Section 4. (&) Unless otherwise provided by law, written notice of the time, place and
purpose or purposes of each meeting of the Members shall be delivered to each Member entitled
to vote at the meeting either personally or by telephone, facsimile, e-mail, or first class mail, at
least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting.

(b) Notice of ameeting need not be given to any Member who, either before or
after the meeting, executes awaiver of notice, or who attends such meeting without objecting, at
its beginning, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or
convened.

Proxies
Section 5. At all meetings of the Members, aMember may vote in person or by proxy
executed in writing by the Member or by a duly authorized attorney-in-fact. The proxy shall be

filed with the Board before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after eleven
months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.
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Quorum

Section 6. (@) Except as otherwise provided by the law or this Constitution, a majority of
the Members of each Class entitled to vote on, or take action with respect to, a matter to be
considered at the meeting, each present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a
guorum for the transaction of business at such meeting with respect to that matter.

(b) The Members present at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact
business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal during the meeting of that number of
Members whose absence would result in less than a quorum being present.

(c) In the absence of a quorum, amajority of Members present and entitled to vote
thereat may adjourn any meeting from time to time for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days
without further notice.

Voting by Members

Section 7. (&) Any action requiring the approval of the Members shall require the
approval of the Class A Members and approval of the Class B Members, except as otherwise
specified in this Constitution.

(b) Any action requiring the approval of a Class of Members shall require the
affirmative vote of a mgjority of the Members of such Class present or represented by proxy at a
meeting of the Members at which a quorum is present.

Action without Meeting
Section 8. (@) Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the
Members may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if Members
holding voting interests sufficient to authorize such action at a meeting at which all Members
entitled to vote thereon were present and voted consent thereto in writing.

(b) Action taken pursuant to this Section shall be effective when al necessary
Members have signed a consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date.

Participation in Meetings by Telephone
Section 9. Members may participate in a meeting by conference telephone or similar

communi cations equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear
each other, and such participation shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.
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Record Dates
Section 10. (@) For the purpose of determining Members entitled to notice of, or to vote
at, any meeting of the Members, or the identity of Members for any other purpose, the date on
which notice of the meeting is mailed, or on which the declaration of such distribution is adopted,
as the case may be, shall be the record date for such determination.
(b) When a determination of Members entitled to vote at any meeting has been
made as provided in this Section, the determination shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting.

(c) Therecord date for determining Members entitled to take action without a
meeting pursuant to Section 8 of this Article I11 shall be the date the first Member signs awritten
consent.

Actions Requiring Approval of Members
Section 11. (a) The following require approval by the Members:

(1) any merger, consolidation or dissolution of the Exchange or any sale of
al or substantially all of the assets of the Exchange;

(i) any additional Classes of Memberships, or an increase in the number of
Membershipsin any Class,; and

(i11) Any amendment to this Constitution or the Operating Agreement.
(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Operating Agreement and this
Constitution may not be amended without the approval of the Class C Membersif such

amendment would:

(1) impose an obligation on the Class C Members to make Capital
Contributions to the Company;

(ii) allocate or distribute any type of income, gain, loss, deduction or credit
with respect to the Class C Members,

(iii) specify any manner of computing distributions to the Class C
Members,

(iv) alter the voting rights of the Class C Members; or

(v) change the number of Directors on the Board of Directors or the
composition thereof.
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Limitation on Voting Rights of Founders

Section 12. There shall be no Membership Voting Rights associated with Memberships
owned by a Founder with respect to which the Founder has not been approved to effect Exchange
Transactions or which have not been leased. Such Memberships shall not be deemed outstanding
for purposes of any vote by the Members involving the exercise of Membership Voting Rights.

ARTICLE IV

Board of Directors
Number, Election and Tenure
Section 1. (@) The Board shall be composed of fifteen (15) Directors:

(2) Two (2) Directors shall be Class A Members or officers, directors or
partners of Class A Members who are elected by a plurality of the Class A Members
("Class A Directors").

(2) Two (2) Directors shall be Class B Members or officers, directors or
partners of Class B Members who are elected by a plurality of the Class B Members
("Class B Directors').

(3) Two (2) Directors shall be Class C Members or officers, directors or
partners of Class C Members who are elected by a plurality of the Class C Members
("Class C Directors).

(4) Eight (8) Directors shall be non-industry representatives ("Non-
Industry Directors'), at least two (2) of whom shall be representatives of the public
("Public Directors") who are elected as provided in paragraph (c) below.

(5) The President shall be adirector by virtue of his office.

(b) Tenure. Except as provided in paragraph (e) below, Directors shall serve for a
term of two (2) years. One half of each Class of Directors will be elected at each annual meeting
of the Members. The President shall serve on the Board until removed. No Director, other than
the President, who has been elected to three (3) consecutive terms shall be eligible for election as
adirector except after an interval of at least two (2) years.

(c) Industry Directors. No Member Organization shall have more than one (1)
representative elected to the Board.
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(d) Election of Non-Industry Directors. If an election is uncontested, the Non-
Industry Directors shall be approved by the Class A Members, the Class B Members and the Class
C Members voting by Class. If there are more candidates than the number of vacancies to be
filled, Non-Industry Directors shall be elected by a pluraity of the Members as follows:

(1) Each Member shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each vacancy to be
filled in such eection, which votes may be exercised for one or more candidates.

(2) Each vote exercised by Members of Classes with fewer Members than
the largest Class of Members shall be weighted so that each Class of Members shall have
equal voting power.

(e) Initial Election Meeting. Aninitia election meeting of the Members shall be
held prior to the initiation of trading on the Exchange (the "Initial Election Meeting"). Members
shall elect Directors pursuant to the following procedures:

(1) Members shall be given notice of the Initial Election Meeting pursuant
to Article l11, Section 4 of this Constitution.

(2) The Secretary shall recelve nominations of persons for election to the
Board from Members of the Class entitled to elect such person (as provided in paragraph
(a) above) until the fifth business day prior to the Initial Election Meeting.

(3) Nominees for Director shall provide the Secretary such information as
is reasonably necessary to serve as the basis for a determination of the nominee's
classification asa Class A, Class B, Class C, Non-Industry or Public Director.

(4) The Secretary shall determine whether a nominee for Director qualifies
for classification asaClass A, Class B, Class C, Non-Industry or Public Representative.

(5) All qualified nominees shall be placed on the ballot for election by the
Members as provided in paragraph (a) above.

(6) Of the Directors elected at the Initial Election Meeting, the Board shall
randomly designate one (1) Class A Director, one (1) Class B Director, one (1) Class C
Director and four (4) Non-Industry Directors (at least one (1) of which shall be a Public
Director) who shall serve for aninitial term of three (3) years.

Chairman of the Board

Section 2. The Chairman of the Board shall be appointed from among the Directors by
the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the Directors then in office; provided that after [insert
date two years after initiation of trading on the Exchange], the Chairman of the Board shall be
appointed from among the Non-Industry Directors. The Chairman shall serve as such for aterm
of one (1) year. The Chairman shall have the authority provided in this Constitution and the
Rules, but shall not be an officer of the Exchange.
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Vice Chairman of the Board

Section 3. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall be appointed from among the Directors
by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the Directors then in office. The Vice Chairman
of the Board shall serve as such for aterm of one (1) year. The Vice Chairman of the Board shall
have the authority provided in this Constitution and the Rules, but shall not be an officer of the
Exchange.

Resignation or Removal of a Director

Section 4. (&) Any Director may resign at any time by giving notice thereof to the
Chairman of the Board or the Secretary. Such resignation shall be effective as of the date of such
notice or on such other date as may be specified in such notice. The resignation of a Director
shall not affect his rights as a Member.

(b) The Board, by vote of two-thirds of the Directors then in office, shall have the
power to remove any Director if he shall cease to satisfy the qualifications for the Class of
Directors to which he was elected or in the event that he refuses, fails, neglects or is unable to
discharge his duties or for any cause affecting the best interests of the Exchange.

Filling Vacancies

Section 5. (@) If aDirector position becomes vacant, the Nominating Committee shall
nominate, and the Board shall elect by mgjority vote of the remaining Directors then in office, a
person satisfying the qualifications for the Class of Directors in which there is a vacancy, except
that if the remaining term of office for the vacant Director position is not more than six (6)
months, no replacement shall be required.

(b) In the case of the absence or inability to act of the Chairman of the Board, or a
vacancy in the office of the Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Board shall exercise
the powers and discharge the duties of the Chairman of the Board. In the absence or inability to
act of both the Chairman and the Vice Chairman, the Board may designate an Acting Chairman of
the Board. In the absence of such a designation by the Board, the President, or in his absence or
inability to act, the senior available Vice President shall assume all the functions and discharge all
of the duties of the Chairman of the Board.

Power s of the Board
Section 6. (@) The Board shall be the governing body of the Exchange and shall be vested
with al powers necessary for the management of the business and affairs of the Exchange and for
the promotion of its welfare, objects and purposes.
(b) The Board shall regulate the business conduct of Members and may exercise all

such powers of the Exchange and take all such lawful actions that are not by law, this
Congtitution or the Rules directed or required to be exercised or done by Members.
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(c) Inthe exercise of its powers, the Board may organize such subsidiaries, impose
such fees and charges, adopt or amend such Rules, issue such orders and directions and make
such decisions as it deems necessary or appropriate.

(d) The Board may prescribe and impose penalties for violations of the
Congtitution or Rules, for neglect or refusal to comply with orders, directions or decisions of the
Board, or for any other offenses against the Exchange.

M eetings of the Board.

Section 7. (&) Each meeting of the Board shall be held at such times and places as the
Board may designate for the purpose of conducting such business as may be properly conducted
at such a meeting.

(b) A specia meeting of the Board may be called by the Chairman of the Board, or
by the Secretary if one (1) Class A Director and one (1) Class B Director shall request such a
meeting, or if amaority of the Non-Industry Directors shall request such a meeting, and shall be
held at such times and places as the Secretary may designate.

(c) Notice of each meeting of the Board shall state the date, time and place
thereof, but need not state the purpose thereof except as may be otherwise required by law, and
shall be delivered to each Director oraly, by e-mail, mail or any other means, at least one (1) hour
before the time of the meeting.

Quorum

Section 8. (a) At all meetings of the Board, unless otherwise set forth in this
Constitution or required by law, a quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of a
majority of the Board, including no less than fifty percent (50%) of the Non-Industry Directors.

(b) The requirement that no less than fifty percent (50%) of the Non-Industry
Directors be present to constitute a quorum shall be deemed satisfied if at least fifty percent
(50%) of the Non-Industry Directors are (i) present at or (ii) have waived their attendance for a
meeting after receiving an agenda prior to such meeting.

(c) When a quorum is present at a meeting of the Board, a mgjority of Directors
shall have the power to decide any question that may come before such meeting except as
otherwise provided by law or this Constitution.

(d) In the absence of a quorum, a mgority of Directors at any meeting shall have
the power to adjourn the meeting. If after such adjournment, a quorum becomes present, the
meeting may be called to order and any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as
originally noticed may be transacted.
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(e) The Directors present at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact
business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal during the meeting of that number of
Directors whose absence would result in less than a quorum being present.

(f) Except as otherwise expressly required by law or this Constitution, if a quorum
is present, the affirmative vote of a maority of the Directors present and entitled to vote on, or
take action with respect to, any matter shall be the act of the Board.

Participation in Meetings by Telephone

Section 9. Directors may participate in a meeting by conference telephone or similar
communications equipment, by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear
each other, and such participation shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

Action without Meeting

Section 10. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board may
be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if those Directors whose
approva would be required if all Directors were present at a meeting consent thereto in writing,
and such consents are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board.

I nterested Directors

Section 11. (a) No Director shall directly or indirectly participate as a member of the
Board of Directors or of any committee in any matter which would substantialy affect his interest
or the interests of any person in whom he is directly or indirectly interested, although interested
Directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at the meeting of the Board or
of a committee which authorizes actions with respect to such matter.

(b) An interested Director shal disqualify himsdlf or shal be disqualified by a vote
of the Board of Directors or the chairman of any committee.

(c) For purposes of this Section, a Director is not personally interested by reason
of being or having been a Member of a committee which has made prior inquiry, examination or
investigation of the subject under consideration, nor in the determination of matters that may
affect the Members as awhole or certain classes of Members, and Class A, B and C Directors
shall not be prohibited from participating in such determination in the normal course of
conducting Exchange business.

Delegation to Agents and Officers

Section 12. The Board may delegate functions relating to the day-to-day operations of the
Company to such officers, agents, consultants or employees as the Board may from time to time
designate. Such officers, agents, consultants and employees need not be Members or Directors,
and shall have such duties, powers, responsibilities and authority as may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board, and may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by the Board.
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ARTICLEYV

Officers
Titles

Section 1. The Exchange shall have a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a
Treasurer, a Secretary and any other officers as may be appointed by the President.

Qualification

Section 2. Officers of the Exchange shall not be Members of the Exchange nor affiliated
with a Member or Member Organization. If an officer of the Exchange owns one or more
Memberships he must (i) abstain from exercising any voting rights associated with such
Membership(s), and (ii) lease such Membership(s) consistent with the requirements of Rule
300(a)(3) and (5). Theterms of any lease of a Membership by an officer must be reasonable and
approved by a magority of the Non-Industry Directors. Except in the case where more than one
(1) officer is adso a Founder, the Exchange shall permit only one (1) officer to be an owner of one
or more Memberships.

President

Section 3. (@) The President shall be appointed by the Board, shall be a Director by virtue
of his office and an ex-officio member, without the right to vote, of al committees, without
prejudice to his being specifically appointed as a voting member of any committee.

(b) The President shall serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the Exchange, shall
manage the affairs of the Exchange and shall be the representative of the Exchangein al public
matters.

(c) The President shall not engage in any other occupation during his incumbency
except with the approval of the Board.

(d) The President may be removed by avote of two-thirds of the Directors then in
office, exclusive of the President, in the event that he refuses, fails, neglects or is unable to
discharge his/her duties or for any cause affecting the best interests of the Exchange.

(e) In the case of temporary absence or inability to act, the President may designate
any other officer to assume all the functions and discharge all the duties of the President. Upon
hisfailure to do so, or if the office of President is vacant, any officer appointed by the Board shall
perform the functions and duties of the President.

Appointment of Vice Presidents, Secretary and Treasurer
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Section 4. (a) The President shall appoint, with the approval of the Board, one or more
Vice Presidents, a Secretary and a Treasurer, and shall have the authority to remove any officer so
appointed with or without cause and shall remove an officer if so directed by the Board. Except
as provided otherwise in this Article, Vice Presidents, the Secretary and the Treasurer shall serve
for the tenure prescribed by the President with the approval of the Board.

(b) Officers appointed by the President may be lessors of one or more
Memberships, but shall not be Members of the Exchange, as defined in the Rules, nor affiliated
with a Member or Member Organization.

Vice Presidents

Section 5. Any Vice President shall have such duties as may be prescribed by the
President.

Secretary

Section 6. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board and all meetings of the
Members and shall keep official records of al proceedings thereof. The Secretary shall give
notices of meetings of the Board and meetings of the Members in accordance with the provisions
of this Constitution and the Rules. The Secretary shall determine whether a nominee for Director
or prospective committee member qualifies for classification asa Class A, Class B, Class C, non-
industry or public representative, and shall be responsible for reviewing the qualifications of such
representatives at least annually. The Secretary shall also perform such other duties as may be
prescribed by the President.

Treasurer

Section 7. The Treasurer shall have responsibility for the financial affairs of the Exchange
and shall maintain appropriate books and records of the financial affairs of the Exchange. The
Treasurer shall deposit all monies and other assets in accounts in the name of the Exchange, and
disburse funds in accordance with the Rules or as otherwise directed by the Board. The Treasurer
shall have such other duties as may be prescribed by the President.

Resignation of Officers
Section 8. Any officer may resign by giving notice thereof to the Chairman of the Board,

President or Secretary, or to any Officer to whom he reports. Such resignation shall be effective
as of the date of such notice or on such other date as may be specified in such notice.
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ARTICLE VI

Committees
Designation of Committees

Section 1. (@) The Board may appoint such committees or subcommittees as it deems
necessary or desirable, and may fix their compositional requirements, powers, duties, and terms of
office. Any committee or subcommittee consisting solely of one or more Directors, to the extent
provided in this Constitution or by resolution of the Board, shall have and may exercise all powers
and authority of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of the Exchange.

(b) A committee or subcommittee may consist of industry and non-industry
representatives that are not Directors. Such committee members may be appointed by the Board
or the Board may delegate such authority. Each prospective committee member who is not a
Director shall, upon request, provide the Secretary such information as is reasonably necessary to
serve as the basis for a determination as to his classification asaClass A, Class B, Class C, non-
industry or public representative.

(c) A member of acommittee or subcommittee appointed by the Board may be
removed from such committee or subcommittee only by the Board for refusal, neglect, or inability
to discharge such committee member's duties.

Executive Committee

Section 2. (@) The Executive Committee shall consist of six (6) Directors, including the
Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairman of the Board and the President. At least three (3) of
the members of the Executive Committee shall be Non-Industry Directors, at least one (1) of
whom must be a Public Director.

(b) The Chairman of the Executive Committee shall be the President of the
Exchange.

(c) The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise al the powers and
authority of the Board except that the Executive Committee shall not have the powers of the
Board with respect to approving any merger, consolidation, sale of substantialy al of the assets
or dissolution of the Company.

(d) At all meetings of the Executive Committee, a quorum for the transaction of
business shall consist of a magjority of the Executive Committee, including at least one (1) of the
non-industry committee members. The requirement that at least one (1) of the non-industry
committee members be present to constitute a quorum shall be deemed satisfied if all of the non-
industry committee members have waived their attendance for a meeting after receiving an agenda
prior to such meeting.
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(e) When aquorum is present at a meeting of the Executive Committee, a mgority
of such Committee members shall have the power to decide any question that may come before
such meeting.

Nominating Committee

Section 3. (&) The Nominating Committee shall be composed of one (1) Class A
representative, one (1) Class B representative, one (1) Class C representative and three (3) non-
industry representatives, at least one (1) of whom must be a public representative. No officer or
employee of the Exchange shall serve on the Nominating Committee.

(b) A member of the Nominating Committee may not simultaneously serve on the
Board, unless such member isin the final year of histerm as Director and does not stand for
reelection to the Board until such time as he is no longer a member of the Nominating Committee.

(c) The Nominating Committee shall nominate persons for election to the Board of
Directors by the Members during the annual el ection meeting pursuant to the following:

(1) During September of each year, the Nominating Committee shall hold at
least two (2) meetings, at least one (1) of which is open to Members, for the purpose of
selecting not less than one (1) nominee for each expiring term and vacancy on the Board
of Directors.

(i1) The Nominating Committee will accept nominations for an expiring
term or vacancy of aClass A, Class B or Class C Director from Members of the Class
entitled to elect such person, and, with respect to Non-Industry Directors, al Members of
the Exchange.

(i) In the event any nominee named by the Nominating Committee
withdraws or becomes ingligible, the Nominating Committee may select an additional
nominee to replace the withdrawn or ineligible nominee.

(d) Nominees for Director shall provide the Secretary such information asis
reasonably necessary to serve as the basis for a determination of the nominee's classification asa
Class A, Class B, Class C, Non-Industry or Public Director.

(e) In addition to the nominees named by the Nominating Committee, persons may
be nominated for election to the Board by a petition, signed by not less than five percent (5%) of
the Memberships of the Class entitled to elect such person if there are more than eighty (80)
Memberships in the Class eligible to vote, ten percent (10%) if there are forty (40) to eighty (80)
Membershipsin the Class digible to vote, and twenty-five percent (25%) if there are fewer than
fifty (50) Memberships in the Class dligible to vote. Such petition must be filed with the Secretary
no later than 5:00 p.m. (EST) on October 15, or the first business day thereafter in the event
October 15 is aholiday or weekend.
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(f) At al meetings, a quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of a
magjority of the members of the Nominating Committee, including at least one (1) non-industry
committee member. The requirement that at least one (1) of the non-industry committee members
be present to constitute a quorum shall be deemed satisfied if al of the non-industry committee
members have waived their attendance for a meeting after receiving an agenda prior to such
meeting. In the absence of a quorum, amajority of the committee members present may adjourn
the meeting until a quorum is present.

(g9) The Exchange shall immediately notify Members of the names of nominees and
replacement nominees.

Audit Committee

Section 4. (@) The Board shall appoint an Audit Committee consisting of three (3) to five
(5) Directors, none of whom shall be officers or employees of the Exchange. Each member of the
Audit Committee shall be a Non-Industry Director, and at least one (1) of the Non-Industry
Directors shall be aPublic Director who shall serve as Chair of the Audit Committee. Members
of the Audit Committee shall serve for one (1) year terms.

(b) The Audit Committee shall annually recommend to the Board of Directors
independent public accountants for appointment as auditors of the books, records and accounts of
the Exchange. The Audit Committee shall have the responsibility to annually review with the
independent auditors the scope of their examination and the cost thereof. The Audit Committee
shall review the annual "management letter" and other reports submitted by the independent
auditors and take such action with respect thereto as it may deem appropriate. It also shall
periodicaly review with the independent auditors and the internal auditor the Exchange's interna
controls and the adequacy of the internal audit program.

(c) At al meetings of the Audit Committee, a quorum for the transaction of
business shall consist of a mgjority of the Audit Committee. In the absence of a quorum, a
majority of the committee members present may adjourn the meeting until a quorum is present.

Conduct of Proceedings
Section 5. Except as otherwise provided in the Constitution, the Rules or by resolution of
the Board, each committee may determine the manner in which its proceedings shall be

conducted. Committees shall keep minutes of their meetings and periodically report their
proceedings to the Board.
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ARTICLE VII

Regulation

Rulemaking
Section 1. The Board may, by the affirmative vote of a mgority of the entire Board,
which must include the affirmative vote of at least one (1) Class A and at least one (1) Class B
Director, adopt, amend or repeal such Rules as it may deem necessary or proper, including, but
not limited to, Rules with respect to:
(a) Thetrading of contracts on the Exchange;

(b) The access of Members to and the conduct of Members with the Exchange
System and their use of System facilities;

(c) Insolvency of Members and Member Organizations,

(d) The formation of Member Organizations, the continuance thereof and the
interest of Members;

(e) The partners, officers, directors, stockholders and employees of Members and
Member Organizations;

(f) The officers of Members and Member Organizations,

(9) The business conduct of Members and Member Organizations,

(h) The business connections of Members and Member Organizations, and their
association with or domination by or over corporations or other persons engaged in the securities
business;

(1) Capital requirements for Members and Member Organizations;

()) The procedure for arbitration;

(K) Transfers of Memberships and disposition of the proceeds of such transfers;
and

() The conduct and procedure for disciplinary hearings and reviews therefrom.
Supervision
Section 2. (&) The Exchange shall have general supervision over the examination of
Members and Member Organizations and approved persons in connection with their conduct of

the business of Member Organizations.

20 I SE Constitution



(b) The Board may examine the business conduct and financial condition of
Members, approved persons and Member Organizations.

(c) The Board may adopt Rules with respect to the Exchange's supervision over
partnership and corporate arrangements and over officers of Members and Member
Organizations, as well as with respect to the employment, compensation and duties of such
employees as it may deem appropriate.

(d) The Board shall supervise al matters relating to the collection, dissemination
and use of quotations and of reports of prices on the Exchange.

(e) The Board shall have the power to approve or disapprove any connection or
means of communication with the Exchange and may require the discontinuance of any such
connection or means of communication.

Securities

Section 3. The Board may approve the admission of securities for trading on the
Exchange or may remove the same from trading on the Exchange.

ARTICLE VIII

Arbitration
Controversies Arbitrated
Section 1. Any controversy between parties who are Members or Member Organizations,
and any controversy between a Member or Member Organization and any other person, arising
out of the business of such Member or Member Organization on the Exchange, shall at the
insistence of any such party be submitted for arbitration in accordance with the provisions of this
Constitution and the Rules.
Arbitration Rules

Section 2. All arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with, and before
arbitrators selected as provided by the Rules.
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ARTICLE IX

| ndemnification

| ndemnification

Section 1. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law from timeto timein
effect, the Exchange shall:

(@ Indemnify and hold harmless the Directors, officers, agents and employees of
the Exchange and their respective directors, trustees, shareholders, officers, employees, agents
and other affiliates, against all costs, liabilities, claims, expenses, including reasonable attorneys
fees, and damages (collectively, "Losses') paid or incurred by any such person in connection with
the conduct of the Exchange's business; and

(b) Indemnify each person who at any timeis, or has been, a Director or officer,
agent or employee of the Exchange, and is threatened to be, or is, made a party to any action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he
or itis, or was a Director or officer, agent or employee of the Exchange, or is serving, or has
served, at the request of the Company as a manager, officer, Member, employee or agent of
another person, against all losses actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any such
pending, threatened or completed action, suit or proceeding.

Advancement of Expenses

Section 2. An Indemnitee shall be entitled to receive, upon application therefor,
advances from the Exchange to cover the costs of defending any pending, threatened or
completed claim, action, suit or proceeding against it for Losses in connection with which it
would be entitled to indemnification under this Article IX, provided, that such advances shall be
repaid to the Exchange (with interest thereon at an annual rate equal to the Prime Rate) if the
Indemnitee receiving such advance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction upon entry of a
final judgment to have violated any of the standards which preclude indemnification.

Rights Not Exclusive; Survival

Section 3. The rights of an Indemnitee set forth in this Article I X shall not be
exclusive of any other rights to which it may be entitled, whether by separate agreement or
otherwise, nor shall such rights limit or affect any other such rights. All rights of an Indemnitee
under this Article IX shall survive the dissolution of the Exchange, and shall inure to the benefit of
his or its heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.
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CHAPTER 1
Definitions
Rule 100. Definitions

(a) Thefollowing terms, when used in these Rules, shall have the meanings
specified in this Chapter 1, unless the context indicates otherwise. Any term defined in Article
of the Constitution and not otherwise defined in this Chapter shall have the meaning assigned in
Article | of the Constitution.

(1) The term "aggr egate exer cise price" means the exercise price of an
options contract multiplied by the number of units of the underlying security covered by
the options contract.

(2) The term "American-style option" means an options contract that,
subject to the provisions of Rule 1100 (relating to the cutoff time for exercise instructions)
and to the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, can be exercised on any business day prior
to its expiration date and on its expiration date.

(3) The term "associated person" or "person associated with a Member"
means any partner, officer, director, or branch manager of a Member (or any person
occupying asimilar status or performing ssimilar functions), any person directly or
indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with a Member or any
employee of a Member.

(4) Theterm "bid" means a quote or limit order to buy one or more
options contracts.

(5) The term "call" means an options contract under which the holder of
the option has the right, in accordance with the terms of the option, to purchase from the
Clearing Corporation the number of shares of the underlying security covered by the
options contract.

(6) Theterm "class of options' means all options contracts of the same
type covering the same underlying security.

(7) Theterm "Clearing Cor poration” means The Options Clearing
Corporation.

(8) Theterm "closing pur chase transaction” means an Exchange
Transaction that will reduce or eliminate a short position in an options contract.

©)] The term "closing writing transaction” means an Exchange
Transaction that will reduce or eliminate along position in an options contract.



(10) The term "covered short position” means (i) the obligation of a
writer of acall option is secured by a"specific deposit” or an "escrow deposit” meeting
the conditions of Rule 710(f) or 710(h), respectively, of the Rules of the Clearing
Corporation, or the writer holds in the same account as the short position, on a share-for-
share basis, along position either in the underlying security or in an options contract of the
same class of options where the exercise price of the options contract in such long
position is equal to or less than the exercise price of the options contract in such short
position; and (ii) the writer of a put option holds in the same account as the short position,
on a share-for-share basis, along position in an options contract of the same class of
options where the exercise price of the options contract in such long position is equal to or
greater than the exercise price of the options contract in such short position.

(11) Theterm "discretion” means the authority of a broker or dealer to
determine for a customer the type of option, the class or series of options, the number of
contracts, or whether options are to be bought or sold.

(12) The term "Eur opean-style option” means an options contract that,
subject to the provisions of Rule 1100 (relating to the cutoff time for exercise instructions)
and to the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, can be exercised only on its expiration date.

(13) Theterm "exercise price" means the specified price per unit at which
the underlying security may be purchased or sold upon the exercise of an options contract.

(14) Theterm "Federal Reserve Board" means the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System.

(15) Theterms "he," "him" or "his" shall be deemed to refer to persons of
femae as well as male gender, and to include organizations, as well as individuals, when
the context so requires.

(16) Theterm "long position” means a person's interest as the holder of
one or more options contracts.

(17) Theterm "Member" means an individual or organization that has
been approved by the Exchange as an "Electronic Access Member," "Competitive Market
Maker Member" or "Primary Market Maker Member."

(18) Theterm "market makers' refers to "Competitive Market Makers'
and "Primary Market Makers' collectively.

(19) The term "Non-Customer" means a person or entity that is a broker
or dealer in securities.

(20) The term "Non-Customer Order" means any order that is not a
Public Customer Order as defined in subparagraph (30) below.
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(21) The term "offer" means a quote or limit order to sell one or more
options contracts.

(22) The term "opening pur chase transaction" means an Exchange
Transaction that will create or increase along position in an options contract.

(23) The term "opening writing transaction” means an Exchange
Transaction that will create or increase a short position in an options contract.

(24) The term "options contract" means a put or a call issued, or subject
to issuance by the Clearing Corporation pursuant to the Rules of the Clearing
Corporation.

(25) Theterm "OPRA" means the Options Price Reporting Authority.

(26) Theterm "order" means a commitment to buy or sell securities as
defined in Rule 715 (types of orders).

(27) Theterm "outstanding" means an options contract which has been
issued by the Clearing Corporation and has neither been the subject of a closing writing
transaction nor has reached its expiration date.

(28) Theterm "primary market" means the principal market in which an
underlying security is traded.

(29) The term "Public Customer" means a person that is not a broker or
dealer in securities.

(30) The term "Public Customer Order" means an order for the account
of a Public Customer.

(31) Theterm "put™ means an options contract under which the holder of
the option has the right, in accordance with the terms and provisions of the option, to sell
to the Clearing Corporation the number of shares of the underlying security covered by the
options contract.

(32) Theterm "quote" or "quotation™ means a bid or offer entered by a
market maker that updates the market maker's previous bid or offer, if any.

(33) Theterm "Rules of the Clearing Cor poration" means the Certificate
of Incorporation, the By-laws and the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, and all written
interpretations thereof, as the same may be in effect from time to time.

(34) Theterm "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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(35) The term "series of options' means all options contracts of the same
class having the same exercise price and expiration date.

(36) Theterm "short position” means a person'sinterest as the writer of
one or more options contracts.

(37) Theterm "SRO" means a self-regulatory organization as defined in
Section 3(a)(26) of the Exchange Act.

(38) The term "type of option™ means the classification of an options
contract as either a put or acall.

(39) The term "uncovered" means a short position in an options contract
that is not covered.

(40) The term "underlying security" means the security that the Clearing

Corporation shall be obligated to sell (in the case of acall option) or purchase (in the case
of a put option) upon the valid exercise of an options contract.
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CHAPTER 2

Organization and Administration

Rule 200. Establishment of Committees

The Chief Executive Officer, with the approval of the Board, shall appoint any
committee members that are not Directors to committees established by the Board under Article
V1, Section 1 of the Consgtitution, or established by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to
authority delegated to him by the Board.

Rule 201. Removal of Committee Members

The Chief Executive Officer may, with the approva of the Board, remove any
committee member that is not a Director for refusal, neglect, or inability to discharge such
committee member's duties.

Rule 202. Committee Procedures

Except as otherwise provided in the Constitution, the Rules or resolution of the
Board, each committee shall determine its own time and manner of conducting its meetings, and
the vote of amgjority of the members of a committee present at a meeting at which aquorum is
present shall be the act of the committee. Committees may act informally by written consent of all
of the members of the committee.

Rule 203. General Duties and Power s of Committees

Each committee shall administer the provisions of the Constitution and the Rules
pertaining to matters within its jurisdiction. Each committee shall have such other powers and
duties as may be delegated to it by the Board. Each committee is subject to the control and
supervision of the Board.

Rule 204. Divisions of the Exchange

The divisions of the Exchange shall include the Regulatory Division and such other
Divisions as the Chief Executive Officer, with the approval of the Board, may establish. The
Chief Executive Officer shall appoint a head of every Division and may designate departments
within each Division.

Rule 205. Member ship Dues

The dues payable by Members shall be fixed from time to time by the Board. Dues

shall be payablein full on the first day of January, April, July and October on a nonrefundable
basis and shall be applied to the quarter beginning on that day.
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Rule 206. Transaction Fees

Members shall pay afee for each transaction they execute on the Exchange, as may
be determined by the Board.

Rule 207. Communication Fees

The Board may, at its discretion, impose a communication fee for quotes entered
on the Exchange in addition to the fee contained in Rule 206.

Rule 208. Regulatory Fees or Charges

In addition to the dues and charges specified in this Chapter, the Board may, from
time to time, fix and impose other fees, assessments or charges to be paid to the Exchange by
Members or by Classes of Members with respect to applications, registrations, approvals, use of
Exchange facilities, or other services or privileges granted, including but not limited to the
following:

(@) Regulatory Oversight Service Fees.

(1) Members that are subject to Rule 15¢3-3 under the Exchange
Act (the "Net Capital Rule") and for which the Exchange has been assigned as the
designated examining authority ("DEA") pursuant to Rule 17d-1 under the
Exchange Act shall be required to pay quarterly afee to be determined by the
Board.

(2) Members, whether or not they are members of another
registered national securities exchange or securities association with which the
Exchange has executed an agreement under Rule 17d-2 under the Exchange Act to
allocate responsibility for examining Members for compliance with and
enforcement of certain regulatory requirements, shall be required to pay quarterly a
fee to be determined by the Board.

(b Registration Fees. Members shall pay application, maintenance and
transfer registration fees for their Registered Options Principals (ROPs') as described in Rule 601
and Registered Representatives ("RRs") as described in Rule 602.

Rule 209. Transfer Fees

Members shall pay afee for each transfer or lease of a Membership, as may be
determined by the Board.

Rule 210. Liability for Payment of Fees
(a) A Member that does not pay any dues, fees, assessments, charges, fines or

other amounts due to the Exchange within thirty (30) days after they have become payable shall
be reported to the President, who may, after giving reasonable notice to the Member of such
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arrearages, suspend the Member until payment is made. Should payment not be made within six
(6) months after payment is due, the Membership may be disposed of by the Exchangein
accordance with Rule 310(b).

(b) A person associated with a Member who fails to pay any fine or other amounts
due to the Exchange within thirty (30) days after such amount has become payable and after
reasonable notice of such arrearages, may be suspended from association with a Member until
payment is made.

Rule 211. Exchange's Costs of Defending L egal Proceedings

(&) Any Member or person associated with a Member who fails to prevail in a
lawsuit or other legal proceeding instituted by such person against the Exchange or any of its
Directors, officers, committee members, employees or agents, and related to the business of the
Exchange, shall pay to the Exchange al reasonable expenses, including attorneys fees, incurred
by the Exchange in the defense of such proceeding, but only in the event that such expenses
exceed fifty thousand dollars ($50,000).

(b) Paragraph (a) of this Rule shall not apply to disciplinary actions by the

Exchange, to administrative appeals of Exchange actions or in any specific instance where the
Board has granted a waiver of this provision.
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CHAPTER 3

Member ship

Rule 300. Public Securities Business

(a) Every owner of a Membership shall have as the principal purpose of its
ownership the conduct of a public securities business. Such a purpose shall be deemed to exist if
and so long as:

(1) the Member has qualified and acts in respect of its business on the
Exchange in one or more of the following capacities: (i) an Electronic Access Member
approved to effect or clear Exchange Transactions; or (ii) a Primary or Competitive
Market Maker approved in accordance with Rule 800; and

(2) dl transactions effected by the Member are in compliance with Section
11(a) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations adopted thereunder; or

(3) the owner is alessor to alessee Member that has such a purpose; or
(4) the owner isagenera partner or executive officer or nominee of a
Member Organization with such a purpose and the Membership is registered for that

organization; or

(5) Until [insert date that is ten (10) years after initiation of trading on the
Exchange], the owner is a Founder.

(b) No owner of a Membership shall utilize any scheme, device, arrangement,
agreement or understanding designed to circumvent or avoid, by reciproca means or in any other
manner, the provisions of this Rule.

Rule 301. Owner ship of Member ships

Memberships may be owned by individuals and organizations.

(@) Owners of Memberships that are neither registered brokers-dealers nor
associated with registered broker-dealers shall have no trading privileges on the Exchange.

(b) Memberships owned by persons or entities that are not registered broker-
dealers nor associated with registered broker-dealers shall be leased to registered broker-dealers
approved by the Exchange.

(c) With respect to each Membership owned or leased by a corporation,
partnership or limited liability company ("LLC"), the organization must designate an individual
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nominee in accordance with Rule 306, and Article |1, Section 8 of the Constitution. With respect
to each Membership registered for a corporation, partnership or LLC pursuant to Article I,
Section 9 of the Constitution, the Member Organization shall be represented by the individual
Member who registered the Membership for the organization.

(d) For purposes of Rules 301 through 316 only, the terms "Member" and
"Member Organization” aso shall apply to non-broker-dealer owners of Memberships, and shall
continue to apply to owners whether or not a Membership is leased.

Rule 302. Qualification of Members

(a) Individuals. A Member may be a natural person who is at least twenty-one
(21) years of age and who, except for lessors or Founders, is registered as a broker-dealer
pursuant to Section 15 of the Exchange Act or is associated with aregistered broker-dealer, and
who meets the qualifications for Members contained in the Rules.

(b) Organizations. Members may be corporations, partnershipsor LLCs
organized under the laws of one of the states of the United States or under other laws as the
Board shall approve. Except for lessors and Founders, such corporations, partnerships or LLCs
must be broker-dealers registered pursuant to Section 15 of the Exchange Act and meet the
gualifications for Members in accordance with Exchange Rules applicable thereto.

Rule 303. Denial of and Conditionsto Member ship

() The Exchange may deny (or condition) Membership or may prevent a person
from becoming associated (or condition an association) with a Member for the same reasons that
the SEC may deny or revoke a broker-dealer registration and for those reasons required or
allowed under the Exchange Act.

(b) The Exchange also may deny (or condition) Membership or may prevent a
person from becoming associated with (or condition an association) with a Member when the
applicant, directly or indirectly:

(1) has a negative net worth, has financia difficulties involving an amount
that is more than five percent (5%) of the applicant's net worth, or has a pattern of failure
to pay just debts (whether or not such debts have been the subject of a bankruptcy action);

(2) isunable satisfactorily to demonstrate a capacity to adhere to all
applicable Exchange, SEC, the Clearing Corporation and Federal Reserve Board policies,
rules and regulations, including those concerning record-keeping, reporting, finance and
trading procedures; or

(3) isunable satisfactorily to demonstrate reasonably adequate systems
capability and capacity.

(c) When an applicant is a subject of an investigation conducted by any SRO or
government agency involving his or its fitness for Membership, the Exchange need not act on the
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application until the matter has been resolved.

(d) The Exchange may determine not to permit a Member or person associated
with a Member to continue as a Member or associated therewith, if the Member or associated
person:

(1) failsto meet any of the qualification requirements for membership or
association after the membership or association has been approved,

(2) fails to meet any condition placed by the Exchange on such membership
or association;

(3) violates any agreement with the Exchange; or
(4) becomes subject to a statutory disqualification under the Exchange Act.

(e) If aMember or person associated with a Member that becomes subject to a
statutory disqualification under the Exchange Act wants to continue as a Member of the
Exchange or in association with a Member, the Member or associated person must, within thirty
(30) days of becoming subject to a statutory disqualification, submit an application to the
Exchange seeking to continue as a Member or in association with a Member notwithstanding the
statutory disqualification. Failureto timely file such an application is afactor that may be taken
into consideration by the Exchange in making determinations pursuant to paragraph (d) of this
Rule.

(f) Subject to Chapter 15 (Summary Suspension), any applicant who has been
denied Membership or association with a Member or granted only conditional Membership or
association pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) of this Rule, and any Member or person associated
with a Member who is not permitted pursuant to paragraph (d) of this Rule to continue as a
Member or associated with aMember or which continuance as a Member or association is
conditioned, may appeal the Exchange's decision under Chapter 17 (Hearings and Review).

(g) An applicant will be denied Membership if, together with any person who
directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, approval would
result in the applicant owning and/or leasing more than one (1) Primary Market Maker
Membership or more than five (5) Competitive Market Maker Memberships, unless this
requirement is waived by the Board for good cause shown.

Rule 304. Persons Associated with Member Organizations

(a) Persons associated with Member Organizations shall be bound by the
Constitution and Rules of the Exchange and the rules of the Clearing Corporation. The Exchange
may bar a person from becoming or continuing to be associated with a Member Organization if
such person does not agree in writing, on aform prescribed by the Exchange, to furnish the
Exchange with information with respect to such person's relationship and dealings with the
Member Organization, and information reasonably related to such person's other securities
business, as may be required by the Exchange, and to permit the examination of its books and
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records by the Exchange to verify the accuracy of any information so supplied.

(b) Each Member Organization shall file with the Exchange and keep current alist
and descriptive identification of those persons associated with the Member Organization who are
its executive officers, directors, principa shareholders, and genera partners. Such persons shall
file with the Exchange a Uniform application for Securities Industry Registration or Transfer
(Form U-4).

(c) A clam of any person associated with a Member Organization described in the
first sentence of paragraph (b) of this Rule against such organization shall be subordinate in right
of payment of customers and other Members.

Rule 305. Documents Required of Applicants and Members

(a) Although the Exchange may request additional information, at a minimum, the
partnership agreement and all amendments thereto, in the case of a partnership, the articles of
incorporation, by-laws and al amendments thereto, in the case of a corporation, and in the case of
alimited liability company, the articles of organization and operating agreement and all
amendments thereto, and any |ease agreement to which a Membership is subject pursuant to Rule
312, shall be filed with, and shall be subject to review by, the Exchange; however, no action or
fallure to act by the Exchange shall be construed to mean that the Exchange has in any way
passed on the investment merits of or given approval to any such document.

(b) Every Member shall file with the Exchange and keep current an address where
notices may be served.

(c) Inamanner and form prescribed by the Exchange, every Member shall pledge
to abide by the Consgtitution and Rules of the Exchange, as amended from time to time, and by all
circulars, notices, directives or decisions adopted pursuant to or made in accordance with the
Constitution and Rules.

(d) Members and Member Organizations shall keep and maintain a current copy of
the Constitution and Rules in areadily accessible place. Member Organizations that are approved
to do business with the public pursuant to Rule 600 shall make the Constitution and Rules
available for examination by customers.

Rule 306. Nominees

(@) Pursuant to Rule 301(c), every Member Organization must authorize an
individual nominee to represent the organization with respect to such Membership in all matters
relating to the Exchange.

(1) The Member Organization represented by a nominee shall guarantee all
obligations arising out of such nominee's representation of the Member Organization in al
matters relating to the Exchange.

(2) The guarantee shal include all obligations to the Exchange and all
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obligations to other Members or Member Organizations resulting from Exchange
transactions or transactions in other securities.

(b) The authorization and guarantee required in paragraphs (@) of this Rule shall be
on aform or forms prescribed by the Exchange.

(c) A nominee may perform functions on the Exchange only on behalf of the
Member Organization for which he is authorized.

Rule 307. Application Procedures and Approval or Disapproval

(a) Every individual or organization applying to become an owner or lessee of a
Membership (the "applicant”) shal file an application with the Exchange. Applications must be
accompanied by a non-refundable application fee.

(b) Within a reasonable time following receipt of an application for Membership,
the name of the applicant shall be posted by the Exchange.

(c) Before an application is approved by the Exchange:

(1) Every individua applicant and, in the case of applicant organizations,
all persons associated with the organization, shall be subject to investigation by the
Exchange. The applicant shall file any documents that may be required by the Exchange.

(2) An applicant seeking trading privileges shall have completed the
requirements of Rule 600 (registration of Electronic Access Members) or Rule 800
(registration of market makers), including taking any required examinations.

(3) Unless an exception is granted by the Exchange for good cause, the
name of the applicant shall have been posted by the Exchange for at least five (5) business

days.

(d) An applicant must be approved by the Exchange to perform in at least one of
the recognized capacities of a Member as stated in Rule 300(a).

(e) Upon completion of the application process, the Exchange shall consider
whether to approve the application, unless thereis just cause for delay. Individua applicants and
persons associated with applicant organizations may be required to appear in person before the
Exchange. The Exchange may also require any Member or person associated with a Member
Organization who may possess information relevant to the applicant's suitability for Membership
to provide information or testimony.

(f) The Exchange will determine whether to approve an application. Written
notice of the action of the Exchange, specifying in the case of disapproval of an application the
grounds therefor, shall be provided to the applicant.

(g) If the application process is not completed within six (6) months of the filing of
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the application form and payment of the appropriate fee, the application shall be deemed to be
automatically withdrawn.

Rule 308. Effectiveness of Member ship Applications

(@) Applicants must become effective Members within ninety (90) days of the date
of approval by the Exchange as follows:

(1) Anindividua or organizational applicant for Membership upon
purchase of and payment for an Exchange Membership and release by the Exchange.

(2) A lessee applicant upon the transfer of a Membership to his or its use
pursuant to Rule 312 and release by the Exchange.

(b) With respect to each Membership that becomes effective in accordance with
this Rule, the Exchange shall promptly notify al Members thereof.

Rule 3009. Pur chase of M ember ship

() Founders. The Exchange's Class A and Class B memberships shall be
purchased by the Founders from the Exchange at a price determined by the Exchange.

(b) Outstanding Memberships. Memberships with respect to which notices of sale
have been filed under Rule 310 may be purchased by approved applicants in accordance with the
following procedures:

(1) All bids from approved applicants must be submitted in writing to the
Exchange.

(2) The Exchange will maintain all bids by Class of Membership according
to the highest price and the earliest submission date.

(3) The highest bid with the earliest filing date will be posted by Class by
the Exchange.

(4) All bids remain in effect until written revocation thereof is received by
the Exchange; however, bids will automatically expire unless an approved applicant
reapplies for and is reapproved every ninety (90) days from the applicant's receipt of
notification of the immediate prior approval pursuant to Rule 307(f).

(5) A bid filed in accordance with the procedures of this paragraph (b) may
not be changed or withdrawn once matched with an offer filed in accordance with Rule
310.

(6) Not later than the second business day following the matching of the
bid and offer, the purchaser shall deliver to the Exchange a certified or cashier's check
made payable to the Exchange covering the purchase price of the Membership.
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Rule 310. Sale and Transfer of Member ship

() Sale by Owner. The owner of atransferable Membership who desiresto sell his
Membership shall submit awritten offer of sale to the Exchange.

(1) The Exchange will maintain all offers of sale by Class of Membership
according to the lowest price and the earliest submission date.

(2) The lowest offer with the earliest filing date will be posted by the
Exchange.

(3) All offersremain in effect until written revocation thereof is received by
the Exchange.

(4) An offer filed in accordance with this paragraph may not be changed or
withdrawn once matched with a bid filed in accordance with Rule 309(b).

(5) A Member who has filed an offer of sdle shdl, solong as heremainsin
good standing and until the purchase price has been paid, continue to have al of the rights
and privileges, and shall remain subject to all of the duties and obligations, of Membership.

(b) Sale by Exchange. Whenever one or more of the following conditions exist
with respect to a Membership, the Exchange may offer the Membership for sale in accordance
with paragraph (a) of this Rule:

(1) Anindividual Member has died or has been declared legally
incompetent, and the legal representative of such Member has failed to consummate a
transfer of the Membership(s) within six (6) months of the Member's death or
incompetence or within such extended time as may have been granted by the Exchange;

(2) A Member's good standing has been terminated or has been suspended
and has failed to be reinstated at the expiration of the period of suspension including any
extension of such period that may have been granted by the Exchange; and

(3) A Member Organization has been dissolved, formaly or informally, and
no transfer of its Membership(s) has been accomplished within six (6) months of the
dissolution or within such extended time as may have been granted by the Exchange.

(4) A Member exceeds the concentration limitations contained in Rule 317.

(5) A Founder that owns a number of Memberships that exceeds the
concentration limits contained in Article I1, Section 11 of the Congtitution failsto lease or
sell at least forty percent (40%) of the Memberships that exceed those limitations by
[insert date six (6) years after initiation of trading on the Exchange], provided, however,
that if there is more than one (1) Membership subject to sale by the Exchange under this
subparagraph (5), the Exchange shall hold one or more auctions for the sale of such
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Memberships pursuant to the following procedures:
(i) An auction shall be held at least once every three (3) months.

(if) One or more Memberships may be offered for sale at each
auction.

(iif) The minimum price at which a Membership may be sold shall
be not less than twenty percent (20%) below the average of the last three (3) bona
fide sale prices of Memberships within the last twelve (12) months or, if there were
fewer than three (3) bonafide sales during this period, a reasonable price to be
determined by the Board.

(iv) Any person or entity approved for Membership by the
Exchange shall be eligible to place abid for a Membership during the thirty (30)
days preceding the date of an auction.

(v) During the thirty (30) days preceding an auction, the Exchange
shall make known the price of the highest bid.

(vi) The proceeds from a sale of a Membership shall be subject to
Rule 311, and shall be reduced by any unusua expensesincurred by the Exchange
in connection with the sale.

(c) Transfer by Owner. The owner of a Membership may transfer such
Membership without adhering to the provisions contained in paragraph (a) of this Rule so long as
one of the following qualifying circumstances is applicable to and description of the desired
transfer and the transferee is approved in accordance with the Rules of the Exchange:

(1) The owner of a Membership (whether or not such Membership is
registered for aMember Organization) requests the transfer of such Membership to his
spouse, brother, sister, parent, child, grandparent or grandchild;

(2) The owner of a Membership requests the transfer of such Membership
to an organization which has succeeded, through statutory merger, exchange of stock or
acquisition of assets to the business of the transferor;

(3) The owner of a Membership requests the transfer of such Membership
to an organization in which the transferor will maintain a substantia interest, that is, an
interest at least equal in value to his cost or the current market price of the Membership,
whichever islower; or

(4) The owner of a Membership requests the transfer of such Membership
to anindividua or organization which is a partner or shareholder of the transferor as part
or al of aliquidation distribution of the transferor.

(d) Transfers pursuant to paragraph (c) of this Rule shall not become effective until
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there has been deposited with the Exchange an amount equal to the last sale of a Membership of
the same Class as the Membership being transferred or an acceptable letter of guarantee from a
Clearing Member for such amount, which amount shall be applied as though it were proceeds of
the sale of a Membership for the purposes of Rule 311.

Rule 311. Proceeds from Sale of M ember ship

() Upon any sale of a Membership pursuant to Rule 310, the Exchange shall hold
the proceeds of the sale for a period of twenty (20) days from the date of posting notice of the
sale, during which period claims against the proceeds may be filed by Members for payment in
accordance with this Rule.

(b) As soon as practicable following such twenty (20) day period, the proceeds
shall be applied by the Exchange to the following purposes and in the following order of priority:

(1) The payment of such sums as the Exchange shall determine are or may
become due to the Exchange from the Member or from the Member Organization on
whose behalf the Membership was registered.

(2) The payment of such sums as the Exchange shall determine are or may
become due to the Clearing Corporation from the Member whose Membership is
transferred or from the Member Organization on whose behalf the Membership was
registered.

(3) The payment of such sums as the Exchange shall determine are due by
such Member or by the Member Organization on whose behaf the Membership was
registered to other Members in payment of claims made by such other Members arising
directly as aresult of:

(i) Exchange Transactions,

(i) transactions of such Member in securities other than on the
Exchange which are effected or carried in an account maintained by a Clearing
Member, or

(i11) loans or guarantees of loans to such Member or Member
Organization for the propose of purchasing an Exchange Membership or for any
purpose other than the purchase of securities which loans were made or
guaranteed by such other Members.

(c) No claim asserted under paragraph (b)(3) of this Rule shall be considered by
the Exchange nor shall any Member asserting such a claim have any rights thereunder, unless a
written statement of such claim shall have been filed with the Exchange prior to the expiration of
the twenty (20) day period referred to in the first paragraph of this Rule. If the proceeds of the
sale of aMembership are insufficient to pay in full al clams allowed under paragraph (b)(3),
payment shall be made pro rata upon al such allowed claims.
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(d) If aclaimis contingent or the amount that ultimately will be due thereon
cannot, for any reason, be immediately ascertained or determined, the Exchangein its sole
discretion may, out of the proceeds of the sale of the Membership, reserve and retain for later
distribution in accordance with the Rules such amount as it may deem appropriate, pending the
determination of the amount due on such claim.

(e) After provision of the sums payable under paragraph (b) hereof and provision
for the reserve if any under paragraph (d) hereof, there may, in the discretion of the Exchange, be
deducted from the remaining proceeds and paid to the Exchange the amount of any unusual
expenses incurred by the Exchange involving the disposition of such proceeds.

(f) The surplus, if any, of proceeds of the sale of a Membership, after provision for
the above payments and the setting aside of the reserve under paragraph (d) hereof, shall be paid
to the Member whose Membership is sold or to hisor itslega representatives.

(g9) No recognition or effect shall be given by the Exchange to any agreement or to
any instrument entered into or executed by a Member or his legal representatives which purports
to transfer or assign the interest of such Member in his or its Membership, or in the proceeds or
any part thereof, or which purports in any manner to provide for the disposition of such proceeds
to acreditor of such Member, nor shall payment of such proceeds be made by the Exchange on
the order of such Member.

Rule 312. Leasng Member ships
(@) The owner of a Membership in good standing may lease such Membership to
an individua or organization, provided the lessee is approved for Membership in accordance with

the Rules of the Exchange.

(b) Lease agreements, which must be approved by the Exchange in accordance
with Rule 307, shall include provisions covering:

(1) the duration of the lease arrangement;
(2) the consideration to be paid by the lesseg;

(3) the assignability of the respective interests of the lessee and lessor in
such lease agreement; and

(4) as between the parties, which party shall exercise the voting rights of
the Membership and which party shall provide the funds necessary to satisfy all applicable
Exchange dues, fees and other charges.

(c) Any division of rights and responsibilities between lessor and lessee shall not
affect the obligation of the lessor to pay all amounts due the Exchange.

(d) The lease of a Membership shall not become effective until:
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(1) the lessee has deposited with the Exchange an amount equal to the last
sale of a Membership of the same Class as the Membership being leased or an acceptable
letter of guarantee from a Clearing Member for such amount, which amount shall be
applied to claims of Member creditors of the lessee Member at the end of the term of the
lease as though it were proceeds of the sale of a Membership for the purposes of Rule
311; and

(2) in the case where the lessor Member is a broker-dealer that conducted
business on the Exchange, there has been deposited by such lessor Member with the
Exchange an amount equal to the last sale of a Membership of the same Class as the
Membership being leased or an acceptable letter of guarantee from a Clearing Member for
such amount, which amount shall be applied to claims of Member creditors of the lessor
Member as though it were proceeds of the sale of a Membership for the purposes of Rule
311.

(e) In the event the lessor of a Membership effects a sale thereof pursuant to the
provisions of Rule 310(a), claims may be made against the proceeds from the sale of such
Membership in accordance with Rule 311 by Members having claims against either the lessee or
the lessor, with priority given to claims made against the lessee.

Rule 313. Death, Retirement, Withdrawal and Resignation

Upon the death, retirement, withdrawal or resignation from a Member
Organization of an individual Member whose Membership is registered for the organization, of a
nominee, or of the general partner--leaving the organization without a Membership or without a
nominee, or without a general partner--the Exchange may permit the organization to continue to
act as aMember in good standing for such period as the Exchange deems reasonably necessary to
enable the organization to acquire a Membership, to obtain approval of a substitute nominee, or
to admit a new general partner, as applicable.

Rule 314. Dissolution and Liquidation of Member Organizations

Every Member Organization shall promptly notify the Exchange in writing upon
the adoption of a plan of liquidation or dissolution. Upon receipt of such notice, the Member may
be suspended in accordance with Chapter 15 (Summary Suspension) of the Rules.

Rule 315. Obligations of Terminating Members

(a) Every Member who sells or transfers his Membership pursuant to the
provisions of this Chapter must be current in all filings and payments of dues, fees and charges
relating to that Membership, including filing fees and charges required by the SEC and Securities
Investor Protection Corporation.

(b) If aMember failsto make al such filings, or to pay al such dues, fees and
charges, the Exchange may, notwithstanding the other applicable provisions of this Chapter,
withhold distributions of the proceeds of sale of the Membership, or delay the effectiveness of the
Membership of the transferee, until such failures have been remedied.
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Rule 316. Transfer of Individual Membership in Trust

Anindividua Member in good standing may transfer his Membership in trust,
subject to each of the following conditions:

(a) Subject to paragraph (b) of this Rule, the Member transferring his Membership
in trust (the "trust Member"), during his lifetime, shall be the sole trustee and sole beneficiary of
the trust. The trust Member shall remain personally responsible for all obligations and liabilities
associated with the Membership and its use, and the Membership shall remain subject to al of the
Rules of the Exchange.

(b) The terms of the trust shall provide the following:

(1) In the event the trust Member dies, is declared legally incompetent, or
isinany condition that substantially impairs his ability to transact ordinary business (is
"disabled"), as certified in awritten opinion furnished to the Exchange by the trust
Member's physician who has personally examined or treated him, alegally qualified
individua or institution may be appointed as successor trustee for the sole purpose of
transferring the Membership in accordance with the Rules, including the requirements of
Rule 311, subject to the right of the Exchange to offer the Membership for salein
accordance with Rule 310(b)(2).

(2) Notwithstanding subparagraph (1) above, the terms of the trust may
authorize the successor trustee to continue to hold the Membership in trust for the benefit
of the trust Member during any period when the trust Member is declared legally
incompetent or is disabled so long as the Membership is leased for that period in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 312.

(3) Thetrust shall provide that the Exchange shall bear no liability for any
actions taken or omitted by the trust Member or any successor trustee in respect of the
administration of the trust of the management of trust assets.

(c) A Membership held in trust may be transferred during the lifetime of the trust
Member or at his death in accordance with the provisions of Rule 310(c)(1), and may also be
transferred during the lifetime of the trust Member in accordance with the provisions of Rule
310(c)(3).

(d) A Membership held in trust may be transferred to the trust Member to be held
directly and not in trust.

(e) A copy of the trust agreement reflecting the foregoing requirements shall be
furnished to the Exchange, accompanied by the certification of the attorney who prepared the
agreement that it conforms to the requirements of this Rule.

(f) The Exchange may disapprove atransfer in trust if it finds the trust agreement
falls to satisfy the requirements of the Rule by written notice of such disapproval sent to the
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Member proposing the transfer.
Rule 317. Limitations on Number of M ember ships

(a) General Rule. The Exchange generally will approve a Member to effect
Exchange Transactions pursuant to only one (1) Primary Market Maker Membership and up to
five (5) Competitive Market Maker Memberships. However, upon good cause shown, the
Exchange may approve a Member to effect Exchange Transactions with respect to two (2)
Primary Market Maker Memberships and up to ten (10) Competitive Market Maker
Memberships.

(b) Initial Approval of Member ships.

(1) Primary Market Maker Memberships. The Exchange will not initially
approve a Member to effect Exchange Transactions with respect to more than one (1)
Primary Market Maker Membership until the Exchange has approved at least five (5)
Members to effect Exchange Transactions with respect to Primary Market Maker
Memberships.

(2) Competitive Market Maker Memberships. The Exchange will not
initially approve a Member to effect Exchange Transactions with respect to multiple
Competitive Market Maker Memberships until the Exchange has approved a
minimum
number of Members to effect Exchange Transactions with respect to Competitive Market
Maker Memberships as follows:
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Number of Maximum Number of

Approved Memberships Memberships Per Member
10 or fewer 2
11to 15 3
16to 25 5
26 to 40 8
over 40 10
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CHAPTER 4

Business Conduct
Rule 400. Just and Equitable Principles of Trade

No Member shall engage in acts or practices inconsistent with just and equitable
principles of trade. Persons associated with Members shall have the same duties and obligations
as Members under the Rules of this Chapter.

Rule 401. Adherenceto Law

No Member shall engage in conduct in violation of the Exchange Act, the
Constitution or the Rules of the Exchange, or the rules of the Clearing Corporation insofar as they
relate to the reporting or clearance of any Exchange Transaction, or any written interpretation
thereof. Every Member shall so supervise persons associated with the Member as to assure
compliance therewith.

Rule 402. Sharing of Officesand Wire Connections

No Member, without the prior written consent of the Exchange, shall establish or
maintain wire connections or office sharing arrangements with other Members or with non-
member broker-dealers.

Rule 403. Nominal Employment

No Member may employ any person in anomina position on account of business
obtained by such person.

Rule 404. False Statements

No Member or applicant for Membership shall make any fal se statements or
misrepresentations in any application, report or other communication to the Exchange, and no
Member shall make any false statement or misrepresentation to the Clearing Corporation with
respect to the reporting or clearance of any Exchange Transaction or adjust any position at the
Clearing Corporation in any class of options traded on the Exchange except for the purpose of
correcting abonafide error in recording or transferring the position to another account.

Rule 405. Manipulation

(@) No Member shall effect or induce the purchase, sale or exercise of any security
for the purpose of creating or inducing afalse, misleading, or artificial appearance of activity in
such security or in the underlying security, or for the purpose of unduly or improperly influencing
the market price of such security or of the underlying security or for the purpose of making a
price which does not reflect the true state of the market in such security or in the underlying
security.
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(b) No Member or any other person or organization subject to the jurisdiction of
the Exchange shall directly or indirectly participate in or have any interest in the profit of a
manipulative operation or knowingly manage or finance a manipulative operation. For the
purposes of this paragraph but without limitation:

(1) any pool, syndicate or joint account, whether in corporate form or
otherwise, organized or used intentionally for the purposes of unfairly influencing the
market price of any security by means of options or otherwise and for the purpose of
making a profit thereby, shall be deemed to be a manipulative operation,;

(2) the soliciting of subscriptions to any such pool, syndicate or joint
account shall be deemed to be managing a manipulative operation; and

(3) the carrying on margin of either a"long" or a"short" position in
securities for, or the advancing of credit through loans of money or of securities to, any
such pool syndicate or joint account shall be deemed to be financing a manipulative
operation.

Rule 406. Rumors

No Member shal circulate, in any manner, rumors of a character which might
affect market conditions in any security; provided, however, that this Rule shall not prohibit
discussion of unsubstantiated information, so long as its source and unverified nature are
disclosed.

Rule 407. Prevention of the Misuse of Material Nonpublic Information

(@) Every Member, other than alessor that is neither registered, nor required to be
registered, as a broker-dealer under Section 15 of the Exchange Act, shall establish, maintain and
enforce written policies and procedures reasonably designed, taking into consideration the nature
of the Member's business, to prevent the misuse of materia nonpublic information by such
Member or persons associated with such Member in violation of the Exchange Act and Exchange
Rules.

(1) Misuse of material nonpublic information includes, but is not limited to:

(1) trading in any securities issued by a corporation, or in any
related securities or related options or other derivative securities, while in
possession of material nonpublic information concerning that corporation;

(i) trading in an underlying security or related options or other
derivative securities, while in possession of material nonpublic information
concerning imminent transactions in the underlying security or related securities,
and

(ii1) disclosing to another person any material nonpublic information
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involving a corporation whose shares are publicly traded or an imminent
transaction in an underlying security or related securities for the purpose of
facilitating the possible misuse of such material nonpublic information.

(2) Each Member shall establish, maintain and enforce the following
policies and procedures as appropriate for the nature of each Member's business:

(i) all associated persons must be advised in writing of the
prohibition against the misuse of material nonpublic information;

(i) signed attestations from the Member and all associated persons
affirming their awareness of, and agreement to abide by, the aforementioned
prohibitions must be maintained for at least three (3) years, the first two (2) years
in an easly accessible place;

(ii1) records of al brokerage accounts maintained by the Member
and all associated persons must be acquired and maintained for at least three (3)
years, the first two (2) yearsin an easily accessible place, and such brokerage
accounts must be reviewed periodically by the Member for the purpose of
detecting the possible misuse of material nonpublic information; and

(iv) any business dealings the Member may have with any
corporation whose securities are publicly traded, or any other circumstances that
may result in the Member receiving, in the ordinary course of business, materia
nonpublic information concerning any such corporation, must be identified and
documented.

(b) Members that are required, pursuant to Exchange Rule 1403 (Audits), to file
Form X-17A-5 under the Exchange Act with the Exchange on an annual basis only, shall,
contemporaneously with those submissions, file attestations signed by such Members stating that
the procedures mandated by this Rule have been established, enforced and maintained.

(c) Any Member or associated person who becomes aware of a possible misuse of
material nonpublic information must promptly notify the Exchange.

Rule 408. Disciplinary Action by Other Organizations

Every Member shall promptly notify the Exchange in writing of any disciplinary
action, including the basis therefor, taken by any national securities exchange or registered
securities association, clearing corporation, commodity futures market or government regulatory
body against the Member or its associated persons, and shall similarly notify the Exchange of any
disciplinary action taken by the Member itself against any of its associated persons involving
suspension, termination, the withholding of commissions or imposition of finesin excess of
$2,500, or any other significant limitation on activities.

Rule 4009. Other Restrictions on Members
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Whenever the Exchange shall find that a Member has failed to perform on his or its
contracts or isinsolvent or isin such financial or operationa condition or is otherwise conducting
business in such a manner that it cannot be permitted to continue in business with safety to
customers or creditors or the Exchange, the Exchange may summarily suspend the Member in
accordance with Chapter 15 (Summary Suspension) or may impose such conditions and
restrictions upon the Member as considered reasonably necessary for the protection of the
Exchange and the customers of such Member.

Rule 410. Significant Business Transactions

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (c) below, a Member that clears market maker
tradesis required to notify the Exchange in writing fifteen (15) days prior to any of the following
proposed significant business transactions ("SBT"):

(1) the combination, merger or consolidation between the Member and
another person engaged in the business of effecting, executing, clearing or financing
transactions in securities or futures products;

(2) the transfer from another person of market maker, broker-dealer, or
customer securities or futures accounts that are significant in size or number to the
business of the Member;

(3) the assumption or guarantee by the Member of liabilities of another
person engaged in the business of effecting, executing, clearing or financing transactionsin
securities or futures products, in connection with a direct or indirect acquisition of all or
substantially all of the person's assets; or

(4) termination of the Member's clearing business or any material part
thereof.

(b) Notification of any of the following SBTs shall be made in writing to the
Exchange, not later than five (5) business days from the date on which the SBT becomes
effective:

(1) the sale by the Clearing Member of a significant part of its assets to
another person;

(2) achange in the identity of any genera partner or a change in the
beneficial ownership of ten percent (10%) or more of any class of the outstanding stock of
any corporate general partner;

(3) achange in the beneficial ownership of twenty percent (20%) or more
of any class of the outstanding stock of the Member or the issuance of any capital stock of
the Member; or

(4) the acquisition by the Clearing Member of assets of another person that
would constitute a "business' that is "significant,” as those terms are defined in Section
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11-01 of Regulation S-X under the Exchange Act.

(c) A Clearing Member is required to notify the Exchange in writing thirty (30)
days prior to aproposed SBT included in paragraph (a) of this Rule, and such SBT shall be
subject to the prior approval of the Exchange, if the Member's market maker clearance activities
exceed, or would exceed as a result of the proposed SBT, any of the following parameters:

(2) fifteen percent (15%) of cleared Exchange market maker contract
volume for the most recent three (3) months,

(2) an average of fifteen percent (15%) of the number of Exchange market
makers as of each month and for the most recent three (3) months; or

(3) twenty-five percent (25%) of Exchange market maker gross deductions
(haircuts) defined by Rule 15¢3-1(a)(6) or (¢)(2)(x) under the Exchange Act carried by the
Clearing Member in relation to the aggregate of such haircuts carried by all other Clearing
Members for any month end within the most recent three (3) months.

(d) An SBT that comes within paragraph (c) of this Rule may be disapproved or
conditioned within the thirty (30) day period if the Exchange determines that such SBT has the
potential to threaten the financial or operational integrity of market maker transactions. In
making this determination, the Exchange may consider, among other relevant matters, the
following:

(1) The effect of the proposed SBT on the capital size and structure of the
resulting Clearing Member Organization(s), the potentia for financial failure and the
conseguences of any such failure on the Exchange market as a whole, and the potential for
increased or decreased operational efficiencies arising from the proposed transaction.

(2) The effect of the proposed SBT upon overal concentration of market
makers, including a comparison of the following measures before and after the proposed
transaction:

(i) proportion of Exchange market maker contract volume cleared;
(i1) proportion of Exchange market makers cleared; and

(ii1) proportion of market maker gross deductions (haircuts) as
defined by Rule 15¢3-1(a)(6) or (¢)(2)(x) under the Exchange Act carried by the
Clearing Member(s) in relation to the aggregate of such deductions carried by
other Members that clear market maker transactions.

(3) Theregulatory history of the affected Members, specifically asit may
indicate a tendency to financial or operational weakness.

(e) Transactions that come within paragraph (c) of this Rule shall be reviewed
according to the following procedures:
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(1) A Member must provide promptly, in writing, all information
reasonably requested by the Exchange. Any information disclosed by Members pursuant
to the requirements of this Rule shall be kept confidentia by the Exchange until such
information is otherwise publicly disclosed and shall be used only for purposes of
reviewing the proposal.

(2) If the Exchange determines, prior to the expiration of the thirty (30)
day period, that a proposed SBT may be approved without conditions, the Exchange shall
promptly so advise the Member.

(3) All decisions to disapprove or condition a proposed SBT or to impose
extraordinary requirements shall be in writing, shall include a statement setting forth the
grounds for the decision, and the Member shall be promptly notified of any such decisions
by the Exchange.

(4) Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Rules, the Member may
appeal adecision to disapprove or condition a proposed SBT directly to the Board by
filing an application for review with the Secretary of the Exchange within fifteen (15) days
of the date of service of the decision. Appea to the Board shall be the exclusive method
of reviewing such a decision.

(5) An appeal to the Board of a decision to disapprove or condition a
proposed SBT shall not operate as a stay of that decision during the pendency of the

appeal.

(6) The Exchange shall file notice with the SEC in accordance with the
provisions of Section 19(d)(1) of the Exchange Act of all final decisions to disapprove or
condition a proposed a SBT.

(f) The Exchange may impose additional financial and/or operationa requirements

on a Member that clears market maker trades at any time when it determines that the Member's
continuance in business without such requirements has the potential to threaten the financial or
operational integrity of market maker transactions.

(g) The provisions of this Rule do not preclude summary Exchange action under

Rule 409, under Chapter 15 (Summary Suspension) or other Exchange action pursuant to the

(h) The Exchange may exempt a Member from the requirements of this Rule,

either generally or in respect of specific types of transactions, based on the limited proportion of
market maker trades on the Exchange that are cleared by the Member or on the limited
importance that the clearing of market maker trades bears to the total business of the Member.

Rule 411. Position Limits

(a) Except with the prior permission of the President or his designee, to be
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confirmed in writing, no Member shall make, for any account in which it has an interest or for the
account of any customer, an opening transaction on any exchange if the Member has reason to
believe that as aresult of such transaction the Member or its customer would, acting aoneor in
concert with others, directly or indirectly:

(1) control (as defined in paragraph (f) below) an aggregate position in an
options contract traded on the Exchange in excess of 13,500 or 22,500 or 31,500 or
60,000 or 75,000 options contracts (whether long or short) of the put type and the call
type on the same side of the market respecting the same underlying security, combining
for purposes of this position limit long positions in put options with short positionsin call
options, and short positions in put options with long positionsin call options, or such
other number of options contracts as may be fixed from time to time by the Exchange as
the position limit for one or more classes or series of options; or

(2) exceed the applicable position limit fixed from time to time by another
exchange for an options contract not traded on the Exchange, when the Member is not a
member of the other exchange on which the transaction was effected.

(b) Should a Member have reason to believe that a position in any account in
which it has an interest or for the account of any customer isin excess of the applicable limit, such
Member shall promptly take the action necessary to bring the position into compliance.

(c) Reasonable notice shall be given of each new position limit fixed by the
Exchange.

(d) Limits shall be determined in the following manner:

(1) A 13,500-contract limit applies to those options having an underlying
security that does not meet the requirements for a higher options contract limit.

(2) To be digible for the 22,500-contract limit, either the most recent six
(6) month trading volume of the underlying security must have totalled at least twenty
(20) million shares, or the most recent six (6) month trading volume of the underlying
security must have totalled at least fifteen (15) million shares and the underlying security
must have at least forty (40) million shares currently outstanding.

(3) To be digible for the 31,500-contract limit, either the most recent six
(6) month trading volume of the underlying security must have totalled at least forty (40)
million shares or the most recent six (6) month trading volume of the underlying security
must have totalled at least thirty (30) million shares and the underlying security must have
at least 120 million shares currently outstanding.

(4) To be digible for the 60,000-contract limit, either the most recent six
(6) month trading volume of the underlying security must have totalled at least eighty (80)
million shares or the most recent six (6) month trading volume of the underlying security
must have totalled at |east sixty (60) million shares and the underlying security must have
at least 240 million shares currently outstanding.
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(5) To be digible for the 75,000-contract limit, either the most recent six
(6) month trading volume of the underlying security must have totalled at least 100 million
shares or the most recent six-month trading volume of the underlying security must have
totalled at least seventy-five (75) million shares and the underlying security must have at
least 300 million shares currently outstanding.

(e) Every six (6) months, the Exchange will review the status of underlying
securities to determine which limit should apply. A higher limit will be effective on the date set by
the Exchange, while any change to alower limit will take effect after the last expiration then
trading, unless the requirement for the same or a higher limit is met at the time of the intervening
six (6) month review. If, however, subsequent to a six (6) month review, an increase in volume
and/or outstanding shares would make a stock eligible for a higher position limit prior to the next
review, the Exchange in its discretion may immediately increase such position limit.

(f) Control exists under this Rule 411 when it is determined that an individual or
entity makes investment decisions for an account or accounts, or materialy influences directly or
indirectly the actions of any person who makes investment decisions.

(1) Control will be presumed in the following circumstances, and will be
presumed to continue until determined otherwise pursuant to paragraph (f)(2) below:

(i) among all parties to ajoint account who have authority to act on
behalf of the account;

(if) among all general partners to a partnership account;

(i) when an individual or entity holds an ownership interest of ten
percent (10%) or more in an entity (ownership interest of less than ten percent
(20%) will not preclude aggregation), or shares in ten percent (10%) or more of
profits and losses of an account;

(iv) when accounts have common directors or management;

(V) where a person has the authority to execute transactionsin an
account.

(2) Control, presumed by one or more of the above findings or
circumstances, can be rebutted by proving that the factor does not exist or by showing
other factors which negate the presumption of control. The rebuttal proof must be
submitted by affidavit and/or such other documentary evidence as may be appropriate in
the circumstances. The Exchange will aso consider the following factorsin determining if
aggregation of accountsis required:

(i) smilar patterns of trading activity among separate entities,

(i1) the sharing of kindred business purposes and interests;
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(i) whether there is common supervision of the entities which
extends beyond assuring adherence to each entity's investment objectives and/ or
restrictions;

(3) Initial determinations under this paragraph (f) shall be made by the
Regulatory Divison. The initia determination may be reviewed by the President or his
designee, based upon areport by the Regulatory Division. A Member or customer
directly affected by such a determination may ask the President or his designee to
reconsider, but may not request any other review or appeal except in the context of a
disciplinary proceeding. The decision to grant non-aggregation under this paragraph (f)
shall not be retroactive.

Rule 412. Exemptions from Position Limits

() Equity Hedge Exemption. The following positions, where each options
contract is "hedged" by 100 shares of stock or securities convertible into such stock, or, in the
case of an adjusted options contract, the same number of shares represented by the adjusted
contract, shall be exempted from established position and exercise limits up to that number of
options contracts equal to the limit as computed in Rule 411(d): long call and short stock; short
call and long stock; long put and long stock; and short put and short stock.

(1) The equity hedge exemption isin addition to the standard limit and
other exemptions available under Exchange Rules.

(2) In no event may the equity hedge exemption for any class of options
exceed twice the standard limit established by Rule 411, except that the equity hedge
exemption for a market maker who also receives a market maker exemption from the
standard limit pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Rule may not exceed twice the market
maker exempted position.

(b) Market Maker Exemption. The provisions set forth below apply only to market
makers seeking an exemption to the standard position limitsin al options traded on the Exchange
for the purpose of assuring that there is sufficient depth and liquidity in the marketplace, and not
to confer aright upon the market maker applying for an exemption.

(1) Inlight of the procedural safeguards, the purpose of this exemption
process, and the prohibition against the granting of retroactive exemptions, decisions
granting or denying exemptions are not subject to review under Chapter 17 (Hearing and
Review) of the Exchange Rules regarding Hearings and Review.

(2) An exemption may be granted for the purpose of maintaining afair and
orderly market in the options on a given underlying security.

(3) Generaly, an exemption will be granted only to a market maker who
has requested an exemption, who is appointed to the options class in which the exemption
is requested pursuant to Rule 802, whose positions are near the current position limit and
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who is significant in terms of daily volume. The positions must generally be within ten
percent (10%) of the limits contained in Rule 411.

(4) If an exemption is granted, it will be effective at the time the decision is
communicated, and retroactive exemptions will not be granted.

(5) The size and length of an exemption will be determined on a case by
case basis; however, an exemption usualy will be granted until the nearest expiration. The
exemption may specify the extent to which the resulting position may be carried in options
in one or more expiration cycles.

(6) Procedures for market makers nearing the limits due to general market
conditions:

() A request for an exemption from the established position and
exercise limits must be in writing and must state the specific reasons why an
exemption should be granted.

(i) The request should be submitted to the Exchange no later than
1:00 p.m. for same-day review.

(i) Review of the request will be conducted informally, i.e., the
Exchange may receive information in such manner as is most effective, inits
discretion, to ascertain whether an exemption is necessary to maintain depth and
liquidity in the market.

(iv) The Exchange will communicate the exemption decision to the
regquesting market maker and his or its Clearing Member as soon as possible,
generaly on the day following review.

(7) Requests for instant exemptions may be made for extraordinary
situations, such as when there is an order imbalance or a market maker is near the limits
intraday. Following immediate review of the situation, the Exchange will decide whether
an exemption is warranted.

(c) Firm Facilitation Exemption. To the extent that the following procedures and
criteria are satisfied, a Member Organization may receive and maintain for its proprietary account
an exemption ("facilitation exemption™) from the applicable standard position limit in non-
multiply-listed options traded on the Exchange for the purpose of facilitating, pursuant to the
provisions of Rule 716(c), (i) ordersfor its own Public Customer (one that will have the resulting
position carried with the firm) or (ii) orders received from or on behalf of a Public Customer for
execution only against the member firm's proprietary account.

(1) The Member Organization must receive approva from the Exchange
prior to executing facilitating trades.

(2) The facilitation exemption shall be granted to the Member Organization
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owning or controlling the account in which the exempt options positions are held. For
purposes of this paragraph (c), control shall be determined in accordance with the
provision of Rule 411(f).

(3) Exchange approval may be given on the basis of verbal representations,
in which event the Member Organization shall, within a period of time to be designated by
the Exchange, furnish the appropriate forms and documentation substantiating the basis
for the exemption. The approval for the facilitation exemption will specify the maximum
number of contracts that may be exempt under this paragraph (c). In no event may the
aggregate exempted position under this paragraph (c) exceed twice the applicable standard
limit.

(4) Thefacilitation exemption isin addition to the standard limit and other
exemptions available under Exchange Rules. A Member Organization so approved is
hereinafter referred to as a "facilitation firm."

(5) The facilitation firm must provide al information required by the
Exchange on approved forms and keep such information current. The facilitation firm
shall promptly provide to the Exchange any information or documents requested
concerning the exempted options positions and the positions hedging them.

(6) Thefacilitation firm shall comply with the following provisions
regarding the execution of its Public Customer Order and its own facilitating order:

(1) neither order may be contingent on a "fill-or-kill" instructions;
and

(ii) the orders must be executed pursuant to Rule 716(c).

(7) Toremain qualified, afacilitation firm must, within five (5) business
days after the execution of afacilitation exemption order, hedge all exempt options
positions that have not previously been liquidated, and furnish the Exchange with
documentation reflecting the resulting hedging positions.

(8) Thefacilitation firm shall:

(1) liquidate and establish its Public Customer's and its own options
and stock positions or their equivalent in an orderly fashion, and not in a manner
calculated to cause unreasonable price fluctuations or unwarranted price changes;
and not initiate or liquidate its Public Customer's or its own stock position or its
equivalent with an equivalent index options position with a view toward taking
advantage of any differentia in price between a group of securities and an
overlying stock index option;

(i) promptly notify the Exchange of any material change in the ex-
empted options position or the hedge; and
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(i11) not increase the exempted options position onceit is closed
unless approval is received again pursuant to a reapplication under this paragraph

(©).

(9) Violation of any of these provisions, absent reasonable justification or
excuse, shall result in withdrawal of the facilitation exemption and may form the basis for
subsequent denia of an application for afacilitation exemption hereunder.

Rule 413. Exercise Limits

(a) Except with the prior permission of the President or his designee, to be
confirmed in writing, no Member shall exercise, for any account in which it has an interest or for
the account of any customer, along position in any options contract where such Member or
customer, acting alone or in concert with others, directly or indirectly, has or will have:

(1) exercised within any five (5) consecutive business days aggregate long
positions in any class of options traded on the Exchange in excess of 13,500 or 22,500 or
31,500 or 60,000 or 75,000 options contracts or such other number of options contract as
may be fixed from time to time by the Exchange as the exercise limit for that class of
options; or

(2) exceeded the applicable exercise limit fixed from time to time by
another exchange for an options class not traded on the Exchange, when the Member is
not a member of the other exchange which lists the options class.

(b) Reasonable notice shall be given of each new exercise limit fixed by the
Exchange by posting notice thereof by the Exchange.

(c) Limits shall be determined in the manner described in Rule 411. For a market
maker that has been granted an exemption to position limits pursuant to Rule 412(a), the number
of contracts which can be exercised over afive (5) business day period shall equal the market
maker's exempted position.

Rule 414. Reports Related to Position Limits

(@) Each Member shall file with the Exchange the name, address and social security
or tax identification number of any customer, as well as any Member, any general or special
partner of the Member, any officer or director of the Member or any participant, as such, in any
joint, group or syndicate account with the Member or with any partner, officer or director thereof,
who, on the previous business day held aggregate long or short positions of 200 or more options
contracts of any single class of options traded on the Exchange. The report shall indicate for each
such class of options contracts the number of options contracts comprising each such position
and, in case of short positions, whether covered or uncovered.

(b) Electronic Access Members that maintain an end of day position in excess of
10,000 non-FLEX equity options contracts on the same side of the market on behalf of itsown
account or for the account of a customer, shall report whether such position is hedged and
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provide documentation as to how such position is hedged. Thisreport isrequired at the time the
subject account exceeds the 10,000 contract threshold and thereafter, for customer accounts,
when the position increases by 2,500 contracts and for proprietary accounts when the position
increases by 5,000 contracts.

(c) In addition to the reports required by paragraph (a) and (b) of this Rule, each
Member shall report promptly to the Exchange any instance in which the Member has reason to
believe that a person included in paragraph (a), acting alone or in concert with others, has
exceeded or is attempting to exceed the position limits established pursuant to Rule 411.

Rule 415. Liquidation Positions

(a) Whenever the Exchange shall find that a person or group of persons acting in
concert holds or controls, or is obligated in respect of, an aggregate position (whether long or
short) in al options contracts or one or more classes or series traded on the Exchange in excess of
the applicable position limit established pursuant to Rule 411, it may order all Members carrying a
position in options contracts of such classes or series for such person or persons to liquidate such
positions as expeditioudly as possible, consistent with the maintenance of afair and orderly
market.

(b) Whenever such an order is given, no Member shall accept any order to
purchase, sell or exercise any options contract for the account of the person or persons named in
the order, unless and until the Exchange expressly approves such person or persons for options
transactions.

Rule 416. Limit on Outstanding Uncover ed Short Positions

(d) Whenever it is determined from the reports of uncovered short positions
submitted pursuant to Rule 1401 (Reports of Uncovered Short Positions), viewed in light of
current market conditions in options and in underlying securities, that there are outstanding an
excessive number of uncovered short positions in options contracts of a given class traded on the
Exchange or that an excessively high percentage of outstanding short positions in options
contracts of a given class traded on the Exchange are uncovered, the Exchange may prohibit
Members from any further opening writing transactions on any exchange in options contracts of
that class unless the resulting short position will be covered, and it may prohibit the uncovering of
any existing covered short positions in one or more series of options of that class, as it deems
appropriate in the interest of maintaining afair and orderly market in options contracts or in
underlying securities.

(b) The Exchange may exempt transactions of market makers from restrictions
imposed under this Rule and it shall rescind such restrictions upon its determination that they are
no longer appropriate.

Rule 417. Other Restrictions on Options Transactions and Exer cises

() The Exchange may impose such restrictions on transactions or exercisesin one
or more series of options of any class traded on the Exchange as the Exchange in its judgment
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deems advisable in the interests of maintaining a fair and orderly market in options contracts or in
underlying securities, or otherwise deems advisable in the public interest or for the protection of
investors.

(1) During the effectiveness of such restrictions, no Member shall, for any
account in which it has an interest or for the account of any customer, engage in any
transaction or exercise in contravention of such restrictions.

(2) Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the ten (10) business days prior
to the expiration date of a given series of options, no restriction on exercise under this
Rule may be in effect with respect to that series of options.

(b) Whenever the issuer of a security underlying a call option traded on the
Exchange is engaged or proposes to engage in a public underwritten distribution (" public
distribution") of such underlying security or securities exchangeable for or convertible into such
underlying security, the underwriters may request that the Exchange impose restrictions upon all
opening writing transactions in such options at a "discount” where the resulting short position will
be uncovered ("uncovered opening writing transactions").

(1) In addition to arequest, the following conditions are necessary for the
imposition of restrictions:

(1) less than amagjority of the securities to be publicly distributed in
such distribution are being sold by existing security holders,

(i1) the underwriters agree to notify the Exchange upon the
termination of their stabilization activities; and

(iii) the underwriters initiate stabilization activities in such
underlying security on a national securities exchange when the price of such
security isether at a"minus’ or "zero minus' tick.

(2) Upon receipt of such arequest and determination that the conditions
contained in paragraph (b)(1) are met, the Exchange shall impose the requested
restrictions as promptly as possible but no earlier than fifteen (15) minutes after Members
shall have been notified and shall terminate such restrictions upon request of the
underwriters or when the Exchange otherwise discovers that stabilizing transactions by the
underwriters has been terminated.

(3) For purposes of this paragraph (b), an uncovered opening writing
transaction in a call option will be deemed to be effected at a "discount” when the
premium in such transaction is either:

(1) inthe case of adistribution of the underlying security not
involving the issuance of rights and in the case of a distribution of securities
exchangeable for or convertible into the underlying security, less than the amount
by which the underwriters stabilization bid for the underlying security exceeds the
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exercise price of such option; or
(i) in the case of adistribution being offered pursuant to rights, less

than the amount by which the underwriters stabilization bid in the underlying
security at the subscription price exceeds the exercise price of such option.
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CHAPTER S

Securities Traded on the Exchange
Rule 500. Designation of Securities

Securities traded on the Exchange are options contracts, each of which is
designated by reference to the issuer of the underlying security, expiration month, exercise price
and type (put or call).

Rule 501. Rights and Obligations of Holdersand Writers

The rights and obligations of holders and writers shall be set forth in the Rules of
the Clearing Corporation.

Rule 502. Criteriafor Underlying Securities

() Underlying securities with respect to which put or call options contracts are
approved for listing and trading on the Exchange must meet the following criteria:

(1) the security must be registered and (i) listed on a national securities
exchange; or (ii) traded through the facilities of a national securities association and
reported as a "national market system” ("NMS") security as set forth in Rule 11Aa3-1
under the Exchange Act; and

(2) the security shall be characterized by a substantial number of
outstanding shares that are widely held and actively traded.

(b) In addition, the Exchange shall from time to time establish guidelines to be
considered in evaluating potential underlying securities for Exchange options transactions. There
are many relevant factors which must be considered in arriving at such a determination, and the
fact that a particular security may meet the guidelines established by the Exchange does not
necessarily mean that it will be selected as an underlying security. Further, in exceptiona
circumstances an underlying security may be selected by the Exchange even though it does not
meet al of the guidelines. The Exchange may also give consideration to maintaining diversity
among various industries and issuers in selecting underlying securities. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, however, absent exceptional circumstances, an underlying security will not be selected
unless:

(1) There are aminimum of seven (7) million shares of the underlying
security which are owned by persons other than those required to report their stock
holdings under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.

(2) There are aminimum of 2,000 holders of the underlying security.

(3) Theissuer isin compliance with any applicable requirements of the
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Exchange Act.

(4) Trading volume (in all markets in which the underlying security is
traded) has been at least 2,400,000 shares in the preceding twelve (12) months.

(5) The market price per share of the underlying security has been at least
$7.50 for the mgjority of business days during the three calendar months preceding the
date of selection, as measured by the lowest closing price reported in any market in which
the underlying security traded on each of the subject days.

(c) Securities of Restructured Companies.

(1) Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of
this paragraph (c):

() "Restructuring Transaction" refers to a spin-off, reorganization,
recapitalization, restructuring or similar corporate transaction.

(i) "Restructure Security" refers to an equity security that a
company issues, or anticipates issuing, as the result of a Restructuring Transaction
of the company.

(iii) "Original Equity Security" refersto a company's equity security
that isissued and outstanding prior to the effective date of a Restructuring
Transaction of the company.

(iv)  "Relevant Percentage" refersto ether:

(A) twenty-five percent (25%), when the applicable measure
determined with respect to the Origina Equity Security or the business it
represents includes the business represented by the Restructure Security; or

(B) thirty-three and one-third percent (33-1/3%), when the
applicable measure determined with respect to the Original Equity Security
or the business it represents excludes the business represented by the
Restructure Security.

(2) "Share" and "Number of Shareholder" Guidelines. In determining
whether a Restructure Security satisfies the share guideline set forth in Rule 502(b)(1) (the
"Share Guiddline") or the number of holders guideline set forth in Rule 502(b)(2) (the
"Number of Shareholders Guideling"), the Exchange may rely upon the facts and
circumstances that it expects to exist on the option's intended listing date, rather than on
the date on which the Exchange selects for options trading the underlying Restructure
Security.

(1) The Exchange may assume that:
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(A) both the "Share" and "Number of Shareholders’
Guidelines are satisfied if, on the option's intended listing date, the
Exchange expects no fewer than forty (40) million shares of the
Restructure Security to be issued and outstanding; and

(B) either such Guiddlineis satisfied if, on the option's
intended listing day, the Exchange expects the Restructure Security to be
listed on an exchange or automatic quotation system that has, and is
subject to, an initia listing requirement that is no less stringent that the
Guideline in question.

(i) The Exchange may not rely on any such assumption, however, if
areasonable Exchange investigation or that of another exchange demonstrates that
either the Share Guideline or Number of Shareholders Guideline will not in fact be
satisfied on an option's intended listing date.

(iii) In addition, in the case of a Restructuring Transaction in which
the shares of a Restructure Security are issued or distributed to the holders of
shares of an Original Equity Security, the Exchange may determine that either the
Share Guideline or the Number of Shareholders Guideline is satisfied based upon
the Exchange's knowledge of the outstanding shares or number of shareholders of
the Original Equity Security.

(3) "Trading Volume" Guideline. In determining whether a Restructure
Security that isissued or distributed to the holders of shares of an Original Equity Security
(but not a Restructure Security that isissued pursuant to a public offering or rights
distribution) satisfies the trading volume guideline set forth in Rule 502(b)(4) (the
"Trading Volume Guideline"), the Exchange may consider the trading volume history of
the Original Equity Security prior to the "ex-date”" of the Restructuring Transaction if the
Restructure Security satisfies the "Substantiality Test" set forth in subparagraph (c)(5)
below.

(4) "Market Price" Guideline. In determining whether a Restructure
Security satisfies the market price history guideline set forth in Rule 502(b)(5) (the
"Market Price Guideline"), the Exchange may consider the market price history of the
Origina Equity Security prior to the "ex-date" of the Restructuring Transaction if:

(1) the Restructure Security satisfies the " Substantiality Test" set
forth in subparagraph (c)(5) below; and

(i1) in the case of the application of the Market Price Guidelineto a
Restructure Security that is distributed pursuant to a public offering or arights
distribution:

(A) the Restructure Security trades "regular way" on an
exchange or automatic quotation system for at least the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of selection; and
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(B) at the close of trading on each trading day on which the
Restructure Security trades "regular way" prior to the date of selection,
and the opening of trading on the date of selection, the market price of the
Restructure Security was at least $7.50.

(5) The "Substantiality Test." A Restructure Security satisfies the
"Substantiality Test" if:

(1) the Restructure Security has an aggregate market value of at
least $500 million; or

(i) at least one of the following conditions is met:

(A) the aggregate market value of the Restructure Security
eguals or exceeds the Relevant Percentage of the aggregate market value
of the Original Equity Security;

(B) the aggregate book value of the assets attributed to the
business represented by the Restructure Security equals or exceeds both
$50 million and the Relevant Percentage of the aggregate book value of the
assets attributed to the business represented by the Original Equity
Security; or

(C) the revenues attributed to the business represented by
the Restructure Security equals or exceeds both $50 million and the
Relevant Percentage of the revenues attributed to the business represented
by the Original Equity Security.

(6) A Restructure Security's aggregate market value may be determined
from "when issued" prices, if available.

(7) In calculating comparative aggregate market values for the purpose of
assessing whether a Restructure Security qualifies to underlie an option, the Exchange
shall use the Restructure Security's closing price on its primary market on the last business
day prior to the selection date or the Restructure Security's opening price on its primary
market on the selection date and shall use the corresponding closing or opening price of
the related Original Equity Security.

(8) In calculating comparative asset values and revenues, the Exchange
shall use (i) the issuer's latest annual financia statements or (ii) the issuer's most recently
available interim financial statements (so long as such interim financial statements cover a
period of not less than three months), whichever are more recent. Those financial
statements may be audited or unaudited and may be pro forma.

(9) Except in the case of a Restructure Security that is distributed pursuant
to a public offering or rights distribution, the Exchange may not rely upon the trading
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volume or market price history of an Origina Equity Security as this paragraph (c) permits
for any trading day unlessit relies upon both of those measures for that trading day.

(10) Once the Exchange commences to rely upon a Restructure Security's
trading volume and market price history for any trading day, the Exchange may not rely
upon the trading volume and market price history of the security's related Original Equity
Security for any trading day thereafter.

(11) "When Issued” Trading Prohibited. The Exchange shall not list for
trading options contracts that overlie a Restructure Security that is not yet issued and
outstanding, regardless of whether the Restructure Security is trading on a"when issued"
basis or on another basis that is contingent upon the issuance or distribution of shares.

(d) In consdering underlying securities, the Exchange shall ordinarily rely on
information made publicly available by the issuer and/or the markets in which the security is
traded.

(e) The word "security" shall be broadly interpreted to mean any equity security, as
defined in Rule 3all-1 under the Exchange Act, which is appropriate for options trading, and the
word "shares’ shall mean the unit of trading of such security.

(f) Securities deemed appropriate for options trading shall include nonconvertible
preferred stock issues and American Depositary Receipts ("ADRS") if they meet the criteria and
guidelines set forth in this Rule 502 and if, in the case of ADRs:

(1) the Exchange has in place an effective surveillance sharing agreement
with the primary exchange in the home country where the security underlying the ADR is
traded;

(2) the combined trading volume of the ADR and other related ADRs and
securities (as defined below) occurring in the U.S. ADR market or in markets with which
the Exchange has in place an effective surveillance sharing agreement represents (on a
share equivalent basis) at least fifty percent (50%) of the combined worldwide trading
volume in the ADR, the security underlying the ADR, other classes of common stock
related to the underlying security, and ADRs overlying such other stock (together "other
related ADRs and securities') over the three month period preceding the date of selection
of the ADR for options trading;

(3) (i) the combined trading volume of the ADR and other related ADRs
and securities occurring in the U.S. ADR market and in markets where the Exchange has
in place an effective surveillance sharing agreement, represents (on a share equivalent
basis) at least twenty percent (20%) of the combined worldwide trading volume in the
ADR and in other related ADRs and securities over the three month period preceding the
date of selection of the ADR for options trading, (ii) the average daily trading volume for
the security in the U.S. markets over the three (3) months preceding the selection of the
ADR for options trading is 100,000 or more shares, and (iii) the trading volume is at least
60,000 shares per day in U.S. markets on a mgjority of the trading days for the three (3)
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months preceding the date of selection of the ADR for options trading ("Daily Trading
Volume Standard"); or

(4) the SEC otherwise authorizes the listing.

(9) Securities deemed appropriate for options trading shall include shares issued by
registered closed-end management investment companies that invest in the securities of issuers
based in one or more foreign countries ("International Funds') if they meet the criteria and
guidelines set forth in this Rule 502 and ether:

(1) the Exchange has a market information sharing agreement with the
primary home exchange for each of the securities held by the fund, or

(2) the International Fund is classified as adiversified fund as that term is
defined by section 5(b) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the
securities held by the fund are issued by issuers based in five or more countries.

(h) A "market information sharing agreement"” for purposes of this Ruleis an
agreement that would permit the Exchange to obtain trading information relating to the securities
held by the fund including the identity of the member of the foreign exchange executing a trade.
International Fund shares not meeting criteria of paragraph (h) shall be deemed appropriate for
options trading if the SEC specifically authorizes the listing.

Rule 503. Withdrawal of Approval of Underlying Securities

(d) Whenever the Exchange determines that an underlying security previousy
approved for Exchange options transactions does not meet the then current requirements for
continuance of such approval or for any other reason should no longer be approved, the Exchange
will not open for trading any additional series of options of the class covering that underlying
security and may prohibit any opening purchase transactions in series of options of that class
previously opened to the extent it deems such action necessary or appropriate; provided,
however, that where exceptional circumstances have caused an underlying security not to comply
with the Exchange's current approval maintenance requirements regarding number of publicly held
shares, number of shareholders, trading volume or market price, the Exchange may, in the interest
of maintaining afair and orderly market or for the protection of investors, determine to continue
to open additional series of options contracts of the class covering that underlying security. When
all options contracts with respect to any underlying security that is no longer approved have
expired, the Exchange may make application to the SEC to strike from trading and listing all such
options contracts.

(b) Absent exceptional circumstances, an underlying security will not be deemed to
meet the Exchange's requirements for continued approval whenever any of the following occur:

(1) There are fewer than 6,300,000 shares of the underlying security held

by persons other than those who are required to report their security holdings under
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.

ISE Chapter 5

42



(2) There are fewer than 1,600 holders of the underlying security.

(3) Thetrading volume (in al markets in which the underlying security is
traded) has been less than 1,800,000 shares in the preceding twelve (12) months.

(4) The market price per share of the underlying security closed below $5
on amagjority of the business days during the preceding six (6) calendar months as
measured by the highest closing price reported in any market in which the underlying
security traded.

(5) The issuer has failed to make timely reports as required by applicable
requirements of the Exchange Act, and such failure has not been corrected within thirty
(30) days after the date the report was due to be filed.

(6) The issuer, in the case of an underlying security that is principally
traded on a national securities exchange, is delisted from trading on that exchange and
neither meets NMS criteria nor is traded through the facilities of a national securities
association, or the issue, in the case of an underlying security that is principally traded
through the facilities of anational securities association, is no longer designated as an
NMS security.

(7) If an underlying security is approved for options listing and trading
under the provisions of Rule 502(c), the trading volume and price history of the Original
Security (as therein defined) prior to but not after the commencement of trading in the
Restructure Security (as therein defined), including "when-issued" trading, may be taken
into account in determining whether the trading volume and market price requirements of
(3) and (4) of this paragraph (b), as well as the trading volume and market price
requirements of paragraph (e) of this Rule, are satisfied.

(c) In connection with paragraph (b)(4) of this Rule, the Exchange shall not open

for trading any additional series of options contracts of the class covering an underlying security
at any time when the market price per share of such underlying security isless than $5, as
measured by the highest closing price reported in any market in which the underlying security

trades.

Further, no series of options contracts will be opened with a strike price of less than $5

per share.

(d) In considering whether any of the events specified in paragraph (b) of this Rule

have occurred with respect to an underlying security, the Exchange shall ordinarily rely on
information made publicly available by the issuer and/or the markets in which such security is

traded.

(e) Notwithstanding paragraph (b)(4) of this Rule, nor paragraph (c) of this Rule,

the Exchange may continue to open for trading additional series of options contracts of a class
covering an underlying security, provided:

(1) The aggregate market value of the underlying security equals or
exceeds $50 million;
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(2) Customer open interest (reflected on atwo-sided basis) equals or
exceeds 4,000 contracts for all expiration months,

(3) Trading volume in the underlying security (in all markets in which the
underlying security is trading) has been at least 2,400,000 shares in the preceding twelve
(12) months; and

(4) The market price per share of the underlying security closed at $3 or
above on amgjority of the business days during the preceding six (6) calendar months, as
measured by the highest closing price reported in any market in which the underlying
security traded, and further provided the market price per share of the underlying security
isat least $3 at the time such additional series are authorized for trading. During the next
consecutive six (6) calendar month period, to satisfy this paragraph (e), the price of the
underlying security as referenced in this paragraph (€)(4) shall be $4.

(f) If prior to the delisting of a class of options contracts covering an underlying
security that has been found not to meet the Exchange's requirements for continued approval, the
Exchange determines that the underlying security again meets the Exchange's requirements, the
Exchange may open for trading additional series of options of that class and may lift any
restriction on opening purchase transactions imposed by this Rule.

(9) Whenever the Exchange announces that approval of an underlying security has
been withdrawn for any reason or that the Exchange has been informed that the issuer of an
underlying security has ceased to be in compliance with SEC reporting requirements, each
Member and Member Organization shall, prior to effecting any transaction in options contracts
with respect to such underlying security for a customer, inform such customer of such fact and of
the fact that the Exchange may prohibit further transactions in such options contracts to the extent
it shall deem such action necessary and appropriate.

(h) If an ADR was initially deemed appropriate for options trading on the grounds
that fifty percent (50%) or more of the worldwide trading volume (on a share-equivalent basis) in
the ADR and other related ADRs and securities takes place in U.S. markets or in markets with
which the Exchange has in place an effective surveillance sharing agreement, or if an ADR was
initially deemed appropriate for options trading based on the daily trading volume standard Rule
502(f)(3), the Exchange may not open for trading additional series of options on the ADR unless:

(1) The percentage of worldwide trading volume in the ADR and other
related securities that takes place in the U.S. and in markets with which the Exchange has
in place effective surveillance sharing agreements for any consecutive three (3) month
period is either (i) at least thirty percent (30%) without regard to the average daily trading
volumein the ADR, or (ii) at least fifteen percent (15%) when the average U.S. daily
trading volume in the ADR for the previous three (3) monthsis at least 70,000 shares; or

(2) the Exchange then has in place an effective surveillance sharing
agreement with the primary exchange in the home country where the security underlying
the ADR is traded; or
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(3) the SEC has otherwise authorized the listing.
Rule 504. Series of Options Contracts Open for Trading

(a) After aparticular class of options has been approved for listing and trading on
the Exchange, the Exchange from time to time may open for trading series of optionsin that class.
Only options contracts in series of options currently open for trading may be purchased or
written on the Exchange. Prior to the opening of trading in a given series, the Exchange will fix
the expiration month, year and exercise price of that series.

(b) At the commencement of trading on the Exchange of a particular class of
options, the Exchange usually will open three (3) series of options for each expiration month in
that class. The exercise price of each serieswill be fixed at a price per share, with at least one
strike price above and one strike price below the price at which the underlying stock is traded in
the primary market at about the time that class of optionsis first opened for trading on the
Exchange.

(c) Additional series of options of the same class may be opened for trading on the
Exchange when the Exchange deems it necessary to maintain an orderly market, to meet customer
demand or when the market price of the underlying stock moves substantially from the initial
exercise price or prices. The opening of a new series of options shall not affect the series of
options of the same class previously opened.

(d) Theinterval between strike prices of series of options on individual stocks will
be:

(1) $2.50 or greater where the strike price is $25.00 or less;
(2) $5.00 or greater where the strike price is greater than $25.00; and
(3) $10.00 or greater where the strike price is greater than $200.00.

(e) The Exchange usually will open four (4) expiration months for each class of
options open for trading on the Exchange: the first two (2) being the two (2) nearest months,
regardless of the quarterly cycle on which that class trades; the third and fourth being the next two
(2) months of the quarterly cycle previoudly designated by the Exchange for that specific class.
For example:

(1) If the Exchange listed in late April a new stock option on a January-
April-July-October quarterly cycle, the Exchange would list the two (2) nearest term
months (May and June) and the next two (2) expiration months of the cycle (July and
October).

(2) When the May series expires, the Exchange would add a January series.
When the June series expires, the Exchange would add an August series as the next
nearest month and would not add an April series.
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(f) New series of options on an individual stock may be added until the beginning
of the month in which the options contract will expire. Due to unusual market conditions, the
Exchange, in its discretion, may add new series of options on an individual stock until five (5)
business days prior to expiration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a new series of FLEX Equity
Options, as defined in and subject to the provisions of Chapter 9 (FLEX Equity Options), may be
added on any business day prior to the expiration date.

(9) The options exchanges may select up to 200 options classes on individua
stocks for which the interval of strike prices will be $2.50 where the strike price is greater than
$25 but less than $50. The 200 options classes may be selected by the various options exchanges
pursuant to any agreement mutually agreed to by the individual exchanges. In addition to those
options selected by the Exchange, the strike price interval may be $2.50 in any multiply-traded
option once another exchange trading that option selects such option as part of this program. The
Exchange and any of the other exchanges may also list strike prices of $2.50 on any options class
that was previoudly selected by the NY SE.

Rule 505. Adjustments

Options contracts shall be subject to adjustments in accordance with the Rules of
the Clearing Corporation. When adjustments have been made, the Exchange will announce that
fact, and such changes will be effective for al subsequent transactions in that series at the time
specified in the announcement.

Rule 506. Long-Term Options Contracts

(a) Notwithstanding conflicting language in Rule 504, the Exchange may list long-
term options contracts that expire from twelve (12) to thirty-nine (39) months from the time they
are listed. There may be up to six (6) additional expiration months. Strike price interval, bid/ask
differential and continuity rules shall not apply to such options series until the time to expiration is
less than nine (9) months.

(b) After a new long-term options contract seriesis listed, such serieswill be
opened for trading either when there is buying or selling interest, or forty (40) minutes prior to the
close, whichever occursfirst. No quotations will be posted for such options series until they are
opened for trading.
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CHAPTERG

Doing Business With the Public
Rule 600. Exchange Approval

An Electronic Access Member may be approved by the Exchange to transact
business with the public only if such Member is also a member of another registered national
securities exchange or association with which the Exchange has entered into an agreement under
Rule 17d-2 under the Exchange Act pursuant to which such other exchange or association shall
be the designated examining authority for the Member. Approval to transact business with the
public shall be based on a Member's meeting the general requirements set forth in this Chapter and
the net capital requirements set forth in Chapter 13 (Net Capital Requirements). Such approval
may be withdrawn if any such requirements cease to be met.

Rule 601. Registration of Options Principals

(@) No Member shall be approved to transact options business with the public until
those associated persons who are designated as Options Principals have been approved by and
registered with the Exchange. Persons engaged in the management of the Member's business
pertaining to options contracts shall be designated as Options Principals.

(b) In connection with their registration, Options Principals shall file an application
with the Secretary on aform prescribed by the Exchange, shall successfully complete an
examination prescribed by the Exchange for the purpose of demonstrating an adequate knowledge
of the options business, and shall sign an agreement to abide by the Constitution and Rules of the
Exchange and the Rules of the Clearing Corporation; provided, however, that Options Principals
of Members that are members of another national securities exchange or association that has
standards of approval acceptable to the Exchange may be deemed to be approved by and
registered with the Exchange, so long as such Options Principals are approved by and registered
with such other exchange or association.

(c) Termination of employment or affiliation of any Options Principal in such
capacity shall be reported promptly to the Exchange together with a brief statement of the reason
for such termination.

Rule 602. Registration of Representatives
(@) No Member shall be approved to transact business with the public until those

persons associated with it who are designated Representatives have been approved by and
registered with the Exchange.

(b) Persons who perform duties for the Member which are customarily performed

by sales representatives or branch office managers shall be designated as Representatives of the
Member.
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(c) In connection with their registration, Representatives shall file an application on
aform prescribed by the Exchange, shall successfully complete an examination prescribed by the
Exchange for the purpose of demonstrating an adequate knowledge of the securities business, and
shall sign an agreement to abide by the Congtitution and Rules of the Exchange and the Rules of
the Clearing Corporation; provided, however, that Representatives of Members that are members
of another national securities exchange or association that has standards of approval acceptable to
the Exchange may be deemed to be approved by and registered with the Exchange, so long as
such Representatives are approved by and registered with such other exchange or association.

Rule 603. Termination of Registered Persons

(a) The discharge or termination of employment of any registered person, together
with the reasons therefor, shall be reported by a Member immediately following the date of
termination, but in no event later than thirty (30) days following termination, to the Exchange on
aUniform Termination Notice for Securities Industry Registration (Form U-5). A copy of said
termination notice shall be provided concurrently to the person whose association has been
terminated.

(b) The Member shall report to the Exchange, by means of an amendment to the
Form U-5 filed pursuant to paragraph (a) above, in the event that the Member learns of facts or
circumstances causing any information set forth in the notice to become inaccurate or incomplete.
Such amendment shall be filed with the Exchange and provided concurrently to the person whose
association has been terminated no later than thirty (30) days after the Member learns of the facts
or circumstances giving rise to the amendment.

(c) Any filing or submission requirement under this Rule shall be deemed to be
satisfied if such filing or submission is made with the North American Securities Administrators
Association/National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Central Registration Depository
("CRD") within the prescribed time period.

Rule 604. Continuing Education for Registered Persons

(a) Regulatory Element. No Member shall permit any registered person to
continue to, and no registered person shall continue to, perform duties as a registered person,
unless such person has complied with the continuing education requirements of this paragraph (a).

Each registered person shall complete the Regulatory Element of the continuing education
program on the occurrence of their second registration anniversary date and every three years
thereafter or as otherwise prescribed by the Exchange. On each occasion, the Regulatory Element
must be completed within 120 days after the person's registration anniversary date. A person's
initial registration date shall establish the cycle of anniversary dates for purposes of thisRule. The
content of the Regulatory Element of the program shall be determined by the Exchange for each
registration category of persons subject to the Rule.

(1) Persons who have been continuously registered for more than ten (10)
years as of July 1, 1998, are exempt from the requirements of this Rule relative to
participation in the Regulatory Element of the continuing education program, provided
such persons have not been subject to any disciplinary action within the last ten (10) years
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as enumerated in subsections (a)(3)(i)-(ii) of this Rule.

(i) However, persons delegated supervisory responsibility or
authority pursuant to Rule 609 and registered in such supervisory capacity are
exempt from participation in the Regulatory Element under this provision only if
they have been continuously registered in a supervisory capacity for more than ten
(10) years as of the effective date of this Rule and provided that such supervisory
person has not been subject to any disciplinary action under subsections (a)(3)(i)-
(i) of thisRule.

(i1) In the event that a registered person who is exempt from
participation in the Regulatory Element subsequently becomes the subject of a
disciplinary action as enumerated in subsections (a)(3)(i)-(ii), such person shall be
required to satisfy the requirements of the Regulatory Element asif the date the
disciplinary action becomes fina is the person'sinitial registration anniversary date.

(2) Failureto Complete. Unless otherwise determined by the Exchange,
any registered persons who have not completed the Regulatory Element of the program
within the prescribed time frames will have their registration deemed inactive until such
time as the requirements of the program have been satisfied. Any person whose
registration has been deemed inactive under this Rule shall cease dl activitiesasa
registered person and is prohibited from performing any duties and functioning in any
capacity requiring registration. The Exchange may, upon application and a showing of
good cause, allow for additional time for a registered person to satisfy the program
requirements.

(3) Re-Entry Into Program. Unless otherwise determined by the Exchange,
aregistered person will be required to re-enter the Regulatory Element and satisfy all of its
requirements in the event such person:

(i) becomes subject to any statutory disqualification as defined in
Section 3(a)(39) of the Exchange Act,

(i) becomes subject to suspension or to the imposition of afine of
$5,000 or more for violation of any provision of any securities law or regulation,
or any agreement with or rule or standard of conduct of any securities
governmental agency, securities SRO, or asimposed by any such regulatory
organization in connection with a disciplinary proceeding, or

(i) is ordered as a sanction in a disciplinary action to re-enter the
continuing education program by any securities governmental agency or securities
SRO.

Re-entry shall commence with initial participation within 120 days of the
registered person becoming subject to the statutory disqualification, in the case of (i)
above, or the disciplinary action becoming final, in the case of (ii) or (iii) above. The date
that the disciplinary action becomes final will be deemed the person's initia registration
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anniversary date for purposes of this Rule.
(b) Firm Element.

(1) Persons Subject to the Firm Element. The requirements of paragraph
(b) of this Rule shall apply to any registered person who has direct contact with customers
in the conduct of the Member's securities sales, trading or investment banking activities,
and to the immediate supervisors of such persons (collectively "covered registered
persons’).

(2) Standards.

(1) Each Member must maintain a continuing and current education
program for its covered registered persons to enhance their securities knowledge,
skills and professionalism. At a minimum each Member shal at least annually
evaluate and prioritize its training needs and develop a written training plan. The
plan must take into consideration the Member's size, organizational structure and
scope of business activities, as well as regulatory development and the
performance of covered registered personsin the Regulatory Element. If a
Member's analysis determines a need for supervisory training for persons with
supervisory responsbilities, such training must be included in the Member's
training plan.

(it) Minimum Standards for Training Programs. Programs used to
implement a Member's training plan must be appropriate for the business of the
Member and, at a minimum, must cover the following matters concerning
securities products, services and strategies offered by the Member:

(a) genera investment features and associated risk factors;
(b) suitability and sales practice considerations; and
(c) applicable regulatory requirements.
(ii1) Administration of Continuing Education Program. Each
Member must administer its continuing education program in accordance with its
annual evaluation and written plan and must maintain records documenting the

content of the programs and completion of the programs by covered registered
persons.

(3) Participation in the Firm Element. Covered registered persons included
in aMember's plan must take all appropriate and reasonable steps to participate in
continuing education programs as required by the Member.

Supplementary Material to Rule 604

.01 For purposes of this Rule, the term "registered person” means any Member,
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Representative or other person registered or required to be registered under the Rules, but does
not include any such person whose activities are limited solely to the transaction of business on
the Exchange with Members or registered broker-dealers.

.02 For purposes of this Rule, the term "customer" means any natural person or
any organization, other than aregistered broker or dealer, executing transactions in securities or
other smilar instruments with or through, or receiving investment banking services from, a
Member.

.03 Any registered person who has terminated association with a registered broker
or dealer and who has, within two (2) years of the date of termination, become reassociated in a
registered capacity with aregistered broker or dealer shall participate in the Regulatory Element
of the continuing education program as such intervals that apply (second registration anniversary
and every three years thereafter) based on the initial registration anniversary date, rather than
based on the date of reassociation in aregistered capacity. Any former registered person who
becomes reassociated in aregistered capacity with aregistered broker or dealer more than two (2)
years after termination as such will be required to satisfy the program's requirements in their
entirety (second registration anniversary and every three years thereafter), based on the most
recent registration date.

.04 A registration that is deemed inactive for a period of two (2) calendar years
pursuant to paragraph (a)(2) of this Rule for failure of aregistered person to complete the
Regulatory Element, shall be terminated. A person whose registration is so terminated may
become registered only by reapplying for registration and satisfying applicable registration and
qualification requirements of the Exchange's Rules.

Rule 605. Other Affiliations of Registered Persons

Except with the express written permission of the Exchange, every registered
person shall devote his entire time during business hours to the business of the Member employing
him, or to the business of its affiliates that are engaged in the transaction of business as a broker
or dealer in securities or commodities or in such other businesses as have been approved by the
Member's designated examining authority.

Rule 606. Discipline, Suspension, Expulsion of Registered Persons

The Exchange may discipline, suspend or terminate the registration of any
registered person for violation of the Constitution or Rules of the Exchange or the Rules of the
Clearing Corporation.

Rule 607. Branch Offices

(@) Every Member approved to do options business with the public under this
Chapter shall file with the Exchange and keep current alist of each of its branch offices showing
the location of each such office and the name of the manager of each such office.

(b) No branch office of a Member shall transact options business with the public
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unless the manager of such branch office has been quaified as an Options Principa; provided, that
this requirement shall not apply to branch offices in which not more than three (3) Representatives
are located so long as the Member can demonstrate that the options activities of such branch
offices are appropriately supervised by an Options Principal.

Rule 608. Opening of Accounts

(a) Approval Required. No Member shall accept an order from a customer to
purchase or write an options contract unless the customer's account has been approved for
options transactions in accordance with the provisions of this Rule.

(b) Diligence in Opening Account. In approving a customer's account for options
transactions, a Member shall exercise due diligence to learn the essentia facts as to the customer
and his investment objectives and financia situation, and shall make a record of such information,
which shall be retained in accordance with Rule 609. Based upon such information, the branch
office manager or other Options Principal shall approve in writing the customer's account for
options transactions; provided, that if the branch office manager is not an Options Principal, his
approva shall within a reasonable time be confirmed by an Options Principal.

(1) In fulfilling its obligations under this paragraph with respect to options
customers that are natural persons, a Member shall seek to obtain the following
information at a minimum (information shall be obtained for al participantsin ajoint
account):

(i) investment objectives (e.g., safety of principal, income, growth,
trading profits, speculation);

(i) employment status (name of employer, self-employed or
retired);

(iii) estimated annual income from al sources,

(iv) estimated net worth (exclusive of family residence);

(v) estimated liquid net worth (cash, securities, other);

(vi) marital status,

(vii) number of dependents;

(viii) age; and

(ix) investment experience and knowledge (e.g., number of years,
size, frequency and type of transactions for options, stocks and bonds,

commodities, other).

(2) In addition to the information required in subparagraph (1) above, the
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customer's account records shall contain the following information, if applicable:

(i) source or sources of background and financial information
(including estimates) concerning the customer;

(i) discretionary trading authorization, including agreement on file,
name, relationship to customer and experience of person holding trading authority;

(iii) date(s) options disclosure document(s) furnished to customer;

(iv) nature and types of transactions for which account is approved
(e.g., buying, covered writing, uncovered writing, spreading, discretionary
transactions);

(v) name of Representative,

(vi) name of Options Principal approving account;

(vii) date of approval; and

(viii) dates of verification of currency of account information.

(3) Refusal of a customer to provide any of the information called for in
this paragraph shall be so noted on the customer's records at the time the account is
opened. Information provided shall be considered together with other information
available in determining whether and to what extent to approve the account for options
transactions.

(c) Verification of Customer Background and Financial Information. The
background and financial information upon which the account of every new customer that isa
natural person has been approved for options trading, including al of the information required in
paragraph (b)(2) of this Rule, unless the information is included in the customer's account
agreement, shall be sent to the customer for verification or correction within fifteen (15) days
after the customer's account has been approved for options transactions. A copy of the
background and financial information on file with the Member shall also be sent to the customer
for verification within fifteen (15) days after the Member becomes aware of any material change in
the customer's financial situation. Absent advice from the customer to the contrary, the
information will be deemed to be verified.

(d) Agreementsto Be Obtained. Within fifteen (15) days after a customer's
account has been approved for options transactions, a Member shall obtain from the customer a
written agreement that the account shall be handled in accordance with the Rules of the Exchange
and the Rules of the Clearing Corporation and that such customer, acting alone or in concert with
others, will not violate the position or exercise limits set forth in Rules 411 and 413.

(e) Options Disclosure Documents to Be Furnished. At or prior to thetime a
customer's account is approved for options transactions, a Member shall furnish the customer
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with one (1) or more current options disclosure documents in accordance with the requirements
of Rule 616.

(f) Every Member transacting business with the public in uncovered options
contracts shall develop, implement and maintain specific written procedures governing the
conduct of such business that shall at least include the following:

(1) specific criteriaand standards to be used in evaluating the suitability of
a customer for uncovered short options transactions;

(2) specific procedures for approval of accounts engaged in writing
uncovered short options contracts (which for the purposes of this Rule shall include
combinations and any transactions that involve naked writing), including written approval
of such accounts by an Options Principal;

(3) designation of the Senior Options Principa and/or Compliance Options
Principal as the person responsible for approving accounts that do not meet the specific
criteriaand standards for writing uncovered short options transactions and for maintaining
written records of the reasons for every account so approved;

(4) establishment of specific minimum net equity requirements for initial
approval and maintenance of customer uncovered options accounts; and

(5) requirements that customers approved for writing uncovered short
options transactions be provided with a specia written description of the risks inherent in
writing uncovered short options transactions, at or prior to the initial uncovered short
options transaction pursuant to Rule 616(c).
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Rule 609. Supervision of Accounts

(a) Duty to Supervise-- Non-Member Accounts. Every Member shall develop and
implement awritten program for the review of the its non-Member customer accounts and all
orders in such accounts, insofar as such accounts and orders relate to options contracts.

(b) Duty to Supervise-- Uncovered Short Options. Every Member shall develop
and implement specific written procedures concerning the manner of supervision of customer
accounts maintaining uncovered short (written) options positions (which for the purposes of this
Rule shall include combinations and any transactions that involve naked writing) and specifically
providing for frequent supervisory review of such accounts.

(c) Senior Options Principal. Each Member shall designate a Senior Options
Principa who is specifically identified to the Exchange and who is an officer (in the case of a
corporation) or general partner (in the case of a partnership) or manager (in the case of alimited
liability company) of the Member to supervise compliance with paragraphs (a) and (b) of this
Rule. In meeting his responsibility for supervision of non-member customers accounts and
orders, the Senior Options Principal may delegate to qualified employees responsibility and
authority for supervision and control of each branch office handling options transactions, provided
that the Senior Options Principal shall have overal authority and responsibility for establishing
appropriate procedures of supervision and control over such employees.

(d) Compliance Options Principal. Every Member shall designate and specifically
identify to the Exchange a Compliance Options Principa (who may be the Senior Options
Principal), who shall have no sales functions and shall be responsible to review, and to propose
appropriate action to secure, the Member's compliance with securities laws and regulations and
Exchange Rules with respect to its options business.

(1) The Compliance Options Principal shal regularly furnish reports
directly to the compliance officer (if the Compliance Options Principal is not himself the
compliance officer) and to other senior management of the Member.

(2) The requirement that the Compliance Options Principa shall have no
sales functions does not apply to a Member that has received less than $1 million in gross
commissions on options business as reflected in its FOCUS reports for either of the
preceding two (2) fiscal years or that currently has ten (10) or fewer Representatives.

(e) Maintenance of Customer Records. Background and financial information of
customers who have been approved for options transactions shall be maintained at the principal
supervisory office having jurisdiction over the office servicing a customer's account, or shall have
readily accessible and promptly retrievable, information to permit review of each customer's
options account on atimely basis to determine:

(1) the compatibility of options transactions with investment objectives and
with the types of transactions for which the account was approved;

(2) the size and frequency of options transactions,
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(3) commission activity in the account;
(4) profit or loss in the account;
(5) undue concentration in any options class or classes,; and

(6) compliance with the provisions of Regulation T of the Federal Reserve
Board.

Rule 610. Suitability of Recommendations

(a) Every Member, Options Principal or Representative who recommends to a
customer the purchase or sale (writing) of any options contract shall have reasonable grounds for
believing that the recommendation is not unsuitable for such customer on the basis of the
information furnished by such customer after reasonable inquiry as to hisinvestment objectives,
financial situation and needs, and any other information known by such Member, Options
Principal or Representative.

(b) No Member, Options Principal or Representative shall recommend to a
customer an opening transaction in any options contract unless the person making the
recommendation has a reasonable basis for believing at the time of making the recommendation
that the customer has such knowledge and experience in financial matters that he may reasonably
be expected to be capable of evaluating the risks of the recommended transaction, and is
financially able to bear the risks of the recommended position in the options contract.

Rule 611. Discretionary Accounts

(a) Authorization and Approval Required. No Member shall exercise any
discretionary power with respect to trading in options contracts in a customer's account unless
such customer has given prior written authorization and the account has been accepted in writing
by an Options Principal.

(1) The Senior Options Principal shall review the acceptance of each
discretionary account to determine that the Options Principal accepting the account had a
reasonable basis for believing that the customer was able to understand and bear the risks
of the strategies or transactions proposed, and the Senior Options Principal shall maintain
arecord of the basis for his determination.

(2) Each discretionary order shall be approved and initialled on the day
entered by the branch office manager or other Options Principal, provided that if the
branch office manager is not an Options Principal, his approval shall be confirmed within a
reasonable time by an Options Principal.

(3) Every discretionary order shall be identified as discretionary on the
order at the time of its entry into the System.
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(4) Discretionary accounts shall receive frequent appropriate supervisory
review by the Compliance Options Principal.

(b) Record of Transactions. A record shall be made of every options transaction
for an account with respect to which aMember is vested with any discretionary power, such
record to include the name of the customer, options class and series, number of contracts,
premium, and date and time when such transaction took place.

(c) Excessive Transactions Prohibited. No Member shall effect with or for any
customer's account with respect to which such Member is vested with any discretionary power
any transactions of purchase or sale of options contracts that are excessive in size or frequency in
view of the financial resources and character of such account.

(d) Options Programs. Where the discretionary account utilizes options programs
involving the systematic use of one or more options strategies, the customer shall be furnished
with awritten explanation (meeting the requirements of Rule 623) of the nature and risks of such
programs.

Rule 612. Confirmation to Customers

(@) Every Member shall promptly furnish to each customer a written confirmation
of each transaction in options contracts that shows the underlying security, type of options,
expiration month, exercise price, number of options contracts, premium, commissions, date of
transaction and settlement date, and shall indicate whether the transaction is a purchase or sale
and whether a principal or agency transaction.

(b) The confirmation shall, by appropriate symbols, distinguish between Exchange
Transactions and other transactions in options contracts.

Rule 613. Statement of Accountsto Customers

(@) Every Member shall send to its customers a statement of account showing
security and money positions, entries, interest charges and any special charges that have been
assessed against such account during the period covered by the statement; provided, however,
that such charges need not be specifically delineated on the statement if they are otherwise
accounted for on the statement and have been itemized on transaction confirmations.

(b) With respect to options customers having a general (margin) account, the
customer statement shall also provide the mark-to-market price and market value of each
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options position and other security position in the genera (margin) account, the total market
value of al positions in the account, the outstanding debit or credit balance in the account, and the
general (margin) account equity.

(1) For purposes of this paragraph, general (margin) account equity shall
be computed by subtracting the total of the short security values and any debit balance
from the total of the long security values and any credit balance.

(c) The customer statement shall bear alegend stating that further information with
respect to commissions and other charges related to the execution of listed options transactions
has been included in confirmations of such transactions previoudly furnished to the customer, and
that such information will be made available to the customer promptly upon request.

(d) Customer statements shall bear alegend requesting that the customer promptly
advise the Member of any material change in the customer's investment objectives or financia
situation.

(e) Customer statements shall be sent at least quarterly to al accounts having a
money or a security position during the preceding quarter and at least monthly to all accounts
having an entry during the preceding month.

Rule 614. Statements of Financial Condition to Customers

Every Member shall send to each of its customers statements of the Member's
financial condition as required by Rule 17a-5 under the Exchange Act.

Rule 615. Addressing of Communications to Customers

No Member shall address any communications to a customer in care of any other
person unless either (i) the customer, within the preceding twelve (12) months, has instructed the
Member in writing to send communications in care of such other persons, or (ii) duplicate copies
are sent to the customer at some other address designated in writing by him.

Rule 616. Delivery of Current Options Disclosure Documents and
Prospectus

(a) Options Disclosure Documents. Every Member shall deliver a current options
disclosure document to each customer at or prior to the time such customer's account is approved
for options transactions. Where a customer is a broker or dealer, the Member shall take
reasonable steps to assure that such broker or dealer is furnished reasonable quantities of current
options disclosure documents, as requested by the broker or dedler, to enable it to comply with
the requirements of this Rule.

(1) The term "current options disclosure document” means, as to any

category of underlying security, the most recent edition of such document that meets the
requirements of Rule 9b-1 under the Exchange Act.
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(2) A copy of each amendment to an options disclosure document shall be
furnished to each customer who was previously furnished the options disclosure document
to which the amendment pertains, not later than the time a confirmation of a transaction in
the category of options to which the amendment pertains is delivered to such customer.
The Exchange will advise Members when an options disclosure document is amended.

(b) Prospectus. Every Member shall furnish acopy of the current prospectus of
the Clearing Corporation to each customer who requests one. The Exchange will advise
Members when a new prospectusis available. The term "current prospectus of Clearing
Corporation" means the prospectus portion of the most recent Form S-20, which prospectus
portion then meets the delivery requirements of Rule 153b under the Securities Act.

(c) The written description of risks required by Rule 608(f)(5) shall bein aformat
prescribed by the Exchange or in aformat developed by the Member, provided it contains
substantially similar information as the prescribed Exchange format and has received prior written
approval of the Exchange.

(d) Sample risk description for use by Members to satisfy the requirements of
paragraph (c) of this Rule.

Specia Statement for Uncovered Options Writers

There are special risks associated with uncovered options writing which
expose the investor to potentially significant loss. Therefore, this type of strategy may not
be suitable for all customers approved for options transactions.

1. The potential loss of uncovered call writing is unlimited. The writer of
an uncovered call isin an extremely risky position, and may incur large losses if the
value of the underlying instrument increases above the exercise price.

2. Aswith writing uncovered calls, the risk of writing uncovered put
optionsis substantial. The writer of an uncovered put option bears arisk of lossif
the value of the underlying instrument declines below the exercise price. Such loss
could be substantial if thereis a significant decline in the value of the underlying
instrument.

3. Uncovered options writing is thus suitable only for the knowledgeable
investor who understands the risks, has the financia capacity and willingness to
incur potentially substantial losses, and has sufficient liquid assets to meet
applicable margin requirements. In thisregard, if the value of
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the underlying instrument moves against an uncovered writer's options position,
the investor's broker may request significant additional margin payments. If an
investor does not make such margin payments, the broker may liquidate stock or
options positions in the investor's account with little or no prior noticein
accordance with the investor's margin agreement.

4. For combination writing, where the investor writes both a put and a call
on the same underlying instrument, the potentia risk is unlimited.

5. If asecondary market in options were to become unavailable, investors
could not engage in closing transactions, and an options writer would remain
obligated until expiration or assignment.

6. The writer of an American-style option is subject to being assigned an
exercise at any time after he has written the option until the option expires. By
contrast, the writer of a European-style option is subject to exercise assignment
only during the exercise period.

NOTE: It isexpected that you will read the booklet entitted CHARACTERISTICS AND
RISKS OF STANDARDIZED OPTIONS available from your broker. In particular, your
attention is directed to the chapter entitled Risks of Buying and Writing Options. This
statement is not intended to enumerate all of the risks entailed in writing uncovered
options.

Rule 617. Restrictions on Pledge and Lending of Customers Securities

(@) No Member shall lend, either to itself or to others, securities carried for the
account of any customer, unless such Member shall first have obtained a separate written
authorization from such customer permitting the lending of the securities.

(b) Regardless of any agreement between a Member and a customer authorizing
the Member to lend or pledge such securities, no Member shall lend or pledge more of such
securities than is fair and reasonable in view of the indebtedness of the customer to such Member,
except such lending as may be specifically authorized under paragraph (c) of this Rule.

(c) No Member shall lend securities carried for the account of any customer that
have been fully paid for, or that are in excess of the amount that may be loaned in view of the
indebtedness of the customer, unless such Member first obtains from such customer a separate
written authorization designating the particular securities to be loaned.

(d) No Member shall hold securities carried for the account of any customer that
have been fully paid for, or that are in excess of the amount that may be pledged in view of the
indebtedness of the customer, unless such securities are segregated and identified by a method
that clearly indicates the interest of such customer in those securities.
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Rule 618. Transactions of Certain Customers

(8) No Member shall execute any transaction in securities or carry a position in any
security in which:

(1) an officer or employee of the Exchange, or any other national securities
exchange that is a participant of the Clearing Corporation, or an officer or employee of a
corporation in which the Exchange or such other exchange owns the majority of the
capital stock, isdirectly or indirectly interested, without the prior written consent of the
Exchange; or

(2) apartner, officer, director, principa shareholder or employee of
another Member is directly or indirectly interested, without the consent of such other
Member.

(b) Where the required consent has been granted, duplicate reports of the
transaction and position shall promptly be sent to the Exchange or Member, as the case may be.
Rule 619. Guarantees

No Member shall guarantee a customer against loss in his account or in any
transaction effected with or for such customer.

Rule 620. Profit Sharing

(@) No Member, Options Principal, Representative, officer, partner or branch office
manager of the Member shall share directly or indirectly in the profits or losses in any customer's
account, whether carried by such Member, or any other Member, without the prior written
consent of the Member carrying the account.

(b) Where such consent is obtained, the Member, Options Principal,
Representative, officer, partner or branch office manager shall share in the profits or losses in such
account only in direct proportion to the financial contribution made to the account by such
person.

Rule 621. Assuming L osses

No Member shall assume for its own account any position established for a
customer in a security traded on the Exchange after aloss to the customer has been established or
ascertained, unless the position was created by the Member's mistake or unless approval of the
Exchange has first been obtained.
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Rule 622. Transfer of Accounts

(@) When a customer whose securities account is carried by a Member (the
"Carrying Member") wants to transfer the entire account to another Member (the "Recelving
Member") and gives written notice of that fact to the Receiving Member, both Members must
expedite and coordinate activities with respect to the transfer. For purposes of this Rule, the term
"securities account” shall be deemed to include any and all of the account's money market fund
positions or the redemption value thereof.

(b)(1) Upon receipt from the customer of a signed broker-to-broker transfer
instruction to receive such customer's securities account, the Receiving Member will immediately
submit such instruction to the Carrying Member. The Carrying Member must, within five (5)
business days following receipt of such instruction, (i) validate and return the transfer instruction
(with an attachment reflecting all positions and money balances as shown on its books) to the
Receiving Member, or (ii) take exception to the transfer instruction for reasons other than
securities positions or money balance discrepancies and advise the Recelving Member of the
exception taken.

(2) The Carrying Member and the Receiving Member must promptly
resolve any exceptions taken to the transfer instruction.

(3) Within five (5) business days following the validation of atransfer
instruction, the Carrying Member must compl ete the transfer of the customer's securities
account to the Receiving Member. The Carrying Member and the Receiving Member
must establish fail to receive and fail to deliver contracts at then current market values
upon their respective books of account against the long/short positions (including options)
in the customer's securities account that have not been physically delivered/received and
the Recelving/Carrying Member must debit/credit the related money account. The
customer's securities account shall thereupon be deemed transferred.

(c) Any fail contracts resulting from this account transfer procedure must be closed
out within ten (10) business days after their establishment.

(d) Any discrepancies relating to positions or money balances that exist or occur
after transfer of a customer's securities account must be resolved promptly.

(e) When both the Carrying Member and the Recelving Member are participants in
aclearing corporation having automated customer securities account transfer capabilities, the
account transfer procedure, including the establishing and closing out of fail contracts, must be
accomplished in accordance with the provisions of this Rule and pursuant to the rules of and
through the clearing corporation.

(f) The Exchange may exempt from the provisions of this Rule, either
unconditionally or on specified terms and conditions, (i) any Member or type of Members, or (ii)
any type of account, security or financial instrument.

(9) Unless an exemption has been granted pursuant to paragraph (f) of this Rule,
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the Exchange may impose upon a Member afee of up to $100 per securities account for each day
such Member fails to adhere to the time frames or procedures required by this Rule.

(h) Transfer instructions and reports required by this Rule shall be in such form as
may be prescribed by the Exchange.

Rule 623. Communicationsto Customers

(a) General Rule. No Member or person associated with a Member shall utilize
any advertisement, educational material, sales literature or other communications to any customer
or member of the public concerning options that:

(1) contains any untrue statement or omission of amaterial fact or is
otherwise false or mideading;

(2) contains promises of specific results, exaggerated or unwarranted
claims, opinions for which there is no reasonable basis or forecasts of future events that
are unwarranted or that are not clearly labeled as forecasts;

(3) contains hedge clauses or disclaimers that are not legible, that attempt
to disclaim responsibility for the content of such literature or for opinions expressed
therein, or that are otherwise inconsistent with such communication; or

(4) would constitute a prospectus as that term is defined in the Securities
Act, unless it meets the requirements of Section 10 of the Securities Act.

(b) Definitions. For purposes of this Rule, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) The term "advertisement” shall include any sales material that reaches a
mass audience through public media such as newspapers, periodicals, magazines, radio,
television, telephone recording, motion picture, audio or video device, telecommunications
device, eectronic communications device, billboards, signs or through written sales
communications to customers or the public that are not required to be accompanied or
preceded by one or more current options disclosure documents.

(2) The term "educational materia™ shall include any explanatory materia
distributed or made generally available to customers or the public that is limited to
information describing the general nature of the standardized options markets or one or
more strategies.

(3) Theterm "sales literature” shall include any written communication (not
defined as an "advertisement” or as "educational material") distributed or made
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generaly available to customers or the public that contains any analysis, performance
report, projection or recommendation with respect to options, underlying securities or
market conditions, any standard forms of worksheets, or any seminar text which pertains
to options and which is communicated to customers or the public at seminars, lectures or
smilar events. "Sales literature” also includes telemarketing scripts.

(c) Approval by Compliance Options Principal. All advertisements, sales
literature (except completed worksheets), and educational material issued by a Member pertaining
to options shall be approved in advance by the Compliance Options Principa or designee. Copies
thereof, together with the names of the persons who prepared the material, the names of the
persons who approved the material and, in the case of sales literature, the source of any
recommendations contained therein, shall be retained by the Member and kept at an easily
accessible place for examination by the Exchange for a period of three (3) years.

(d) Exchange Approval Required for Options Advertisements and Educational
Material. In addition to the approval required by paragraph (c) of this Rule, every advertisement
and all educational material of a Member pertaining to options shall be submitted to the Exchange
at least ten (10) days prior to use (or such shorter period as the Exchange may allow in particular
instances) for approval, and if changed or expressly disapproved by the Exchange, shall be
withheld from circulation until any changes specified by the Exchange have been made or, in the
event of disapproval, until the advertisement or educational material has been resubmitted for, and
has received, Exchange approval. The requirements of this paragraph shall not be applicable to:

(1) advertisements or educational material submitted to another SRO
having comparabl e standards pertaining to such advertisements or educational material,
and

(2) advertisements in which the only reference to optionsis contained in a
listing of the services of a Member.

(e) Except as otherwise provided in this Rule, no written materials respecting
options may be disseminated to any person who has not previously or contemporaneously
received one (1) or more current options disclosure documents.

(f) The special risks attendant to options transactions and the complexities of
certain options investment strategies shall be reflected in any advertisement, educational materia
or sales literature that discusses the uses or advantages of options. Such communications shall
include awarning to the effect that options are not suitable for al investors. In the preparation of
written communications concerning options, the following guidelines shall be observed:

(1) Any statement referring to the potential opportunities or advantages
presented by options shall be balanced by a statement of the corresponding risks. Therisk
statement shall reflect the same degree of specificity as the statement of opportunities, and
broad generalities should be avoided. Thus, a statement such as
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"with options, an investor has an opportunity to earn profits while limiting his risk of loss,"
should be balanced by a statement such as "of course, an options investor may lose the
entire amount committed to options in arelatively short period of time."

(2) It shall not be suggested that options are suitable for all investors.

(3) Statements suggesting the certain availability of a secondary market for
options shall not be made.

(g) Advertisements pertaining to options shall conform to the following standards:

(1) Advertisements may only be used (and copies of the advertisements
may not be sent to persons who have not received one or more options disclosure
documents) if the material meets the requirements of Rule 134 under the Securities Act, as
that Rule has been interpreted as applying to options. Under Rule 134, advertisements
must be limited to general descriptions of the security being offered and of its issuer.
Advertisements under this Rule shall state the name and address of the person or persons
from whom the current options disclosure document(s) may be obtained. Such
advertisements may have the following characteristics:

(i) Thetext of the advertisement may contain a brief description of
such options, including a statement that the issuer of every such option is The
Options Clearing Corporation. The text may also contain a brief description of the
general attributes and method of operation of the exchange or exchanges on which
such options are traded and of The Options Clearing Corporation, including a
discussion of how the price of an option is determined on such exchange(s).

(i) The advertisement may include any statement required by any
state law or administrative authority.

(iii) Advertising designs and devices, including borders, scrolls,
arrows, pointers, multiple and combined logos and unusual type faces and
lettering, as well as attention-getting headlines and photographs and other
graphics, may be used, provided such material is not misleading.

(2) The use of recommendations or of past or projected performance
figures, including annualized rates of return, is not permitted in any advertisement
pertaining to options.

(h) Educational material, including advertisements, pertaining to options may be

used if the material meets the requirements of Rule 134a under the Securities Act.
Those requirements are as follows:
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(1) The potential risks related to options trading generally and to each
strategy addressed must be explained.

(2) No past or projected performance figures, including annualized rates of
return may be used.

(3) No recommendation to purchase or sell any options contract may be
made.

(4) No specific security may be identified other than:

(i) asecurity which is exempt from registration under the Act, or an
option on such exempt security, or

(i) an index option, including the component securities of the
index, or

(iii) aforeign currency option.

(5) The materia contains the name and address of a person or persons from
whom the appropriate current Options Disclosure Document(s), as defined in Rule 9b-1 of
the Exchange Act, may be obtained.

(i) Sales literature pertaining to options shall conform to the following standards:

(1) Sales literature shall state that supporting documentation for any claims
(including any claims made on behalf of the options programs or the options expertise of
sales persons), comparisons, recommendations, statistics or other technical data, will be
supplied upon request.

(2) Such communications may contain projected performance figures
(including projected annualized rates of return), provided that:

(i) no suggestion of certainty of future performance is made;

(i) parameters relating to such performance figures are clearly
established (e.g., to indicate the exercise price of an options contract, the purchase
price of the underlying stock and the options contract's market price, premium,
anticipated dividends, etc.);

(i) al relevant costs, including commissions and interest charges
(if applicable with regard to margin transactions) are disclosed;
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(iv) such projections are plausible and intended as a source of
reference or a comparative device to be used in the development of a
recommendation,;

(v) all material assumptions made in such calculations are clearly
identified (e.g., "assume option expires," "assume option unexercised,” "assume
option exercised,” etc.);

(vi) therisks involved in the proposed transactions are also
discussed; and

(vii) in communications relating to annualized rates of return, such
returns are not based upon any less than a sixty (60) day experience, any formulas
used in making calculations are clearly displayed and a statement is included to the
effect that the annualized returns cited might be achieved only if the parameters
described can be duplicated and that there is no certainty of doing so.

(3) Such communications may feature records and statistics that portray
the performance of past recommendations or of actual transactions, provided that:

(i) any such portrayal is done in a balanced manner and consists of
records or statistics that are confined to a specific "universe” that can be fully
isolated and circumscribed and that covers at |east the most recent twelve (12)
month period;

(i) such communications include the date of each initia
recommendation or transaction, the price of each such recommendation or
transaction as of such date, and the date and price of each recommendation or
transaction at the end of the period or when liquidation was suggested or effected,
whichever was earlier; provided that if the communications are limited to
summarized or averaged records or statistics in lieu of the complete record, there
may be included in the number of items recommended or transacted, the number
that advanced and the number that declined, together with an offer to provide the
complete record upon request;

(iii) such communications disclose al relevant costs, including
commissions and interest charges (if applicable with regard to margin transactions)
and, whenever annualized rates of return are used, all material assumptions used in
the process of annualization,

(iv) anindication is provided of the general market conditions

during the period(s) covered, and any comparison made between such records and
statistics and the overall market (e.g., comparison to an index) is valid;
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(v) such communications state that the results presented should not
and cannot be viewed as an indicator of future performance; and

(vi) an Options Principal determines that the records or statistics
fairly present the status of the recommendations or transactions reported upon and
so initials the report.

(4) In the case of an options program (i.e., an investment plan employing
the systematic use of one or more options strategies), the cumulative history or unproven
nature of the program and its underlying assumptions shall be disclosed.

(5) Standard forms of options worksheets utilized by Members, in addition
to complying with the requirements applicable to sales literature, must be uniform within a
Member for each product type (e.g., equity, index, interest rate, etc.).

(6) If aMember has adopted a standard form of worksheet for a particular
options strategy, nonstandard worksheets for that strategy may not be used.

(7) Communications that portray performance of past recommendations or
actual transactions and completed worksheets shall be kept at a place easily accessible to
the sales office for the accounts or customers involved.

Rule 624. Brokers Blanket Bond

(a) Every Electronic Access Member approved to transact business with the public
under this Chapter and every Clearing Member shall carry Brokers Blanket Bonds covering
officers and employees of the Member in such form and in such amounts as the Exchange may
require.

(b) All Members subject to paragraph (a) of this Rule shall maintain Brokers
Blanket Bonds as follows:

(1) Maintain a Brokers Blanket Bond similar to the standard form
established by the Surety Association of America, covering officers and employees which
provides against loss and has agreements covering at least the following:

(i) Fiddlity;
(if) On Premises,
(i) In Trangit;

(iv) Misplacement;
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(v) Forgery and Alteration (including check forgery);
(vi) Securities Loss (including securities forgery);
(vii) Fraudulent Trading; and

(viii) A Cancellation Rider providing that the insurance carrier will
promptly notify the Exchange of cancellation, termination or substantial
modification of the Bond.

(2) In determining the initial minimum coverage, the Member isto use the
highest required net capital during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding
the issuance of the Brokers Blanket Bond. Thereafter, areview for adequacy of coverage
shall be made at least annually as of the anniversary date of issuance of the subject Bond,
and the minimum requirement for the next twelve (12) months shall be established by
reference to the highest net capital in the preceding twelve (12) months. Any necessary
adjustments shall be made not more than thirty (30) days following the anniversary.

(c) The minimum required coverage for fraudulent trading shall be the greater of
$25,000 or fifty percent (50%) of the coverage required in paragraph (b)(2) up to a maximum of
$500,000.

(d) The minimum required coverage for securities forgery shall be the greater of
$25,000 or twenty-five percent (25%) of the coverage required in paragraph (b)(2) up to a
maximum of $250,000.

(e) A deductible provision of up to $5,000 or ten percent (10%) of the minimum
coverage requirement, whichever is greater, may be included in the Bond.

(1) A Member may choose to maintain coverage in excess of the minimum
requirements as set forth above in paragraph (b)(2) of this Rule, and in such case, a
deductible provision of up to $5,000 or ten percent (10%) of the amount of the Blanket
Bond coverage, whichever is greater, may be included in the Bond purchased. However,
the excess of this greater deductible amount over the maximum permissible deductible
amounts as described in this paragraph must be subtracted from the Member's net worth in
the calculation of the Member's net capital under SEC Rule 15¢3-1.

(2) Each Member shall report the cancellation, termination or substantial
modification of the Bond to the Exchange within ten (10) business days of such
occurrences.

(f) Members with no employees shall be exempt from this Rule.
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(9) Members subject to a bonding rule of another registered national securities
exchange, the SEC, or aregistered national securities association that imposes requirements that
are equa to or greater than the requirements imposed by the Rule shall be deemed to bein
compliance with the provisions of thisRule.

Rule 625. Customer Complaints

(@) Every Member conducting a non-member customer business shall make and
keep current a separate central log, index or other file for all options-related complaints, through
which these complaints can easily be identified and retrieved.

(b) The term "options-related complaint” shall mean any written statement by a
customer or person acting on behalf of a customer alleging a grievance arising out of or in
connection with listed options.

(c) The central file shall be located at the principa place of business of the Member
or such other principal office as shall be designated by the Member.

(1) Each options-related complaint received by a branch office of a
Member shall be forwarded to the office in which the separate, central file islocated not
later than thirty (30) days after receipt by the branch office.

(2) A copy of every options-related complaint shall be maintained at the
branch office that is the subject of a complaint.

(d) At aminimum, the centra file shall include:
(1) identification of complainant;
(2) date complaint was received;
(3) identification of the Representative servicing the account, if applicable;
(4) agenera description of the subject of the complaint; and

(5) arecord of what action, if any, has been taken by the Member with
respect to the complaint.

Rule 626. Telephone Solicitation

(@) No Member or associated person shall make an outbound tel ephone call to any
person's residence for the purpose of soliciting the purchase of securities or related services
("telemarketing” or "cold-calling") at any time other than between 8 am. and 9 p.m. local time at
the called person's location, without that person's prior consent.

(b) No Member or associated person shall make an outbound telephone call to any
person for the purpose of telemarketing without disclosing promptly and in a clear and
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conspicuous manner to the called person the following information:
(1) the identity of the caller and the Member firm,

(2) the telephone number or address at which the caller may be contacted;
and

(3) that the purpose of the call isto solicit the purchase of securities or
related services.

(c) The prohibitions of paragraphs (@) and (b) do not apply to telephone calls by an
associated person (whether acting alone or at the direction of another associated person) who
controls or has been assigned to a Member's existing customer account for the purpose of
maintaining and servicing that account, provided that the call is to:

(1) an existing customer who, within the preceding twelve (12) months, has
made a securities transaction in or has deposited funds or securities into an account, that
was under the control of or assigned to that associated person at the time of the
transaction or deposit;

(2) an existing customer whose account has earned interest or dividend
income during the preceding twelve (12) months, and who previously has made a
securities transaction in or has deposited funds or securities into an account, that was
under the control of or assigned to the associated person at the time of the transaction or
deposit; or

(3) abroker or dealer.

(d) For purposes of paragraph (c) above, the term "existing customer” means a
customer for whom the broker or dealer, or a clearing broker or dealer on its behalf, carries on
account. The scope of this Rule 626 is limited to the telemarketing calls described herein. The
terms of this Rule do not impose, expressly or by implication, any additional requirements on
Members with respect to the relationship between a Member and a customer or between an
associated person and a customer.

(e) Each Member shall make and maintain a centralized list of persons who have
informed the Member, or any employee thereof, that they do not wish to receive telephone
solicitations, and shall refrain from engaging in telephone solicitations of persons named on such
list.

(f) Each Member or associated person engaged in telemarketing shall have a
customer's express written authorization in order to obtain or submit for payment a check, draft,
or other form of negotiable instrument drawn on a customer's checking, savings, share or sSimilar
account. Written authorization may include the customer's signature on the
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negotiable instrument. The authorization must be retained for at least three (3) years. This
provision does not require maintenance of copies of negotiable instruments signed by customers.

(9) Members and associated persons that engage in telemarketing also are subject
to the requirements of the rules of the Federal Communications Commission relating to
telemarketing practices and the rights of telephone consumers.
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CHAPTER 7

DOING BUSINESSON THE EXCHANGE

Rule 700. Days and Hours of Business

The Board shall determine the days the Exchange shall be open for business
(referred to as "business days') and the hours of such days during which transactions may be
made on the Exchange. No Member shall make any bid, offer, or transaction on the Exchange
before or after such hours.

(a) Except for unusua conditions as may be determined by the Board, hours
during which transactions in options on individual stocks may be made on the Exchange shall
correspond to the normal business days and hours for business set forth in the rules of the primary
market trading the stocks underlying Exchange options; provided, however, that transactions may
be effected in an options class on the Exchange until two (2) minutes after the primary market on
which the underlying stock trades closes for trading.

(b) The Exchange shall not be open for business on the following holidays. New
Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents Day, Good Friday, Memoria Day,
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day or Christmas Day. When any holiday observed
by the Exchange falls on a Saturday, the Exchange will not be open for business on the preceding
Friday. When any holiday observed by the Exchange falls on a Sunday, the Exchange will not be
open for business on the following Monday, unless unusual business conditions exist at the time.

Rule 701. Trading Rotations

(a) General Rules. A "trading rotation" is a process by which the Primary Market
Maker initiates trading in a specified options class.

(1) The Exchange may direct that one or more trading rotations be
employed on any business day to aid in producing afair and orderly market.

(2) For each rotation so employed, except as the Exchange may direct,
rotations shall be conducted in the order and manner the Primary Market Maker
determines to be appropriate under the circumstances.

(3) The Primary Market Maker, with the approval of the Exchange, shall
have the authority to determine the rotation order and manner or deviate from the rotation
procedures. Such authority may be exercised before and during a trading rotation.

(4) Two (2) or more trading rotations may be employed simultaneoudly, if
the Primary Market Maker, with the approval of the Exchange, so determines.

(b) Opening Rotations. Trading rotations shall be employed at the opening of the
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Exchange each business day.

(1) For each class of options contracts that has been approved for trading,
the opening rotation shall be conducted by the Primary Market Maker appointed to such
class of options.

(2) The opening rotation in each class of options shall be held promptly
following the opening of the underlying security in the primary market whereit is traded.
An underlying security shall be deemed to be opened on the primary market whereit is
traded if such market has (i) reported a transaction in the underlying security, or (ii)
disseminated opening quotations for the underlying security and not given an indication of
a delayed opening, whichever first occurs.

(3) In the event the underlying security has not opened within a reasonable
time after 9:30 am. Eastern time, the Primary Market Maker shall report the delay to the
Exchange and an inquiry shall be made to determine the cause of the delay. The opening
rotation for options contracts in such security shall be delayed until the underlying security
has opened unless the Exchange determines that the interests of afair and orderly market
are best served by opening trading in the options contracts.

(4) The Exchange may delay the commencement of the opening rotation in
any class of optionsin the interests of afair and orderly market.

(c) Rotations After Trading Hours. Normally, the close of trading for options
classes shall occur two (2) minutes after the primary market on which the underlying stock trades
closesfor trading. However, as provided below transactions may be effected in a class of options
after the end of normal trading hours in connection with a trading rotation.

(1) A trading rotation may be employed whenever the Exchange concludes
that such action is appropriate in the interests of afair and orderly market. The factors
that may be considered include, but are not limited to, whether there has been a recent
opening or reopening of trading in the underlying security, a declaration of a"fast market"
pursuant to Rule 704, or aneed for arotation in connection with expiring individual stock
options, an end of the year rotation, or the restart of arotation which isalready in
progress.

(2) The decisions to employ atrading rotation in non-expiring options shall
be disseminated prior to the commencement of such rotation. In general, no more than
one trading rotation will be commenced after the normal close of trading.

(3) If atrading rotation isin progress and the Exchange determines that a
final trading rotation is needed to assure afair and orderly market close, the rotation in
progress shall be halted and afinal rotation begun as promptly as possible.

(4) Any trading rotation in non-expiring options conducted after the normal
close of trading may not begin until five (5) minutes after news of such rotation is
disseminated by the Exchange.
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Rule 702. Trading Halts

(a) Halts. The Exchange may halt trading in any stock option in the interests of a
fair and orderly market.

(1) Thefollowing are among the factors that may be considered in
determining whether the trading in a stock option should be halted:

(i) trading in the underlying security has been halted or suspended
in the primary market.

(i1) the opening of such underlying security has been delayed
because of unusual circumstances.

(iii) other unusual conditions or circumstances are present.

(2) The Exchange will halt trading (including arotation) for a class or
classes of options contracts whenever there isa halt of trading in an underlying security in
the primary market. In such event, without the need for action by the Primary Market
Maker, dl trading in the effected class or classes of options shall be halted. The Exchange
shall disseminate through its trading facilities and over OPRA a symbol in respect of such
class or classes of optionsindicating that trading has been halted, and a record of the time
and duration of the halt shall be made available to vendors.

(3) No Member or person associated with a Member shall effect atrade on
the Exchange in any options class in which trading has been halted under the provisions of
this Rule during the time in which the halt remains in effect.

(b) Resumptions. Trading in a stock option that has been the subject of a halt
under paragraph (a)(1) above may be resumed upon the determination by the Exchange that the
conditions which led to the halt are no longer present or that the interests of afair and orderly
market are best served by a resumption of trading.

Rule 703. Trading Halts Due To Extraordinary Market Volatility
The Exchange shall halt trading in al options whenever a marketwide trading halt

(commonly known as a circuit breaker) isinitiated on the New Y ork Stock Exchange in response
to extraordinary market conditions.
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Rule 704. Unusual Market Conditions

(d) Whenever the Exchange determines, because of an influx of orders or other
unusual conditions or circumstances and the interest of maintaining afair and orderly market so
requires, the Exchange may declare the market in one or more classes of options contracts to be
"fast."

(b) If amarket is declared fast, the Exchange shall have the power to: (i) direct
that one or more trading rotations be employed pursuant to Rule 701; (ii) suspend the minimum
size requirement of Rule 804(b); or (iii) take such other actions as are deemed in the interest of
maintaining afair and orderly market.

(c) Regular trading procedures shall be resumed when the Exchange determines
that the conditions supporting a fast market declaration no longer exist.

(d) If the conditions supporting afast market declaration cannot be managed
utilizing one or more of the procedures contained in paragraph (b) of this Rule, then the Exchange
shall halt trading in the class or classes so affected.

Rule 705. Limitation of Liability

() The Exchange, its Directors, officers, committee members, employees,
contractors or agents shall not be liable to Members nor any persons associated with Members for
any loss, expense, damages or claims arising out of the use of the facilities, systems or equipment
afforded by the Exchange, nor any interruption in or failure or unavailability of any such facilities,
systems or equipment, whether or not such loss, expense, damages or claims result or are aleged
to result from negligence or other unintentional errors or omissions on the part of the Exchange,
its Directors, officers, committee members, employees, contractors, agents or other persons
acting on its behalf, or from systems failure, or from any other cause within or outside the control
of the Exchange.

(b) The Exchange makes no warranty, express or implied, as to results to be
obtained by any person or entity from the use of any data transmitted or disseminated by or on
behalf of the Exchange or any reporting authority designated by the Exchange, including but not
limited to, reports of transactions in or quotations for securities traded on the Exchange or
underlying securities, or reports of interest rate measures or index values or related data, and the
Exchange makes no express or implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular
purpose or use with respect to any such data.

(c) No Member or person associated with a Member shall institute a lawsuit or
other legal proceeding against the Exchange or any Director, officer, employee, contractor, agent
or other official of the Exchange or any subsidiary of the Exchange, for actions taken or omitted
to be taken in connection with the officia business of the Exchange or any subsidiary, except to
the extent such actions or omissions constitution violations of the federal securities laws for which
aprivate right of action exists. This provision shall not apply to appeals of disciplinary actions or
other actions by the Exchange as provided for in the Rules.
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Rule 706. Admission to and Conduct on the Exchange

(@) Admission to Enter Orders. Unless otherwise provided in the Rules, no one
but a Member or a person associated with a Member shall effect any Exchange Transactions.

(b) Exchange Conduct. Members and persons employed by or associated with any
Member, while using the facilities of the Exchange, shall not engage in conduct (i) inconsistent
with the maintenance of afair and orderly market; (ii) apt to impair public confidence in the
operations of the Exchange; or (iii) inconsistent with the ordinary and efficient conduct of
business. Any action taken by the Exchange hereunder shall not preclude further disciplinary
action under Chapter 16 (Discipline). Activities that may violate the provisions of this paragraph
(b) include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) failure of amarket maker to provide quotations in accordance with
Rule 804;

(2) failure of amarket maker to bid or offer within the ranges specified by
Rule 803(b)(4);

(3) failure of a Member to supervise a person employed by or associated
with such Member adequately to ensure that person's compliance with this paragraph (b);

(4) failure to abide by a determination of the Exchange;
(5) refusal to provide information requested by the Exchange; and
(6) failure to abide by the provisions of Rule 717.

(c) Non-member joint venture participants are subject to the provisions of
paragraphs (a) and (b) above.

Rule 707. Clearing Member Give Up

A Member must give up the name of the Clearing Member through whom the
transaction will be cleared. If there is a subsequent change in identity of the Clearing Member
through whom a transaction will be cleared, the Member must, as promptly as possible, report
such change to the Exchange.

Rule 708. Unitsof Trading

The unit of trading in each series of options traded on the Exchange shall be the
unit of trading established for that series by the Clearing Corporation pursuant to the rules of the
Clearing Corporation and the agreements of the Exchange with the Clearing Corporation.

Rule 7009. Meaning of Premium Quotes and Orders

(a) General. Except as provided in paragraph (b), orders and quotations shall be
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expressed in terms of dollars per unit of the underlying security. For example, abid of "5" shall
represent a bid of $500 for an options contract having a unit of trading consisting of 100 shares of
an underlying security, or abid of $550 for an options contract having a unit of trading consisting
of 110 shares of an underlying security.

(b) Special Cases. Orders and quotations for an options contract for which the
Exchange has established an adjusted unit of trading in accordance with Rule 708 shall be
expressed in terms of dollars per 1/100 part of the total securities and/or other property
constituting such adjusted unit of trading. For example, an offer of "3" shall represent an offer of
$300 for an options contract having a unit of trading consisting of 100 shares of an underlying
security plusten (10) rights.

Rule 710. Minimum Fractional Changes

() The Board may establish minimum trading increments for options traded on the
Exchange. Such changes by the Board will be designated as a stated policy, practice, or
interpretation with respect to the administration of this Rule 710 within the meaning of
subparagraph (3)(A) of Section 19(b) of the Exchange Act and will be filed with the SEC asarule
change for effectiveness upon filing. Until such time as the Board makes a change in the
increments, the following principles shall apply:

(2) if the options contract is trading at less than $3.00 per option,
one-sixteenth point; and

(2) if the options contract is trading at $3.00 per option or higher, one-
eighth point.

(b) Minimum fractional changes for dealings in options contracts other than those
specified in paragraph (a) may be fixed by the Exchange from time to time for options contracts of
aparticular series.

(c) Notwithstanding the above, the Exchange may trade in the minimum variation
of the primary market in the underlying security.

Rule 711. Acceptance of Quotesand Orders
All bids or offers made and accepted on the Exchange in accordance with the

Rules shall constitute binding contracts, subject to applicable requirements of the Constitution and
the Rules and the rules of the Clearing Corporation.
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Rule 712. Submission for Clearance

(a) All transactions made on the Exchange shall be submitted for clearance to the
Clearing Corporation, and all such transactions shall be subject to the rules of the Clearing
Corporation. Every Clearing Member shall be responsible for the clearance of the Exchange
Transactions of such Clearing Member and of each Member who gives up such Clearing
Member's name pursuant to a letter of authorization, letter of guarantee or other authorization
given by such Clearing Member to such Member, which authorization must be submitted to the
Exchange.

(b) On each business day at or prior to such time as may be prescribed by the
Clearing Corporation, the Exchange shall furnish the Clearing Corporation areport of each
Clearing Member's matched trades.

Rule 713. Priority of Quotesand Orders

(a) Definitions. As provided in Rule 100(a)(4) and (a)(21), a"bid" is a quotation
or limit order to buy options contracts and an "offer" is a quotation or limit order to sell options
contracts. "Quotations" are defined in Rule 100(a)(32), and may only be entered on the Exchange
by market makers in the options classes to which they are appointed under Rule 802. Limit
orders may be entered by market makers in certain circumstances as provided in the Rules and
Electronic Access Members (either as agent or as principal). "Non-Customer Orders" are defined
in Rule 100(a)(20) and include, among others, limit orders for the account of Electronic Access
Members and market makers on the Exchange.

(b) Priority on the Exchange. The highest bid and lowest offer shall have priority
on the Exchange.

(1) In the case where the lowest offer for any options contract is 1/16, no
Member shall enter a market order to sell that series.

(2) Wherever this condition occurs, any such market order shall be
considered a limit order to sell at a price of 1/16.

(c) Priority of Public Customer Orders. Public Customer Orders on the Exchange
shall have priority over Non-Customer Orders and market maker quotes at the same price in the
same options series.

(d) Precedence of Public Customer Orders. If there are two (2) or more Public
Customer Orders for the same options series at the same price on the Exchange, priority shall be
afforded to such Public Customer Orders in the sequences in which they are received by the
Exchange (i.e., in time priority).

(e) Precedence of Non-Customer Orders and Market Maker Quotes. If there are
two (2) or more Non-Customer Orders or market maker quotes at the Exchange's best bid or
offer, after al Public Customer Orders (if any) at that price have been filled, executions at that
price will be allocated between the Non-Customer Orders and market maker quotes pursuant to
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an allocation procedure to be determined by the Exchange from time to time; provided, however,
that if the Primary Market Maker is quoting at the Exchange's best bid or offer, it shall have
precedence over Non-Customer Orders and Competitive Market Maker quotes for execution of
ordersthat are for a specified number of contracts or fewer, which number shall be determined by
the Exchange from time to time.

(f) Priority on Split Price Transactions. If aMember purchases (sells) one (1) or
more options contracts of a particular series at a particular price, he shall at the next lower
(higher) price a which a Non-Customer is bidding (offering), have priority over such Non-
Customersin purchasing (selling) up to the equivalent number of options contracts of the same
series that he purchased (sold) at the higher (lower) price, but only if the purchase (sale) so
effected represents the opposite side of a transaction with the same offer (bid) as the earlier
purchase (sale).

Rule 714. Automatic Execution of Public Customer Orders

(@) Public Customer Orders to buy or sell options contracts on the Exchange will
not be automatically executed by the System at prices inferior to the best bid or offer on another
national securities exchange, as those best prices are identified in the System.

(b) Paragraph (a) shall not apply to fill-or-kill orders or in circumstances where a
"fast market" in the options series has been declared on the Exchange, or where a"fast market" in
the options series has been declared in other markets or where quotations in other markets are
otherwise not firm.

Rule 715. Typesof Orders

(@) Market Orders. A market order is an order to buy or sell a stated number of
options contracts that is to be executed at the best price obtainable when the order reaches the
Exchange.

(b) Limit Orders. A limit order is an order to buy or sell a stated number of
options contracts at a specified price or better.

(1) Marketable Limit Orders. A marketable limit order isalimit order to
buy (sdll) at or above (below) the best offer (bid) on the Exchange.

(2) Fill-or-Kill Orders. A fill-or-kill order isalimit order that isto be
executed in its entirety as soon asiit isreceived and, if not so executed, treated as
cancelled.

(3) Immediate-or-Cancel Orders. Animmediate-or-cancedl order is alimit

order that isto be executed in whole or in part upon receipt. Any portion not so executed
isto be treated as cancelled.
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Rule 716. Block Trades

(a) Block-Sze Orders. Block-size orders are orders for fifty (50) contracts or
more.

(b) Block Order Mechanism. The Block Order Mechanism is a process by which
an Electronic Access Member can solicit indications of the prices and sizes at which market
makers quoting in the options series and other Members with proprietary orders at the inside bid
or offer would be willing to trade with block-size orders.

(1) Bids (offers) on the Exchange at the time the block order is executed
that are priced higher (lower) than the block execution price, as well as market maker bids
(offers) in response the solicitation of interest that are priced higher (lower) than the
execution price, will be executed at the block execution price.

(2) Notwithstanding Rule 714(a), Public Customer block-size orders
executed through this mechanism will be executed without consideration of any prices that
might be available on other exchanges trading the same options contract.

(c) Facilitation Mechanism. An Electronic Access Member will be assured of
executing as principal a minimum portion of block-size Public Customer limit orders, after
executable Public Customer Orders on the Exchange have been satisfied, through the Exchange's
Facilitation Mechanism.

(1) An Electronic Access Member can solicit indications of the prices and
sizes at which market makers quoting in the options series and other Members with
proprietary orders at the inside bid or offer would be willing to trade with block-size
orders.

(2) Responses to the solicitation must be priced at the price of the order to
be facilitated and must not exceed the size of the order to be facilitated.

(3) Members that receive arequest for indications may enter orders or
change their quotes in amanner that would improve upon the facilitation price, but must
do so as least ten (10) seconds prior to the expiration of the request for indications.

(4) After executable Public Customer Orders and superior-priced Non-
Customer Orders and quotes in the System are satisfied, precedence of Non-Customer
Orders and quotes, as well as Member's bids/offers in response to the Facilitation
Mechanism's solicitation of interest, will be determined according to a procedure whereby
the facilitating Electronic Access Member executes at |east fifty percent (50%) of the
remaining size of the order.

(5) Bidg/offers on the Exchange at the time the block is executed that are
priced better than the block execution price will be executed at the block execution price.

Rule 717. Limitationson Orders
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(@) Market Orders and Marketable Limit Orders.

Electronic Access Members shall not enter into the System, as principal or
agent, Non-Customer market orders. An Electronic Access Member may not enter into
the System, as principal or agent, Non-Customer limit orders that cross the market by
more than two (2) minimum variations unless there is sufficient size at the best offer (bid)
to satisfy the entire order.

(b) Limit Orders.

Electronic Access Members shall not enter into the System, as principal or
agent, limit orders in the same options series, for the account or accounts of the same or
related beneficial owners, in such a manner that the Electronic Access Member or the
beneficia owner(s) effectively is operating as a market maker by holding itself out as
willing to buy and sell such options contract on aregular or continuous basis. In
determining whether an Electronic Access Member or beneficial owner effectively is
operating as a market maker, the Exchange will consider, among other things: the
simultaneous or near-simultaneous entry of limit orders to buy and sell the same options
contract; the multiple acquisition and liquidation of positions in the same options series
during the same day; and the entry of multiple limit orders at different pricesin the same
options series.

(c) Order Sze.

(1) Electronic Access Members are prohibited from entering into the
System, as principal or agent, multiple orders for asingle trading interest if one or more
ordersisfor fewer than ten (10) contracts.

(2) Non-Customer Orders for fewer than ten (10) contracts will be rejected
or cancelled automatically if such orders would cause the size of the Exchange's best bid
or offer to be fewer than ten (10) contracts.

(d) Principal Transactions.

Electronic Access Members may not execute as principal orders they
represent as agent unless (i) agency orders are first exposed on the Exchange for at least
two (2) minutes, (ii) the Electronic Access Member has been bidding or offering on the
Exchange for at least two (2) minutes prior to receiving an agency order that is executable
against such bid or offer, or (ii) the Member utilizes the Facilitation Mechanism pursuant
to Rule 716(c).
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(e) Solicitation Orders.

Electronic Access Members must expose orders they represent as agent on
the Exchange for at least two (2) minutes before they may be executed in whole or in part
by orders solicited from Members and non-member broker-dealers to transact with such
orders.

(f) Electronic Orders.

Members may not enter, nor permit the entry of, orders created and
communicated e ectronically without manual input (i.e., order entry by Public Customers
or associated persons of Members must involve manual input such as entering the terms of
an order into an order-entry screen or manually selecting a displayed order against which
an off-setting order should be sent). Nothing in this paragraph, however, prohibits
Electronic Access Members from e ectronically communicating to the Exchange orders
manually entered by customers into front-end communications systems (e.g., Internet
gateways, online networks, €etc.).

(g) Ordersfor the Account of Another Member .

Absent an exemption from the Exchange, Electronic Access Members shall
not cause the entry of orders for another Member.

Rule 718. Accommodation Liquidations (Cabinet Trades)

Cabinet trading under the following terms and conditions shall be available in each
series of options contracts open for trading on the Exchange:

(a) Trading shall be conducted in accordance with other Exchange Rules except as
otherwise provided herein.

(b) Limit orders valued at a price of $1 per options contract must be placed on the
Exchange using the Cabinet Trading Mechanism.

(c) Opening transactions at a value of $1 per options contact may be placed on the
Exchange using the Cabinet Trading Mechanism only to the extent that the order book in Cabinet
Trades contains unexecuted contract closing orders with which the opening orders immediately
may be matched.

(d) Ordersin Cabinet Trades may be placed for Public Customer accounts, with
priority based upon the sequence in which such orders are placed on the Exchange.

(e) Primary Market Makers shall not be subject to the requirements of Rule 803
for orders placed pursuant to this Rule.
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Rule 7109. Transaction Price Binding

The price at which an order is executed shall be binding notwithstanding that an
erroneous report in respect thereto may have been rendered, or no report rendered. A report shall
not be binding if an order was not actually executed but was reported to have been executed in
error.
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CHAPTER 8

MARKET MAKERS

Rule 800. Registration of Market Makers

(@) A market maker isan individual Member or Member Organization with
Designated Trading Representatives registered pursuant to Rule 801. Market makers are
registered with the Exchange for the purpose of making transactions as dealer-specialist in
accordance with the provisions of this Chapter.

(b) To register as a Competitive or Primary Market Maker, a Member shall file an
application in writing on such forms as the Exchange may prescribe. Applications shall be
reviewed by the Exchange, which shall consider an applicant's market making ability and such
other factors as the Exchange deems appropriate. After reviewing the application, the Exchange
shall either approve or disapprove the applicant's registration as a Competitive or Primary Market
Maker.

(c) Theregistration of any Member as a Competitive or Primary Market Maker
may be suspended or terminated by the Exchange upon a determination that such Member has
failed to properly perform as a market maker.

Rule 801. Designated Trading Representatives

(d) Market maker quotations and orders may be submitted to the Exchange's
System only by Designated Trading Representatives ("DTRs'). A DTR is permitted to enter
guotes and orders only for the account of the market maker for which he is registered.

(b) Registration of Designated Trading Representatives. The Exchange may,
upon receiving an application in writing from a market maker on aform prescribed by the
Exchange, register apersonasaDTR.

(1) DTRs may be:

(i) individual Members registered with the Exchange as market
makers, or

(i) officers, partners, employees or associated persons of Member
Organizations that are registered with the Exchange as market makers.

(2) To beeligible for registration asaDTR, a person must demonstrate
knowledge of the Rules of the Exchange by passing an examination conducted by the
Exchange.

(3) The Exchange may require a market maker to provide additional
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information the Exchange considers necessary to establish whether registration should be
granted.

(4) The Exchange may grant a person a conditional registration asa DTR
subject to any conditions it considers appropriate in the interests of maintaining afair and
orderly market.

(c) Suspension or Withdrawal of Registration.

(1) The Exchange may suspend or withdraw the registration previousy
given to a person to be aDTR if the Exchange determines that:

(i) the person has caused the market maker to fail to comply with
the Rules of the Exchange;

(if) the person is not properly performing the responsibilities of a
DTR;

(iii) the person has failed to meet the conditions set forth under
paragraph (b) above; or

(iv) the Exchange believesit isin the best interest of fair and
orderly markets.

(2) If the Exchange suspends the registration of a person asaDTR, the
market maker must not allow the person to submit quotes and orders into the Exchange's
System.

(3) Theregistration of aDTR will be withdrawn upon the written request
of the Member for which the DTR isregistered. Such written request shall be submitted
on the form prescribed by the Exchange.

Rule 802. Appointment of Market Makers

() The Exchange shall appoint market makers to one or more classes of options
contracts traded on the Exchange. 1n making such appointments the Exchange shall consider (i)
the financia resources available to the market maker, (ii) the market maker's experience and
expertise in market making or options trading, and (iii) the maintenance and enhancement of
competition among market makers in each class of options contracts to which they are appointed.

(b) The Exchange will allocate options classes into groupings (" Groups' of
options) and will make appointments to those Groups rather than individual classes, except as
provided in paragraph (f) below. Absent an exemption by the Exchange, an appointment of a
market maker shall be limited to the options classes trading in no more than one Group for each
Membership held by the market maker.
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(c) The Exchange shall appoint one Primary Market Maker and at least two (2)
Competitive Market Makers to each options class traded on the Exchange.

(d) No appointment of a market maker shall be without the market maker's consent
to such appointment, provided that refusal to accept an appointment may be deemed sufficient
cause for termination or suspension of a market maker's registration.

(e) The Exchange may suspend or terminate any appointment of a market maker
under this Rule and may make additional appointments or change the options classesincluded in a
market maker's appointed Group whenever, in the Exchange's judgment, the interests of afair and
orderly market are best served by such action.

(f) The Exchange shall periodically conduct an evaluation of market makers to
determine whether they have fulfilled performance standards relating to, among other things,
quality of markets, competition among market makers, observance of ethical standards, and
administrative factors. The Exchange may consider any relevant information, including but not
limited to the results of a market maker evaluation questionnaire, trading data, a market maker's
regulatory history and such other factors and data as may be pertinent in the circumstances. A
finding by the Exchange that a market maker has failed to meet minimum performance standards
may result in, among other things: (1) suspension, termination or restriction of an appointment to
one or more of the options classes within the market maker's appointed Group; (2) restriction of
appointments to additional options classes in the market maker's appointed Group; or (3)
suspension, termination, or restriction of the market makers registration.

Rule 803. Obligations of Market Makers

(a) General. Transactions of a market maker should constitute a course of dealings
reasonably calculated to contribute to the maintenance of afair and orderly market, and market
makers should not make bids or offers or enter into transactions that are inconsistent with such a
course of dealings. Ordinarily, market makers are expected to:

(1) Except in unusua market conditions, refrain from purchasing a call
option or a put option at a price more than $0.25 below parity. In the case of calls, parity
is measured by the bid in the underlying security, and in the case of puts, parity is
measured by the offer in the underlying security.

(2) Not bid more than $1 lower or offer more than $1 higher than the last
preceding transaction price for the particular options contract, plus or minus the aggregate
change in the last sale price of the underlying security since the time of the last preceding
transaction for the particular options contract. This provision applies from one day's close
to the next day's opening and from one transaction to the next in intra-day transactions.
With respect to inter-day transaction this provision appliesif the closing transaction
occurred within one hour of the close and the opening transaction occurred within one
hour after the opening. With respect to intra-day transactions, this provision applies to
transactions occurring within one hour of one another.

(b) Appointment. With respect to each options class to which a market maker is
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appointed under Rule 802, the market maker has a continuous obligation to engage, to a
reasonable degree under the existing circumstances, in dealings for his own account when there
exists, or it is reasonably anticipated that there will exist, alack of price continuity, atemporary
disparity between the supply of and demand for a particular options contract, or a temporary
distortion of the price relationships between options contracts of the same class. Without limiting
the foregoing, a market maker is expected to perform the following activities in the course of
maintaining afair and orderly market:

(1) To compete with other market makers to improve the market in all
series of options classes to which the market maker is appointed.

(2) To make markets that, absent changed market conditions, will be
honored for the number of contracts entered into the Exchange's System in al series of
options classes to which the market maker is appointed.

(3) To update market quotations in response to changed market conditions
in all series of options classes to which the market maker is appointed.

(4) To price options contracts fairly by, among other things, bidding and
offering so as to create differences of no more than 1/4 of $1 between the bid and offer for
each options contract for which the bid is less than $2, no more than 3/8 of $1 where the
bid is at least $2 but does not exceed $5, no more than 1/2 of $1 where the bid is more
than $5 but does not exceed $10, no more than 3/4 of $1 where the bid is more than $10
but does not exceed $20, and no more than $1 where the bid is $20 or greater, provided
that the Exchange may establish differences other than the above for one or more options
series. The bid/offer differentials stated above shall not apply to in-the-money options
series where the underlying securities market is wider than the differentials set forth above.

For these series, the bid/ask differential may be as wide as the quotation on the primary
market of the underlying security.

(c) Primary Market Makers. In addition to the obligations contained in this Rule
for market makers generally, for options classes to which a market maker is the appointed
Primary Market Maker, he shall have the responsibility to:

(1) Assure that each disseminated market quotation in each series of
optionsis for aminimum of ten (10) contracts, or such other minimum number as the
Exchange shall set from time to time. When the best bid (offer) on the Exchange
represents one or more Public Customer Orders for less than atotal of ten (10) contracts
at that price, the Primary Market Maker is obligated to buy (sell) at that price the number
of contracts needed to make the disseminated quote firm for ten contracts.

(2) Address Public Customer Orders that are not automatically executed
because there is a displayed bid or offer on another exchange trading the same options
contract that is better than the best bid or offer on the Exchange.

(3) Initiate trading in each series pursuant to Rule 701.

ISE Chapter 8

88



(d) Classes of Options To Which Not Appointed. With respect to classes of
options to which a market maker is not appointed, he should not engage in transactions for an
account in which he has an interest that are disproportionate in relation to, or in derogation of, the
performance of his obligations as specified in paragraph (b) above with respect to those classes of
options to which he is appointed. Market makers should not:

(1) Individually or as agroup, intentionaly or unintentionally, dominate the
market in options contracts of a particular class, or

(2) Effect purchases or sales on the Exchange except in a reasonable and
orderly manner.

Rule 804. Market Maker Quotations

(a) Options Classes. A quotation only may be entered by a market maker, and
only in the options classes to which the market maker is appointed under Rule 802.

(b) Sze Associated with Quotes. A market maker's bid and offer for a series of
options contracts shall be accompanied by the number of contracts the market maker iswilling to
buy or sell at that price. Unless the Exchange has declared a fast market pursuant to Rule 704, a
market maker may not enter abid or offer for less than ten (10) contracts. Where the size
associated with a market maker's bid or offer falls below ten (10) contracts due to executions at
that price and consequently the size of the best bid or offer on the Exchange would be for less
than ten (10) contracts, the market maker shall enter anew bid or offer for at least ten (10)
contracts, either at the same or a different price.

(c) Two-Sded Quotes. A market maker that enters a bid (offer) on the Exchange
must enter an offer (bid) within the spread allowable under Rule 803(b)(4).

(d) Firm Quotes. (1) With respect to Public Customer Orders, market maker bids
and offers are firm for the number of contracts associated with each, unless:

(i) the Exchange determines that an exception is warranted, on a
case by case basis, because of an obvious error; or

(i) a system malfunction or other circumstance impairs the
Exchange's ability to disseminate or update market quotes in atimely and accurate
manner.

(2) With respect to Non-Customer Orders, market makers must either buy
or sell the number of contracts specified in their quotes or change their quotes to reflect
that the previoudly displayed quote is no longer available.

(e) Continuous Quotes. A market maker must enter continuous quotations for the
options classes to which he is appointed pursuant to the following:

(1) Primary Market Makers. Primary Market Makers must enter
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continuous quotations and enter into any resulting transactions in all of the options classes
to which he is appointed on a daily basis.

(2) Competitive Market Makers. (i) On any given day, a Competitive
Market Maker must participate in the opening rotation and make markets and enter into
any resulting transactions on a continuous basisin at least sixty percent (60%) of the
options classes and al the series of such options classes for the Group to which the
Competitive Market Maker is appointed.

(i1) Whenever a Competitive Market Maker enters a quote or order
in an options class to which he is appointed, he must maintain continuous
quotations for all series within the same expiration month until the close of trading
that day; provided, however, if such quote or order is entered in an options series
during the month in which such series expires, the Competitive Market Maker
must participate in the opening rotation and maintain continuous quotations for all
series in that month each day through their expiration.

(iii) A Competitive Market Maker may be called upon by the
Exchange to submit a single quote or maintain continuous quotes in one or more
of the series of an options class to which the Competitive Market Maker is
appointed whenever, in the judgment of the Exchange, it is necessary to do so in
the interest of fair and orderly markets.

(f) Temporary Withdrawal of Quotations by Primary Market Makers. A Primary
Market Maker may apply to the Exchange to withdraw temporarily from its Primary Market
Maker statusin an options class. The Primary Market Maker must base its request on
demonstrated legal or regulatory requirements that necessitate its temporary withdrawal, or
provide the Exchange an opinion of counsdl certifying that such legal or regulatory basis exists.
The Exchange will act promptly on such arequest, and, if the request is granted, the Exchange
will temporarily reassign the options class to another Primary Market Maker.

Rule 805. Market Maker Orders

(a) Options Classes to Which Appointed. Market makers may not place principal
ordersto buy or sell options in the options classes to which they are appointed under Rule 802,
other than immediate-or-cancel orders. Competitive Market Makers shall comply with the
provisions of Rule 804(e)(2)(ii) upon the entry of such orders if they were not previously quoting
in the series.

(b) Options Classes Other Than Those to Which Appointed.

(1) A market maker may enter limit orders and immediate-or-cancel orders
to buy or sell options in classes of options listed on the Exchange to which the market
maker is not appointed under Rule 802, provided that:

(1) market maker orders are subject to the limitations contained in
Rule 717(c) and (f) as those paragraphs apply to principal orders entered by

ISE Chapter 8

90



Electronic Access Members,

(i1) the spread between a limit order to buy and a limit order to sell
the same options contract complies with the parameters contained in Rule
803(b)(4); and

(iii) the market maker does not enter orders in options classes to
which its Member Organization is otherwise appointed, either as a Competitive or
Primary Market Maker.

(2) Competitive Market Makers. The total number of contracts executed
during a quarter by a Competitive Market Maker in options classes to which it is not
appointed may not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total number of contracts
traded per each Competitive Market Maker Membership.

(3) Primary Market Makers. The total number of contracts executed during
aquarter by a Primary Market Maker in options classes to which it is not appointed may
not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total number of contracts traded per each Primary
Market Maker Membership.

Rule 806. Trade Reporting and Comparison

The details of each trade executed on the Exchange are automatically reported at
the time of execution. Members need not separately report their transactions for trade
comparison purposes.

Rule 807. Securities Accounts and Ordersof Market Makers

(a) Identification of Accounts. In a manner prescribed by the Exchange, each
market maker shall file with the Exchange and keep current alist identifying al accounts for
stock, options and related securities trading in which the market maker may, directly or indirectly,
engage in trading activities or over which he exercises investment direction. No market maker
shall engage in stock, options or related securities trading in an account which has not been
reported pursuant to this Rule.

(b) Reports of Orders. Each market maker shall, upon the request of the
Exchange and in the prescribed form, report to the Exchange every order entered by the market
maker for the purchase or sale of (i) a security underlying options traded on the Exchange, or (ii)
a security convertible into or exchangeable for such underlying security, as well as opening and
closing positionsin al such securities held in each account reported pursuant to paragraph (a) of
this Rule. The report pertaining to orders must include the terms of each order, identification of
the brokerage firms through which the orders were entered, the times of entry or cancellation, the
times report of execution were received and, if al or part of the order was executed, the quantity
and execution price.

(c) Joint Accounts. No market maker shall, directly or indirectly, hold any interest
or participate in any joint account for buying or selling any options contract unless each
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participant in such joint account is a Member or Member Organization and unless such account is
reported to and not disapproved by the Exchange. Such reportsin aform prescribed by the
Exchange shall be filed with the Exchange before any transaction is effected on the Exchange for
such joint account. A participant in ajoint account must:

(1) Be either a market maker or a Clearing Member that carries the joint
account.

(2) File and keep current a completed application on such form asis
prescribed by the Exchange.

(3) Bejointly and severaly responsible for assuring that the account
complies with al the Rules of the Exchange.

(4) Not be a market maker appointed to the same options classes to which
the joint account holder is also appointed as a market maker.

Rule 808. Letters of Guarantee

(@) Required of Each Market Maker. No market maker shall make any
transactions on the Exchange unless a Letter of Guarantee has been issued for such Member by a
Clearing Member and filed with the Exchange, and unless such Letter of Guarantee has not been
revoked pursuant to paragraph (c) of this Rule.

(b) Terms of Letter of Guarantee. A Letter of Guarantee shall provide that the
issuing Clearing Member accepts financial responsibilities for all Exchange Transactions made by
the guaranteed Member.

(c) Revocation of Letter of Guarantee. A Letter of Guarantee filed with the
Exchange shall remain in effect until awritten notice of revocation has been filed with the
Exchange. A revocation shal in no way relieve a Clearing Member of responsibility for
transactions guaranteed prior to the effective date of such revocation.

Rule 8009. Financial Requirementsfor Market Makers

() Primary Market Makers. Every Primary Market Maker shall maintain a cash
or liquid asset position equal to the greater of $5,000,000 or an amount sufficient to assume a
position of twenty (20) options contracts of each classin which such Primary Market Maker is
appointed (as computed on the basis of that series within each such class having the highest
current premium).

(b) Competitive Market Makers. Every Competitive Market Maker shall maintain a
cash or liquid asset position equal to the greater of $1,000,000 or an amount sufficient to assume
aposition of ten (10) options contracts in each class of options to which the Competitive Market
Maker is appointed (as computed on the basis of that series within each such class having the
highest current premium).
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(c) Each market maker that makes an arrangement to finance his transactions as a
market maker must identify to the Exchange the source of the financing and itsterms. The
Exchange must be informed immediately of the intention of any party to terminate or change any
such arrangement.

Rule 810. Limitations on Dealings

(a) General Rule. A market maker on the Exchange may engage in Other Business
Activities, or it may be affiliated with a broker-dealer that engages in Other Business Activities,
only if there is a Chinese Wall between the market making activities and the Other Business
Activities. "Other Business Activities' mean:

(1) conducting an investment or banking or public securities business,

(2) making markets in the stocks underlying the options in which it makes
markets; or

(3) functioning as an Electronic Access Member.

(b) Chinese Wall. For the purposes of this rule, a Chinese Wall isan
organizational structure in which:

(1) The market making functions are conducted in a physical location
separate from the locations in which the Other Business Activities are conducted, in a
manner that effectively impedes the free flow of communications between DTRs and
persons conducting the Other Business Activities. However, upon request and not on his
own initiative, aDTR performing the function of a market maker may furnish to a person
performing the function of an Electronic Access Member or other persons at the same firm
or an affiliated firm ("affiliated persons’), the same sort of market information that the
DTR would make available in the normal course of its market making activity to any other
person. The DTR must provide such information to affiliated persons in the same manner
that he would make such information available to a non-affiliated person.

(2) There are procedures implemented to prevent the use of material non-
public corporate or market information in the possession of persons on one side of the
wall from influencing the conduct of persons on the other side of the wall. These
procedures, at a minimum, must provide that:

() the DTR performing the function of a market maker does not
take advantage of knowledge of pending transactions, order flow information,
corporate information or recommendations arising from the Other Business
Activities, and

(i) all information pertaining to the market maker’s positions and

trading activities is kept confidential and not made available to persons on the
other side of the Chinese Wall.
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(3) Persons on one side of the wall may not exercise influence or control
over persons on the other side of the wall, provided that:

(i) the market making function and the Other Business Activities
may be under common management as long as any general management oversight
does not conflict with or compromise the market maker's responsibilities under the
Rules of the Exchange; and

(i) the same person or persons (the "Supervisor") may be
responsible for the supervision of the market making and Electronic Access
Member functions of the same firm or affiliated firmsin order to monitor the
overall risk exposure of the firm or affiliated firms. While the Supervisor may
establish general trading parameters with respect to both market making and other
proprietary trading other than on an order-specific basis, the Supervisor may not:

(A) actualy perform the function either of market maker or
Electronic Access Member;

(B) provide to any person performing the function of an
Electronic Access Member any information relating to market making
activity beyond the information that a DTR performing the function of a
Primary Market Maker may provide under subparagraph (b)(1), above; nor

(C) provide a DTR performing the function of market
maker with specific information regarding the firm's pending transactions
or order flow arising out of its Electronic Access Member activities.

(c) Documenting and Reporting of Chinese Wall Procedures. A Member
implementing a Chinese Wall pursuant to this Rule shall submit to the Exchange a written
statement setting forth:

(1) The manner in which it intends to satisfy the conditions in paragraph (b)
of this Rule, and the compliance and audit procedures it proposes to implement to ensure
that the Chinese Wall is maintained;

(2) The names and titles of the person or persons responsible for
maintenance and surveillance of the procedures,

(3) A commitment to provide the Exchange with such information and
reports as the Exchange may request relating to its transactions;

(4) A commitment to take appropriate remedial action against any person
violating this Rule or the Member's internal compliance and audit procedures adopted
pursuant to subparagraph (c)(1) of this Rule, and that it recognizes that the Exchange may
take appropriate remedial action, including (without limitation) reallocation of securitiesin
which it serves as a market maker, in the event of such aviolation;
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(5) Whether the Member or an affiliate intends to clear its proprietary
trades and, if so, the procedures established to ensure that information with respect to
such clearing activities will not be used to compromise the Member's Chinese Wall, which
procedures, at a minimum, must be the same as those used by the Member or the affiliate
to clear for unaffiliated third parties; and

(6) That it recognizes that any trading by a person while in possession of
material, non-public information received as aresult of the breach of the internal controls
required under this Rule may be a violation of Rules 10b-5 and 14e-3 under the Exchange
Act or one or more other provisions of the Exchange Act, the rules thereunder or the
Rules of the Exchange, and that the Exchange intends to review carefully any such trading
of which it becomes aware to determine whether a violation has occurred.

(d) Exchange Approval of Chinese Wall Procedures. The written statement
required by paragraph (c) of this Rule must detail the internal controls that the Member will
implement to satisfy each of the conditions stated in that Rule, and the compliance and audit
procedures proposed to implement and ensure that the controls are maintained. If the Exchange
determines that the organizational structure and the compliance and audit procedures proposed by
the Member are acceptable under this Rule, the Exchange shall so inform the Member, in writing.

Absent the Exchange finding a Member's Chinese Wall procedures acceptable, a market maker
may not conduct Other Business Activities.

(e) Clearing Arrangements. Subparagraph (c)(5) permits a Member or an affiliate
of the Member to clear the Member's market maker transactionsiif it establishes procedures to
ensure that information with respect to such clearing activities will not be used to compromise the
Chinese Wdll. In thisregard:

(1) The procedures must provide that any information pertaining to market
maker securities positions and trading activities, and information derived from any clearing
and margin financing arrangements, may be made available only to those employees (other
than employees actually performing clearing and margin functions) specifically authorized
under this Rule to have access to such information or to other employeesin senior
management positions who are involved in exercising general managerial oversight with
respect to the market making activity.

(2) Any margin financing arrangements must be sufficiently flexible so as
not to limit the ability of any market maker to meet market making or other obligations
under the Exchange's Rules.
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CHAPTER9

[Reserved for
Flexible Options]
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CHAPTER 10

Closing Transactions

Rule
1000. Contracts of Suspended Members

(8) When a Member, other than a Clearing Member, is suspended pursuant to
Chapter 15 (Summary Suspension), al open short positions of the suspended Member in options
contracts and all open positions resulting from exercise of options contracts, other than positions
that are secured in full by a specific deposit or escrow deposit in accordance with the rules of the
Clearing Corporation, shall be closed without unnecessary delay by all Member Organizations
carrying such positions for the account of the suspended Member; provided that the Exchange
may cause the foregoing requirement to be temporarily waived for such period as it may
determineif it shall deem such temporary waiver to be in the interest of the public or the other
Members of the Exchange.

(b) No temporary waiver hereunder by the Exchange shall relieve the suspended
Member of its obligations or of damages, nor shall it waive the close out requirements of any
other Rules.

(c) When a Clearing Member is suspended pursuant to Chapter 15 (Summary
Suspension) of these Rules, the positions of such Clearing Member shall be closed out in
accordance with the rules of the Clearing Corporation.

Rule1001. Failureto Pay Premium

(8) When the Clearing Corporation shall reject an Exchange transaction because of
the failure of the Clearing Member acting on behalf of the purchaser to pay the aggregate
premiums due thereon as required by the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, the Member acting as
or on behalf of the writer shall have the right either to cancel the transaction by giving notice
thereof to the Clearing Member or to enter into a closing writing transaction in respect of the
same options contract that was the subject of the rejected Exchange transaction for the account of
the defaulting Clearing Member.

(b) Such action shall be taken as soon as possible, and in any event not later than

10:00 A.M. on the business day following the day the Exchange transaction was rejected by the
Clearing Corporation.
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CHAPTER 11

Exercises and Deliveries
Rule 1100.  Exercise of Options Contracts

(a) Subject to the restrictions set forth in Rule 413 (Exercise Limits) and to such
restrictions as may be imposed pursuant to Rule 417 (Other Restrictions on Options Transactions
and Exercises) or pursuant to the Rules of the Clearing Corporation, an outstanding options
contract may be exercised during the time period specified in the Rules of the Clearing
Corporation by the tender to the Clearing Corporation of an exercise notice in accordance with
the Rules of the Clearing Corporation. An exercise notice may be tendered to the Clearing
Corporation only by the Clearing Member in whose account such options contract is carried with
the Clearing Corporation.

(b) The exercise cutoff time for all noncash-settled options shall be 5:30 p.m. Eastern
Time on the business day immediately prior to the expiration date. Thisisthe latest time at which
an exercise instruction for expiring noncash-settled options positions may be:

(2) prepared by a Clearing Member Organization for positionsin its proprietary
trading account;

(2) submitted to a Clearing Member Organization by a market maker or broker for
positions in the market maker's account or the broker's error account; or

(3) accepted by a Member Organization from any customer for its positions in the
customer's account.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Member Organizations may receive and Members may
submit exercise instructions after the exercise cutoff time but prior to expiration in the
circumstances listed below. A memorandum setting forth the circumstance giving rise to
instructions after the exercise cutoff time shall be maintained by the Member Organization and a
copy thereof shall be promptly filed with the Exchange. An exercise instruction after the exercise
cutoff may be received or submitted:

(1) in order to remedy mistakes or errors made in good faith;

(2) where exceptional circumstances relating to a customer's or Member's ability to
communicate exercise instructions to the Member Organization (or the Member
Organization's ability to receive exercise instructions) prior to such cutoff time warrant
such action.

(d) Submitting or preparing an exercise instruction after the exercise cutoff time in any

expiring options on the basis of material information released after the cutoff time is activity
inconsistent with just and equitable principles of trade.
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(e) For purposes of this Rule with respect to any Member Organization, the word
"customer" shall mean every person or organization other than a market maker, broker or the
Member Organization itself. The term "exercise instruction,” with respect to a market
maker, broker and Clearing Member, shall aso mean a notice either not to exercise an
options position which would otherwise be exercised, or to exercise an options position
which would otherwise not be exercised, by operation of the Rules of the Clearing
Corporation, or to modify or withdraw a previously submitted instruction. All exercise
instructions must be time stamped at the time they are prepared.

(f) No Member or Member Organization may prepare, time stamp or submit an
exercise instruction prior to the purchase of the exercised contracts if the Member or
Member Organization knew or had reason to know that the contracts had not yet been
purchased.

(g9) Clearing Members must follow the procedures of the Clearing Corporation when
exercising expiring noncash-settled equity options contracts. Members must also follow the
procedures set forth below with respect to the exercise of noncash-settled equity options
contracts which would otherwise not be exercised, or the nonexercise of contracts which
otherwise would be exercised, by operation of Clearing Corporation Rule 804:

(2) For all contracts so exercised or not exercised, a"contrary exercise
advice," must be delivered by the market maker, broker or clearing firm, as
applicable, in such form or manner prescribed by the Exchange no later than 5:30
p.m. Eastern Time.

(2) Subsequent to the delivery of a"contrary exercise advice," should the
market maker, broker, customer or firm determine to act other than as reflected on
the origina advice form, the market maker, broker, or clearing firm, as applicable,
must also deliver an "advice cancel,” in such form or manner prescribed by the
Exchange no later than 5:30 p.m. Eastern Time.

(3) Members shall properly communicate to the Exchange fina exercise
decisonsin respect of positions for which they are responsible.

(4) The preparation, time stamping or submission of a"contrary exercise
advise" prior to the purchase of the contracts to be exercised or not exercised shall be
deemed a violation of this Rule.

(5) All of the above procedures of this paragraph (g) arein full force and
effect whether or not the Clearing Corporation waives the exercise by exception
provisions of its Rule 804; in the event of such waiver the procedures of this
paragraph shall be followed asif such provisions of Clearing Corporation Rule 804
werein full force and effect. The Clearing Corporation rules may require the
submission of an affirmative exercise notice even in circumstances where a contrary
exercise advise is not submitted;
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(6) The failure of any Member to follow the procedures in this paragraph (g)
may result in the assessment of afine, which may include but is not limited to
disgorgement of potential economic gain obtained or loss avoided by the subject
exercise, as determined by the Exchange.

Rule1101. Allocation of Exercise Notices

(a) Each Member Organization shall establish fixed procedures for the alocation of
exercise notices assigned in respect of a short position in such Member Organization's
customers accounts. The alocation shall be on a"first in, first out,” or automated random
selection basis that has been approved by the Exchange, or on a manual random selection
basis that has been specified by the Exchange. Each Member Organization shall inform its
customers in writing of the method it uses to allocate exercise notices to its customers
account, explaining its manner of operation and the consequences of that system.

(b) Each Member Organization shall report its proposed method of allocation to the
Exchange and obtain the Exchange's prior approval thereof, and no Member Organization
shall change its method of allocation unless the change has been reported to and approved by
the Exchange. The requirements of this paragraph shall not be applicable to allocation
procedures submitted to and approved by another SRO having comparable standards
pertaining to methods of alocation.

(c) Each Member Organization shall preserve for athree-year period sufficient work
papers and other documentary materials relating to the allocation of exercise notices to
establish the manner in which allocation of such exercise noticesisin fact being
accomplished.

Rule1102. Delivery and Payment

(a) Delivery of the underlying security upon the exercise of an options contract, and
payment of the aggregate exercise price in respect thereof, shall be in accordance with the
Rules of the Clearing Corporation.

(b) As promptly as possible after the exercise of an options contract by a customer,
the Member Organization shall require the customer to make full cash payment of the
aggregate exercise price in the case of a call options contract, or to deposit the underlying
security in the case of a put options contract, or to make the required margin deposit in
respect thereof if the transaction is effected in a margin account, in accordance with the Rules
of the Exchange and the applicable regulations of the Federal Reserve Board.

(c) As promptly as practicable after the assignment to a customer of an exercise
notice the Member Organization shall require the customer to deposit the underlying security
in the case of a call options contract if the underlying security is not carried in the customer's
account, or to make full cash payment of the aggregate exercise price in the case of a put
options contract, or in either case to deposit the required margin in respect thereof if the
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transaction is effected in a margin account, in accordance with the Rules of the Exchange and
the applicable regulations of the Federal Reserve Board.
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CHAPTER 12

Margins
Rule1200. General Rule

No Member may effect a transaction or carry an account for a customer,
whether a Member or non-member of the Exchange, without proper and adequate margin in
accordance with this Chapter 12 and Regulation T.

Rule1201. TimeMargin Must Be Obtained

The amount of margin required by this Chapter shall be obtained as promptly
as possible and in any event within a reasonable time.

Rule1202. Margin Requirements

(&) A Member Organization must e ect to be bound by the initial and
mai ntenance margin requirements of either the Chicago Board of Options Exchange or the
New Y ork Stock Exchange as the same may be in effect from time to time.

(b) Such eection shall be made in writing by a notice filed with the Exchange.

(c) Upon the filing of such election, a Member Organization shall be bound to
comply with the margin rules of the Chicago board of Options Exchange or the New Y ork
Stock Exchange, as applicable, as though said rules were part of these Rules.

Rule1203. Meeting Margin Calls by Liquidation Prohibited

(&) No Member Organization shall permit a customer to make a practice of
effecting transactions requiring initial or additional margin or full cash payment and then
furnishing such margin or making such full cash payment by liquidation of the same or other
commitments.

(b) The provisions of this Rule shall not apply to any account maintained for
another broker or dealer in which are carried only the commitments of customers of such
other broker or dealer, exclusive of the partners, officers and directors of such other broker
or dealer, provided such other broker or dealer isa Member Organization of the Exchange or
has agreed in good faith with the Member Organization carrying the account that he will
maintain a record equivalent to that referred to in Rule 1205.
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Rule1204. Margin Required Is Minimum

(a) The amount of margin prescribed by these Rules is the minimum which
must be required initially and subsequently maintained with respect to each account affected
thereby; but nothing in these Rules shall be construed to prevent a Member Organization
from requiring margin in an amount greater than that specified.

(b) The Exchange may at any time impose higher margin requirements with
respect to such positions when it deems such higher margin requirements to be advisable.
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CHAPTER 13

Net Capital Requirements
Rule1300. Minimum Requirements

Each Member subject to Rule 15¢3-1 under the Exchange Act shall comply
with the capital requirements prescribed therein and with the additional requirements of this
Chapter 13. Market makers must also comply with the minimum financial requirements
contained in Rule 809.

Rule1301. "Early Warning" Notification Requirements

Every Member subject to the reporting or notification requirements of Rule
17a-11 under the Exchange Act or the "early warning" reporting, business restriction or
business reduction requirements of another national securities exchange, registered securities
association or registered securities clearing organization shall promptly notify the Exchange
in writing and shall thereafter file with the Exchange such reports and financial statements as
may be required by the Exchange.

Rule1302. Power of President to Impose Restrictions

Whenever it shall appear to the President of the Exchange that a Member
Organization obligated to give notice to the Exchange under Rule 1301 is unable within a
reasonable period to reduce the ratio of its aggregate indebtedness to net capital, or to
increase its net capital, to a point where it is no longer subject to such notification
obligations, or that such Member is engaging in any activity which casts doubt upon its
continued compliance with the net capital requirements, the President may impose such
conditions and restrictions upon the operations, business and expansion of such Member and
may require the submission of, and adherence to, such plan or program for the correction of
such situation as he determines to be necessary or appropriate for the protection of investors,
other Members and the Exchange.
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CHAPTER 14

Recor ds, Reportsand Audits

Rule
1400. Maintenance, Retention and Furnishing of Books, Records and Other
Information

(a) Each Member shall make, keep current and preserve such books and
records as the Exchange may prescribe and as may be prescribed by the Exchange Act and
the rules and regulations thereunder.

(b) No Member shall refuse to make available to the Exchange such books,
records or other information as may be called for under the Rules of the Exchange or as may
be requested in connection with an investigation by the Exchange.

Rule1401. Reportsof Uncovered Short Positions

(a) Upon request of the Exchange, each Member shall submit areport of the
total uncovered short positions in each options contract of a class dealt in on the Exchange
showing (i) positions carried by such Member for its own account and (ii) positions carried
by such Member for the accounts of customers; provided that the Members shall not report
positions carried for the accounts of other Members where such other Members report the
positions themsel ves.

(b) Such report shall be submitted not later than the second business day
following the date the request is made.

Rule 1402.  Financial Reports

Each Member shall submit to the Exchange answers to financia
guestionnaires, reports of income and expenses and additiona financial information in the
type, form, manner and time prescribed by the Exchange.

Rule1403. Audits

(a) Each Member Organization approved to do business with the public in
accordance with Chapter 6 of the Rules and each registered market maker shall file a report
of itsfinancial condition as of the date, within each calendar year, prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Rule 17a-5 and Form X-17A-5 under the Exchange Act and
containing the information called for by that form.

(1) The report of each Member approved to do business with the

public shal be certified by an independent public accountant, and on or before
January 10 of each year, each such Member shall notify the Exchange of the name of
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the independent public accountant appointed for that year and the date as of which
the report will be made.

(2) Such report of financial condition, together with answersto an
Exchange financia questionnaire based upon the report, shall be filed with the
Exchange no later than sixty (60) days after the date as of which the financial
condition of the Member is reported, or such other period as the Exchange may
individually require.

(b) A Member may file, in lieu of the report required in paragraph (a) of this
Rule, a copy of any financia statement which heis or has been required to file with any other
national securities exchange or national securities association of which he is a member, or
with any agency of any State as a condition of doing business in securities therein, and which
is acceptable to the Exchange as containing substantially the same information as Form X-
17A-5.

(c) In addition to the annual report required of certain Members pursuant to
paragraph (a) of this Rule, the Exchange may require any Member to cause an audit of its
financial condition to be made by an independent public accountant in accordance with the
audit requirements of Form X-17A-5 as of the date of an answer to afinancial questionnaire,
and to file a statement to the effect that such audit has been made and whether it isin accord
with the answers to the questionnaire.

(1) Such statement shall be signed by two general partnersin the case
of aMember Organization, by two executive officersin the case of a Member
corporation or by an individual Member and it shall be attested to by the independent
public accountant who certified the audit.

(2) The origina report of the audit signed by the independent public
accountant shall be retained as part of the books and records of the Member.

Rule1404. Automated Submission of Trade Data

A Member or Member Organization shall submit requested trade data
elements, in such automated format as may be prescribed by the Exchange from time to time,
in regard to atransaction(s) that is the subject of the particular request for information.

(a) If the transaction was a proprietary transaction effected or caused to be
effected by the Member or Member Organization for any account in which such Member or
Member Organization, or any approved person, partner, officer, director, or employee
thereof, isdirectly or indirectly interested, the Member shall submit or cause to be submitted,
any or all of the following information as requested by the Exchange:

(2) Clearing house number or alpha symbol as used by the Member or
the Member Organization submitting the data;
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(2) Clearing house number(s) or apha symbol(s) as may be used from
time to time, of the Member(s) or Member Organization(s) on the opposite side of
the transaction;

(3) Identifying symbol assigned to the security and where applicable
for the options month and series symbols;

(4) Date transaction was executed;

(5) Number of option contracts for each specific transaction and
whether each transaction was an opening or closing purchase or sale, aswell as.

(1) the number of sharestraded or held by accounts for which
options data is submitted,;

(i) where applicable, the number of shares for each specific
transaction and whether each transaction was a purchase, sale or short sae;

(6) Transaction price;

(7) Account number; and

(8) Market center where transaction was executed.

(b) If the transaction was effected or caused to be effected by the Member
Organization for any customer account, such Member Organization shall submit or cause to
be submitted any or al the following information as requested by the Exchange:

(1) Data elements (1) through (8) of paragraph (a) above;

(2) Customer name, address(es), branch office number, Representative
number, whether the order was discretionary, solicited or unsolicited, date the
account was opened and employer name and tax identification number(s); and

(3) If the transaction was effected for a Member broker-deal er
customer, whether the broker-dealer was acting as a principal or agent on the
transaction or transactions that are the subject of the Exchange's request.

(c) In addition to the above trade data elements, a Member or Member
Organization shall submit such other information in such automated format as may be
prescribed by the Exchange, as may from time to time be required.

(d) The Exchange may grant exceptions, in such cases and for such time

periods as it deems appropriate, from the requirement that the data elements prescribed in
paragraphs (a) and (b) above be submitted to the Exchange in an automated format.

107 ISE Chapter 14



Rule1405. Risk Analysisof Market Maker Accounts

(a) Each Clearing Member that clears or guarantees the transactions of market
makers pursuant to Rule 808, shall establish and maintain written procedures for assessing
and monitoring the potential risks to the Member Organization's capital over a specified
range of possible market movements of positions maintained in such market maker accounts
and such related accounts as the Exchange shall from time to time direct.

(2) Current procedures shall be filed and maintained with the
Exchange.

(2) The procedures shall specify the computations to be made, the
frequency of computations, the records to be reviewed and maintained and the
position(s) within the organization responsible for the risk management.

(b) Each affected Member shall at a minimum assess and monitor its potential
risk of loss from options market maker accounts each business day as of the close of business
the prior day through use of an Exchange-approved computerized risk analysis program,
which shall comply with at least the minimum standards specified below and such other
standards as from time to time may be prescribed by the Exchange:

(1) The estimated loss to the Clearing Member for each market maker
account (potential account deficit) shall be determined given the impact of broad
market movements in reasonable intervals over arange from negative fifteen percent
(15%) to positive fifteen percent (15%).

(2) The Member shall calculate volatility using a method approved by
the Exchange, with volatility updated at least weekly. The program must have the
capability of expanding volatility when projecting losses throughout the range of
broad market movements.

(3) Options prices shall be estimated through use of recognized
options pricing models such as, but not limited to, Black-Scholes and Cox-
Reubenstein.

(4) At aminimum, written reports shall be generated which describe
for each market scenario:

(i) projected loss per options class by account;
(i1) projected total loss per options class for al accounts; and

(iii) projected deficits per account and in aggregate.

108 ISE Chapter 14



(c) Upon direction by the Exchange, each affected Member Organization shall
provide to the Exchange such information as it may reasonably require with respect to the
Member Organization's risk analysis for any or al of its market maker accounts.

Rule 1406. Regulatory Cooperation

(a) The Exchange may enter into agreements that provide for the exchange of
information and other forms of mutual assistance for market surveillance, investigative,
enforcement and other regulatory purposes, with domestic SROs and foreign self-regulatory
organizations, as well as associations and contract markets and the regulators of such
markets.

(b) No Member, partner, officer, director or other person associated with a
Member or other person or entity subject to the jurisdiction of the Exchange shall refuse to
appear and testify before another exchange or self-regulatory organization in connection with
aregulatory investigation, examination or disciplinary proceeding or refuse to furnish
documentary materials or other information or otherwise impede or delay such investigation,
examination or disciplinary proceeding if the Exchange requests such information or
testimony in connection with an inquiry resulting from an agreement entered into by the
Exchange pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Rule, including but not limited to members and
affiliate of the Intermarket Surveillance Group. The requirements of this paragraph (b) shall
apply regardless whether the Exchange has itself initiated a form investigation or disciplinary
proceeding.

(c) Whenever information is requested by the Exchange pursuant to this Rule,
the Member or person associated with a Member from whom the information is requested
shall have the same rights and procedural protections in responding to such request as such
Member or person would have in the case of any other request for information initiated by
the Exchange pursuant to Rule 1601(d).
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CHAPTER 15

Summary Suspension
Rule1500. Imposition of Suspension

(&) A Member or person associated with a Member that has been expelled or
suspended from any SRO or barred or suspended from being associated with a member of
any SRO, or aMember that isin such financia or operating difficulty that the Exchange
determines that the Member cannot be permitted to continue to do business as a Member
with safety to investors, creditors, other Members, or the Exchange, may be summarily
suspended.

(b) The Exchange may limit or prohibit any person with respect to accessto
services offered by the Exchange if any of the criteria of the foregoing sentence is applicable
to such person or, in the case of a person who isaMember, if the Exchange determines that
such person does not meet the qualification requirements or other prerequisites for such
access with safety to investors, creditors, Members or the Exchange.

(c) In the event a determination is made to take summary action pursuant to
this Rule, notice thereof will be sent to the SEC.

(d) Any person aggrieved by any summary action taken under this Rule shall
be promptly afforded an opportunity for a hearing by the Exchange in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 (Hearing and Review).

(e) A summary suspension or other action taken pursuant to this Chapter shall
not be deemed to be disciplinary action under Chapter 16 (Discipline). The provisions of
Chapter 16 shall be applicable regardiess of any action taken pursuant to this Chapter.

Rule1501. Investigation Following Suspension

(a) Every Member or person associated with a Member against which action
has been taken in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter shall immediately afford
every facility required by the Exchange for the investigation of his or its affairs and shall
forthwith file with the Secretary a written statement covering all information requested,
including a complete list of creditors and the amount owing to each and a complete list of
each open long and short position in Exchange options contracts maintained by the Member
and each of his or its customers.

(b) Paragraph (@) includes, without limitation, the furnishing of such books

and records of the Member or person associated with a Member and the giving of such
sworn testimony as may be requested by the Exchange.
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Rule1502. Reinstatement
(a) General.

(2) A Member, person associated with a Member or other person
suspended or limited or prohibited with respect to access to services offered by the
Exchange under the provisions of this Chapter may apply for reinstatement within the
time period set forth below.

(2) Notice of an application for reinstatement shall be given by the
Secretary to the Membership and shall be posted by the Exchange at least five (5)
business days prior to the consideration by the Exchange of said application.

(3) The Exchange may approve an application for reinstatement if it
finds that the applicant is operationally and financially able to conduct his business
with safety to investors, creditors, Members, and the Exchange.

(b) Suspension Due to Operating Difficulty.

(1) An applicant that, by reason of operating difficulty, has been
suspended or limited or prohibited with respect to Exchange services, must file any
application for reinstatement within six months from the date of such action. Such
application must include a statement of all actions taken by the applicant to remedy
the operational difficulty in question.

(2) If the applicant fails to receive reinstatement, or if the application
is not acted upon ninety (90) days of its submission, the applicant shall be afforded an
opportunity for a hearing in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 (Hearing
and Review).

(c) Suspension Due to Financial Difficulty.

(2) An applicant who, by reason of financial difficulty, has been
suspended or limited or prohibited with respect to Exchange services, must file any
application for reinstatement within thirty (30) days of such action.

(2) Such application must include alist of al creditors of the applicant
a statement of the amount originally owing and the nature of the settlement in each
case, and such other information as may be requested by the Exchange.

(3) The Membership of a Member summarily suspended by reason of
financia difficulty may not be disposed of by the Exchange until that Member has
been afforded an opportunity for a hearing respecting such summary suspension
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 17 (Hearing and Review).
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Rule 1503. Failureto Obtain Reinstatement

If a Member suspended under the provisions of this Chapter fails or is unable
to apply for reinstatement in accordance with Rule 1502, or fails to obtain reinstatement as
therein provided, his or its Membership shall be disposed of by the Exchange in accordance
with Rule 310(b), unless such Member sdlls or |eases such Membership.

Rule1504. Termination of Rights by Suspension

A Member suspended under the provisions of this Chapter shall be deprived
during the term of his or its suspension of all rights and privileges of Membership.
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CHAPTER 16
Discipline
Rule1600. Disciplinary Jurisdiction

(@) A Member or a person associated with a Member (the "Respondent”) who is
alleged to have violated or aided and abetted a violation of any provision of the Exchange Act,
the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or any provision of the Constitution or Rules
of the Exchange or any interpretation thereof or resolution of the Board of the Exchange
regulating the conduct of business on the Exchange, shall be subject to the disciplinary
jurisdiction of the Exchange under this Chapter, and after notice and opportunity for a hearing
may be appropriately disciplined by expulsion, suspension, limitation of activities, functions,
and operations, fine, censure, being suspended or barred from being associated with a Member
or any other fitting sanction, in accordance with provisions of the Chapter.

(b) Anindividual Member, nominee or other person associated with a Member
Organization may be charged with any violation committed by employees under his supervision
or by the Member Organization with which he is associated, as though such violation were his
own. A Member Organization may be charged with any violation committed by its employees
or by a Member or other person who is associated with such Member Organization, as though
such violation were its own.

(c) Any Member or person associated with a Member shall continue to be
subject to the disciplinary jurisdiction of the Exchange following such person's termination of
membership or association with a Member with respect to matters that occurred prior to such
termination; provided that written notice of the commencement of an inquiry into such matters
is given by the Exchange to such former Member or former associated person within one (1)
year of receipt by the Exchange, or such other exchange or association recognized for
purposes of Rule 903, of the latest written notice of the termination of such person’s status as a
Member or person associated with aMember. The foregoing notice requirement does not
apply to a person who at any time after atermination again subjects himself to the disciplinary
jurisdiction of the Exchange by becoming a Member or a person associated with a Member.

Rule1601. Complaint and Investigation

(a) Initiation of Investigation. The Exchange shall investigate possible
violations within the disciplinary jurisdiction of the Exchange upon order of the Board, the
Business Conduct Committee, the President or other Exchange officials designated by the
President, or upon receipt of acomplaint aleging such violations filed by a Member or by any
other person aleging injury as aresult of such violations (the "Complainant"). All complaints
shall bein writing signed by the Complainant and shall specify in reasonable detail the facts
constituting the violation, including the specific statutes, by-laws, rules, interpretations or
resolutions allegedly violated.
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(b) Requirement to Furnish Information. Each Member and person associated
with a Member shall be obligated upon request by the Exchange to appear and testify, and to
respond in writing to interrogatories and furnish documentary materials and other information
requested by the Exchange in connection with (i) an investigation initiated pursuant to
paragraph (a) of this Rule, (ii) a hearing or appeal conducted pursuant to this Chapter or
preparation by the Exchange in anticipation of such a hearing or appeal, or (iii) an Exchange
inquiry resulting from an agreement entered into by the Exchange pursuant to Rule 1406.

(1) A Member or person associated with a Member is entitled to be
represented by counsel during any such Exchange investigation, proceeding or inquiry.

(2) No Member or person associated with a Member shall impede or
delay an Exchange investigation or proceeding conducted pursuant to this Chapter or
an Exchange inquiry pursuant to Rule 1406, nor refuse to comply with a request made
by the Exchange pursuant to this paragraph.

(3) Failure to furnish testimony, documentary evidence or other
information requested by the Exchange in the course of an Exchange inquiry,
investigation, hearing or appeal conducted pursuant to this Chapter, or in the course of
preparation by the Exchange in anticipation of such a hearing or appeal, on the date or
within the time period the Exchange specifies shall be deemed to be a violation of this
Rule.

(c) Report. In every instance where an investigation results in afinding that
there are reasonable grounds to believe that a violation has been committed, the Exchange staff
shall submit awritten report of its investigation to the Business Conduct Committee.

(d) Notice, Statement and Access. Prior to submitting its report, the staff shall
notify the person(s) who is the subject of the report (the "Subject") of the general nature of the
allegations and of the specific provisions of the Exchange Act, rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, or provisions of the Constitution or Rules of the Exchange or any
interpretation thereof or any resolution of the Board regulating the conduct of business on the
Exchange, that appear to have been violated. Except when the Committee determines that
expeditious action is required, a Subject shall have fifteen (15) days from the date of the
notification described above to submit a written statement to the Committee concerning why
no disciplinary action should be taken. To assist a Subject in preparing such awritten
statement, he shall have access to any documents and other materials in the investigative file of
the Exchange that were furnished by him or his agents.

Rule1602.  Expedited Proceeding

Upon receipt of the notification required by Rule 1601(d), a Subject may seek
to dispose of the matter through aletter of consent signed by the Subject.
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(a) If a Subject desires to attempt to dispose of the matter through aletter of consent,
the Subject must submit a written notice electing to proceed in an expedited manner pursuant to this
Rule within fifteen (15) days from the date of the notification required by Rule 1601(d).

(b) The Subject must then endeavor to reach agreement with the staff upon a letter of
consent that is acceptable to the staff and which sets forth a stipulation of facts and findings
concerning the Subject's conduct, the violation(s) committed by the Subject and the sanction(s)
therefor.

(c) The matter can only be disposed of through a letter of consent if the staff and the
Subject are able to agree upon terms of aletter of consent that are acceptable to the staff and the
letter is signed by the Subject.

(d) At any point in the negotiations regarding a letter of consent, the staff may deliver
to the Subject or the Subject may deliver to the staff awritten declaration of an end to the
negotiations. On delivery of such a declaration the Subject will then have fifteen (15) days to submit
awritten statement pursuant to Rule 1601(d) and thereafter the staff may bring the matter to the
Business Conduct Committee for appropriate action.

(e) In the event that the Subject and the staff are able to agree upon aletter of
consent, the staff shall submit the letter to the Business Conduct Committee. If the letter of consent
is accepted by the Business Conduct Committee, it may adopt the letter asits decision and shall take
no further action against the Subject respecting the matters that are the subject of the letter. If the
letter of consent is rejected by the Business Conduct Committee, the matter shall proceed as though
the letter had not been submitted. The Business Conduct Committee's decision to accept or reject a
letter of consent shall be final, and a Subject may not seek review thereof.

Rule1603. Charges

(a) Determination Not to Initiate Charges. Whenever it shall appear to the Business
Conduct Committee from the report of the staff of the Exchange that no probable cause exists for
finding a violation within the disciplinary jurisdiction of the Exchange, or whenever the Committee
otherwise determines that no further action is warranted, it shall issue a written statement to that
effect setting forth its reasons for such finding, which shall be sent to the Subject and the
Complainant, if any.

(b) Initial of Charges. Whenever it shall appear to the Business Conduct Committee
from the report of the staff of the Exchange that there is probable cause for finding a violation within
the disciplinary jurisdiction of the Exchange and that further proceedings are warranted, the Business
Conduct Committee shall direct the staff of the Exchange to prepare a statement of charges against
the person or organization alleged to have committed a violation (the "Respondent™) specifying the
acts in which the Respondent is charged to have engaged and setting forth the specific provisions of
the Exchange Act, rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, provisions of the Constitution or
Rules of the Exchange, or interpretations or resolutions of which such acts are in violation. A copy
of the charges shall be served upon the Respondent in accordance with Rule 1611. The
Complainant, if any, shall be notified if further proceedings are warranted.
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(c) Access to Documents. Provided that a Respondent has made a written request for
access to documents described hereunder with sixty (60) calendar days after a statement of charges
has been served upon the Respondent in accordance with Rule 1611, the Respondent shall have
access to all documents concerning the case that are in the investigative file of the Exchange except
for staff investigation and examination reports and materials prepared by the staff in connection with
such reports or in anticipation of adisciplinary hearing. In providing such documents, the staff may
protect the identity of a Complainant.

(d) Ex Parte Communication. No Member or person associated with a Member shall
make or knowingly cause to be made an ex parte communication with any member of the Business
Conduct Committee concerning the merits of any matter pending under this Chapter. No member of
the Business Conduct Committee shall make or knowingly cause to be made an ex parte
communication with any Member or any person associated with a Member concerning the merits of
any matter pending under this Chapter.

(1) "Ex parte communication” means an oral or written communication made
without notice to all parties, that is, regulatory staff and Subjects of investigations or
Respondents in proceedings.

(2) A written communication is ex parte unless a copy has been previoudly or
simultaneoudly delivered to al interested parties. An oral communication is ex parte unlessit
ismade in the presence of all interested parties except those who, on adequate prior notice,
declined to be present.

Rule1604. Answer

The Respondent shall have fifteen (15) days after service of the chargesto filea
written answer thereto. The answer shall specifically admit or deny each allegation contained in the
charges, and the Respondent shall be deemed to have admitted any allegation not specifically denied.
The answer may aso contain any defense that the Respondent wishes to submit and may be
accompanied by documents in support of his answer or defense. In the event the Respondent fails to
file an answer, the charges shall be considered to be admitted.

Rule1605. Hearing

(a) Participants. Subject to Rule 1606 of this Chapter concerning summary
proceedings, a hearing on the charges shall be held before one or more members of the Business
Conduct Committee (the "Panel") or other persons designated by the Exchange. The Exchange
and the Respondent shall be the parties to the hearing. Where a Member Organization is a party, it
shall be represented by one of its Members (including nominees) at the hearing.

(b) Notice and List of Documents. Parties shall be given at least fifteen (15) days
notice of the time and place of the hearing. Not less than five (5) business days in advance of the
scheduled hearing date, each party shall furnish to the Panel and to the other parties copies of all
documentary evidence such party intends to present at the hearing. Where time and the nature of
the proceeding permit, the parties shall meet in a pre-hearing conference for the purpose of
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clarifying and simplifying issues and otherwise expediting the proceeding. At such pre-hearing
conference, the parties shall attempt to reach agreement respecting authenticity of documents,
facts not in dispute, and any other items that will serve to expedite the hearing of the matter.

(c) Intervention. Any person not otherwise a party may intervene as a party to the
hearing upon demonstrating to the satisfaction of the Panel that he has an interest in the subject of
the hearing and that the disposition of the matter may, as a practical matter, impair or impede his
ability to protect that interest. Also, the Panel may in its discretion permit a person to intervene
as a party to the hearing when the person’s claim or defense and the main action have questions of
law or fact in common. Any person wishing to intervene as a party to a hearing shal file with the
Panel a notice requesting the right to intervene, stating the grounds therefor, and setting forth the
claim or defense for which intervention is sought. The Panel, in exercising its discretion
concerning intervention shall take into consideration whether the intervention will unduly delay or
prejudice the adjudication of the rights of the original parties.

(d) Conduct of Hearing. The Panel shall determine al questions concerning the
admissibility of evidence and shall otherwise regulate the conduct of the hearing. Formal rules of
evidence shall not apply. The charges shall be presented by a representative of the Exchange
who, along with Respondent and any other party, may present evidence and produce witnesses
who shall testify under oath and are subject to being questioned by the Panel and the other parties.
The Panel may request the production of documentary evidence and witnesses. No Member or
person associated with a Member shall refuse to furnish relevant testimony, documentary
materials or other information requested by the Panel during the course of the hearing. The
Respondent and intervening parties are entitled to be represented by counsel who may participate
fully in the hearing. A transcript of the hearing shall be made and shall become part of the
records.

Rule 1606. Summary Proceedings

Notwithstanding the provision of Rule 1605 of this Chapter, the Business Conduct
Committee may make a determination without a hearing and may impose a penalty as to
violations that the Respondent has admitted or has failed to answer or that otherwise do not
appear to be in dispute.

(a) Notice of such summary determination, specifying the violations and penalty,
shall be served upon the Respondent, who shall have ten (10) days from the date of service to
notify the Business Conduct Committee that he desires a hearing upon al or a portion of any
charges not previously admitted or upon the penalty. Failure to so notify the Business Conduct
Committee shall constitute admission of the violations and acceptance of the penalty as
determined by the Business Conduct Committee and a waiver of al rights of review.

(b) If the Respondent requests a hearing, the matters that are the subject of the
hearing shall be handled asif the summary determination had not been made.

Rule1607. Offersof Settlement
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(@) Submission of Offer. At any time during a period not to exceed 120 calendar
days immediately following the date of service of a statement of charges upon the Respondent in
accordance with Rule 1611, the Respondent may submit to the Business Conduct Committee a
written offer of settlement, signed by him, which shall contain a proposed stipulation of facts and
shall consent to a specified sanction.

(1) Where the Business Conduct Committee accepts an offer of settlement,
it shall issue adecision, including findings and conclusions and imposing a sanction,
consistent with the terms of such offer.

(2) Where the Business Conduct Committee rejects an offer of settlement,
it shall notify the Respondent and the matter shall proceed as if such offer had not been
made, and the offer and all documents relating thereto shall not become a part of the
record.

(3) A decision of the Business Conduct Committee issued upon acceptance
of an offer of settlement, as well as the determination of the Committee whether to accept
or rglect such an offer, shall be final, and the Respondent may not seek review thereof.

(4) A Respondent shall be entitled to submit to the Business Conduct
Committee a maximum of two (2) written offers of settlement in connection with the
statement of charges issued to that Respondent pursuant to Rule 1603(b), unless the
Business Conduct Committee, in its discretion, permits a Respondent to submit additional
offers of settlement.

(5) The 120-day period specified in section (a) shall be tolled during the
number of daysin excess of seven (7) calendar days that it takes staff of the Exchange to
provide access in response to a Respondent's request for access to documents provided
that the request for access is made pursuant to the provisions and within the time frame
provided in Rule 1603(c).

(6) Subject to Rule 1606, following the end of the 120-day period or after
the Business Conduct Committee's rejection of a Respondent's second offer of settlement,
a hearing will be scheduled and the hearing will proceed in accordance with the provisions
of Rule 1605.

(b) Submission of Statement. A Respondent may submit with an offer of settlement
awritten statement in support of the offer. In addition, if the staff will not recommend acceptance
of an offer of settlement before the Business Conduct Committee, a Respondent shall be notified
and may appear before the Committee to make an oral statement in support of his offer. Finaly,
if the Business Conduct Committee rejects an offer that the staff supports, a Respondent may
appear before that Committee to make an oral statement concerning why he believes the
Committee should change its decision and accept his offer. A Respondent must make a request
for such an appearance within five (5) days of his being notified that his offer was rejected or that
staff will not recommend acceptance.
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Rule1608. Decision

(a) Following a hearing conducted pursuant to Rule 1605, the Panel shall issue a
decision in writing, based solely on the record, determining whether the Respondent has
committed a violation and imposing the sanction, if any, therefor.

(b) When the Panel is not composed of at least amgjority of the members of the
Business Conduct Committee, its determination shall be automatically reviewed by a mgority of
the Committee, which may affirm, reverse or modify in whole or in part or may remand the matter
for additiona findings or supplemental proceedings. Such modification may include an increase
or decrease of the sanction.

(c) The decision shall include a statement of findings and conclusions, with the
reasons therefor, upon all material issues presented on the record. Where a sanction is imposed,
the decision shall include a statement specifying the acts or practices in which the Respondent has
been found to have engaged and setting forth the specific provisions of the Exchange Act, rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder, provisions of the Constitution or Rules of the Exchange,
interpretations or resolutions of the Exchange of which the acts are deemed to be in violation.

(d) The Respondent shall be sent a copy of the decision promptly after it is
rendered.

Rule1609. Review

(a) Petition. The Respondent shall have fifteen (15) days after serve of notice of a
decision made pursuant to Rule 1608 of this Chapter to petition for review thereof. Such petition
shall be in writing and shall specify the findings and conclusions to which exceptions are taken,
together with reasons for such exceptions. Any objections to a decision not specified by written
exception shall be considered to have been abandoned.

(b) Motion of Board. The Board may on its own initiative order review of a
decision made pursuant to Rule 1606 or 1608 of this Chapter within thirty (30) days after notice
of the decision has been served on the Respondent.

(c) Conduct of Review. The review shall be conducted by the Board or a
committee of the Board composed of at |east three Directors whose decision must be ratified by
the Board.

(2) Any Director who participated in a matter before the Business Conduct
or other Committee may not participate in review of that matter by the Board.

(2) Unless the Board shall decide to open the record for the introduction of

evidence or to hear argument, such review shall be based solely upon the record and the
written exceptions filed by the parties.
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(3) New issues may be raised by the Board, and in such event, Respondents
shall be given notice of an opportunity to address any such new issues.

(d) Determination. The Board may affirm, reverse or modify, in whole or in part,
the decision of the Business Conduct Committee. Such modification may include an increase or
decrease of the sanction. The decision of the Board shall be in writing, shall be promptly served
on the Respondent, and shall be final.

(e) Review of Decision Not to Initiate Charges. Upon application made by the
President within thirty (30) days of a decision made pursuant to Rule 1603(a), the Board may
order review of such decision.

Rule1610.  Judgment and Sanction

() Sanctions. Members and persons associated with Members shall (subject to any
rule or order of the SEC) be appropriately disciplined by the Business Conduct Committee for
violations under these Rules by expulsion, suspension, limitation of activities, functions and
operations, fine, censure, being suspended or barred from being associated with a Member, or any
other fitting sanction.

(b) Effective Date of Judgment. Sanctions imposed under this Chapter shall not
become effective until the Exchange review process is completed or the decision otherwise
becomes final. Pending effectiveness of a decision imposing a sanction on the Respondent, the
Business Conduct Committee may impose such conditions and restrictions on the activities of the
Respondent as the Committee considers reasonably necessary for the protection of investors and
the Exchange.

Rule1611.  Service of Notice

Any charges, notices or other documents may be served upon the Respondent
either personaly or by leaving the same at his place of business or by deposit in the United States
post office, postage prepaid viaregistered or certified mail addressed to the Respondent at his
address as it appears on the books and records of the Exchange.

Rule1612. Extension of Time Limits

Any time limits imposed under this Chapter for the submission of answers,

petitions or other materials may be extended by permission of the authority at the Exchange to or
by whom such materials are to be submitted.
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Rule1613. Reporting to the Central Registration Depository

(a) With respect to formal Exchange disciplinary proceedings, the Exchange shall
report to the CRD the issuance of a statement of charges pursuant to Exchange Rule 1603(b) and
all significant changesin the status of such proceedings while such proceedings are pending.

(b) For purposes of reporting to the CRD:

(2) A formal Exchange disciplinary proceeding shall be considered to be
pending from the time that a statement of chargesisissued in such proceeding pursuant to
Exchange Rule 1603(b) until the outcome of the proceeding becomes final.

(2) An Exchange disciplinary proceeding shall be considered to be aformal
disciplinary proceeding if it isinitiated by the Exchange pursuant to Rule 1601.

(3) Significant changesin the status of aformal Exchange disciplinary
proceeding shall include, but not be limited to, the scheduling of a disciplinary hearing, the
issuance of adecision by the Business Conduct Committee, the filing of an appeal to the
Board of Directors of the Exchange, and the issuance of adecision by the Board of
Directors of the Exchange.

Rule1614. Imposition of Finesfor Minor Rule Violations

(a) General. In lieu of commencing a disciplinary proceeding pursuant to
Exchange Rule 1601, the Exchange may, subject to the requirements set forth herein, impose a
fine, not to exceed $5,000, on any Member, Member Organization, or person associated with or
employed by a Member or Member Organization, with respect to any Rule violation listed in
section (g) of this Rule. Any fine imposed pursuant to this Rule that (i) does not exceed $2,500
and (ii) is not contested, shall be reported on a periodic basis, except as may otherwise be
required by Rule 19d-1 under the Exchange Act or by any other regulatory authority. The
Exchange is not required to impose a fine pursuant to this Rule with respect to the violation of
any Rule included in herein, and the Exchange may, whenever it determines that any violation is
not minor in nature, proceed under Exchange Rule 1601, rather than under this Rule.

(b) Notice. Any person against whom afine isimposed under this Rule shall be
served with awritten statement setting forth (i) the Rule(s) alegedly violated; (ii) the act or
omission constituting each such violation; (iii) the fine imposed for each violation; and (iv) the
date by which such determination becomes final and such fine must be paid or contested as
provided below, which date shall be not less than thirty (30) days after the date of service of such
written statement.

(c) Review. Any person against whom afine isimposed pursuant this Rule may

contest the Exchange's determination by filing with the Office of the Secretary of the Exchange a
written answer as provided in Exchange Rule 1604 on or before the date such fine must be paid.
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(1) Upon the receipt of an answer by the Exchange the matter becomes
subject to review by the Business Conduct Committee.

(2) The answer must include arequest for a hearing, if ahearing is
desired. Hearings will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Exchange Rule
1605. If ahearing is not requested, the review will be based on written submissions and
will be conducted in a manner to be determined by the Business Conduct Committee.

(3) If, after ahearing or review based on written submissions pursuant to
subsection (c)(1) of this Rule, the Business Conduct Committee determines that the
person charged is guilty of the rule violation(s) alleged, the Committee may impose any
one or more of the disciplinary sanctions authorized by the Exchange's Constitution and
Rules. Unless the sole disciplinary sanction imposed by the Committee for such rule
violation(s) isafinethat is less than the total fine initially imposed by the Exchange for
the subject violation(s), the person charged shall pay aforum fee shall in the amount of
$100 if the determination was reached without a hearing and $300 if a hearing was
conducted.

(4) The staff, the person charged or the Board of Directors on its own
motion may require areview of any determination by the Business Conduct Committee
under this Rule by proceeding in the manner described in Rule 1609. Where such review
is requested by the staff, it shall have the same rights as a Respondent under Exchange
Rule 1609.

(5) In the event that a fine imposed pursuant to this Rule is subsequently
upheld by the Business Conduct Committee or, if applicable, on appeal, such fine, plus all
interest that has accrued thereon since the fine was due and any forum fee imposed
pursuant to subparagraph (3) above, shall be immediately payable.

(d) Violations Subject to Fines. The following is alist of the rule violations
subject to, and the applicable fines that may be imposed by the Exchange pursuant to, this Rule:

(1) Position Limits (Rule 411). Violations of the position limit rule that
continue over consecutive business days will be subject to a separate fine, pursuant to
subsection (g)(1) of this Rule, for each day during which the violation occurs and is
continuing. For purposes of subsection (g)(1)(a), all accounts of non-member broker-
dealers will be treated as customer accounts. In calculating fine thresholds under
subsection (g)(1)(a) for each Exchange Member, al violations occurring within asingle
calendar year in al of that Member's non-member customer accounts are to be added
together.

(A) For violations of Rule 411 occurring in the accounts of non-
Member (i.e., customers that are not Exchange Members), the Member shall be
subject to fines as follows, with a minimum fine amount of $100:

Number of Cumulative Violations
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Within One Calendar Year Fine Amount

1to 6 (up to 5% in excess

of gpplicable limit) Letter of Caution
1 to 6 (above 5% in excess

of applicable limit) $1 per contract
7t012 $1 per contract over limit
13 or more $5 per contract over limit

(B) For violations occurring in a Member's account (i.e.,
proprietary accounts and accounts of other Exchange Members), the Member
whose account exceeded the limits shall be subject to fines as follows, with a
minimum fine amount of $100:

Number of Violations
Within One Calendar Year Fine Amount

1to 3 (up to 5% in excess

of gpplicable limit) Letter of Caution
1 to 3 (above 5% in excess

of applicable limit) $1 per contract
4t06 $1 per contract over limit
7 or more $5 per contract over limit

(2) Focus Reports (Rule 1403).Each Member shal file with the Exchange a
report of financial condition on SEC Form X-17A-5 asrequired by Rule 17a-10 under
the Exchange Act. Any Member who failsto file in atimely manner

123 ISE Chapter 16



such report of financial condition pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 17a-10 shall be subject

to the following fines:

Days Late

31to 60

61 to 90

90 or more

Sanction

$800

Referral to Business

Conduct Committee

(3) Requests for Trade Data (Rule 1404). Any Member who fails to respond

within ten (10) daysto a request by the Exchange for submission of trade data shall be

subject to the following fines:

Days Late

10to 15
16 to 30

30 or more

Referral to Business
Conduct Committee

Any Member who violates this Rule more than one (1) time in any caendar year shal be
subject to the following fines, which fines shall be imposed in addition to any sanction

imposed pursuant to the schedule above:

Number of Violations
Within One Calendar Year

2nd Offense
3rd Offense
4th Offense

Subsequent Offenses
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Fine Amount

$1,000
$2,500

Referral to Business
Conduct Committee
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(3) Conduct and Decorum Policies. The Exchange's trading conduct and
decorum policies shal be distributed to the membership periodically and shall set forth
the specific dollar amounts that may be imposed as a fine hereunder with respect to any
violations of those policies.

(4) Order Entry (Rule 717). Violations of Rule 717(a), (c)-(e) regarding
limitations on orders entered into the System by Electronic Access Members, aswell as
violations of Rule 805(b)(1)(i) regarding restrictions on orders entered by market makers,
will be subject to the fines listed below. Each paragraph of Rule 717 subject to this Rule
shall be treated separately for purposes of determining the number of cumulative
violations.

Number of Cumulative Violations

Within Rolling Sx-Month Period Fine Amount
""""" 105  LeterofCamion
6to 10 $500
11to 15 $1,000
16 to 20 $2,000
Over 20 Referral to Business

Conduct Committee

(5) Quotation Parameters (Rule 803). Violations of Rule 803(b)(4)
regarding spread parameters for market maker quotations shall be subject to the fines
listed below. For purposes of this Rule, the spread parameters in Rule 803(b)(4) will not
be violated upon a change in abid (offer) if a market maker takes immediate action to
adjust his offer (bid) to comply with the maximum allowable spread. Except in unusual
market conditions, immediate shall mean within five (5) seconds of a change in the
market makers bid or offer.

Number of Cumulative Violations

Within Rolling Sx-Month Period Fine Amount
""""" 11015 LeterofCasion
16 to 25 $200
26t0 35 $400
36t0 40 $800
Over 40 Referral to Business
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Conduct Committee

(6) Execution of Ordersin Appointed Options (Rule 805). Violations of
Rule 805(b) and (c) requiring market makers to execute in appointed options classes a
minimum percentage of the total number of contracts executed during a quarter shall be
subject to the following fines:

Number of Violations

Within Rolling Twelve-Month Period Fine Amount
1st Offense (within 85%
of requirement) Letter of Caution

2nd Offense (not within 85%

of requirement) $400
3rd Offense $800
4th Offense $1,200
Subsequent Offenses Referral to Business

Conduct Committee

Rule1615. Contracting Responsibilities

The Exchange may contract with another SRO to perform some or al of the
Exchange's disciplinary functions. In that event, the Exchange shall specify to what extent the
Rulesin this Chapter shall govern Exchange disciplinary actions and to what extent the rules of
the other SRO shall govern such actions. Notwithstanding the fact that the Exchange may
contract with another SRO to perform some or al of the Exchange's disciplinary functions, the
Exchange shall retain ultimate legal responsibility for and control of such functions.
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CHAPTER 17

Hearings and Review

Rule1700.  Scope of Chapter

This Chapter provides the procedure for persons economically aggrieved by
Exchangeaction, including, but not limited to, those persons or organizationswho have been denied
membership, barred from becoming associated with aMember, or prohibited or limited with respect
to Exchange services, or the services of any Exchange Member, taken pursuant to any contractual
arrangement, the Constitution or the Rules of the Exchange, to apply for an opportunity to be heard
and to have the complained of action reviewed. Review of disciplinary actions and arbitrations are
not subject to review under this Chapter.

Rule1701. Submission of Application to Exchange

(a) The Application. A person whoisaggrieved by any action of the Exchangewithin
the scope of this Chapter and who desires to have an opportunity to be heard with respect to such
action shall file awritten application within thirty (30) days after such action has been taken. The
application shall state the action complained of and the specific reasons why the applicant takes
exception to such action and therelief sought. The application should indicate whether the applicant
intends to submit any documents, statements, arguments or other material in support of the
application, and describe any such materials.

(b) Extensions of Time to File Applications. An application that is not filed within
the time specified in paragraph (a) of this Rule shall not be considered by the Business Conduct
Committee unless the applicant files his application within such extension of time as allowed by the
Chairman of such Committee. Inorder to obtain an extension of timewithin which to file an apped,
the applicant must, within the time specified in paragraph (&) of this Rule, file an application for an
extension of time within which to submit the application. Such an application for an extension will
be ruled upon by the Chairman of the Business Conduct Committee, and hisruling will be givenin
writing. Rulings on applications for extensions of time are not subject to appedl.

Rule1702.  Procedure Following Applicationsfor Hearing

(@) Panel. Applications for hearing and review shall be referred to the Business
Conduct Committee, which shall appoint a hearing panel of no less than three (3) members of such
Committee. A record of the proceedings shall be kept.

(b) Documents. The panel so appointed will set a hearing date and shall be furnished
with al material relevant to the proceeding at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the date of the
hearing. Each party shall have the right to inspect and copy the other party's material prior to the
hearing.
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(c) Notice. Partiesto the proceeding shall beinformed of the composition of the panel
at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the scheduled hearing.

Rule1703. Hearing

(a) Participants. The parties to the hearing shall consist of the applicant and a
representative of the Exchange who shall present the reasons for the action taken by the Exchange
that alegedly aggrieved the applicant. In addition, any other person may intervene asaparty in the
hearing when the person claims an interest in the transaction that is the subject of the action and is
so situated that the disposition of the action may, asapractical matter impair or impede that person's
ability to protect that interest unlessit is adequately represented by existing parties. Also, the panel
may, in its discretion, permit a person to intervene in the action as a party when the person’'s clam
or defense and the main action have aquestion of law and fact in common. The applicant isentitled
to be accompanied, represented and advised by counsel at all stages of the proceeding.

(b) Procedurefor Intervention. The person seeking intervention shall serveamotion
to intervene on the Secretary, which will be transmitted to the panel. The motion shall state the
grounds therefor and shall set forth the claim or defense upon which the intervention is sought.

(c) Conduct of Hearing. The panel shall determine all questions concerning the
admissibility of evidence and shall otherwise regulate the conduct of the hearing. Each of the parties
shall be permitted to make an opening statement, present witnesses and documentary evidence,
Cross-examine opposing witnesses and present closing arguments orally or in writing as determined
by the panel. The panel shall also have the right to question all parties and witnesses to the
proceeding and a record shall be kept. The formal rules of evidence shall not apply.

(d) Decison. The hearing panel's decision shall be made in writing and shall be sent
to the partiesto the proceedings. Such decision shall contain the reasons supporting the conclusions
of the panel.

Rule1704. Review

() Petition. Thedecision of the hearing panel shall be subject toreview by the Board,
either on its own motion within thirty (30) days after issuance, upon written request submitted by
the applicant below, by the President of the Exchange, within fifteen (15) days after issuance of the
decision. Such petition shall be in writing and shall specify the findings and conclusions to which
exceptions are taken together with the reasons for such exceptions. Any objection to adecision not
specified by written exception shall be considered to have been abandoned and may be disregarded.
Parties may petition to submit a written argument to the Board and may request an opportunity to
make an oral argument before the Board. The Board, or a committee of the Board, will have sole
discretion to grant or deny either request.

(b) Conduct of Review. The review shall be conducted by the Board or aCommittee
of the Board composed of at least three (3) Directors. Any Director who participated in a matter
before it was appealed to the Board shall not participate in any review action by the Board
concerning that matter. The review shall be made upon the record and shall be made after such
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further proceedings, if any, asthe Board or its designated committee may order. An applicant shall
be given notice of and a chance to address any issues raised by the Board on its own initiative.

(c) Decision. Based upon the record, the Board or its designated Committee may
affirm, reverse or modify in whole or in part, the decision of the hearing panel. The decision of the
Board or its designated committee shall be in writing, shall be sent to the parties to the proceeding,
and shdl befinal.

Rule1705. Miscellaneous Provisions

() Service of Notice. Any notices or other documents may be served upon the
applicant either personaly or by leaving the same at his place of business or by deposit in the United
States post office, postage prepaid viaregistered or certified mail addressed to the applicant at his
last known business or residence address.

(b) Extension of Time Limits. Any time limits imposed under this Chapter for the
submission of answers, petitions or other materials may be extended by permission of the Secretary
of the Exchange. All papersand documentsrelating to review by the Business Conduct Committee,
the Board or its designated committee must be submitted to the Secretary of the Exchange.

Rule1706. Contracting Responsibilities

The Exchange may contract with another SRO to perform some or al of the
functions specified in thisChapter. Inthat event, the Exchange shall specify to what extent the Rules
inthis Chapter shall govern review of Exchange actions and hearings under this Chapter and to what
extent the rules of the other SRO shall govern such activities. Notwithstanding the fact that the
Exchange may contract with another SRO to perform someor all these functions, the Exchange shall
retain ultimate legal responsibility for and control of such functions.
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CHAPTER 18

Arbitration

Rule1800. Matters Subject to Arbitration

(a) Any dispute, claim or controversy arising between parties who are Members
or persons associated with a Member that arises out of the Exchange business of such parties
shall, at the request of any such party and the approval of the Exchange's Director of Arbitration,
be submitted for arbitration in accordance with these rules.

(b) Any dispute, claim or controversy arising between a non-member and a
Member or persons associated with a Member that arises out of the Exchange business of such
Member or a person associated with a Member shall, at the request of such non-member and the
approval of the Exchange's Director of Arbitration, be submitted for arbitration in accordance
with these rules.

(c) If aparty to adispute, in an Answer, Reply or other written response to a
request for arbitration, has challenged the appropriateness of submitting a matter to arbitration
under this Chapter, the Director of Arbitration shall serve upon the parties written notice of his
decision to accept or reject the matter for arbitration.

(1) The decision by the Director of Arbitration to accept or reject a matter
for arbitration shall, at the request of any party to the dispute, be subject to review by the
Board of Directors or a panel of the Board composed of at least three Directors.

(2) Requests for review must be submitted in writing to the Secretary of
the Exchange within ten calendar days from receipt of notice of the Director of
Arbitration's decision.

(d) The arbitration provisions of this Chapter shall not constitute a prospective
waiver of any right of action that may arise under the federal securities laws.

(e) For purposes of this Chapter, the terms Member and a person associated with
aMember shall be deemed to encompass those persons who were former Exchange Members or
persons associated with a Member.

(f) It may be deemed conduct inconsistent with just and equitable principles of
trade for a Member or a person associated with a Member to fail to submit a dispute for
arbitration on demand under the provisions of this Chapter, or to fail to provide any document in
his possession or control as directed pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter or to fail to honor
an award of arbitrators properly rendered pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter where a
timely motion has not been made to vacate or modify such award pursuant to applicable law.
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Rule1801. Procedurein Member Controversies

The following procedures shall apply in any dispute, claim or controversy
between parties who are Members or persons associated with a Member which is submitted for
arbitration pursuant to Rule 1800(a):

(a) Selection of Arbitrators. The arbitration panel shall be selected by the Director
of Arbitration and shall consist of not less than three members of the Arbitration Committee.

(b) Challenges. Each party to the dispute may peremptorily challenge any person
appointed to the arbitration panel. There shall be no fixed limit on the number of peremptory
challenges by a party; however, no party may assert an unreasonable number of challenges. The
Director of Arbitration shall deny peremptory challenges if both the Director of Arbitration and
the Chairman of the Arbitration Committee agree that the number of such challenges by a party
has been unreasonable. Unless extended by the Director of Arbitration, a party wishing to
exercise a peremptory challenge must do so by notifying the Director of arbitration in writing
within five (5) business days of notification of the identity of the person(s) named under Rule
1811 or Rule 1822 (d) or (e), whichever comesfirst. There shall be unlimited challenges for
cause.

(c) General. Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Rule, the other Rules of
Chapter 18 shall apply to arbitrations between Members except for those provisions specifically
applicable to arbitrations involving Public Customers.

Uniform Arbitration Code
Rule1802. Arbitration

(@) Any dispute, claim or controversy between a customer or non-member and a
Member and/or associated person arising in connection with the business of such Member and/or
associated person in connection with his activities as an associated person shall be arbitrated under
the Rules of the Exchange, as provided by any duly executed and enforceable written agreement or
upon the demand of the customer or non-member.

(b) Under this Uniform Arbitration Code (the "Code"), the Director of Arbitration
shall have the right to decline the use of its arbitration facilities in any dispute, claim or controversy
where, having the due regard for the purposes of the Exchange and the intent of this Code, such
dispute, claim or controversy is not a proper subject matter for arbitration. Any determination by
the Director of Arbitration in this regard is subject to review as provided in Rule 1800(c)

(c) Claims which arise out of transactions in areadily identifiable market may, with
the consent of the Claimant, be referred to the arbitration forum for that market by the Director of
Arbitration.

Rule1803. ClassAction Claims
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() A claim submitted as a class action shall not be eligible for arbitration under this
Code at the Exchange.

(b)(1) Any clamfiled by amember or members of aputative or certified classaction
isasoineigiblefor arbitration at the Exchangeif the claim is encompassed by a putative or certified
classactionfiled infederal or state court, or isordered by acourt to an arbitral forum not sponsored
by asdlf regulatory organization for a class-wide arbitration. However, such claimsshall be eligible
for arbitration in accordance with Rule 1800 or 1802 or pursuant to the parties contractual
agreement, if any, if a Clamant demonstrates that it has elected not to participate in the putative or
certified class action or, if applicable, has complied with any conditions for withdrawing from the
class prescribed by the court.

(2) Disputes concerning whether a particular claim is encompassed by a
putative or certified class action shall be referred by the Director of Arbitration to a panel
of arbitrator(s) appointed in accordance with Rule 1804 or Rule 1810, as applicable. Either
party may elect instead to petition the court with jurisdiction over the putative or certified
class action to resolve such disputes. Any such petition to the court must be filed within ten
(20) business days of receipt of notice that the Director of Arbitrationisreferring the dispute
to apanel of arbitrator(s).

(3) No Member and/or associated person shall seek to enforce any agreement
to arbitrate against acustomer, other Member or persons associated with aMember who has
initiated in court a putative class action or isamember of a putative or certified class with
respect to any claims encompassed by the class action unless and until:

(i) theclass certification is denied;
(i) theclassis decertified;

(iii) the customer, other Member or person associated with aMember
is excluded from the class by the court; or

(iv) the customer, other Member or person associated with a
Member elects not to participate in the putative or certified class action, or, if
applicable, has complied with any conditions for withdrawing from the class
prescribed by the court.

(c) No Member and/or associated person shall be deemed to have waived any of its
rights under this Code or under any agreement to arbitrate to which it isa party except to the extent
stated in this Rule.

Rule1804. Simplified Arbitration
(@) Any dispute, claim or controversy, arising between a Public Customer(s) and an

associated person or a Member subject to arbitration under this Code involving a dollar amount not
exceeding $10,000, exclusive of attendant costsand interest, shall be arbitrated as hereinafter provided.

132 ISE Chapter 18



(b) The Claimant shall file with the Director of Arbitration an executed Submission
Agreement and acopy of the Statement of Claim of the controversy in dispute and the required deposit,
together with documents in support of the clam. Sufficient additional copies of the Submission
Agreement and the Statement of Claim and supporting documents shall be provided to the Director of
Arbitration for each party and the arbitrator. The Statement of Claim shall specify the relevant facts,
the remedies sought and whether a hearing is demanded.

(c) The Claimant shall pay a non-refundable filing fee and remit a hearing deposit as
specified in Rule 1832 upon filing of the Submission Agreement. The final disposition of the fee or
deposit shall be determined by the arbitrator.

(d) (1) The Director of Arbitration shall endeavor to serve promptly by mail or
otherwise on the Respondent(s) one (1) copy of the Submission Agreement and one (1) copy of the
Statement of Claim.

(2) Within twenty (20) calendar days from receipt of the Statement of Claim,
Respondent(s) shall serve each party with an executed Submission Agreement and a copy of
Respondent's Answer.

(3) Respondent'sexecuted Submission Agreement and Answer shall a'so befiled
with the Director of Arbitration with sufficient additional copiesfor the arbitrator(s) along with
any forum feesrequired under Rule 1832. The Answer shall designate all available defensesto
the Claim and may set forth any related Counter-Claim and/or related Third-Party Claim the
Respondent(s) may have against the Claimant or any other person.

(4) If the Respondent(s) hasinterposed a Third-Party Claim, the Respondent(s)
shall serve the Third-Party Respondent with an executed Submission Agreement, a copy of
Respondent's Answer containing the Third-Party Claim and a copy of the original claim filed
by the Clamant. The Third-Party Respondent shall respond in the manner herein provided for
response to the Claim.

(5) If the Respondent(s) files a related Counter-Claim exceeding $10,000 the
arbitrator may refer the Claim, Counter-Claim and/or Third-Party Claim, if any, to a panel of
no lessthan three (3) arbitratorsin accordance with Rule 1810 of this Code, or he may dismiss
the Counterclaimant(s) and/or Third-Party Claimant(s) pursuing the Counter-Claim and/or
Third-Party Claim, without prejudiceto the Counterclaimant(s) and/or Third-Party Claimant(s)
pursuing the Counter-Claim and/or Third-Party Claim in a separate proceeding. The coststo
the Claimant under either proceeding shall in no event exceed the total amount specifiedin Rule
1832.

(e) All parties shall serve promptly by mail or otherwise on al other parties and the
Director of Arbitration, with sufficient additional copies for the arbitrators, a copy of the Answer,
Counter-Claim, Third-Party Claim or other responsive pleading, if any. The Claimant, if a Counter-
Claim is asserted against him, shall within ten (10) caendar days either:
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(1) serve on each party and on the Director of Arbitration, with sufficient
additional copies for the arbitrators, a Reply to any Counter-Claim, or

(2) if the amount of the Counter-Claim exceeds the Claim, shall have the right
to file a statement withdrawing the Claim. If the Claimant withdraws the Clam, the
proceedings will be discontinued without prejudice to the rights of the parties.

(f) The dispute, claim or controversy shall be submitted to a single public arbitrator
knowledgeable in the securities industry who is selected by the Director of Arbitration. Unless the
Public Customer demands or consents to a hearing, or the arbitrator calls a hearing, the arbitrator shall
decide the dispute, claim or controversy solely upon the pleadings and evidence filed by the parties.
If ahearing is necessary, such hearing shall be held as soon as practicable at alocale selected by the
Director of Arbitration.

(g9) The Director of Arbitration may grant extensions of time to file any pleading upon
a showing of good cause.

() (1) The arbitrator shall be authorized to require the submission of further
documentary evidence as he, in his sole discretion, deems advisable.

(2) If ahearing is demanded or consented to in accordance with paragraph (f)
of thisRule, the General Provisions Governing aPre-Hearing proceeding under Rule 1822 shall
apply.

(3) If no hearing is demanded or consented to, all requests for document
production shall be submitted in writing to the Director of Arbitration within ten (10) business
days of notification of the identity of the arbitrator selected to decide the case. The requesting
party shall serve smultaneously its requests for document production on all parties. Any
response or objection to the requested document production shall be served on al parties and
filed with the Director of Arbitration within five (5) business days of receipt of the request for
production. Theselected arbitrator shall resolveall requests under this paragraph on the papers
submitted.

(1) Upon the request of the arbitrator, the Director of Arbitration shall appoint two (2)
additional arbitrators to the panel that shall decide the matter in controversy.

() In any case where there is more than one (1) arbitrator, the majority will be public
arbitrators.

(K) In his discretion, the arbitrator may, at the request of any party, permit such party
to submit additional documentation relating to the pleadings.

() Except as otherwise provided herein, the general arbitration rules of the Exchange
shall be applicable to proceedings instituted under this Rule.

Hearing Requirements
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Rule1805. Waiver of Hearing

(@) Any dispute, claim or controversy, except as provided in Rule 1804, shall require
ahearing unlessal partieswaive such hearing in writing and request that the matter be resolved solely
upon the pleadings and documentary evidence.

(b) Notwithstanding a written waiver of a hearing by the parties, a majority of the
arbitrators may call for and conduct a hearing. In addition, any arbitrator may request the submission
of further evidence.

Rule1806. Time Limitation Upon Submission

No dispute, claim or controversy shall be eligiblefor submissionto arbitration under this
Code where six (6) years shall have elapsed from the occurrence or event giving rise to the act or the
dispute, claim or controversy. This section shall not extend applicable statutes of limitations, nor shall
it apply to any case which is directed to arbitration by a court of competent jurisdiction.

Rule 1807. Dismissal or Termination Proceedings

At any time during the course of an arbitration, the arbitrators may, either upon their
own initiative or at the request of a party, dismiss the proceeding and refer the parties to the remedies
provided by law. The arbitrators shal, upon the joint request of the parties, dismiss the proceeding.

Rule1808. Settlements

All settlements upon any matter submitted shall be at the election of the parties.

Rule1809. Institution of Legal Proceedings and Extension of Time
Limitation(s) for Submission to Arbitration

(8) Where permitted by law, the time limitation(s) that would otherwise run or accrue
for the ingtitution of legal proceedings shall be tolled when a duly executed Submission Agreement is
filed by the Claimant(s). The tolling shall continue for such period as the Exchange shall retain
jurisdiction upon the matter submitted.

(b) Thesix (6) year time limitation upon submission to arbitration shall not apply when
the parties have submitted the dispute, claim or controversy to a court of competent jurisdiction. The
six (6) year time limitation shall not run for such period as the court shall retain jurisdiction upon the
matter submitted.

Rule 1810. Designation of Number of Arbitrators
(8)(1) Inal arbitration mattersinvolving Public Customersand non-memberswherethe

amount in controversy exceeds $10,000, or where the matter in controversy does not involve or
disclose amoney claim, the Director of Arbitration shall appoint an arbitration panel that shall consist
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of nolessthanthree(3) arbitrators, at |east amajority of whom shall not befrom the securitiesindustry,
unless the Public Customer or non-member requests a panel consisting of at least amagority from the
securities industry.

she:

(2) An arbitrator will be deemed as being from the securities industry if he or

(1) is a person associated with a Member, broker-dealer, government
securities broker, government securities dealer, municipal securities dealer, or register
investment adviser; or

(i) has been associated with any of the above within the past (5) years,
or

(iii) is retired from or spent a substantial part of his or her business
career in any of the above; or

(iv) is an attorney, accountant or other professional who has devoted
twenty (20) percent or more of hisor her professional work effort to securitiesindustry
clients within the last two (2) years.

(v) isanindividua who is registered under the Commodities Exchange
Act or isamember of aregistered futures association or any commodities exchange or
is associated with any such person(s).

(3) Anarbitrator whoisnot from the securitiesindustry shall be deemed apublic

arbitrator. A person will not be classified as a public arbitrator if he or she has a spouse or
other member of the household who is a person associated with a registered broker, dealer,
municipal securities dealer, government securities broker, government securities dealer, or
investment adviser.

(4) The following will apply with regard to the classification of securities

industry and public arbitrators and to the exercise of challenges for cause:

(1) Individuals with close securities industry ties such as attorneys,
accountantsor other professionalswho routinely represent industry firmsor individuals,
will either be reclassified as industry arbitrators or not be used.

(i) Individual swho have spent asubstantial part of their businesscareers
in the securities industry shall aways be classified as industry arbitrators.

(iii) Individualswho have spent arelatively minor portion of their career
inthe securitiesindustry shall not be classified as public arbitrators until at least five (5)
years have elapsed from the date of their last industry affiliation. All such past
affiliations shall be disclosed and challengesfor cause based upon such past affiliations
shall be sustained.
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(iv) Closefamily relationshipswith broker/deal ers shal be disclosed and
challenges for cause based on such relationships shall be sustained.

(v) Attorneys, accountants and other professionals whose firms have
close securities industry ties will till be classified as public arbitrators provided the
attorney or other professional doesnot routinely represent industry firmsor individuals.
Challenges for cause based on such industry ties will be sustained.

(vi) All arbitrators shall read and become familiar with the Code of
Ethics for Arbitrators developed by the American Bar Association and the American
Arbitration Association.

(vit) Any close question on arbitrator classification or on challengesfor
cause shall be decided in favor of Public Customers.

(viii) Spouses of securities industry personnel may not serve as public
arbitrators.

(b) Composition of Panels. The individuals who shall serve on a particular arbitration
panel shall be determined by the Director of Arbitration. The Director of Arbitration may name the
chairman of each pand.

Rule1811. Notice of Selection of Arbitrator(s)

(a) The Director of Arbitration shall inform the parties of the names and employment
histories of the arbitrator(s) for the past ten (10) years, as well as information disclosed pursuant to
Rule 1813, at least eight (8) businessdays prior to the date fixed for theinitial hearing session. A party
may make further inquiry of the Director of Arbitration concerning an arbitrator's background.

(b) In the event that any arbitrator, after appointment and prior to the first hearing
session, shouldresign, die, withdraw, be disqualified or otherwise be unableto perform asan arbitrator,
the Director of Arbitration shall appoint anew member to the panel to fill any vacancy. The Director
of Arbitration shall inform the parties of the name and employment history of the replacement arbitrator
for the past ten (10) years, aswell asinformation disclosed pursuant to Rule 1813, as soon as possible.
A party may make further inquiry of the Director of Arbitration concerning the background of
replacement arbitrator(s) and within the time remaining prior to the first hearing session or the five (5)
day period provided under Rule 1812, whichever is shorter, may exercise its right to challenge the
replacement arbitrator as provided in Rule 1812.

Rule1812. Challenges

In any arbitration proceeding, each party shall have the right to one (1) peremptory
chalenge. In arbitrations where there are multiple Clamants, Respondents and/or Third-Party
Respondents, the Claimants shall have one (1) peremptory challenge, the Respondents shall have one
(1) peremptory challenge, and the Third-Party Respondents shall have one (1) peremptory challenge,
unless the Director of Arbitration determines that the interests of justice would best be served by
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awarding additional peremptory chalenges. Unless extended by the Director of Arbitration, a party
wishing to exercise a peremptory challenge must do so by notifying the Director of Arbitration in
writing within five (5) business days of notification of the identity of the person(s) named under Rule
1811 or Rule 1822 (d) or (e), whichever comesfirst. There shall be unlimited challenges for cause.

Rule 1813. Disclosures Required of Arbitrators

(@) Each arbitrator shall be required to disclose to the Director of Arbitration any
circumstances which might preclude such arbitrator from rendering an objective and impartial
determination. Each arbitrator shall disclose:

(1) Any direct or indirect financia or personal interest in the outcome of the
arbitration.

(2) Any existing or past financial, business, professional, family or social
relationships that are likely to affect impartiadity or which might reasonably create an
appearance of partiality or bias. Persons requested to serve as arbitrators should disclose any
such relationshipsthat they personally have with any party or its counsel, or with any individual
whom they have been told will be awitness. They should aso disclose any such relationship
involving members of their families or their current employers, partners or business associates.

(b) Persons who are requested to accept appointment as arbitrators should make a
reasonable effort to inform themselves of any interests or relationships described in paragraph (a)
above.

(c) The obligation to disclose interests, relationships, or circumstances which might
preclude an arbitrator from entering an objective and impartial determination described in paragraph
(a) hereof is a continuing duty which requires a person who accepts appointment as an arbitrator to
disclose, at any stage of the arbitration, any such interests, relationships, or circumstances which arise,
or which are recalled or discovered.

(d) Prior to the commencement of the first hearing session, the Director of Arbitration
may remove an arbitrator based on information disclosed pursuant to this section. The Director of
Arbitration shall also inform the parties of any information disclosed pursuant to this section if the
arbitrator who disclosed the information is not removed.
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Rule1814. Disqualification or Other Disability of Arbitrators

(a) Inthe event that any arbitrator, after the commencement of thefirst hearing session
and prior to the rendition of the award, should resign, die, withdraw, be disqualified or otherwise be
unable to perform as an arbitrator, the remaining arbitrator(s) may continue with the hearing and
determination of the controversy, unless such continuation is objected to by any party within five (5)
days of notification of such resignation, death, withdrawal, disqualification, or other inability.

(b) Upon objection, the Director of Arbitration shall appoint anew member to the panel
to fill any vacancy. The Director of Arbitration shall inform the parties as soon as possible of the name
and employment history of the replacement arbitrator pursuant to Rule 1811, as well as any other
information disclosed pursuant to Rule 1813. A party may make further inquiry of the Director of
Arbitration concerning the replacement arbitrator's background and within the time remaining prior to
the next scheduled hearing session or the five (5) day period provided under Rule 1812, whichever is
shorter, may exercise its right to challenge the replacement arbitrator as provide in Rule 1812.

Rule 1815. Initiation of Proceedings

Except as otherwise provided herein, an arbitration proceeding under this Code shall
be instituted as follows:

(@) Satement of Claim. The Claimant shall file with the Director of Arbitration an
executed Submission Agreement, a Statement of Claim, together with documents in support of the
Claim, and the required non-refundabl efiling fee and hearing session deposit set forth under Rule 1832.
Sufficient additional copies of the Submission Agreement and the Statement of Claim and supporting
documents shall be provided to the Director of Arbitration for each party and for each arbitrator(s).
The Statement of Claim shall specify the relevant facts and the remedies sought. The Director of
Arbitration shall endeavor to server promptly by mail or otherwise on the Respondent(s) one (1) copy
of the Submission Agreement and one (1) copy of the Statement of Claim,

(b) Service and Filing with Director of Arbitration. For the purposes of the Code of
Arbitration Procedure, service may be effected by mail or other means of delivery. Service and filing
are accomplished on the date of mailing either by first-class postage pre-paid or by means of overnight
mail service, or in the case of other means of service, on the date of delivery. Filing with the Director
of Arbitration shall be made on the same date as service.

(c) Answer-Defenses, Counter-Claims and or Cross-Claims

(1) Within twenty (20) businessdaysfrom receipt of the Statement of Claim, the
Respondents(s) shall serve each party with an executed Submission Agreement and a copy of
the Respondent'sAnswer. Respondent'sexecuted Submission Agreement and Answer shall also
be filed with the Director of Arbitration with sufficient additional copies for the arbitrator(s),
along with any forum fees required under Rule 1832. The Answer shall specify all available
defenses and relevant facts that will be relied upon at the hearing and may set forth any related
Counter-Claim the Respondent(s) may have against the Clamant, any Cross-Claim the
Respondent(s) may have against any other named Respondent(s), and any Third-Party Claim
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against any other party or person based upon any existing dispute, claim or controversy subject
to arbitration under this Code.

(2)(i) A Respondent, Responding Claimant, Cross-Claimant, Cross-Respondent
or Third Party Respondent who pleads only ageneral denial asan answer may, upon objection
by aparty, inthe discretion of the arbitrator(s), be barred from presenting any facts or defenses
at the time of the hearing.

(i) A Respondent, Responding Claimant, Cross-Claimant, Cross-
Respondent or Third-Party Respondent who fails to specify al available defenses and
relevant factsin such party's Answer, may, upon objection by a party, in the discretion
of the arbitrator(s), be barred from presenting the facts or defenses not included in such
party's Answer at the hearing.

(i) A Respondent, Responding Claimant, Cross-Claimant, Cross-
Respondent or Third-Party Respondent who fails to file an Answer within twenty (20)
business days from receipt of service of a claim, unless the time to Answer has been
extended pursuant to paragraph (c)(5), may, in the discretion of the arbitrators, be
barred from presenting any matter, arguments or defenses at the hearing.

(3) Respondent(s) shall serve each party with acopy of any Third-Party Claim.
The Third-Party Claim shall also be filed with the Director of Arbitration with sufficient
additiona copies for the arbitrator(s), aong with any forum fees required under Rule 1832.
Third Party Respondent(s) shall answer in the manner provided for response to the Claim, as
provided in (c)(1) and (2) above.

(4) The Claimant shall serve each party with areply to a Counter-Claim within
ten (10) business days of the receipt of an Answer containing a Counter-Claim. Thereply shall
also be filed with the Director of Arbitration with sufficient additional copies for the
arbitrator(s).

(5) The Director of Arbitration may extend any time period in this section
whether such be denominated as a Claim, Answer, Counter-Claim, Cross-Claim, Reply or
Third-Party pleading.

(d) Joining and Consolidation—Multiple Parties.

(1) Permissive Joinder. All persons may join in one action as Clamantsif they
assert any right to relief jointly, severaly, or arising out of the same transaction, occurrence
or seriesof transactions or occurrences and if any questions of law or fact common to al these
Clamantswill arisein the action. All persons may be joined in one action as Respondents if
there is asserted against them jointly or severaly, any right to relief arising out of the same
transaction, occurrence, or series of transactions or occurrences and if any questions of law
or fact common to all Respondents will arisein the action. A Claimant or Respondent need
not assert rightsto or defend al the relief demanded. Judgment may be given for one or more

140 ISE Chapter 18



of the Claimants according to their respective rights to relief, and against one or more
Respondents according to the respective liabilities.

(2) In arbitrations where there are multiple Claimants, Respondents and/or
Third-Party Respondents, the Director of Arbitration shall be authorized to determine
preliminarily whether such parties should proceed in the same or separate arbitrations. Such
determination will be considered subsequent to the filing of all responsive pleadings.

(3) The Director of Arbitration shall be authorized to determine preliminarily
whether clamsfiled separately are related and shall be authorized to consolidate such claims
for hearing and award purposes.

(4) Further determinations with respect to joining, consolidation and multiple
parties under this subsection may be made by the arbitration panel and shall be deemed final.

Rule1816. Designation of Time and Place of Hearing

Unless the law directs otherwise, the time and place for the initial hearing shall be
determined by the Director of Arbitration and each hearing thereafter by the arbitrators. Notice of the
time and place for the initial hearing shall be given at least eight (8) business days prior to the date
fixed for the hearing by personal service, registered or certified mail to each of the parties unlessthe
parties shall, by their mutual consent, waive the notice provisions under this section. Notice for each
hearing, thereafter, shall be given as the arbitrators may determine. Attendance at a hearing waives
notice thereof.

Rule1817. Representation by Counsel

All parties shall have the right to representation by counsel at any stage of the
proceedings.

Rule 1818. Attendance at Hearings

The attendance or presence of all persons at hearings, including witnesses, shall be
determined by the arbitrators. However, al partiesto the arbitration and their counsel shall be entitled
to attend al hearings.

Rule 1819. Failureto Appear

If any of the parties, after due notice, failsto appear at ahearing or at any continuation
of ahearing, the arbitrators may, in their discretion, proceed with the arbitration of the controversy.
In such cases all awards shall be rendered as if each party has entered an appearance in the matter
submitted.

Rule 1820.  Adjournments
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(a) Thearbitratorsmay, intheir discretion, adjourn any hearing(s) either upontheir own
initiative or upon the request of any party to the arbitration.

(b) Unless waived by the Director of Arbitration, a party requesting an adjournment
after arbitrators have been appointed shall deposit with the request for an adjournment, afee equal to
the initial deposit of hearing deposit fees for the first adjournment and twice the initial deposit of
hearing deposit fees, not to exceed $1,000, for asecond or subsequent adjournment requested by that
party. If the adjournment is not granted, the deposit shall be refunded. If the adjournment is granted,
the arbitrator(s) may direct the return of the adjournment fee.

(c) Upon receiving athird request consented to by all parties for an adjournment, the
arbitrators may dismiss the arbitration without prejudice to either party. The Claimant may then file
anew arbitration.

Rule1821. Acknowledgement of Pleadings

The arbitrators shall acknowledge to all parties present that they have read the
pleadings filed by the parties.

Rule1822. General Provisions Governing Pre-Hearing Proceeding

(a) Requestsfor Documentsand Information. The partiesshall cooperateto thefullest
extent practicablein the voluntary exchange of documents and information to expedite the arbitration.
Any request for documents or other information should be specific, relate to the matter in controversy,
and afford the party to whom the request is made a reasonable period of time to respond without
interfering with the time set for the hearing.

(b) Document Production and Information Exchange.

(1) Any party may serve a written request for information or documents
("information request”) upon another party twenty (20) business days or more after service of
the Statement of Claim by the Director of Arbitration or upon filing of the Answer, whichever
isearlier. Therequesting party shall serve theinformation request on all partiesand file acopy
with the Director of Arbitration. The parties shall endeavor to resolve disputes regarding an
information request prior to serving any objection to the request. Such efforts shall be set
forth in the objection.

(2) Unless a greater time is alowed by the requesting party, information
requests shall be satisfied or objected to within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of
service. Any objection to an information request shall be served by the objecting party on all
parties and filed with the Director of Arbitration.

(3) Any response to objections to information requests shall be served on al

parties and filed with the Director of Arbitration within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the
objection.
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(4) Upon the written request of a party whose information request is
unsatisfied, the matter will be referred by the Director of Arbitration to either a pre-hearing
conference under paragraph (d) of this Rule or to a selected arbitrator under paragraph (e) of
the Rule.

(c) Pre-Hearing Exchange

(1) At least twenty (20) calendar days prior to thefirst scheduled hearing date,
al parties shall serve on each other copies of documents in their possession that they intend
to present at the hearing. The parties may provide alist of those documentsthat have already
been produced pursuant to the other provisions of Rule 1822 in lieu of the actual documents.
A list of such documents served under this paragraph shall be served on the Director of
Arbitration at the same time and in the same manner as service on the parties.

(2) In addition, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the first scheduled
hearing date, the parties also shall serve on each other alist identifying witnesses they intend
to present at the hearing by name, address and business affiliation. A copy of the list of
witnesses shall be served on the Director of Arbitration at the same time and in the same
manner as service on the parties.

(3) The arbitrator(s) may exclude from the arbitration any documents not
exchanged or identified or witnesses not identified in accordance with the requirements of this
paragraph (c). This paragraph does not require service of copies of documents or
identification of witnesses that parties may use for cross-examination or rebuttal.

(d) Pre-Hearing Conference.

(1) Upon the written request of aparty, an arbitrator, or at the discretion of the
Director of Arbitration, a pre-hearing conference shall be scheduled. The Director of
Arbitration shall set the time and place of a pre-hearing conference and appoint a person to
preside. The pre-hearing conference may be held by telephone conferencecall. The presiding
person shall seek to achieve agreement among the parties on any issues that relate to the pre-
hearing process or to the hearing, including but not limited to, the exchange of information,
exchange or production of documents, identification of witnesses, identification and exchange
of hearing documents, stipulations of facts, identification and briefing of contested issues and
any other matters that will expedite the arbitration proceedings.

(2) Any issuesraised at the pre-hearing conference that are not resolved may
be referred by the Director of Arbitration to a single member of the Arbitration Panel for
decision.

(e) Decisions by Selected Arbitrator.
The Director of Arbitration may appoint a single member of the Arbitration Panel to

decide all unresolved issues referred to under thisRule. In mattersinvolving Public Customers, such
singlearbitrator shall be apublic arbitrator except the arbitrator may be either public or industry when
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the Public Customer has requested a panel consisting of amajority from the securitiesindustry. Such
arbitrator shall be authorized to act on behalf of the panel to issue subpoenas, direct appearances of
witnesses and production of documents, set deadlines for compliance and issue any other ruling that
will expedite the arbitration proceeding or is necessary to permit any party to develop fully its case.
Decisions under this paragraph shall be made upon the papers submitted by the parties, unless the
arbitrator calls ahearing. The arbitrator may elect to refer any issue under this paragraph to the full
panel.

(f) Subpoena.

The arbitrator(s) and any counsel of record to the proceeding shall have the power of
the subpoena process as provided by law. All parties shall be given a copy of the subpoena upon its
issuance. However, the parties shall produce witnesses and present proofs to the fullest extent
possible without resort to the subpoena process.

(g) Power to Direct Appearances and Production of Documents

The arbitrator(s) shall be empowered without resort to the subpoena process to direct
the appearance of any Member or person employed by or associated with any Member or Member
Organization of the Exchange, and/or the production of any records in the possession or control of
such persons, Membersor Member Organizations. Unlessthearbitrator(s) direct otherwise, the party
reguesting the appearance of a person or the production of documents under this section shall bear all
reasonable costs of such appearance and/or production.

Rule1823. Evidence

Thearbitrator(s) shall determinethemateriality and relevanceof any evidenceproffered
and shall not be bound by rules governing the admissibility of evidence.

Rule1824. Interpretation of Code and Enforcement of Arbitrator Rulings

The arbitrator(s) shall be empowered to interpret and determine the applicability of all
provisions under this Code and to take appropriate action to obtain compliance with any ruling by the
arbitrator(s). Such interpretations and actions to obtain compliance shall be final and binding upon
the parties.

Rule 1825. Determinations of Arbitrators

All rulings and determinations of the panel shall be by a mgjority of the arbitrators.
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Rule 1826. Record of Proceedings

A verbatim record by stenographic reporter or taperecording of all arbitration hearings
shall be kept. If aparty or parties to a dispute elect to have the record transcribed, the cost of such
transcription shall be borne by the party or parties making the request unless the arbitrators direct
otherwise. The arbitrators may also direct that the record be transcribed. if the record is transcribed
at the request of any party, a copy shall be provided to the arbitrators.

Rule1827. Oaths of the Arbitrators and Witnesses

Prior to the commencement of the first session, an oath or affirmation shall be
administered to the arbitrators. All testimony shall be under oath or affirmation.

Rule1828. Amendments

(a) After thefiling of any pleadings, if aparty desiresto fileanew or different pleading,
such change must be made in writing and filed with the Director of Arbitration with sufficient
additional copies for each arbitrator. The party filing a new or different pleading shall serve on all
other partiesacopy of the new or different pleading in accordance with the provisions set forthin Rule
1815(b). The other parties may, within ten (10) days from the receipt of service, file aresponse with
the Director of Arbitration, with sufficient additional copies for each arbitrator, in accordance with
Rule 1815(b).

(b) After apanel has been appointed, no new or different pleading may befiled except
for aresponsive pleading as provided for in (@) above or with the panel's consent.

Rule 1829.  Reopening of Hearings

Where permitted by law, the hearings may be reopened by the arbitrators on their own
motion or in the discretion of the arbitrators upon the application of a party at any time before the
award is rendered.

Rule1830. Awards

(a) All awards shall bein writing and signed by a mgjority of the arbitrators or in such
manner asisrequired by law. Such awards may be entered as a judgement in any court of competent
jurisdiction.

(b) Unless the law directs otherwise, all awards rendered pursuant to this Code shall
be deemed final and not subject to review or appeal.

(c) The Director of Arbitration shall endeavor to serve a copy of the award:

(1) by registered or certified mail upon al parties, or their counsd, at the
address of record,;

(2) by personadly serving the award upon the parties; or
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(3) by filing or delivering the award in such manner as may be authorized by
law.

(d) Thearbitrator(s) shall endeavor to render an award within thirty (30) businessdays
from the date the record is closed.

(e) The award shall contain the names of the parties, the name(s) of counsd, if any, a
summary of the issues, including the type(s) of any security or product, in controversy, the damages
and/or other relief requested, the damages and/or other relief awarded, a statement of any other issues
resolved, the names of the arbitrators, the date that the claim was filed and the award rendered, the
numbers and dates of hearing sessions, the locations of the hearing(s) and the signatures of the
arbitrators concurring in the award.

() The awards shall be made publicly available provided, however, that the name of
any customer party to the arbitration will not be publicly available if he or she so requests in writing.

(9) All monetary awards shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt unlessamotion
to vacate has been filed with a court of competent jurisdiction. 1f such amotion has been filed, either
party may request the President to direct that the award be paid to an escrow account maintained by
the Exchange. Such request shall be filed with the Secretary of the Exchange within thirty-five (35)
days of receipt of such award.

(h) An award shall bear interest from the date of the award:

(2) if not paid within thirty (30) days of receipt;
(2) if the award is the subject of a motion to vacate that is denied; or

(3) as specified by the arbitrator(s) in the award.

(1) Interest shall be assessed at the legal rate, if any, then prevailing in the state where
the award was rendered, or at arate set by the arbitrator(s).

Rule1831. Miscedlaneous

This Code shall be deemed a part of and incorporated by reference in every duly-
executed Submission Agreement, which shall be binding on all parties.

Rule 1832.  Schedule of Fees
(a) At the time of filing a Claim, Counter-Claim, Third-Party Claim or Cross-Claim,
aparty shall pay anon-refundable filing fee and shall remit a hearing session deposit to the Exchange

inthe amountsindicated in the schedul es bel ow unless such fee or deposit is specifically waived by the
Director of Arbitration.
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(1) Where multiple hearing sessions are required, the arbitrator(s) may require
any of the parties to make additional hearing deposits for each additional hearing session. In
no event shall the amount deposited by all parties per additiona hearing session exceed the
amount of the largest initial hearing deposit made by any party under the schedule below.

(2) A hearing session isany meeting between the parties and the arbitrator(s),
including a pre-hearing conference with an arbitrator, that lasts four (4) hours or less. The
forum feefor apre-hearing conference with asingle arbitrator shall be the amount set forth in
the schedules below.

(b) Thearbitrator(s), intheaward, may determine the amount chargeableto the parties
as forum fees and shall determine who shall pay such forum fees. Forum fees are assessed to the
parties on a per hearing session basis. The aggregate of the forum fee for each hearing session may
equal but shall not exceed the amount of the largest initial hearing deposit deposited by any party,
except in acasewhere claims have been joined subsequent to filing, in which cases hearing session fees
shall be computed as provided in paragraph (c). The arbitrators may determine in the award that a
party shall reimburse to another party any non-refundable filing fee it has paid.

(1) If acustomer is assessed forum fees in connection with a Member claim,
forum fees assessed against the customer shall be based on the hearing deposit required under
the Member claims schedule for the amount awarded to Member parties to be paid by the
customer and not based on the size of the Member claim. No fees shall be assessed against a
customer in connection with aMember claim that is dismissed; however in cases where there
isalso acustomer claim, the customer may be assessed forum feesbased on the customer claim
under the procedure set out above.

(2) Amounts deposited by a party as hearing deposits shall be applied against
forum fees, if any.

(3) In addition to forum fees, the arbitrator(s) may determine in the award the
amount of costs incurred pursuant to Rules 1820, 1822 and 1826 and, unless applicable law
directs otherwise, other costs and expenses of the parties. The arbitrator(s) shall determine
by whom such costs shall be borne. If the hearing session fees are not assessed against a party
who had made a hearing deposit, the hearing deposit will be refunded unless the arbitrators
determine otherwise

(c) For clams filed separately and subsequently joined or consolidated under Rule
1815(d), the hearing deposit and forum fees assessable per hearing session after joinder or
consolidations shall be based on the cumulative amount in dispute. The arbitrator(s) shall determine
by whom such forum fees shall be borne.

(d) If the dispute, claim or controversy does not involve, disclose or specify amoney
claim, the non-refundable filing fee will be $250 and the hearing session deposit to be remitted by a
party shall be $600 or such greater or lesser amounts as the Director of Arbitration or the panel of
arbitrators may require, but shall not exceed $1,500.
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(e) The Exchange shall retain the total initial hearing session amount deposited by all
parties in any matter submitted and settled or withdrawn within eight (8) business days of the first
scheduled hearing session other than a pre-hearing conference.

(f) Any matter submitted and thereafter settled or withdrawn subsequent to the
commencement of thefirst hearing session including a pre-hearing conference with an arbitrator, shall
be subject to an assessment of forum fees and costs incurred pursuant to Rules 1820, 1822 and 1826
based on hearing session(s) held and scheduled within eight (8) business days of the Exchange
receiving notice that the matter has been settled or withdrawn. The arbitrator(s) shall determine by
whom such forum fees and costs shall be borne.

(g) Schedule of Fees. For purposed of the schedule of fees the term claim includes
Claims, Counter-Claims, Third-Party Claims or Cross-Claims. Any such claim involving a customer
and a Member or person associated with a Member is a customer claim. Any such claim submitted
by aMember or person associated with a Member against another Member is a Member claim.

CUSTOMER CLAIM FEE SCHEDULE

HEARING DEPOSIT
Pre-Hearing FEE PER SESSION

Amount of Dispute Conference

(Exclusive of Interest and Expenses) Filling Fees Fee Smplified Hearing
$1,000 Or [€SS.....cccvvivvirieieinne. $15 $15 $15 $ 15
$1,001 to $2,500........c.ccvevennene, $25 $25 $25 $ 25
$2,501 to $5,000........ccceeernnenn $ 50 $100 $75 $ 100
$5001 to $10,000.........cceeevervrnens $75 $200 $75 $ 200
$10,001 to $30,000..........ccerunens $100 $300 N/A $ 400
$30,001 to $50,000...........cven.... $120 $300 N/A $ 400
$50,001 to $100,000.........c.ccenvee $150 $300 N/A $ 500
$100,001 to $500,000.................. $200 $300 N/A $ 750
$500,001 to $5,000,000................ $250 $300 N/A $1,000
Over $5,000,000.........cccccreeeenens $300 $300 N/A $1,500
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MEMBER CLAIM FEE SCHEDULE

Pre-Hearing
Amount of Dispute Conference Hearing Deposit
(Exclusive of Interest and Expenses) Filling Fees Fee Fee Per Session
$1,000 Or [€SS....cvvevveeiieiieienns $ 75 $15 $ 600
$1,000 to $2,500.........cccerrvrrnens $ 75 $25 $ 600
$2,501 to $5,000........ccceevennene $ 100 $100 $ 600
$5,001 to $10,000........ccceeveereeenne. $ 500 $200 $ 600
$10,001 to $30,000..........ceruenens $ 500 $300 $ 600
$30,001 to $50,000...........cven.e.. $ 500 $300 $ 600
$50,001 to $100,000..........cccenuee $ 500 $300 $ 600
$100,001 to $500,000.................. $ 750 $500 $ 750
$500,001 to $1,000,000................ $1000 $500 $1,000
Over $1,000,000.........ccceeevereenne $1500 $500 $1,500

Rule1833. Requirements when Using Pre-Dispute Arbitration Agreements
with Customers

(@) Any pre-dispute arbitration clause shall be highlighted and shall be immediately
preceded by the following disclosure language (printed in outline form as set forth herein), which shall
aso be highlighted:

(2) Arbitration isfinal and binding on the parties.

(2) The parties are waiving their right to seek remediesin court, including the
right to jury trial.

(3) Pre-arhitration discovery is generaly more limited than and different from
court proceedings.

(4) The arbitrators award is not required to include factual findings or legal
reasoning and any party's right to appeal or to seek modification of rulings by the arbitrators
isstrictly limited.

(5) The pand of arbitratorswill typically include aminority of arbitrators who
were or are affiliated with the securities industry.

(b) Immediately preceding the signature line, there shall be a statement which shall be

highlighted that the agreement contains a pre-dispute arbitration clause. This statement shall also
indicate at what page and paragraph the arbitration clause is located.
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(c) A copy of the agreement containing any such clause shall be given to the customer
who shall acknowledge receipt thereof on the agreement or on a separate document.

(d) No agreement shall include any condition that limits or contradicts the rules of any
SRO or limitsthe ability of aparty to fileany claim in arbitration or limits the ability of the arbitrators
to make any awards.

(e) All agreements shall include a statement that:

"No person shall bring a putative or certified class action to arbitration, nor
seek to enforce any pre-dispute arbitration agreement against any person who hasinitiated in
court a putative class action; who isamember of a putative class who has not opted out of the
class with respect to any claims encompassed by the putative class action until:

(1) the class certification is denied; or
(i) the class is decertified; or
(i11) the customer is excluded from the class by the court.

Such forbearance to enforce an agreement to arbitrate shall not constitute a waiver of any
rights under this agreement except to the extent stated herein."

(f) Therequirements of paragraphs (a) through (d) of thisRule shall apply only to new
agreements signed by an existing or new customer of a Member or Member Organization after
September 7, 1989. The requirements of paragraph (e) shall apply only to new agreements signed by
an existing or new customer or a Member or Member Organization after January 23, 1996.

Rule1834. FailuretoHonor Award

Any Member, or person associated with a Member, who fails to honor an award of
arbitrators appointed in accordance with the Rules in this Chapter 18 shall be subject to disciplinary
proceedings in accordance with Chapter 16 (Discipline).

Rule1835. Contracting Responsibilities

The Exchange may contract with another SRO to perform someor al of thearbitration
functions specified in this Chapter. In that event, the Exchange shall specify to what extent the Rules
inthis Chapter shall govern Exchange arbitrations and to what extent the rules of the other SRO shall
govern such arbitrations. Notwithstanding the fact that the Exchange may contract with another SRO
to perform someor al of the Exchange's disciplinary functions, the Exchange shall retain ultimate legal
responsibility for and control of such functions.
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Exhibit A(2)

There are no written rulings, settled practices having the effect of rules, or interpretations of the board of
directors or other committee of the International Securities Exchange that are not included in Exhibit A(1).



Exhibit A(3)

A copy of the Articles of Organization and Operating Agreement for Adirondack Trading Partners, LLC are
attached hereto.



ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
OF
ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERS LLC

Under Section 203 of the Limited Liability Company Law

The undersigned, as the organizer-of ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERS
LLC hereby adopts the following Articles of Organization under Section 206 of the New York
Limited Liability Company Law:

ARTICLEI. The name of the limited liability company is: ADIRONDACK
TRADING PARTNERS LLC (the "Company").

. ARTICLE II. The county in the state of New York in which the office of the
Company is to be located is New York County.

ARTICLE III.The Secretary of State of the State of New York is designated as -
agent of the Company upon whom process against it may be served. The post office address
within or without the State of New York to which the Secretary of the State of the State of
New York shall mail a copy of any process against the Company served upon him or her is c/o
CT Corporation System, 1633 Broadway, New York, NY 10019.

ARTICLE [V.The Company is to be managed by one or more members.

ARTICLE V. The Company shall have the power to indemnify, to the full
extent permitted by the New York Liability Company Law, as amended from time to time, all
persons whom it is pcrmitted to indemnify pursuant thereto.

: - IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this ccmﬁmtc has been subscribed this | K\day of
January, 1998, by, the undersigned who affirms that the statements made herein are true under

the penalties of perjyry.-

KAP GROUP, LLC
Member of Adirondack Trading Partners LLC

By: W/W

William A. Porter
Manager of KAP Group, LLC

I Ao’“«arn_e(} PMM




AMENDED AND RESTATED
OPERATING AGREEMENT
OF
ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERSLLC

A NEW YORK LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY

Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, dated as of October 1, 1998, by and
among the persons have executed the signature page(s) hereto as Members, together with such
other persons who from time to time hereafter are added as Members and agree to be bound by
this Agreement as Members of ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERS LLC (the“Company”)
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company has heretofore been formed as a limited liability
company under the New York Limited Liability Company Law pursuant to Articles of
Organization filed with the Secretary of State of New Y ork on January 27, 1998 and pursuant to
an Operating Agreement dated as of June 30, 1998, entered into among the Members as amended
by letter amendment dated in or around June 1998 (the “Initial Operating Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Members of the Company wish hereby to amend and restate the
Initial Operating Agreement in order to increase from twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) the
maximum number of Combined B Units authorized hereunder and to make the other changes
incorporated herein, in each case on the terms expressly set forth herein;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE IARTICLE
FORMATION AND BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

1.1 Formation. The Company was organized on January 27, 1998, in
accordance with and pursuant to the New Y ork Limited Liability Company Law.

1.2 Name. The name of the Company is Adirondack Trading Partners LLC.
The Company may do business under that name and, as permitted by applicable law, under any
other name determined from time to time by the Board.

1.3  Purpose of the Company. The purpose of the Company shall be to
conduct any lawful business or activity whatsoever, as permitted by applicable law and as
determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Company may exercise all powers
necessary to or reasonably connected with the Company's business from time to time, and may
engage in all activities necessary, customary, related or incidental to any of the foregoing.




1.4  Principal Office. The Company's principal place of business shal be
located at 47 Laurel Hill Road, Centerport, New York 11721 or such other place determined
from time to time by the Board. The Company may have such other business offices within or
without the State of New Y ork as determined from time to time by the Board.

15 Registered Agent. The name and address of the Company's registered
agent in the State of New York is CT Corporation Systems, New York, New York 10019. The
registered agent may be changed from time to time by the Board upon the filing of the name and
address of the new registered agent with the New York Secretary of State pursuant to the LLC
Act.

16 Term. Theterm of the Company shall commence on the date hereof and
continue until December 31, 2098 unless the Company is earlier dissolved in accordance
herewith and with the LLC Act.

1.7 Members. The Company shal maintain at its principal place of business
a record of the name, address, facsimile number, and taxpayer identification number of each
Member, and such record shall be available to the Members upon reasonable notice and during
normal business hours.

ARTICLE ITARTICLE II

DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall have the meaning set forth below when used in this
Aqgreement:

2.1 The term “Adjusted Capital Account” of a Member shall mean such
Member’s Capital Account, after giving effect to the following:

@ increasing such Capital Account for any amount required to be
restored under Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(c), as well as any amounts in
addition thereto pursuant to Treas. Reg. Sections 1.704-2(g)(1) and (i)(5), after taking
into account any changes during such Fiscal Year in Company Minimum Gain and
Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain; and

(b) decreasing such Capital Account for the items described in Treas.
Reg. Sections 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) and (6).

2.2  Theterm “Affiliate” shall mean, as to any person, any other person that,
directly or indirectly, is in control of, is controlled by, or is under common control with such
person. For purposes of this definition, a person shall be deemed to be “controlled by” another
person if such other person possesses, directly or indirectly, power either to (a) vote ten percent
(10%) or more of the securities having ordinary voting power for the election of directors of such
person or (b) direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such person,
whether by contract or otherwise.



23  Theterm “Agreement” shall mean this Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement, as originally executed and as amended from time to time in accordance herewith and
with the LLC Act.

24 The term “Articles of Organization” shall mean the Articles of
Organization of the Company, as filed with the New York Secretary of State, as amended from
time to time in accordance herewith and with the LLC Act.

25  Theterm “Bankruptcy” of any Person shall mean (a) the entry of an order
for relief with respect to that Person in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code,
as amended from time to time, or (b) the Person's initiation, whether by filing a petition,
beginning a proceeding or in answer to a proceeding commenced by another person, of any
action for liquidation, dissolution, receivership or other similar relief, or the Person's application
for, or consent to the appointment of, atrustee, receiver or custodian for its assets. For purposes
of this definition, a Person's consent shall be deemed to have been given if an order appointing a
trustee, receiver or custodian is entered by a court of competent jurisdiction and is not dismissed
within ninety (90) days after its entry.

2.6 The term “Board of Directors’ or “Board” shall have the meaning set
forth in Article V of this Agreement.

2.7  Theterm “Buy-Sell Agreement” shall mean any agreement between the
Company and a Director, officer, employee or independent contractor of the Company or any
Controlled Subsidiary who may be issued Employee Units, pursuant to which, among other
things, vesting rights may be established and the Company may have the right to purchase the
Employee Units under specified circumstances.

2.8 Theterm “Capital Account” of a Member, as of any date, shall mean the
account maintained for such Member pursuant to Section 3.3 of this Agreement, as adjusted
through such date.

2.9 The term “Capital Contribution” of, or attributed to, a Member shall
mean the total contributions to the capital of the Company, whether in cash, property (net of
liabilities) or services, made, performed or to be performed by, or attributed to, such Member,
valued on the date of contribution in the Company's books and records.

2.10 The term “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, in effect as of the date hereof and as amended from time to time hereafter.

2.11 The term “Combined A Unit” shall a group of Units consisting of one
Preferred A Unit and 100,000 Common Units.

212 The term “Combined B Unit” shall mean any group of Units consisting
of one Preferred B Unit and 20,000 Common Units.

213 The term “Combined C Unit” shall mean any group of Units consisting
of one Preferred C Unit and a fixed number of Common Units to be set at the discretion of the
Board pursuant to Section 3.2(b).




214 The term “Combined Unit” shal mean any of a Combined A Unit,
Combined B Unit or Combined C Unit.

2.15 Theterm “Common Member” shall mean any Member holding Common

Units.

216 The term “Common Unit” shall mean any Initial Common Unit or any
other unit representing an Interest designated by the Board as a Common Unit.

2.17 Theterm “Company” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble to
this Agreement.

2.18 Theterm “Company Minimum Gain” shall mean the amount determined
under Treas. Reg. Sections 1.704-2(i)(3) and 1.704-2(d), and shall be computed separately for
each Member in a manner consistent with Code Section 704(b) and the Treasury Regulations
thereunder.

219 The tem “Company Nonrecourse Deductions’ shall mean the
deductions of the Company determined under Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-2(c).

2.20 The term “ Compounded Preference Amount” shall mean, with respect
to any Preferred Member, an amount, initially zero, adjusted on the last day of each calendar
year by adding to such amount, as it may have been theretofore adjusted pursuant to this
definition (the “ Pre-Adjustment Amount”), any excess of (i) the aggregate amount that would be
(or would have been) distributed, without duplication, to such Preferred Member on such day (or
on the last day of the three preceding calendar quarters) pursuant to Section 4.1(b)(i) if the Board
were to determine (or had determined) to distribute all amounts distributable under Section
4.1(b)(i) on such day (and on such three other days), over (ii) the aggregate amount actually
distributed to such Preferred Member on such day (and on such three other days) pursuant to
Section 4.1(b)(i).

221 Theterm “Director” shal have the meaning set forth in Article V of this
Aqgreement.

222 The teem “Economic Interest” shall mean any right to share in the
alocation of one or more of the Company's allocable items, including, without limitation, Net
Income and Net Loss, and/or in distributions of the Company's assets, in each case pursuant to
this Agreement or the LLC Act, but shall not include any Management Interest.

2.23 The term “Employee Unit” shall mean any Common Unit issued to a
Director, officer, employee or independent contractor out of those Common Units authorized to
be issued to any such Person pursuant to Section 3.1 or 3.2 for services provided or to be
provided to the Company, but excluding any Common Units issued to any such Person for cash
consideration comparable to that being paid contemporaneously by Persons other than Directors,
officers, employees and independent contractors.

2.24 The term “Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.




2.25 The term “Fiscal Year” shall mean the Company's accounting, tax and
fiscal year, which shall be the caendar year.

2.26 The term “FEiscal Quarter” shal mean a fiscal quarter of the Company
ending March 31, June 30, September 30 or December 31.

2.27 The term “Fully Diluted Basis’ means, as of any date, with respect to
calculations involving the Common Units outstanding of the Company, making the assumption
that all convertible securities of the Company then outstanding were converted on such date and
that al options, warrants and similar rights to acquire Common Units were exercised on such
date.

2.28 Theterm "Eundamental Change" shall mean the merger of the Company
with another entity, the dissolution of the Company, or the sale or other disposition of al or
substantially al of the business or assets of the Company, or the incurrence of indebtedness by
the Company in excess of $5,000,000.

2.29 Theterm “Indemnitee” shall mean a Director, officer, agent or employee
of the Company who may be indemnified by the Company as set forth in Article X1 of this
Aqgreement.

230 The term “Initial Common Units’ shall mean the Common Units
authorized to be issued by the Company under Section 3.1.

231 The term “Initial Preferred Units’ shall mean the Preferred Units
authorized to be issued by the Company under Section 3.1.

2.32 Theterm “Interest” shall mean any of an Economic Interest, Management
Interest and/or Membership Interest.

233 The term “LLC Act” shall mean the New York Limited Liability
Company Law, as amended from time to time.

2.34 The term “Management Interest” of a Member shall mean such
Member's right to participate in the management of the business and affairs of the Company,
including the right to vote on, consent to, or otherwise participate in, any decision or action of or
by the Members hereunder or under the LLC Act.

2.35 The term “Member” shall mean each person who (a) executes a
counterpart of this Agreement as a Member as of the date hereof or (b) is admitted as a Member
after the date hereof pursuant to this Agreement.

2.36 The term “Member Nonrecourse Debt” shall mean nonrecourse debt of
the Company under Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-2(b)(4).

2.37 The term “Member Nonrecourse Deductions’ shall mean the losses,
deductions and expenditures attributable to Member Nonrecourse Debt under Treas. Reg.
Section 1.704-2(i)(2).




2.38 The term “Membership Interest” shall mean a Member’s entire interest
in the Company, including its Economic Interest (to the extent not Transferred) and Management
Interest.

2.39 Theterm “Net Capital Violation” shall mean aviolation of any provision
of the “net capital” regulations promulgated by the SEC under Section 15(c)(3) of the Exchange
Act, as amended.

240 Theterms“Net Income’ and “Net L oss’ shall mean, for each Fiscal Year
(or other period for which they are determined), the income and gain, and the losses, deductions
and credits of the Company, respectively, in the aggregate or separately stated, as appropriate, as
determined for federal income tax purposes under Section 703(a) of the Code and Treasury
Regulations Section 1.703-1 (for this purpose, all items of income, gain, loss or deduction
required to be stated separately pursuant to Section 703(a)(1) of the Code shall be included in
income or loss), with the following adjustments..

@ Any tax-exempt income, as described in Section
705(a)(1)(B) of the Code, realized by the Company during such taxable year shall
be taken into account in computing such income or loss,

(b) Any expenditures of the Company described in Section
705(a)(2)(B) of the Code for such taxable year, including any items treated under
Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(i) asitems described in Section
705(a)(2)(B) of the Code, shall be taken into account in computing such income
or loss asif they were deductible items;

(c) Any item of income, gain, loss or deductions that is
required to be allocated specially to the Members under Section 4.5, 4.6, or 4.7
shall not be taken into account in computing such income or |0ss;

(d) In lieu of any depreciation, amortization and cost recovery
deductions taken into account in computing such income or loss, the Company
shall compute such deductions based on the book value of Company property, in
accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(9)(3);

(e Gain or loss resulting from any disposition of Company
property with respect to which gain or loss is recognized for federal income tax
purposes shall be computed by reference to the book value of the property
disposed of (as adjusted for "book™ depreciation computed in accordance with
Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(g)(3)), notwithstanding that the
adjusted tax basis of such property differs from its book value; and

H If the book value of Company assets is adjusted to equal
fair market value as provided in Section 3.4 hereof, then income or loss shall
include the amount of any increase or decrease in such book values attributable to
such adjustment.



241 Theterm “Offered Interests’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section

9.2(a).

242 Theterm “officer” shall have the meaning set forth in Article VIII of this
Aqgreement.

243 The term "Percentage Interest” of a Member shall mean the number of
Common Units of the Member expressed as a percentage of the aggregate number of Common
Units of all Members.

244 Theterm “person” shall mean any individual, partnership, limited liability
company, corporation, joint venture, trust, association or any other entity, domestic or foreign,
and its respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns
where the context of this Agreement so permits.

245 Theterm “Preference Amount” of a Preferred Member shall mean, with
respect to each Preferred Member, on any given date, (i) in respect of any Preferred A Units,
Preferred B Units or Preferred C Units, an amount equal to six percent (6%), multiplied by the
sum of (a) such Preferred Member’'s applicable Preferred Payment Account, plus (b) such
Preferred Member’s Compounded Preference Amount and (i) in respect of any other class or
series of Preferred Units authorized by the Board, an amount determined in the manner
established by the Board.

246 The term “Preferred A Member” shal mean any Member holding
Preferred A Units.

247 Theterm “Preferred A Payment Account” shall mean the memorandum
account established and maintained for each Preferred A Member pursuant to Section 3.3(f).

248 The term “Preferred A Units’ shal mean the Preferred A Units
authorized to be issued by the Company pursuant to Sections 3.1 and 3.2(b).

249 The term “Preferred B Member” shal mean any Member holding
Preferred B Units.

250 Theterm “Preferred B Payment Account” shall mean the memorandum
account established and maintained for each Preferred B Member pursuant to Section 3.3(f).

251 The term “Preferred B _Units’ shall mean any Preferred B Units
authorized to be issued by the Company pursuant to Sections 3.1 and 3.2(b).

252 The term “Preferred C Member” shal mean any Member holding
Preferred C Units.

253 Theterm “Preferred C Payment Account” shall mean the memorandum
account established and maintained for each Preferred C Member pursuant to Section 3.3(f).




254 The term “Preferred C Units” shall mean the Preferred C Units
authorized to be issued by the Company pursuant to Sections 3.1 and 3.2(b).

255 The term “Preferred Member” shal mean any Preferred A Member,
Preferred B Member or Preferred C Member.

256 The term “Preferred Payment Account” shall mean any Preferred A
Payment Account, Preferred B Payment Account, Preferred C Payment Account or a comparable
memorandum account maintained by the Company for a Preferred Member pursuant to Section
3.3(f) in respect of any other class or series of Preferred Units.

257 Theterm “Preferred Unit” shall mean any Preferred A Unit, Preferred B
Unit, Preferred C Unit or other Unit of a class or series of Units authorized by the Board
pursuant to this Agreement and designated as a Preferred Unit.

258 The term “Requlatory Allocations’ shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 4.7 of this Agreement.

259 The term “Remaining Interests’ shal have the meaning set forth in
Section 9.2(d).

260 The teem “SEC” shal mean the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission.

2.61 The term “Transfer” shall mean any sale, assignment, transfer, gift,
exchange, bequest or other disposition of an Interest, in any manner, voluntary or involuntary, by
operation of law or otherwise.

2.62 The term “Transfer Notice” shall have the meaning given in Section

9.2(a).

2.63 The term “Transferee” shall mean the person to whom a Member
Transfers, or proposes to Transfer, an Interest.

2.64 The term “Transferring Member” shall mean any Member which
Transfers, or proposes to Transfer, an Interest.

265 The term “Treasury Regulations’ or “Treas. Reg.” shal mean
regulations promulgated under the Code in effect as of the date hereof or hereafter amended or
adopted.

2.66 The term “Unallocated Preference Amount” of a Preferred Member as
of any date shall mean the excess of such Preferred Member’s aggregate Preference Amount
accumulated from the inception of the Company to such date (including portions thereof which
may have been distributed previously and any portion not yet distributed) over the aggregate
amount of Net Income allocated to such Member pursuant to Section 4.3(a)(i) from the inception
of the Company to such date.




2.67 The term “Units’ shall mean any of the Common Units or Preferred
Units.

ARTICLE ITARTICLE I

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, CAPITAL ACCOUNTS
AND PREFERRED CAPITAL AMOUNTS

3.1  Authorized Membership Interests. The Company shall be authorized to
accept Capital Contributions in respect of, and to issue, one million three hundred ninety
thousand (1,390,000) Common Units (the “I nitial Common Units’), provided one hundred forty
thousand (140,000) of the Common Units shall be reserved and held for issuance to Directors,
officers, employees or independent contractors, from time to time, for services provided or to be
provided to the Company and for such other consideration and on such other terms as the Board
may deem appropriate. The Company is authorized to accept Capital Contributions in respect of,
and to issue, five (5) Preferred Units designated Series A (the “Preferred A Units’), twenty (25)
Preferred Units designated Series B (the “Preferred B Units’) and thirty-five (35) Preferred
Units designated Series C (the “Preferred C Units’; and, together with the Preferred A Units
and the Preferred B Units, the “Initial Preferred Units’). In addition, the Company shall be
authorized to issue additional Interests and Units to the extent so authorized by the Board,
subject to Section 3.2(c).

3.2 I nitial Capital Contributions; Combined Units; Additional | nterests.

€) All Initial Common Units (other than the Employee Units), to the
extent issued, shall be issued and sold for a price of $0.10 per Common Unit (or such
greater price as may be determined by the Board). All Initia Preferred Units, to the
extent issued, shall be issued and sold for the price of $1,000,000 per Preferred Unit.

(b) All Units (other than Employee Units) authorized under Section
3.1 shall be issued as part of Combined Units in accordance with this Section 3.2(b).
Five hundred thousand (500,000) Common Units and five (5) Preferred A Units shall be
issued to KAP Group LLC as five (5) Combined A Units, each Combined A Unit
consisting of one hundred thousand (100,000) Common Units and one (1) Preferred A
Unit. Up to five hundred thousand (500,000) Common Units and up to twenty-five (25)
Preferred B Units may be issued as up to twenty-five (25) Combined B Units, each
Combined B Unit to consist of twenty thousand (20,000) Common Units and one
Preferred B Unit. A number of Common Units up to the excess of seven hundred and
fifty thousand (750,000) over the number of Common Units actually issued as part of
Combined B Units and a number of Preferred C Units up to the excess of fifty (50) over
the number of Preferred B Units actually issued as part of Combined B Units will be
issued as a number of Combined C Units up to the excess of fifty (50) over the number of
Combined B Units actualy issued. No Combined B Units may be issued after any
Combined C Units are issued. The Board shall have the power and authority (subject to
this Section 3.2(b)) prior to the issuance of Combined C Units to fix the number of
Common Units issuable with a Preferred C Unit as a Combined C Unit, provided, that
each Combined C Unit shal include the same number of Common Units. The Units



described in this section 3.2(b) shall be issued to such persons as the Board shall
determine in its sole discretion at any time and from time to time.

(c) In the event that the Board determines that it is in the best interest
of the Company to offer and issue additional Interests and Units other than those
specifically authorized and issued pursuant to Sections 3.1, 3.2(a) and 3.2(b), and except
as otherwise set forth below, each Member shall be given prompt written notice of such
offering and issuance of additional Interests and Units and a reasonable opportunity to
commit to contribute additional capital and to contribute additional capital in respect of
such Interests and Units, in proportion to the number of Common Units held by it, on the
same terms as those offered. Any such Interests which are not acquired by Members may
be sold by the Company to other Persons. The foregoing provisions shall not apply to the
issuance of Common Units to the Directors, officers, employees and independent
contractors of the Company or any of its Controlled Subsidiaries for services provided or
to be provided, which Common Units in the aggregate do not exceed ten percent (10%)
of the number of al Common Units that would be outstanding upon such issuance on a
Fully Diluted Basis. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, so long as KAP Group
LLC shall hold Common Units, at any time that the Company issues Common Units to
Members or other persons pursuant to this Section 3.2(c), KAP Group LLC shall have the
right to purchase Common Units in a number sufficient to permit KAP Group LLC to
maintain its Percentage Interest in the Company at the same purchase price as that being
offered to other persons (but without any requirement that might apply to other
purchasers to acquire Preferred Units in conjunction with their acquisition of Common
Units or any other terms).

(d) Subject to the provisions of Section 3.2(c), the Board in its
discretion may authorize and issue additional Interests and Units, and accept Capital
Contributions in respect of additional Interests and Units, from time to time, for such
consideration and on such other terms as the Board may deem appropriate, provided that
no additional Preferred Units shall have any right to receive distributions representing a
return of capital or a return on capita in priority to such rights of any class or series of
Preferred Units then outstanding, without the approval of the Members holding a
majority of the Preferred Units comprising each class or series of Preferred Units so
affected (it being understood that the foregoing proviso shal not prohibit the Board from
authorizing Preferred Units entitling the Preferred Members holding such Units to
distributions representing a return of capital on a pro rata basis with other Preferred
Members in proportion to the number of Common Units held by all Preferred Members
or distributions representing a return on capital on a pro rata basis (based on undistributed
Preference Amounts) with other Preferred Members.

3.3 Capital Accounts; Preferred Payment Accounts.

@ The Company shall establish and maintain a Capital Account for
each Member.

(b) The Capital Account of each Member shall be increased by the
amount of the income and gain allocated to such Member, and shall be decreased by any
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losses and deductions allocated, or distributions made, to such Member pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement. It is the intention of the Members that Capital Accounts be
maintained strictly in accordance with Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv).

(©) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the
manner in which Capital Accounts are maintained shall be modified, if necessary, in the
opinion of the Company's accountants, to comply with applicable law, provided that no
such change shall materially alter the economic agreement between or among the
Members.

(d) Except as otherwise required by the LLC Act or permitted under
this Agreement, no Member shall have any liability to restore al or any portion of any
Capital Account having a deficit balance.

(e) No Member shall be paid interest on the balance of its Capital
Account unless otherwise determined by the Board, except as otherwise provided in this
Aqgreement.

H The Company shall establish and maintain a memorandum account
designated a Preferred A Payment Account, Preferred B Payment Account and Preferred
C Payment Account for each Member holding Preferred A Units, Preferred B Units and
Preferred C Units, respectively, which shall be increased by the amount paid for
Preferred Units of such class purchased by such Member, and decreased by any
distributions made to such Member pursuant to Sections 4.1(b)(ii).

34 Adjustments to Capital Accounts.

@ The Board may, in its discretion, adjust the Capita Accounts to
reflect a revaluation of the Company's assets upon the occurrence of any of the following
events:

0] a Capital Contribution by a new or existing Member as
consideration for the issuance of a Unit;

(i) the distribution of cash or other property by the Company
to a retiring or continuing Member as consideration for the repurchase or
redemption of a Unit; or

(i)  events described in Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-
1(b)(2)(iv)(f).

(b) Any adjustment pursuant to Section 3.4(a) of this Agreement shall
be based on the fair market value of Company property on the date of adjustment, and
shall reflect the manner in which the unrealized income, gain, loss or deduction inherent
in the property, not previoudly reflected in Capital Accounts, would be allocated among
the Members if there were a taxable disposition of the property for fair market value on
that date.
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(c) If there is any basis adjustment pursuant to an election under Code
Section 754, the Capital Accounts shall be adjusted to the extent required by Treas. Reg.
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m).

3.5 Return of Capital Contributions. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, no Member shall have any right to demand or receive (a) any cash or property of the
Company in return of its Capital Contribution or in respect of its Interest until the dissolution of
the Company, or (b) any distribution from the Company in any form other than cash.

3.6 Transfer of Interest. If an Interest is Transferred as permitted by this
Agreement, the Transferee shall succeed to the Capital Account of the Transferring Member to
the extent the Capital Account relates to the Transferred Interest in accordance with Treas. Reg.
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(1).

3.7 Admission of Additional Members. Each Member admitted after the
effective date of the Initial Operating Agreement shall execute and deliver a written instrument
satisfactory to the Board whereby such Member becomes a party to this Agreement, as well as
any other documents (including a Subscription Agreement) required by the Board. Upon
execution and delivery of a counterpart of this Agreement and acceptance thereof by the Board,
and upon payment for the Interest and/or Units acquired, such Person shall be admitted as a
Member of the Company and shall thereafter be entitled to all the rights and subject to al the
obligations of Members as set forth herein.

ARTICLE IVARTICLE IV

DISTRIBUTIONS AND ALLOCATIONS
4.1 Distributions.

€) Distributions of cash shall be made no less than three days prior to
April 15 of each year, to each Member an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the
excess of (i) the cumulative taxable income (as determined for federal income tax
purposes) of the Company for al tax years (to and including the preceding tax year)
allocated to such Member over (ii) the sum of al amounts previously distributed to such
Member pursuant to this Section 4.1(a) and any amount allocated to such Member
pursuant to Section 4.3(a)(i) with respect to the preceding tax year; provided, however,
that the distributions to Members (other than to Members in respect of Employee Units)
that would otherwise be required by this Section 4.1(a) shall not be made to the extent
that such distributions would result in a Net Capital Violation.

(b) Distributions may be made, at the discretion of the Board, as set
forth below:

0] on the last day of each calendar quarter, to each Preferred
Member an amount not exceeding such Preferred Member’'s undistributed
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Preference Amount, such amounts to be distributed to all Preferred Members in
proportion to their respective undistributed Preference Amounts,

(i) on June 30 of each year, so long as no undistributed
Preference Amounts remain, to each Preferred Member in proportion to the
Common Units held by such Preferred Member, in an amount equal to (or in such
larger amount as the Board may determine) fifty percent (50%) of the excess of
Net Income over the sum of (A) fifty percent (50%) of the total amount
distributed pursuant to Section 4.1(b)(i), plus (B) the total amount distributed
pursuant to Section 4.1(a); provided that no Preferred Member shall have the right
to receive distributions under this Section 4.1(b)(ii) if such Preferred Member’'s
Preferred Payment Account has been reduced to zero, and that any distributions
under this Section 4.1(b)(ii) shall be made to other Preferred Members in
proportion to the Common Units held by each of them without regard to the
Common Units held by any Preferred Members whose Preferred Payment
Accounts have been reduced to zero;

(i) on June 30 of each year, so long as a distribution has been
made on such date pursuant to Section 4.1(b)(ii) and in such aggregate amount as
the Board may determine and no undistributed Preference Amounts remain, to
each Member in proportion to the Common Units held by such Member.

4.2  Limitation on Distributions. No distribution shall be declared and paid
unless, after giving effect thereto, the assets of the Company exceed the Company's liabilities.

4.3 Allocations of Net |ncome and Net L 0ss.

@ After giving effect to the specia allocations set forth in Section 4.5
and 4.6, Net Income for each taxable period and al items of income and gain taken into
account in computing Net Income for such taxable period shall be allocated to the
Members in the following order and priority:

0] first, anong the Preferred Members in proportion to their
respective Unallocated Preference Amounts;

(i) second, among the Members in an amount equa to the
excess, if any, of Net Loss alocated to such Member pursuant to Section
4.3(b)(iii) over Net Income previously allocated to such Member under this
Section 4.3(a)(ii), in proportion to the amount of such excesses;

(i)  third, among the Members in an amount equal to the
excess, if any, of Net Loss alocated to such Member pursuant to Section
4.3(b)(ii) over Net Income previously allocated to such Member under this
Section 4.3(a)(iii), in proportion to the amount of such excesses. Net Income
shall be allocated pursuant to this Section 4.3(a)(iii) in a manner that reverses the
alocation of Net Loss allocated pursuant to Section 4.3(b)(ii) in reverse order,
i.e., taking into account allocations pursuant to the second sentence of Section

13



4.3(b)(ii) before taking into account alocations made under the first sentence of
Section 4.3(b)(ii);

(iv)  fourth, among the Members in an amount equal to the
excess, if any, of Net Loss alocated to such Member pursuant to Section 4.3(b)(i)
over Net Income previously allocated to such Member under this Section
4.3(a)(iv), in proportion to the amount of such excesses;

(v) thereafter, among the Members in proportion to their
respective Common Units.

(b) After giving effect to the special alocations set forth in Sections
4.5 and 4.6, Net Loss for each taxable period and all items of loss and deduction taken
into account in computing Net Loss for such taxable period shall be allocated to the
Members in the following order and priority:

0] first, among al the Members in proportion to their
respective Common Units, but only to the extent such amount when so allocated
would not result in, or cause an increase in, a deficit balance in any Member's
Adjusted Capital Account;

(i) second, among al the Members that do not have an
Adjusted Capital Account with a deficit balance in proportion to their respective
Common Units, but only to the extent such amount when so allocated would not
result in, or cause an increase in, a deficit balance in any Member's Adjusted
Capital Account. This Section 4.3(b)(ii) shall be applied, mutatis mutandis, until
the allocation of Net Loss would cause each of the Members to have a deficit
balance for such Member's Adjusted Capital Account;

(i)  thereafter, among the Members in proportion to their
respective Common Units.

(c) Notwithstanding Sections 4.3(a) and (b), Net Income or Net Loss
arising from transactions in connection with or in contemplation of a liquidation of the
Company or upon a sale of substantialy al of the assets of the Company shall be
allocated such that, to the extent possible, the amount of cash each Member shall recelve
on account of its Interests pursuant to Section 10.2(b) shall equal the amount of cash such
Member would receive if the net proceeds of such sale or other transactions available for
distribution to the Members were distributed pursuant to Section 4.1 hereof.

44  [Intentionally Deleted].

45  Qualified Income Offset. Notwithstanding anything in this Article IV to
the contrary, in the event any Member unexpectedly receives any adjustments, allocations, or
distributions described in Treas. Reg. 81.704-1(b)(2)(ii) (d)(4), (5) or (6) which cause a deficit or
increase the deficit in the Member's Capital Account, items of Company gross income and gain
shall be allocated to the Member in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate the deficit in
its Capital Account as quickly as possible; provided, however, that for this purpose, a Capital
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Account shall be increased by the Member's share of Company Minimum Gain as of the end of
the Fiscal Year. Itistheintention of the Members that this Section 4.5 be treated as a “ qualified
income offset” within the meaning of Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d). Such Section of
the Treasury Regulations shall control in the case of any conflict between that Section of the
Treasury Regulations and this Section 4.5.

4.6 Minimum Gain.

@ Nonrecourse Deductions. Company Nonrecourse Deductions shall
be alocated to the Capital Accounts as set forth in Section 4.3 of this Agreement.
Member Nonrecourse Deductions shall be allocated to the Member that bears the
economic risk of loss with respect to the debt to which such Member Nonrecourse
Deduction is attributable.

(b) Distributions of Nonrecourse Financing Proceeds. If the Company
makes a distribution to the Members that is allocable to the proceeds of any nonrecourse
liability of the Company, or of any other entity in which the Company has an interest,
such distribution shall be allocable to an increase in Company Minimum Gain as
provided in Treas. Reg. Sections 1.704-2(h) and (i)(6).

(c) Company Minimum Gain. Each Member's share of Company
Minimum Gain shall be determined as provided in Treas. Reg. Sections 1.704-2(g) and

()(S).

(d) Minimum Gain Chargeback. If there is a net decrease in Company
Minimum Gain for a Fiscal Year, items of Company income and gain shall be allocated
to the Capital Accounts as provided in Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-2(f). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, to the extent such net decrease is attributable to a Member Nonrecourse
Debt, then any Member with a share of the minimum gain attributable to such debt shall
be allocated items of income and gain as provided in Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-2(i)(4).

4.7  Regulatory Allocations. The alocations set forth in Sections 4.5 and 4.6
of this Agreement (the “Regulatory Allocations’) are intended to comply with certain
requirements of Treas. Reg. Sections 1.704-1(b) and 1.704-2. The Regulatory Allocations might
not be consistent with the manner in which the Members intend to divide Company distributions.
Accordingly, the Board is hereby authorized to allocate other items of income, gain, loss, and
deduction among the Members so as, to the extent possible, to prevent the Regulatory
Allocations from causing the manner in which Company distributions will be divided between
the Members pursuant to this Agreement to be different from the divison intended by the
Members. In general, the Members anticipate that this will be accomplished by specialy
allocating other items of Company income, gain, loss and deduction among the Members so that,
to the extent possible, the net amount of the Regulatory Allocations and such other items to each
Member shall be equal to the net amount that would have been allocated to each such Member if
the Regulatory Allocations had not been required.
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4.8  Allocation of Nonrecourse Liabilities. For purposes of Treas. Reg.
Section 1.752-3(a), the Members' interests in Net Income shall be equal to their respective
Common Units.

49  Allocation of Taxable Income and Loss. The income, gains, losses,
credits and deductions of the Company shall be allocated among the members in the same
manner as such items are alocated to the Capital Accounts of the members, to the extent
permitted under the Code and applicable Treasury Regulations.

4.10 Distributions In Kind. All distributions of Company property in kind
shall be valued at their fair market value as of the date of distribution, and the amount of any
gain or loss that would be realized by the Company if it were to sell such property at such fair
market value shall be allocated to the Members in accordance with Section 4.3 of this
Aqgreement.

411 Tax Returnsand Other Elections. The Board shall cause the preparation
and timely filing of all tax returns required to be filed by the Company pursuant to the Code and
all applicable laws of each jurisdiction in which the Company does business. Copies of all such
returns, or summaries thereof, shall be furnished to the Members within a reasonable time after
the end of each Fiscal Year. All elections permitted to be made by the Company under federa or
state laws shall be made by the Board, in its sole discretion. All matters concerning alocations
for income tax purposes not expressly provided for by the terms of this Agreement shall be
determined by the Board. William Porter is designated the “Tax Matters Partner” pursuant to
Section 6231(a)(7) of the Code.

412 Transfersof Interest. If an Interest is Transferred during the Fiscal Y ear
as permitted by this Agreement,

€) Net Income and Net Loss alocable to such Interest shal be
proportioned between the Transferring Member and Transferee as of the date of Transfer
of the Interest on the last day of the Fiscal Quarter in which the Transfer occurred, and
the portion of Net Income and Net Loss allocated to the Transferring Member shall be
determined by multiplying the Net Income and Net Loss allocable to such Interest by a
fraction, the numerator of which is the number of calendar days the Transferring Member
owned the Interest (not including the day the Transfer was effected) and the denominator
of which is the total number of calendar days in the Fiscal Quarter, and the portion of Net
Income and Net Loss alocated to the Transferee shal be the remainder of the Net
Income and Net Loss; and

(b) tax credits, if any, shall be allocated among the Interest holders as
determined at the time the property with respect to which the credit is claimed is placed
in service

4.13 Partnership Tax Status. The Members intend that the Company will be
treated as a partnership for U.S. Federal, state and local income tax purposes, and no election to
the contrary shall be made unless approved by the Board of Directors.
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ARTICLE VARTICLE V

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

51 Number: M anagement and Authority.

@ The Company shall have up to eight (8) managers serving on a
Board of Directors, each of which shal be referred to individually as a “Director” and
collectively as the “Board of Directors’ or the “Board.” The number of Directors shall
be fixed from time to time by action of the Board. A Director shall serve until any
meeting of Members that may be called pursuant to Section 5.2 for the purpose of
electing Directors or until its successor shall have been elected and qualified.

(b) The property, business and affairs of the Company shal be
managed by the Directors. Except where the Members approval is expressy required by
this Agreement or by the Act, the Directors shall have full authority, power and discretion
to make all decisions with respect to the Company's business and to perform such other
services and activities as set forth in this Agreement; provided, however, that except as
otherwise provided in this Agreement, any determination of the Directors shall be made
by a majority of the Directors. The Directors shall be agents of the Company for its
business purposes and any Director may bind the Company in the ordinary course,
provided that (i) the Directors shall have approved such action in accordance with this
Agreement or the Act and (ii) the Person with whom such Director is dealing has no
knowledge that the action has not been so approved. Unless otherwise expressly
authorized by this Agreement or the Members as set forth herein, the act of a Director
that is not apparently for carrying on the Company's business in the ordinary course shall
not bind the Company.

(c) If any action by the Company requires the approval of the
Directors under this Agreement, such action shall require approva by a maority of the
Directors. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement or the Act, the
Members shall have no right to control or manage, nor shal they take any part in the
control or management of, the property, business or affairs of the Company, but they may
exercise the rights and powers of Members under this Agreement, including, without
limitation, the right to approve certain matters as provided herein.

5.2  Election and Tenure of Directors. Each Director shall be elected by a

vote of Members holding a mgjority of the Common Units then outstanding. Each Director shall
be entitled to hold office until his or her death, resignation or removal pursuant to Section 5.5

5.3 Certain Powers of the Directors. Without limiting the generality of

Section 5.1, but subject to Section 5.4, the Directors shall have the power and authority, on
behalf of the Company, to:

@ acquire property in the ordinary course of the Company's business
from any Person (including Members, Directors or affiliates of any thereof);
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(b) purchase life, liability and other insurance to protect the
Company's property and business,

(©) establish bank accounts in the name of the Company and establish
the identity of al signatories entitled to draw against such accounts for the benefit of the
Company;

(d) employ, and fix the terms of employment and termination of
employment of, employees of the Company (including Members or affiliates of Members
or Directors), and accountants, legal counsel and other consultants for the Company (but
not including Directorsin their capacity as such);

(e) invest Company funds in time deposits, short-term governmental
obligations, commercial paper or other similar investments or in any other capital asset or
investment in the ordinary course;

) execute on behalf of the Company all instruments and documents,
including, without limitation, checks, drafts, notes and other negotiable instruments,
mortgages or deeds of trust, security agreements, financing statements, documents
providing for the acquisition or disposition of the Company's property, assignments, bills
of sde, leases, partnership agreements, and any other instruments or documents
necessary, in the opinion of the Directors, to the business of the Company and relating to
transactions that have been approved in accordance with this Agreement;

(9) except as otherwise set forth in Section 5.4, borrow money for the
Company in the ordinary course, on a secured or unsecured basis, from banks or any
other Person (including Members, Directors or affiliates of any thereof);

(h) enter into any and all other agreements on behalf of the Company
with any other Person (including Members, Directors or affiliates of any thereof), for any
purpose in the ordinary course, in such forms as the Directors may approve;

0] ingtitute, prosecute and defend legal, administrative or other suits
or proceedings in the Company's hame;

0 cause the Company to issue additiona Interests as contemplated
under Section 3.2(d), subject to Section 3.2(c); and

(k) establish pension, benefit and incentive plans for any or all current
or former Members, Directors, employees, and/or agents of the Company, on such terms
and conditions as the Directors may approve, and make payments pursuant thereto.

54  Decisions Reguiring Approval of Common Members. The approva of
Members holding at least two-thirds of the Common Units then outstanding shall be required to
authorize any act or transaction by one or more Directors that will result in a Fundamental
Change.
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55 Resignation or Removal. A Director may resign at any time by giving
notice to the Members, effective upon receipt thereof or at such later time specified therein.
Unless otherwise specified in the notice, acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to
make it effective. The resignation of a Director shal not affect its rights as a Member. Any
Director may be removed, with or without cause, only by a vote of the Members holding a
majority of the Common Units then outstanding.

5.6 M eetings of Board.

@ Notice of the time and place of each meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be delivered to each Board member, either personally (including by
courier) or by telephone, telegraph or facsimile, at least twenty-four (24) hours before the
time at which such meeting is to be held, or shall be mailed to each Director by first-class
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to it at its mailing address set forth in the records of the
Company, at least three (3) days before the day on which such meeting is to be held.
Attendance of a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting,
except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the
beginning of such meeting, to the transaction of any business on the ground that the
meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Minutes of all meetings of the Board shall be
kept and retained in the records of the Company.

(b) Any action permitted or required by applicable law or this
Agreement to be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if a
consent is in writing, setting forth the action to be taken, is signed by each of the
Directors. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a vote at a meeting and
may be stated as such in any document or instrument filed with the Secretary of State of
New York, and the execution of such consent shall constitute attendance or presence in
person at a meeting of the Board. Subject to the requirements of this Agreement for
notices of special meetings, Directors may participate in and hold a meeting of the Board,
by means of a telephone conference or similar communications equipment by means of
which al Directors participating in the meeting can hear and speak to each other, and
participation in such meeting shall constitute attendance and presence in person at such
meeting, except where a Director participates in the meeting for the express purpose of
objecting, a the beginning of such meeting, to the transaction of any business on the
ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

(©) The Board shall be entitled to appoint the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”). The Chairman shall preside over al meetings of the Board and shall
have such other powers, authority and responsibility ad the Board may, from time to
time, delegate to such Chairman. The Chairman shall (subject to the right of the Board to
designate the Chairman as provided above) be entitled to hold office until death,
resignation or removal. The person who is serving as Chairman may be removed as
Chairman, with or without cause, only by the Board and the right of removal may be
exercised at any time.

5.7  Vacancies. In the event that the position of a Director becomes vacant,
(including as aresult of an increase in the number of Directors) a replacement shall be nominated
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by agreement of the Board and shall be elected by a vote of the Members holding a majority of
Common Units then outstanding, provided that Members holding Common Units that have not
vested pursuant to a Buy-Sell Agreement shall not have the right to vote for or against such
replacement.

5.8 Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to
the contrary, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law from time to time, the Directors
shall not have any liability to the Company or any Member by reason of being or having been a
Director or for any breach of their duties in such capacity, provided that this Section 5.8 shall not
affect the Directors liability:

@ if an adverse judgment or other fina adjudication establishes that
(i) his acts or omissions were in bad faith, or involved, intentional misconduct, (ii) he
gained financial or other advantages to which he was not entitled, or (iii) he did not
perform his duties as required under the LLC Act with respect to a distribution made in
violation of the LLC Act; or

(b) for any act or omission prior to June 30, 1998.

5.9 Reliance on Information. In performing their duties, the Directors shall
be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements,
in each case prepared or presented by:

@ one or more agents or employees of the Company; or

(b) counsel, public accountants or other persons, as to matters that the
Board believes to be within such person’ s respective professional or expert competence.

5.10 No Exclusive Duty. The Directors may have other business interests and
may engage in other activities in addition to those relating to the Company. Neither the
Company nor any Member shall have any right, by virtue of this Agreement, to share or
participate in such other investments or activities of the Directors or in any income or revenues
derived therefrom.

5.11 Execution of Documents.

@ Except as otherwise determined by the Board or the Members or as
set forth herein or in the LLC Act, any document or instrument may be executed and
delivered on behalf of the Company by any Director expressly authorized by the Board of
Directors, including, without limitation, any deed, mortgage, note or other evidence of
indebtedness, lease, security agreement, financing statement, contract of sale or other
instrument purporting to convey or encumber, in whole or in part, any or al of the assets
of the Company at any time held in its name, or any compromise or settlement with
respect to accounts receivable or claims of the Company; and, subject to the authorization
requirements set forth herein or in the LLC Act, no other signature shall be required for
any such instrument to bind the Company.

20



(b) Any third person dealing with the Company, the Board or the
Members may rely upon a certificate signed by a mgority of the Directors as to (i) the
identity of the Members or the Board, (ii) acts by the Members or the Board, (iii) any act
or failure to act by the Company, or (iv) any other matter involving the Company or any
Director.

5.12 Powers of the Board in Bankruptcy. The Board shall have the power
and authority, on behalf of the Company and any Controlled Subsidiary, to:

@ represent the Company or a Controlled Subsidiary in any
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings to which it is a party, in whatever capacity;

(b) determine whether the Company or a Controlled Subsidiary shall
file any petition under the United States Bankruptcy Code or other applicable insolvency
law; and

(c) execute and deliver, in the name of the Company or otherwise, any
and all documents and instruments, including, without limitation, petitions and requests
for relief, necessary or desirable in connection with actions under Section 5.11(a) or (b)
of this Agreement, as determined by the Board.

5.13 Compensation and Expenses. The compensation of the Directors shall
be fixed from time to time by the Board.

5.14 Delegation to Agents and Officers. The Board may delegate functions
relating to the day-to-day operations of the Company to such officers, agents, consultants or
employees as the Board may from time to time designate. Such officers, agents, consultants and
employees need not be Members or Directors, and shall have such duties, powers,
responsibilities and authority as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board, and may be
removed at any time, with or without cause, by the Board.

5.15 Other Duties of the Board. In addition to its other duties set forth herein,

the Board:

@ shall determine, from time to time, the method of accounting and
the independent accountants for the Company;

(b) may make, on behalf of the Company, the election permitted by
Code Section 754 with respect to adjustments to the basis of the Company property; and

(c) shall, promptly following receipt thereof, give notice to the
Members of any proposed audit or adjustment of any Company tax return.

ARTICLE VIARTICLE VI
MEMBERS

6.1 Rights of Members.
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@ Common Members shall have only such voting rights and powers
as may be specifically provided under the LLC Act, the Articles of Organization and
Sections 3.2, 5.2, 5.4, 5.5, 5.7, 9.4 and 12.4 of this Agreement; provided, however, that
for the purposes of said sections of this Agreement no Member shall be entitled to voting
rights in respect of any Common Units which remain unvested pursuant to the terms of
any applicable Buy-Sell Agreement (but shall be entitled to vote in respect of any vested
Common Units) and all Common Units which remain unvested shall be deemed not to be
outstanding for purposes of said sections.

(b) Preferred Members shall have no voting rights other than those
arising by virtue of ownership of Common Units, as conferred by the preceding Section
6.1(a).

6.2 M eetings of M embers.

@ An annua meeting of the Members shall be held during each
calendar year on a date determined at the discretion of the Board. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors, no other periodic meetings of the Members shall be required
to be called or conducted.

(b) Specia meetings of the Members may be called by the Directors or
any Member or Members holding at least twenty-five per cent (25%) of al Common
Units, for any purpose or purposes, including the election or removal of Directors, unless
otherwise prescribed by the LLC Act, and shall be held at such times and places within or
without the State of New Y ork as the Persons calling such meeting may from time to time
determine.

(c) Notice of the time, place and purpose or purposes of each meeting
of the Members shall be delivered to each Member entitled to vote at the meeting either
personally (including by courier) or by telephone, telegraph, facsimile or first class mail,
postage prepaid, addressed to it at its mailing address, at least ten (10) but not more than
sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting. An affidavit of a Person giving such
notice shall, absent fraud, be prima facie evidence that notice of a meeting has been
given. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Member who, either before or after
the meeting, executes a waiver of notice, or who attends such meeting without objecting,
at its beginning, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully
called or convened.

(d) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or as required by
the LLC Act, Members holding a majority of the Units entitled to vote on, or take action
with respect to, any matter shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at
such meeting. In the absence of a quorum, a mgority in interest of Members present and
entitled to vote thereat may adjourn any meeting from time to time for a period not to
exceed sixty (60) days without further notice. If the adjournment is for more than sixty
(60) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned
meeting, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each Member of record
entitled to vote on, or take action with respect to, any matter at such meeting. At any

22



adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business that might have been
transacted at the meeting as originally noticed may be transacted. The Members present
at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact business until adjournment,
notwithstanding the withdrawal during the meeting of that number of Members whose
absence would result in less than a quorum being present.

6.3 Proxies and Voting Arrangements. At al meetings of Members, a
Member may vote in person or by proxy executed in writing by the Member or by a duly
authorized attorney-in-fact. The proxy shall be filed with the Company before or at the time of
the meeting. No proxy shal be valid after eleven (11) months from the date of its execution,
unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Any proxy, or other arrangement, by contract or
otherwise, by which a Member grants to a non-Member any right to exercise any Management
Interest, shall be null and void.

6.4  Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken
at any meeting of the Members may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without
a vote, if Members holding voting interests sufficient to authorize such action at a meeting at
which al of the Members entitled to vote thereon were present and voted consent thereto in
writing. Such consent shall be delivered to the Company by hand or by certified or registered
mail, return receipt requested, for filing with the Company records. Action taken under this
Section 6.4 shall be effective when all necessary Members have signed a consent, unless the
consent specifies a different effective date.

6.5 Participation in_Meetings by Telephone and Other Equipment.
Members may participate in a meeting by conference telephone or similar communications
equipment, by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and
such participation shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

6.6 Record Dates. For the purpose of determining (a2) Members entitled to
notice of, or to vote at, any meeting of Members or (b) the identity of Members for any other
purpose, the date on which notice of the meeting is mailed, or on which the declaration of such
distribution is adopted, as the case may be, shall be the record date for such determination.
When a determination of Members entitled to vote at any meeting has been made as provided in
this Section 6.6, the determination shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting. The record
date for determining Members entitled to take action without a meeting pursuant to Section 6.4
shall be the date the first Member signs a written consent

6.7  Liability for Wrongful Distributions. A Member who receives a
distribution from the Company which the Member knows to be in violation of this Agreement or
the LLC Act shall be liable to the Company for the amount of such distribution for a period of
three years after it was made.

6.8 Limited Preemptive Rights. Except as otherwise set forth in Section
3.2(c), no Member shall have any preemptive, preferential or other right with respect to (a)
making additional Capital Contributions, (b) the issuance or sale of Interests by the Company, ()
the issuance of any obligations, evidences of indebtedness or securities of the Company
convertible into, exchangeable for, or accompanied by, any rights to receive, purchase or
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subscribe to, any Interests, (d) the issuance of any right of, subscription to or right to receive, or
any warrant or option for the purchase of, any of the foregoing, or (e) the issuance or sale of any
other interests or securities by the Company.

ARTICLE VIIARTICLE VII

COMMITTEES

The Board may designate such Committees of the Board, and such Committees
shall have such powers and consist of such persons, or shall consist of persons selected in such
manner, as may be prescribed by the Board.

ARTICLE VIITARTICLE VIII

OFFICERS

8.1 General. The Company shall have such officers, and such officers shall
have such duties, powers, responsibilities and authority, as may be provided by the Board.

8.2 Appointment, Removal and Resignation. Officers shall be appointed
and removed, and may resign, as provided by the Board.

ARTICLE IXARTICLE IX

TRANSFERABILITY AND WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBERSHIPS

9.1 Transferability. Subject to Section 9.2, aMember may offer for sale and
Transfer all or any portion of, or any rights in, its Interest, provided that the Transfer will not
result in the termination of the Company pursuant to Code Section 708, and provided further that
only Combined Units may be transferred to each Transferee. Notwithstanding the foregoing
sentence, Members may Transfer Preferred Units to an Affiliate of such Member.

9.2 Right of First Refusal.

€) If at any time any Member proposes to Transfer to one or more
third parties (other than a proposed transfer to an immediate family member or a trust
established for the benefit of the Member or its immediate family members), pursuant to
an understanding with such third parties, then such Member (the “Transferring
Member”) shal give each other Member written notice of the Transferring Member’'s
intention to make the Transfer (the "Transfer Notice"). The Transfer Notice shall
include (i) a description of the Interests of the Transferring Member to be offered (the
"Offered Interests') including the amount of such Interests, (ii) the identity of the
prospective offeree(s) and (iii) the consideration and the material terms and conditions
upon which the proposed Transfer is to be made. The Transfer Notice shall certify that
the Transferring Member has received a firm offer from the prospective transferee(s) and
in good faith believes a binding agreement for the Transfer is obtainable on the terms set
forth in the Transfer Notice.
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(b) Each Member shall have an option for a period of twenty (20) days
from the Transferring Member's delivery of the Transfer Notice to elect to purchase its
pro rata share of the Offered Interests at the same price and subject to the same material
terms and conditions as described in the Transfer Notice. Each Member may exercise
such purchase option and, thereby purchase all of his, her or its pro rata share of the
Offered Interests, by notifying the Transferring Member in writing, before expiration of
the twenty (20) day period. Each Member shall be entitled to apportion the Offered
Interests to be purchased among its associates and affiliates, provided that such Member
notifies the Transferring Member of such allocation. If a Member gives the Transferring
Member notice that it desires to purchase its pro rata share of the Offered Interests, then
payment for the Offered Interests shall be by check or wire transfer, against delivery of
the Offered Interests to be purchased at a place agreed upon between the parties and at
the time of the scheduled closing therefor, which shall be no later than forty-five (45)
days after the Member’s receipt of the Transfer Notice, unless the value of the purchase
price has not yet been established pursuant to Section 9.2(c).

(c) Should the purchase price specified in the Transfer Notice be
payable in property other than cash or evidences of indebtedness, the Members shall have
the right to pay the purchase price in the form of cash equal in amount to the value of
such property. If the Transferring Member and the Members cannot agree on such cash
value within five (5) days after the Members' receipt of the Transfer Notice, the valuation
shall be made by an appraiser of recognized standing selected by the Transferring
Member and the Members or, if they cannot agree on an appraiser within the fifteen (15)
days after the delivery of the Transfer Notice), each shall select an appraiser of
recognized standing and the two appraisers shall designate a third appraiser of recognized
standing, whose appraisal shall be determinative of such value. The cost of such
appraisal shall be shared equally by the Transferring Member and the Members, with the
costs pro rata by each based on the number of Interest such parties are purchasing
pursuant to this Section 9.2. If the time for the closing of the subject Interest has expired
but for the determination of the value of the purchase price offered by the prospective
transferee(s), then such closing shall be held on or prior to the fifth business day after
such valuation shall have been made pursuant to this subsection.

(d) To the extent that the Members have not exercised their rights to
purchase the Offered Interests within time periods specified in Section 9.2(b), the
Transferring Member shall have a period of forty-five (45) days from the expiration of
rights in which to sell the remaining Offered Interests (the “Remaining I nterests’), upon
terms and conditions (including the purchase price) no more favorable than those
specified in Transfer Notice to the third-party transferee(s) identified in the Transfer
Notice. Prior to transfer the third-party transferee(s) shall agree in writing that they
acquire the Interests subject to the rights of first refusal under this Agreement and shall
become parties to this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof. In the event the
Transferring Member does not consummate the sale or disposition of the Remaining
Interests within the sixty (60) day period from the expiration of these rights, the
Members first refusal rights shall continue to be applicable to any subsequent disposition
of the Offered Interests or Remaining Interests by the Transferring Member until such
right lapses in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, the exercise or
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non-exercise of the rights of the Members under this Section 9.2 to purchase Interests
from the Transferring Member or participate in sales of Interests by the Transferring
Member shall not adversely affect their rights to make subsequent purchases from the
Transferring Members of Interests or subsequently participate in the sale of Interests by
the Transferring Members.

9.3 Withdrawal. A Member shall have no right or power to surrender such
Member's Interest voluntarily or otherwise take, or permit to be taken, any action to such effect,
except in accordance with the provisions of this Article IX.

9.4  Resigning Member. Prior to the occurrence of any event specified in
Section 10.1, (i) any Member may, by written notice to the Company (a "Member Notice"),
resign as a Member of the Company, effective as of last day of the fiscal quarter of the Company
in which such notice of resignation is given (the "Resignation Date"), or (ii) in the event that
any Member has engaged in crimina acts, fraud, acts resulting in material civil liability or bad
faith or for other good cause, the Company (with the consent of Members holding at least two-
thirds of the Common Units then outstanding), may, by written notice to any Member (a
"Company Notice"), require such Member to resign as a Member of the Company, effective as
of last day of the fiscal quarter in which such notice of resignation is given (the "Buy Out
Date’). Asof the Resignation Date or the Buy Out Date, as applicable, except for the rights set
forth in Section 9.5 or expressy set forth in any other agreement (including an employment
agreement), the Member designated in the applicable notice (the “Resigning M ember”) (and all
Persons claiming by, through or under such Member) shall have no further rights or interests in
and in respect of the Company, including any Membership Interest, any rights in specific
Company property, any rights against the Company or any Member, any rights to any return of
the Resigning Member’s capital or any other rights under this Agreement.

95 Purchase Price.

@ In consideration of the resignation of the Resigning Member, the
Company shall pay to the Resigning Member on a day not later than ninety (90) after the
Resignation Date or Buy-Out Date, a purchase price (the "Purchase Price") equa to the
sum of (i) the balance of any Preferred Payment Account, together with any undistributed
Preference Amount, in respect of any Preferred Units then held by the resigning Member,
plus (ii) the product obtained by multiplying the Company's Members' equity attributable
to Common Units shown on the Company's balance sheet as of the Resignation Date or
Buy-Out Date, as applicable by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of
Common Units held by such Resigning Member, and the denominator of which shall be
the aggregate number of Common Units held by all Members.

(b) The Purchase Price payable to a Member resigning pursuant to
Section 9.4(i) shall be paid by the Company, in its sole discretion, either by payment of
the Purchase Price in cash or by the delivery of a subordinated note in a principal amount
equal to the Purchase Price, maturing on the fifth anniversary of the Resignation Date,
and otherwise substantialy in the form of Exhibit 9.5(b)-1 hereto (a “Subordinated
Note"). The Purchase Price payable to a Member pursuant to Section 9.4(ii) shall be paid
by the Company by delivery to the Resigning Member of the Company's subordinated
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promissory note maturing on the fifth anniversary of the Buy-Out Date and otherwise
substantially in the form of Exhibit 9.5(b)-1 hereto. Each Member agrees that if it
becomes a Resigning Member and receives such a subordinated note, that such note shall
be (i) subordinated to the rights of other creditors of the Company pursuant a
“satisfactory subordination agreement” (as such term is used in Rule 15c3-1d
promulgated by the SEC under the Exchange Act), which each such Resigning Member
shal be obligated to execute and deliver upon delivery of such note, and (ii) paid in
relative priority to the rights of Members to receive distributions upon the terms set forth
in Exhibit 9.5(b)-2 hereto.

ARTICLE XARTICLE X

DISSOLUTION AND TERMINATION

10.1 Events Causing Dissolution and Winding-up. The Company shall be
dissolved up upon the first to occur of the following events:

@ the approval of such action by the Members;

(b) the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
business or assets of the Company;

(c) the expiration of the term of the Company; or

(d) the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution under Section 702 of
the LLC Act.

10.2 Winding up of the Company.

@ If the Company is to be dissolved in accordance with Section 10.1
of this Agreement, then the Board shall wind up the affairs of the Company, including by
selling or otherwise liquidating the Company assets in a bona fide sale or sales to third
persons at such prices and upon such terms as they may determine. If the Board
determines that an immediate sale would be financially inadvisable, it may defer sale of
the Company assets for a reasonable time, or distribute the assets in kind.

(b) The proceeds of any liquidation of the Company shal be
distributed in the following order of priority (to the extent that such order of priority is
consistent with the laws of the State of New Y ork):

0] first, to the payment of the debts and liabilities of the
Company to persons other than Members with respect to Subordinated Notes and
the expenses of dissolution and liquidation;

(i) then, to the establishment of any reserves which the Board
shall deem reasonably necessary for payment of such other debts and liabilities of
the Company (contingent or otherwise), as are specified by the Board, such
reserves to be held in escrow by a bank or trust company selected by the Board,
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and, to be disbursed as directed by the Board in payment of any of the specified
debts and liabilities or, at the expiration of such period as the Board may deem
advisable, to be distributed in the manner hereinafter provided;

(i)  then, to Members holding Subordinated Notes, in
proportion to (and to the extent of) indebtedness due to such Members under such
Subordinated Notes,

(iv)  then, to the Members in proportion to (and to the extent of)
the positive balances of their respective Capital Accounts; and

(v) thereafter, to the Members in proportion to their Common
Units.

(c) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, no
Member shall be entitled to receive, upon liquidation, distributions in excess of the
positive balance of such Member's Capital Account, except to the extent all Members
receive such distributions in proportion to their respective Common Units.

(d) If any assets are distributed in kind, they shall be distributed on the
basis of the fair market value thereof, and shall be deemed to have been sold at fair
market value for purposes of the allocations under Article IV of this Agreement.

(e If the Company is liquidated under Treas. Reg. Section 1.704-
1(b)(2)(ii)(G), the liquidating distribution shall be made by the later of (i) the end of the
Fiscal Year in which liquidation occurs, or (ii) ninety (90) days after the date of
liquidation.

) The Company shall terminate when all assets of the Company have
been sold and/or distributed and all affairs of the Company have been wound up.

10.3 Articles of Dissolution. Within ninety (90) days following the dissolution

and the commencement of winding up of the Company, or at any other time when there are no
Members, Articles of Dissolution shall be prepared, executed and filed in accordance with the
LLC Act.

ARTICLE XIARTICLE XI

INDEMNIFICATION

11.1 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law from

timeto timein effect:

@ the Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the Directors,
Members and officers, agents and employees of the Company and their respective
directors, trustees, shareholders, officers, employees, agents and other affiliates, against
al costs, liahilities, claims, expenses, including reasonable attorneys fees, and damages
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(collectively, "Losses') paid or incurred by any such Person in connection with the
conduct of the Company's business; and

(b) each Person who at any timeis, or has been, a Director, Member or
officer, agent or employee of the Company (an "I ndemnitee"), and is threatened to be, or
is, made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative
or investigative, by reason of the fact that he or it is, or was, a Director, Member, officer,
agent or employee of the Company, or is serving, or has served, at the request of the
Company as a manager, officer, member, employee or agent of another Person, shall be
indemnified against all Losses actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any
such pending, threatened or completed action, suit or proceeding.

provided, however, that no person shall be entitled to indemnification under this Section 11.1 for
liabilities relating to such person’s acts or omissions that were in bad faith or intentional
misconduct.

11.2 Source of Payment. Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Agreement to the contrary, any amount to which an Indemnitee may be entitled under this
Article X1 shal be paid only out of the assets of the Company and any insurance proceeds
available to the Company for such purposes. No Member shall be personaly liable for any
amount payable pursuant to this Article X1, or to make any Capital Contribution, return any
distribution made to it by the Company, or restore any Negative Capital Account balance to
enable the company to make any such payment.

ARTICLE XITARTICLE XI1l1

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

121  Notices. Except as otherwise set forth herein, any notice, demand or
communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be (@) in writing,
(b) delivered by hand, nationally recognized overnight courier service, facsimile or registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to a party at its mailing address or facsimile number
set forth in the books and records of the Company, and (c) deemed to have been given on the
date delivered by hand or sent by facsimile, one business day after deposit with such courier
service, and three business days after being deposited in the United States mail.

12.2 Books of Accounts and Records.

@ At the expense of the Company, the Board shall maintain at the
Company's principal place of business, records and accounts of all operations and
expenditures of the Company, including, without limitation, the following records.

() acurrent list in alphabetical order of the name and mailing
address of each Member, Director, and officer, their respective facsmile numbers
and, with respect to the Members, their respective shares of Net Income and Net
Loss, or information from which such shares can be derived,
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(i) a copy of the Articles of Organization and all amendments
thereto, together with executed copies of any powers of attorney pursuant to
which any such amendment has been executed;

(i)  copies of the Company's federal, state and local income tax
returns and reports, if any, for the three most recent Fiscal Years, provided,
however, that any amounts due under a Subordinated Note issued to a Member
pursuant to Section 9.5(b) within one (1) year prior to the Bankruptcy of the
Company or within one (1) year prior to any of the events of dissolution of the
Company set forth in Section 10.1 shall be payable pursuant to Section 10.2(b)(iv)
below as if such holder of the Subordinated Note remained a Member and the
aggregate of the amounts due under such Subordinated Note constituted the
positive balance of such Member’s Capital Account.

(iv)  copiesof this Agreement, asin effect from time to time;

(v) any writings or other information with respect to each
Member's obligation to contribute cash, property or services to the Company,
including, without limitation, the amount of cash so contributed and a description
and statement of the agreed-upon fair market value of property or services so
contributed or to be contributed,;

(vi)  any financia statements of the Company for the three most
recent Fiscal Years,

(vii)  minutes of every annual, special and court-ordered meeting
of the Members; and

(viii) any written consents obtained from the Members or
Directors for actions taken by Members or Directors without a meeting.

(b) Upon reasonable advance notice, during normal business hours,
any Member or its representatives may, at its expense, inspect and copy the records
described in Section 12.2(a) for any purpose reasonably related to such person's Interest.

12.3 Governing Law. This Agreement, and the application or interpretation
hereof, shall be governed by and in accordance with the laws of the State of New York
applicable to agreements made and fully to be performed therein, and specifically the LLC Act.

124 Amendment of Articles of Organization and Agreement.

€) Except as otherwise required by this Agreement or the Act, this
Agreement may be amended by the affirmative vote of the Members holding a majority
of the Common Units, provided that Member holding Common Units which have not
vested pursuant to a Buy-Sell Agreement shall not have the right to vote on any proposed
Amendment.
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(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section
12.4 or elsewhere in the Agreement (a) any amendment to this Agreement that would
adversely affect (i) the federal income tax treatment to be afforded a Member or (ii) the
liabilities of a Member shall require the consent of each Member affected, and (b) any
amendment to this Agreement that would adversely affect the consent and approval rights
reserved by the Members or any class or series thereof, or which would change the
method of calculating alocations or distributions under Article IV and/or Section 10.2,
shal require the consent of Members holding seventy-five percent (75%) of the
outstanding Unitsin the class or series affected.

125 Amendment by Agreement of Merger. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained in this Agreement, in accordance with Section 1004(e) of the LLC Act, an
agreement of merger or consolidation approved by the Members as required by this Agreement
may effect (a) amendments to this Agreement contained in the agreement of merger or
consolidation or necessitated thereby or (b) the adoption of a new operating agreement for the
Company if it is the surviving or resulting entity, in each case without further action by the
Members.

12.6 Execution of Additional Instruments. Each Member hereby agrees to
execute such other and further documents and instruments, including, without limitation,
statements of their Interests and powers of attorney, as necessary to comply with applicable law
or otherwise as reasonably requested by the Board.

12.7 Construction. Whenever the singular number is used in this Agreement
and when required by the context, the same shall include the plural and vice versa, and the neuter
gender shall include the feminine and masculine genders and vice versa.

12.8 Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and
are in no way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this
Agreement or any of its provisions.

129 Waivers; Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The failure of any party to
pursue any remedy for breach, or to insist upon the strict performance, of any covenant or
condition contained in this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any such right with respect
to any subsequent breach. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, rights and remedies
under this Agreement are cumulative, and the pursuit of any one right or remedy by any party
shal not preclude, or constitute a waiver of, the right to pursue any or all other remedies. All
rights and remedies provided under this Agreement are in addition to any other rights the parties
may have by law, in equity or otherwise.

12.10 Severability. If any provision, or portion thereof, of this Agreement, or
its application to any person or circumstance, shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any
extent, the remainder of this Agreement, such provison and their application shall not be
affected thereby, but shall be interpreted without such unenforceable provision or portion thereof
S0 asto give effect, insofar as is possible, to the original intent of the parties, and shall otherwise
be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.
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12.11 Successors and Assigns. All of the covenants, terms, provisions and
agreements contained in this Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the
parties hereto and, to the extent permitted by this Agreement, their respective heirs, lega
representatives, successors and assigns.

12.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shal constitute one and the same
instrument.

12.13 No_ Right to Petition for Dissolution. The Members agree that
irreparable harm would be done to the business and goodwill of the Company if any Member
were to bring an action in Court under the LLC Act for the judicia dissolution of the Company.
Accordingly, each Member, in his capacity as such, hereby irrevocably waives any such right to
petition for dissolution of the Company under the LLC Act, and all similar rights under other
applicable law, except to the extent such relief may be sought by the Company itself as
authorized by the Members in accordance with this Agreement.

12.14 No Third Party Beneficiaries. The covenants, obligations and rights set
forth in this Agreement are not intended to benefit any creditor of the Company or of any
Member, or any other third person, and except as permitted by applicable law after the obligation
to make an additional Capital Contribution has been fixed, or in connection with certain
wrongful distributions, no such creditor or other third person shall, under any circumstances,
have any right to compel any actions or payments by the Board and/or the Members or shall, by
reason of any provision contained herein, be entitled to make any claim in respect of any debt,
liability, obligation or otherwise against the Company or any Member.

12.15 Directors as Attor neys-in-Fact for Members.

€) Each Member hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints, with
full power of substitution, each Director, its true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full
power and authority in its name, place and stead, to execute, certify, acknowledge,
deliver, file and record at the appropriate public offices:

0] all certificates and other instruments, and any amendment
thereto, which the Board deems appropriate to form, qualify or continue the
business of the Company as alimited liability company;

(i) any other instrument or document which may be required
to be filed by the Company under the laws of any state, or which the Board deems
advisableto file; and

@iy  any instrument or document, including amendments to this
Agreement, which may be required to continue the business of the Company,
admit a Member, or dissolve and liquidate the Company (provided that such
continuation, admission or dissolution are in accordance with this Agreement), or
to reflect any reductions in the amount of Members capital.
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(b) Each Member's appointment of the Directors as its attorneys-in-
fact shall be deemed to be a power coupled with an interest and shall survive the
incompetency, Bankruptcy or dissolution of the Member giving such power, except that,
in the event of a Member's Transfer of an Interest in accordance with this Agreement, this
power of attorney shall survive such Transfer only until such time, if any, as the
Transferee shall have been admitted to the Company as a Member and all required
documents and instruments shall have been duly executed, filed and recorded to effect
such substitution.

12.16 Entire Agreement. The Articles of Organization and this Agreement
embody the entire understanding and agreement between the Members concerning the subject
matter hereof and thereof and supersede any and al prior negotiations, understandings or
agreements with respect thereto. To the extent the LLC Act addresses a matter not otherwise
addressed by this Agreement, it is the intention of the Members that the provisions of the LLC
Act shall apply, but no such application shall otherwise affect any provision of this Agreement.
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AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT

OF

ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERSLLC
(A New York Limited Liability Company)

THIS AMENDMENT No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement (this
“Amendment”) of ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERS LLC (the “Company”) is made
and entered into as of the 10" day of November, 1998, by and among the Members that are
signatories hereto, pursuant to Section 12.4 of that certain Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement dated as of October 1, 1998 among the Members (the “Operating Agreement”;
terms used but not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning assigned thereto
in the Operating Agreement).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Company is a limited liability company organized under the New Y ork
Limited Liability Company Law pursuant to Articles of Organization filed with the Secretary of
State of the State of New Y ork on January 27, 1998 and governed by the Operating Agreement,
and

WHEREAS, the Members of the Company hereby wish to amend the terms of the
Operating Agreement to add provisions that will facilitate the investment in the Company by
persons that are subject to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and to make
such other changes are may be required in order to permit such investors to be admitted as
members of the Company, in each case on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and vauable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, each of the parties hereto hereby agrees as follows:

1. Amendments to the Operating Agreement.

€) The phrase “the date hereof” on line 1 of Section 1.6 of the Operating Agreement
is hereby corrected to read “ June 30, 1998".

(b) A new Section 2.5A is hereby added after Section 2.5 of the Operating Agreement,
toread in its entirety as follows:

The term "BHC Act” shall mean the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended.

DOCSNY1:511718.6
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(©)

Agreement, to

(d)

(€)

A new Section 2.5B is hereby added after Section 2.5A of the Operating
read in its entirety as follows:

The term “BHC Member” shall mean a Member that (i) is (A) a bank holding
company, as defined in Section 2(a) of the BHC Act, (B) a foreign banking
organization subject to the non-banking restrictions of the BHC Act, or (C) anon-
bank subsidiary of an entity described in clause (A) or (B) above, and (ii) so
indicates in writing to the Board of Directors on or before the date such Member is
admitted to the Company.

The first sentence of Section 5.2 shall be amended and restated to read as follows:

Each Director shall be elected by a vote of Members holding a maority of the
Common Units then outstanding; provided, however, that the Company shall have
the right to appoint one (1) director to serve on the Board of Directors.

A new Section 6.1(c) and (d) is hereby added after Section 6.1(b) of the

Operating Agreement, to read as follows:

DOCSNY1:511718.6
&10105-2 PL3

(c) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary and to
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any Member that is both (i) a BHC
Member and (ii) holds a 5.0% or more interest in the Common Units of the
Company, may not vote more than 4.99% of such interests in the Company to the
extent that the exercise of such voting right would cause the Common Units to be
“voting securities” within the meaning of Regulation Y of the Board of Governors
of the Federa Reserve System. Any interest in Common Units held by a BHC
Member in excess of such 4.99% limitation shall be held as a non-voting interest.
Except as provided in this Section 6.1(c), any interest so held as a non-voting
interest shall be identical in all respects to all other Member interests. Any such
interest held as a non-voting interest shall continue as a non-voting interest with
respect to any assignee or other transferee of such BHC Member interests,
provided however, that any non-voting interest that is transferred to a third-party
in a widely dispersed offering shall become a voting interest in the transferee's
hands, provided that no person acquires more than two percent (2%) of the
Common Units in the Company in such offering.

(d) In the event of a Regulatory Change, the effect of which is to
permit a BHC Member to vote more than 4.99% of its interests in the Company,
the foregoing shall be deemed modified to permit such vote in accordance with
such Regulatory Change, upon written notice by such BHC Member to the Board
of Directors. For purposes of this Section 6.1(d), “Regulatory Change’ shal
mean, with respect to any BHC Member, (i) any change on or after the date hereof
in United States federal or state or foreign laws or regulations (including the BHC
Act and Regulation Y thereunder), (ii) the adoption on or after the date hereof of
any interpretation or ruling applying to such BHC Member, individualy or as a
member of a class, under any United States federal or state or foreign laws or



regulations by any court or governmental or regulatory authority charged with the
interpretation or administration thereof, or (iii) the modification on or after the
date hereof of any agreement or commitment with any such governmental or
regulatory authority that is applicable to or binding upon such BHC Member.

3. Generd Terms and Conditions.

€) Conditions Precedent. This Amendment shall become effective immediately upon
the execution and delivery of this Amendment by Members holding a majority of the Common
Units, as provided in Section 12.4(a) of the Operating Agreement.

(b) Entire Agreement; No Other Agreement. Except as expressly provided in this
Amendment, al of the agreements, terms, covenants and conditions contained in the Operating
Agreement shall remain unamended and shall continue to be, and shall remain, in full force and
effect in accordance with their respective terms. The amendments set forth herein shall be limited
precisely as provided for herein and shall not be deemed to be an amendment of, consent to or
modification of any other term, provision, of or under the Operating Agreement or of any term or
provision of any other instrument referred to therein or herein or of any transaction or further or
future action or failure to act by a party hereto or to the Operating Agreement.

(c)  Successors and Assigns. This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. This Amendment shall
not be construed so as to confer any right or benefit upon any person other than the parties hereto
and their respective successors and assigns.

(e Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

(d) Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed smultaneoudly in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which shall constitute
together one and the same instrument.

[THE NEXT PAGE IS THE SIGNATURE PAGE]
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AMENDMENT NO. 2
TO AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT

OF

ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERSLLC
(A New York Limited Liability Company)

THIS AMENDMENT No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement (this
“Amendment”) of ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERS LLC (the “Company”) is made
and entered into as of the 18th day of January, 1999, by and among the Members that are
signatories hereto, pursuant to Section 12.4 of that certain Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement dated as of October 1, 1998 among the Members, as amended by Amendment No. 1
dated as of November 10, 1998 (the “Operating Agreement”; terms used but not otherwise
defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the Operating Agreement).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Company is a limited liability company organized under the New York
Limited Liability Company Law pursuant to Articles of Organization filed with the Secretary of
State of the State of New Y ork on January 27, 1998 and governed by the Operating Agreement,
and

WHEREAS, the Members of the Company hereby wish to amend the terms of the
Operating Agreement to add provisions to facilitate the Company’ s raising additional capital in an
offering of the Preferred C Units, to clarify the transfer provisions with respect to holders of
Common Units that are not part of a Combined Unit, and certain other changes related thereto, in
each case on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, each of the parties hereto hereby agrees as follows:

1. Amendments to the Operating Agreement.

@ Section 2.31 is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:

Theterm “Initial Preferred Units’ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

DOCSNY 1:533434.2
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(b) The penultimate sentence of Section 3.1 is hereby amended and restated in its
entirety to read as follows:

The Company is authorized to accept Capital Contributions in respect of, and to
issue, five (5) Preferred Units designated Series A (the“Preferred A Units’),
twenty (25) Preferred Units designated Series B (the “Preferred B Units’, and,
together with the Preferred A Units, the “Initial Preferred Units’)) and thirty-five
(35) Preferred Units designated Series C (the “Preferred C Units’).

(c) The second sentence of Section 3.2(a) is hereby amended and restated in its
entirety to read as follows:

All Initial Preferred Units, to the extent issued, shall be issued and sold for the
price of $1,000,000 per Initia Preferred Unit; all Preferred C Units, to the extent
issued shall be issued and sold at the price of $1,000,000 (or such greater price as
may be determined by the Board).

(d) Section 9.1 is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:

9.1 Trandferability. A Member may offer to Transfer, and may so
Transfer, al or any portion of, or any rightsin, its Interest, provided that

@ any such offer and Transfer shall be subject to Section 9.2, except
any such offer and Transfer by aMember (i) to an immediate family member of a
trust established for the benefit of the Member or the Member’simmediate family,
asreferred to in Section 9.2 below, or (i) to an Affiliate of such Member of
Preferred Units,

(b) such Transfer will not result in the termination of the Company
pursuant to Code Section 708; and

(©) with respect to a Member holding its Interest as part of one or more
Combined Units, such Member shall be permitted to Transfer all of part of its
Interest in such Combined Unit as a Combined Unit only, without bifurcation of its
constituent Common Units and Preferred Units, for so long as such Preferred
Units entitle such Member to rights hereunder.

3. Generd Terms and Conditions.

@ Conditions Precedent. This Amendment shall become effective immediately upon
the execution and delivery of this Amendment by Members holding 75% of the outstanding
Preferred A Units, 75% of the outstanding Preferred B Units and 75% of the outstanding
Common Units, as provided in Section 12.4(b) of the Operating Agreement.

(b) Entire Agreement; No Other Agreement. Except as expressly provided in this
Amendment, al of the agreements, terms, covenants and conditions contained in the Operating

DOCSNY 1:533434.2 2
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Agreement shall remain unamended and shall continue to be, and shall remain, in full force and
effect in accordance with their respective terms. The amendments set forth herein shall be limited
precisely as provided for herein and shall not be deemed to be an amendment of, consent to or
modification of any other term, provision, of or under the Operating Agreement or of any term or
provision of any other instrument referred to therein or herein or of any transaction or further or
future action or failure to act by a party hereto or to the Operating Agreement.

(c)  Successors and Assigns. This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. This Amendment shall
not be construed so as to confer any right or benefit upon any person other than the parties hereto
and their respective successors and assigns.

(d) Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

(e) Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed smultaneoudly in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which shall constitute
together one and the same instrument.

[THE NEXT PAGE IS THE SIGNATURE PAGE]
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Exhibit B

A complete set of al forms pertaining to application for membership and for approval as a person associated
with amember are listed below and attached thereto.

Application Procedures
Financial Information Form
Pledge, Authorization and Declaration of Applicants for Membership



I nter national Securities Exchange
Member ship Application Procedures

The International Securities Exchange ("Exchange") encourages registered
broker-dealers and persons associated with registered broker-dealers to apply to become
Members of the Exchange. Persons who are neither registered broker-deal ers nor
associated with aregistered broker-dealer a'so may apply to become Exchange Members
("Lessor"), but must lease their Memberships to a broker-dealer or person associated with
abroker-dealer ("Lessee"). In that case, the Lessee must comply with these procedures,
while the Lessor must comply with those requirements specifically applicable to it, as
indicated below. Chapter 3 of the Exchange's Rules detail the requirements governing
Exchange Membership.

These procedures are for applicants (i) that already are registered as
broker-dealers and that are members of at least one other self-regulatory organization
("SRQ"), (ii) that are persons associated with such registered broker-dealers, and (iii) that
are Lessors and that will be leasing their Memberships to broker-dealers. Applicants that
are applying for Membership at the same time as initially registering as a broker-dealer
and joining one or more other SROs should contact the Exchange to discuss additional or
alternate information that the Exchange may require as part of the application process.

l. Required Application Material

An applicant must submit the materials ("Application Materias") listed below. As part
of the application review process, the Exchange may require an applicant to provide
supplemental information for review. An applicant must update any information that
becomes inaccurate or incomplete after the date of submission.

1) SEC Forms. The following forms and reports required by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange
Act):

a) FormBD: An origina signed and notarized Form BD reflecting the application
for Membership in the Exchange.’

b) FormsU-4:
i) For anindividual applicant, a Form U-4 for that individual;

i) For aMember Organization applicant, Forms U-4 for the Member
Organization’s nominee, each Designated Trading Representative, and any
other person who will be conducting Exchange trading activities,

! For applicants that are associated persons of a broker-dealer, thisform, and all other information relating
the broker-dealer, should be the information relating to the broker-dealer with whom the applicant is
associated.



2)

iif) For aMember Organization applicant, a copy of page 2 of Form U-4 for each
person listed on Schedule A of Form BD for whom afull Form U-4 is not
required, which need not be signed; and

iv) For Lessors, acopy of page 2 of Form U-4 for each individual applicant; and
for corporations, partnerships and limited liability companies (LLCs), a copy
of page 2 of Form U-4 for each person who would have been listed on
Schedule A of Form BD if the applicant were aregistered broker-dealer,
which need not be signed.

Focus Report: The applicant’s most recent "FOCUS Report" (Form X-17A-5)
filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 17a-5 under the Exchange Act (the most
current Parts|, 11, and 1A, as applicable).

Description of Proposed Exchange Trading: A narrative description of al material
aspects of the applicant's proposed business dealings on the Exchange, including, but
not limited to:

a)

b)

d)

f)

Whether the applicant proposes to act as a Primary Market Maker (PMM),
Competitive Market Maker (CMM), Electronic Access Member (EAM), or in
more than one capacity, as well as a description of the applicant's proposed
trading activity on the Exchange;

The office(s) from which the applicant will conduct its Exchange trading activity;
The name, address and e-mail addresses of:

i) The person who will be a Member Organization's nominee under Exchange
Rule 306;

i) The persons who will be responsible for the trading activity at each office,
including al Designated Trading Representative(s) of PMMs and CMMs
pursuant to Exchange Rule 802, and any other person who will conduct
Exchange trading;

iif) The person(s) who will have supervisory responsibility for the applicant's
Exchange trading;

For Member Organizations, an organizational chart, including the names of the
applicant's chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer,
and chief compliance officer;

The source and amount of applicant's capital to support its Exchange trading, and
the source of any additional capital that may become necessary;

For applicants that will act asaPMM or CMM and that will be conducting " Other
Business Activities," as that term is defined in Exchange Rule 811, a description



3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

of the "Chinese Wall" procedures required pursuant to paragraph (c) of that rule;
and

g) For an EAM, the proposed nature of the applicant's proposed trading on the
Exchange, such as whether it will be a clearing firm, enter customer orders (and if
so, manually or through an automated interface with internal firm order
processing systems), conduct block trading, etc.

Financial Information: A completed form regarding the applicant's financial
information, in the form attached as Exhibit A.

Organizational Documents: A copy of the applicant's partnership agreement, LLC
operating agreement, charter, by-laws or equivalent documents. This requirement
also appliesto Lessors.

Disciplinary History: A statement indicating whether the applicant or any person for
whom Forms U-4 or page 2 of Forms U-4 are required pursuant to No. 1, above, is
currently, or has been in the last 10 years, the subject of any investigation or
disciplinary proceeding conducted by any SRO, or by any Federal or state securities
or futures regulatory agency or commission, regarding the person's activities. If so,
the statement must include al relevant details, including any sanctions imposed. This
requirement also applies to Lessors.

Clearing and Other Agreements. A copy of any contract or agreement with another
broker-dealer, a bank, a clearing entity, a service bureau or a similar entity to provide
the applicant with services regarding the execution or clearance and settlement of
transactions effected on the Exchange.

Brokers' Blanket Bond: Evidence that the applicant has the required Brokers' Blanket
Bond required under Exchange Rule 624.

Member ship Purchase Documentation: For applicants that are purchasing PMM or
CMM Memberships, a copy of the sales agreement and a statement describing the
manner in which the applicant will be financing the purchase. This requirement also
appliesto Lessors.

Membership Lease Documentation: For applicants that are leasing PMM or CMM
Memberships, a copy of the lease agreement, which must include provisions
covering:

a) Theduration of the leaseg;
b) The consideration to be paid by the |essee;

c) The assignability of the respective interests of the lessee and lessor; and



d) Asbetween the parties, which party shall exercise the voting rights of the
Membership and which party shall provide the funds necessary to satisfy all
applicable Exchange dues, fees and other charges.

The lessee a'so must provide a letter of guarantee from an Exchange Clearing
Member or it must deposit with the Exchange an amount equal to the average of the
last three sales of Memberships of the same class being leased.

10) Risk Analysis. For applicants that propose to be Clearing Members, a copy of the
written procedures for assessing and monitoring potential risks, as required pursuant
to Exchange Rule 1405.

11) Non-Refundable Application Fee: A check representing the appropriate application
fee pursuant to the Exchange's Fee Schedule. These fees also apply to Lessors.

12) Pledge, Authorization and Declaration: A signed pledge and consent, in the form
attached as Exhibit B. This requirement also applies to Lessors.

. Application Process

The Exchange will process an application promptly upon receipt of al the
required documents and other materials. The Exchange will eectronically post the name
of the applicant.

After reviewing an application, the Exchange may require the applicant to
submit additional or supplemental information in support of the application. In addition,
the applicant or persons associated with the applicant will need to take and pass all
required examinations during the application process. It isalso possible that the
Exchange may request individual applicants and persons associated with applicants to
appear in person before the Exchange. The Exchange may require any Member or person
associated with a Member who has information relevant to the applicant's suitability to
provide information or testimony to the Exchange.

The Exchange will act on an application within 30 days of receiving all
necessary information and the application otherwise being complete. Absent an
Exchange determination to the contrary, the Exchange will consider an application to
have lapsed if the applicant: does not respond fully within 60 days after an initial request
for information or documents, or within 30 days after any subsequent request; or if the
application process is not completed within six months of the initial filing.

If the Exchange approves an application, the applicant must become an
effective Member of the Exchange within 90 days of the date of approval pursuant to
Exchange Rule 308. If the Exchange denies an application, the applicant will be so
informed, in writing, explaining the reasons for the denial. An applicant denied
Membership has the right to a hearing and review pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Exchange's Rules.

January, 1999



Exhibit A

International Stock Exchange
Financial Information
Regarding Applicants for Membership

Name: - (Applicant) Date:

l. Balance Sheset:
Assets

Cash or Cash Equivalents

Securities (Market Vaue)

Spot Commodities (Equity)

Real Estate (Market Value)

Exchange Memberships

Other Assets (Itemize Assets Over $10,000 in Value)
Total Assets

B BB PP P

Liabilities

Liabilities Secured by Real Estate
Bank Loans
Debt Financings
Amounts Owed to ExchangessMembers (Seell. 1.Below)
Taxes
Other (Itemize Amounts Over $10,000)
Total Liabilities

@ B BB H B P

Net Worth (Assets Minus Liabilities)

. Supplemental Financial Information

1. Does the Applicant owe any monies to the Exchange, another national securities
exchange, a national securities association, a commodities futures exchange, or to any
member of such an organization that are overdue? If so, indicate the
aggregate amount under "Liabilities," above, and attach a schedule itemizing such
amounts and describing any arrangements the Applicant has made to repay such
debts.

2. If Applicant intends to raise additional capital to finance its business on the
Exchange, attach a statement indicating the source and amount of such capital.



3. If any other person will guarantee the transactions the A pplicant will effect on the
Exchange, attach a statement indicating the name of the guarantor and the nature of
the guarantee.

4. Provide the name of Applicant's independent public accountant.

5. Provide the name of Applicant's Designated Examining Authority, as well as the
names of all other self-regulatory organization of which the Applicant is a member.

1. Declaration

| am the Chief Financial Officer of the Applicant and | hereby state that this financial
statement of the Applicant is atrue and accurate description of the Applicant's financial
condition as of the date first noted above.

By:

(Name and Title of Chief Financial Officer)

(Signature)



Exhibit B

International Stock Exchange
Pledge, Authorization and Declaration
of Applicants for Membership

(Name of Applicant "Applicant")
Applicant hereby:

Pledges that it will abide by the Operating Agreement, Constitution and Rules of the
International Securities Exchange (Exchange) as amended from time to time, and by all
circulars, notices, directives or decisions the Exchange adopts pursuant to or made in
accordance with the Operating Agreement, Constitution and Rules;

Authorizes any self-regulatory organization (SRO), commodities exchange, former
employer and other persons to furnish to the Exchange, upon its request, any information
that such person or entity may have concerning the character, ability, business activities,
reputation and employment history of the Applicant or its associated persons, and
releases such person or entity from any and al liability in furnishing such information to
the Exchange;

[Insert for Member Organizations: Authorizes (Nominee) as the nominee
of Applicant to represent the Applicant with respect to the Applicant's Membership in all
matters relating to the Exchange, and guarantees all obligations arising out of Nominee's
representation of the Applicant in all matters relating to the Exchange, including all
obligations both to the Exchange and to other Members and Member Organizations
resulting from transactions on the Exchange; | and

Authorizes the Exchange to make available to any governmental agency, SRO,
commodities exchange or similar entity, any information the Exchange may have
concerning the Applicant or its associated persons, and releases the Exchange from any
and al liability in furnishing such information; and

Declares that al the information contained in the Application Materials it has submitted
to the Exchange is true, complete and accurate.

By:

(Name and Title of Authorized Signatory)

(Signature)



Exhibit C

A complete set of all forms of financia statements, reports or questionnaires required of membersis included
under Exhibit B.



Exhibit D

The International Securities Exchange currently is proposing to trade only equity options issued by the Options
Clearing Corporation. Thus, there are no listing applications or similar documents.



Exhibit E

Audited financia statements for the fiscal 1997 and through October 31 for fiscal year 1998, which have been
prepared by Deloitte & Touche LLP, are attached hereto. Audited financial statements through the end of 1998

will be provided as soon as they are available. The International Securities Exchange has no consolidated
subsidiaries.



ISE LLC
(A Development Stage
Company)

Financial Statements for the Periods January 1,
1998 to October 31, 1998 and September 29,
1997 (Inception Date) to December 31, 1997
and Independent Auditors’ Report



Deloitte &
Touche

’\ Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (212) 436-2000
- Two World Financial Center Facsimile: (212) 436-5000
New York, New York 10281-1414

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of ISE LLC:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of ISE LLC (the “Company”) (a development stage
company) as of October 31, 1998 and December 31, 1997, and the related statements of operations and
cash flows for the periods January 1, 1998 to October 31, 1998 and September 29, 1997 (inception
date) to December 31, 1997. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as of October 31, 1998 and December 31, 1997, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the periods January 1, 1998 to October 31, 1998 and September 29, 1997 (inception
date) to December 31, 1997, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company is in the development stage as of October 31, 1998. As discussed in Note 1 to the
financial statements, successful completion of the Company’s development program and, ultimately,
the attainment of profitable operations is dependent upon future events, including maintaining adequate
financing to fulfill its development activities, obtaining regulatory approval, and achieving a level of
revenues adequate to support the Company’s cost structure.

ebot ~ Tocke L2/

January 22, 1999

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu



ISE LLC

(A Development Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS

OCTOBER 31, 1998 AND DECEMBER 31, 1997

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

~ PREPAID EXPENSES

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT (net of accumulated
depreciation of $17,855 in 1998 and $5,321 in 1997)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ CAPITAL

LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities
Amount due to member

Total liabilities

MEMBERS’ CAPITAL:

10 Class A memberships, 50 Class B memberships and an unlimited
number of Class C memberships authorized; 10 Class A memberships
and 50 Class B memberships outstanding on October 31, 1998 and
13 Class B memberships outstanding on December 31, 1997

Balance at beginning of period

Net loss for the period

Sale of memberships

Membership subscription receivable

Balance at end of period

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ CAPITAL

See notes to financial statements.

1998 1997

$ 9,057,116  $ 76,000
7,823

50,889 30,243

$ 9,115,828  $106,243
$ 160,656

33,906  $507,775

194,562 507,775
(401,532)

(1,677202)  (726,532)

30,450,000 325,000
(19,450,000)

8921266  (401,532)

$ 9,115,828  $106,243




ISELLC
(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
PERIODS JANUARY 1, 1998 TO OCTOBER 31, 1998 AND
SEPTEMBER 29, 1997 (INCEPTION DATE) TO DECEMBER 31, 1997

September 29,
1997 (Inception)
through
1998 1997 October 31, 1998
REVENUE:
Interest income $ 126,442 $ - $ 126,442
EXPENSES:
System development costs 675,000 675,000
Salaries, benefits and taxes 435,856 316,908 752,764
Legal fees 257,699 247,282 504,981
Travel and entertainment 116,357 86,967 203,324
Rent and office expense 123,050 28,644 151,694
Professional services 123,826 27,250 151,076
Depreciation 12,534 5,321 17,855
Interest expense 31,148 12,660 43,808
Other 28,174 1,500 29,674
Total expenses 1,803,644 726,532 2,530,176
NET LOSS $(1,677,202)  $(726,532) $(2,403,734)

See notes to financial statements.



ISELLC
(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

PERIODS JANUARY 1, 1998 TO OCTOBER 31, 1998 AND
SEPTEMBER 29, 1997 (INCEPTION DATE) TO DECEMBER 31, 1997

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
~ Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Prepaid expenses

Amount due to member
Accrued liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY -
Purchase of furniture and equipment

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY -
Proceeds from sale of memberships

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:
Interest paid

Memberships issued for membership subscription
receivable

See notes to financial statements.

September 29,
1997 (Inception)
through
1998 1997 October 31, 1998
$(1,677,202)  $(726,532) $ (2,403,734)
12,534 5,321 17,855
(7,823) (7,823)
(473,869) 507,775 33,906
160,656 160,656
(1,985,704) (213,436) (2,199,140)
(33,180) (35,564) (68,744)
11,000,000 325,000 11,325,000
8,981,116 76,000 9,057,116
76,000 - -
$ 9,057,116 $ 76,000 $ 9,057,116
$ 31,148 $ 12,660 $ 43,808
$19,450,000 $19,450,000



ISELLC
(A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERIODS JANUARY 1, 1998 TO OCTOBER 31, 1998 AND
SEPTEMBER 29, 1997 (INCEPTION DATE) TO DECEMBER 31, 1997

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General - ISE LLC (the “Company”), a development stage company, was organized on September 29,
1997 under New York Limited Liability Company Law. The Company was formed to develop and
ultimately conduct the operations of the International Securities Exchange, a fully electronic options
exchange. Since inception, substantially all of the resources of the Company have been devoted to the
development of the exchange and to establish the infrastructure that would permit the operation of the
exchange.

Basis of Presentation - The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in conformity with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7, Accounting and Reporting by Development Stage
Enterprises. As a development stage company with no commercial operating history, the Company is
subject to all of the risks and expenses inherent in the establishment of a new business enterprise. To
address these risks and expenses, the Company must, among other things, respond to competitive
developments, attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel and support the expense of marketing new
services based upon innovative technology. In addition, the Company must receive regulatory approval.
To date, the Company has not recognized any operating revenues and does not expect to recognize any
revenues until January 2000. As a result of incurring expenses in these development activities without
generating revenues, the Company has incurred significant losses and negative cash flow from operating
activities, and as of October 31, 1998, the Company had accumulated net losses of $2,403,734. The
Company expects to incur substantial losses and substantial negative cash flow from operating activities
in the foreseeable future. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be able to achieve
revenues in excess of such expenses.

Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Furniture and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the asset.

Income Taxes - The Company is not subject to federal and state income tax as the net income (loss) is
passed through to the members. Each member’s share of net income (loss) is included on his/her tax
returns in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles necessarily requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the periods presented. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



OPERATING AGREEMENT

The amended and restated Operating Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated August 1, 1998 sets forth the
respective rights and obligations of members of the Company and provides for terms of its management
and conduct of its affairs as summarized below:

Term - The Company’s stated termination date is December 31, 2098.

Capital Contributions - Initially, the Company is authorized to accept capital contributions for 10
Class A Membership Units for Primary Market Makers, 50 Class B Membership Units for Market
Makers and an unlimited number of Class C Membership Units for broker/dealers who will be
Electronic Access Members.

Capital Accounts - The Company must establish capital accounts for each Class A and each Class B
Member. No capital account may be established for Class C Members. The Board may, in its
discretion, adjust the capital accounts to reflect a revaluation of the Company’s assets in accordance
with the Agreement.

Allocation of Net Income (Loss) - In accordance with the Agreement, net income and losses are
allocated among the Class A Members and Class B Members in proportion to their respective capital
interests. Class C Members may not be allocated any portion of net income and losses.

Distributions - Each Class A Member and Class B Member are entitled to receive distributions in
proportion to their respective capital interests provided that mandatory distributions are made, to the
extent of cash available, to each Class A Member and Class B Member sufficient to allow them to pay
federal, state and local income taxes on the income of the Company deemed to be taxable to the
members.

MEMBERSHIP SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLE

On August 1, 1998, Adirondack Trading Partners, LLC (“ATP”) entered into an agreement with the
Company to purchase 10 Class A Membership Units and 37 Class B Membership Units for $30,450,000.
The purchase price is payable in two installments. As of October 31, 1998, ATP made payments of
$11,000,000. The remaining amount payable of $19,450,000 is due on August 1, 1999.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the period September 29, 1997 (inception date) to December 31, 1997, a member advanced the
Company $507,775. During the period January 1, 1998 to October 31, 1998, $473,869 was repaid.

Additionally, the Company entered into an agreement with a member of ATP, whereby the member will
provide technology in the development of the Company’s systems. In exchange for such technology, the
Company will pay the member a fee based on the volume of future contracts transacted per day for a
minimum period of eight years.

% %k %k %k *k %



Exhibit F

Audited financial statements for the International Securities Exchange have been provided under Exhibit E.
Unconsolidated financial statements for Adirondack Trading Partners, LLC through October 31 for fiscal year

1998 are attached hereto. Financial statements through the end of 1998 will be provided as soon as they are
available.



Adirondack Trading
Partners LLC

Unconsolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited) for the Period January 27, 1998
(Inception Date) to October 31, 1998



UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
OCTOBER 31, 1998

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
INVESTMENT IN ISE LLC

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT (net of accumulated depreciation
of $3,126)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ CAPITAL

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

MEMBERS’ CAPITAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ CAPITAL

See notes to unconsolidated unaudited financial statements.

$10,291,771

9,549,534

44,858

$19,886,163

$ 73,491
19,812,672

$19,886,163



ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERS LLC

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
PERIOD JANUARY 27, 1998 (INCEPTION DATE) TO OCTOBER 31, 1998

REVENUE:
Interest income

EXPENSES:
Salaries, benefits and taxes
Travel
Interest expense
Legal fees
Consultants fees
Rent and office expense

Depreciation
Other

Total expenses
OPERATING LOSS
EQUITY LOSS IN ISE LLC

NET LOSS

See notes to unconsolidated unaudited financial statements.

5159264

379,670
137,233
115,765
143,637
107,100
36,856
3,126

6,639

930,026

(770,762)

(1,450,466)

$(2,221,228)



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
PERIOD JANUARY 27, 1998 (INCEPTION DATE) TO OCTOBER 31, 1998

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation
Equity loss in ISE LLC
Change in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of furniture and equipment
Investment in ISE LLC

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY:

Proceeds from issuance of preferred capital
Proceeds from issuance of common capital

Net cash provided by financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

See notes to unconsolidated unaudited financial statements.

$ (2,221,228)

3,126
1,450,466

73,491

(694,145)

(47,984)

(11,000,000)

(11,047,984)

21,950,000
83,900

22,033,900

10,291,771

510201771



ADIRONDACK TRADING PARTNERS LLC

NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
PERIOD JANUARY 27, 1998 (INCEPTION DATE) TO OCTOBER 31, 1998

1.

ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Adirondack Trading Partners LLC (the “Company”) was organized on January 27, 1998 under New
York Limited Liability Company Law. The Company is a consortium of broker/dealers formed to hold
memberships in ISE LLC, a fully electronic options exchange.

Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Furniture and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Income Taxes - The Company is not taxed on its net income (loss) as the net income (loss) is passed
through to the members. Each member’s share of net income (loss) is included on his/her tax returns in
accordance with the Internal Revenue Code.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles necessarily requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts
of income and expenses for the periods presented. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

OPERATING AGREEMENT

The Operating Agreement dated January 27, 1998 sets forth the respective rights and obligations of
members of the Company and provides for terms of its management and conduct of its affairs as
summarized below:

Term - The Company’s stated termination date is December 31, 2098.

Preferred A Units - The Company is authorized to issue 5 Preferred A Units for $1,000,000 per unit. As
of October 31, 1998, 5 Preferred A Units were issued and outstanding.

Preferred B Units - The Company is authorized to issue 25 Preferred B Units. As of October 31, 1998,
16.95 Preferred B Units were issued and outstanding.

Common Units - The Company is authorized to issue 1,390,000 Common Units. As of October 31,
1998, 839,000 Common Units were issued and outstanding.

Capital Accounts - The Company must establish capital accounts for each member holding Preferred A
Units and Preferred B Units. The Board mayj, in its discretion, adjust the capital accounts to reflect a
revaluation of the Company’s assets in accordance with the Agreement.

Allocation of Net Income (Loss) - In accordance with the Agreement, net income and losses are
allocated among the holders of Preferred A Units and Preferred B Units in proportion to their respective
capital interests.



Distributions - Members are entitled to receive distributions in proportion to their ownership of units, to
the extent of cash available, to allow them to pay federal, state and local income taxes on the income of
the Company deemed to be taxable to the members.

INVESTMENT IN ISE LLC

On August 1, 1998, The Company entered into an agreement with ISE LLC to purchase 10 Class A
Membership Units and 37 Class B Membership Units in ISE LLC for $30,450,000. The purchase price
is payable in two installments. As of October 31, 1998, the Company made payments of $11,000,000.
The remaining amount payable of $19,450,000 is due on August 1, 1999.

% %k %k *k %k *k



Exhibit G

The officers of the International Securities Exchange are listed below. Pursuant to the Operating Agreement
and Constitution, the Exchange has two managers until the initial board of directorsis elected, which election
shall take place prior to the initiation of trading on the Exchange. There are no fixed terms for officer positions.
None of the officers are engaged in business as any type of Exchange Member, although Adirondack Trading
Partners, LLC, with which William A. Porter is affiliated, intends to be a market maker on the Exchange. The
Exchange currently has no committees.

William A. Porter:  Chairman and Manager beginning January 1998.

David Krell: President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager beginning January 1998.
Gary Katz: Senior Vice President, Marketing and Business Development beginning January
1998.

Michael J. Simon:  Senior Vice President, Chief Regulatory Officer, General Counsel and Secretary
beginning November 1998.

Richard Pombonyo: Vice President, Marketing beginning December 1998.



Exhibit H

The officers and directors of Adirondack Trading Partners, LLC are listed below. The company does not have
any committees.

William A Porter: Chairman and Director.

Marty Averbuch: President, Chief Executive Officer and Director.
E. E. Geduld: Director.

Kenneth D. Pasternak: Director.

Magnus Karlsson: Director.



Exhibit |

While memberships are owned by two individuals, the Exchange has not approved any individual members for
trading on the Exchange. The two individua owners are David Krell and Gary Katz, neither of which is

associated with a broker-dealer member of the Exchange. Their business addressis 110 Wall Street, New Y ork,
New Y ork 10005.



Exhibit J

While memberships are owned by two organizations, the Exchange has not approved any member organizations
for trading on the Exchange. The two organizations, neither of which currently is a broker-dealer in securities,
are listed below.

Adirondack Trading Partners, LLC
47 Laurel Hill Road

Centerport, New York 11721
(516) 754-3532

KAP Group, LLC

316 Golden Hills Dr.

Portola Valley, California 94028
(650) 851-7359



Exhibit K

There are no securities listed on the Exchange.



Exhibit L

There are no securities admitted to unlisted trading privileges on the Exchange.



Exhibit M

There are no unregistered securities admitted to trade on the Exchange.



Exhibit N

A description of the Exchange' s system is attached hereto.



INTERNATIONAL SECURITIESEXCHANGE™
Description of Trading on the Exchange

The ISE will operate an automated trading system (the "System™) for standardized equity
options. It will be an agency-auction market similar to the exchange markets currently in
operation, although the auction will occur electronicaly, and not on afloor. This exhibit
describes the participants in this market and the most significant rules and procedures
governing trading in the System. Thisisintended only as a summary, and the Exchange's
Constitution and Rules more fully describe trading on the Exchange.

|. Membership

There are three types of members at the ISE: Primary Market Makers ("PMMS"),
Competitive Market Makers ("CMMSs") and Electronic Access Members ("EAMS"). Each
PMM and CMM will enter their own independent quotations into the System. EAMs will
enter agency and principal orders into the System. PMMs and CMMs will enter size with
quotations, and must provide a minimum size, established by the Exchange, for the
execution of customer orders. PMMs will have terminals that provide them with
information on the orders and quotations pending in the System, while CMMs and EAMs
will have terminals that display the best bid and offer ("BBQO") in each options series, as
well as the aggregate size of the BBO.

The Exchange expects to trade all of the series of approximately 600 actively-traded
options classes, which it will divide into 10 groups of approximately 60 classes each.
There will be atotal of 10 PMMs (one in each group) and 100 CMMs (ultimately 10 in
each group, although there initially will be only 50 CMMs authorized to trade, with fivein
each group). In addition to being able to enter quotations, PMMs and CMMs will be able
to enter "immediate or cancel” limit ordersin their assigned options. Subject to certain
limitations, PMMs and CMMs aso will be permitted to place ordersin any of the other
groups of options, but will not be allowed to enter quotations outside their assigned
group(s). EAMswill not be permitted to enter orders that would effectively result in
market making on the Exchange.

I. System Executions

Trades will occur when orders or quotations match in the ISE System. Customer orders
will always have priority. If more than one customer order has been entered into the
System at the same price, priority is based on the time of order entry. The System will not
automatically execute a customer order at a price inferior to the price quoted on another
options exchange. In this situation, the PMM can establish parameters for matching away-
market quotations or the PMM can handle the order on an individual basis.
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After al customer trading interest is executed, orders up to a size determined by the
Exchange (the "Minimum Size") will be traded exclusively by the PMM (if the PMM is at
the best quote). If the PMM is not the best quote, or if the order is larger than the
Minimum Size, the trade will be split among (i) the PMM (if at the best quote), (ii) those
CMMs quoting at the best price and (iii) those EAMs with proprietary orders at the best
price. The Exchange will establish an algorithm to allocate the trade among these market
participants, with the PMM (if participating with enough size) taking a portion of the trade
larger than any one CMM or EAM. To encourage the entry of quotations and ordersin
size, the alocation of atrade anmong PMM, CMMs and EAMs with quotes or orders at
the best price will be based on the size of their quote or order.

If amember enters alimit order into the System that crosses trading interest already in the
System, atrade will occur, to the extent that size is available, at the price of the trading
interest already in the System. After executing against that trading interest, the limit order
will trade against other trading interest in the System until the limit order isfilled inits
entirety or the order depletes the available size at that price. If any amount of the limit
order remains unexecuted, the balance of the order will become the best bid or offer.

In addition, trades will not necessarily occur when quotations of PMMs and CMMs match
or cross each other. Such matches or crosses can occur, for example, because market
maker auto-quotation systems can respond at different speeds. Thus, atrade between two
or more market makers will only occur after the quotations remain matched for a defined
amount of time, which will be less than one second.

Finaly, PMMs and CMMs will have the ability to set parameters regarding their
willingness to trade generally with a broker-deaer's proprietary order. When the Exchange
receives such an order, any CMM or PMM quotations in the System will be executable
only up to the size of the PMM's or CMM's pre-set parameter. The matching rules
discussed above otherwise remain the same. Upon completion of the trade, if a PMM or
CMM that has established parameters for trading against a proprietary order does not
provide a complete fill to the order, the PMM or CMM cannot continue to quote at that
price and must move its quotation to the next level. Orders of market makers on other
options exchanges will be handled on an order-by-order basis by the PMM and CMMs.

[11. Facilitation Mechanism

For block-size orders (currently set in the ISE Rules at 50 contracts), an EAM will be able
to use a specia "facilitation mechanism™ to cross an order between the EAM and its own
customer. When the Exchange receives such an order, it will send to the PMM and
CMMs assigned to the option, as well asto any EAM that has a proprietary order at the
best quote, an anonymous message informing them of the proposed transaction. The
recipients of the broadcast will have a designated amount of time, set by the Exchange, to
respond. Those responses will not be disseminated.
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Upon expiration of the set time period, the System will execute the order as follows:
First, it will fill any customersin the System at the facilitation price or better at the
facilitation price, thus providing such orders price protection. Second, and only after all
customer orders are filled, the EAM entering the order will be allocated a percentage of
the remaining order, at alevel the Exchange will set from time to time. Third, the PMM,
CMMs and EAMSs responding at the transaction price (or quoting at the transaction price
or better) will trade pursuant to an algorithm set by the Exchange. Finaly, if any portion
of the order remains unfilled, the EAM entering the facilitation order will trade the
balance.

V. Block Trading Mechanism

A specia "block trading mechanism™" also is available to EAMS, which they can use to
solicit market participation for block-size orders. This mechanism isintended to minimize
the market impact of large orders and uses a “quote request” methodology. The buyer or
seller of the block sends in atrade request in size, which is broadcast to the assigned PMM
and CMMs assigned to the option and to any EAM that has a proprietary order at the best
guote. The EAM using the block trading mechanism determines the amount of information
that will be disclosed in the broadcast. For example, the broadcast can disclose that there
isasell or abuy order, or it could ask for size on either side. The broadcast a'so may or
may not display size or price or any conditions on the block-size order.

The Exchange will set atime period by which market participants must respond to the
broadcast. The responses will not be disseminated. After receiving the responses, the
System will execute the trade, if possible, at asingle price. Executable customer ordersin
the System are executed first. Customer orders at the block execution price or better will
be executed at the block price, thus providing such orders price protection. After all
customer orders are filled, the PMM, CMMs and EAMs responding at the transaction
price (or better) will trade pursuant to an algorithm set by the Exchange. After the trade
isexecuted (or if thereis no trade), all unexecuted responses are removed from the
System and have no further standing.

V. Openings

The PMM will conduct an opening in each options series based on an agorithm operating
according to the following principles: All market orders must be filled; all orders must
trade at the same price; and market orders are filled before limit orders, regardiess of the
time of entry.

The opening price is determined using al the orders and quotes available in that series.
Depending on the size of both sides of the market, the PMM’s input may be required in
the opening process.
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VI. Fast Markets

"Fast markets' are markets in which the volume is so great, or the market so volatile, that
it is not possible to apply the normal rules governing firm quotations and System
executions. The Exchange staff can declare afast market, either on its own or at the
request of aPMM. In the event of afast market, the Exchange will append a non-firm
guote indicator to all quotationsin the affected class or series. When trading in this
condition, the System will "pause” for a set number of seconds, accumulating orders on
the book without effecting atrade. The pause will be at least 20 seconds, but could be
longer depending on the specific market conditions.

After the pause, the System will operate similarly to an opening rotation, thus attempting
to maximize trading possibilities. However, unlike an opening, there will be no
requirement to fill all market ordersin afast market. The Exchange will continue the fast
market trading process until the fast market conditions end.
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